
2007 
Free Will Baptist 

Yearbook 

The National Association of 

Free Will Baptists 

© 2007 
The Executive Office 

National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
P. 0. Box 5002, Antioch, Tennessee 37011-5002 

5233 Mt. View Road, Antioch, Tennessee 37013-2306 
Telephone: 615/731-6812 FAX: 615/731-0771 

Printed by Randall House Publications 

• 



Minutes 
of the 

Seventieth Annual Session 
of the 

National Association 
of 

Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
when convened in 

Birmingha•n, Alaba•na 
July 16-19, 2006 

Future Sessions 

2007 Little Rock, Arkansas 
2008 Charleston, West Virginia 
2009 Cincinnati, Ohio 
201 0 Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
2011 Charlotte, North Carolina 
2012 Memphis, Tennessee 
2013 Tampa, Florida 
2014 Fort Worth, Texas 
2015 Grand Rapids, Michigan 
2016 Kansas City, Missouri 
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July 15-18 
July 20-23 
July 19-22 
July 18-21 
July 17-20 
July 15-18 
July 21-24 
July 27-30 
July 19-22 
July 17-20 



Officers and Boord Members 

General OHicers 
Moderator .............................. Tim York 
Assistant Moderator .................... William Smith 
Clerk ........... . .................. Randy Bryant 
Assistant Clerk ......................... Ernie Lewis 
Executive Secretary-Treasurer .. . ............ Keith Burden 

2007 
Alabama: Rick Cosh 
Arizona: Charles Marshall 
Arkansas: Tim Campbell 
Assn. of Mexico: 

luis Felipe Tijerina 
Ari. Canada: Fred Hanson 
California: Millard Sasser 
Colorado: Mark Thomas 
Florida: Paul Smith 
Georgia: len Blanchard 
Idaho: Earl Jenkins 
Illinois: David Shores 

General Board 

2008 
Indiana: Chris Clay 
Kansas: Zone Brooks 
Kentucky: James Patton 
Mexico Assn.: Bud Bivens 
Michigan: Gene Norris 
Mid-Ariontic: Wayne Hale 
Mississippi: J.l. Gore 
Missouri: Gory Fry 
New Jersey: William Brown 
New Mexico: Mark Shores 

Executive Committee 

2009 
North Carolina: Jim Marcum 
Northeast Dist.: Jim Nason 
Northwest Dist.: A. Dorrell Smith 
Ohio: Mike Stokes 
Oklahoma: Ernest Harrison, Jr. 
South Corotlna: NUke Jones 
Tennessee: Charles Th~pen 
Texas: Keith Wocxty 
Virginia: Glen Johnson 
West Virginia: luther Morgan 

Moderator: Tim York, 623 Knollwood Drive, laVergne, TN 37086 
Assistant Moderator: William Smith, P.O. Box 507, Colquitt, GA 39837 
Clerk: Randy Bryant, 2156 54th Avenue, Vero Beach, Fl32966 
Assistant Clerk: Ernie lewis, Route 1, Box 52A, Cisne, ll 62823 

2007 
Tim Campbell (AR) 
Rick Cosh (AU 
Fred Hanson (Ati-Con) 

2008 
Gory Fry (MO) 
J.L Gore (MS) 
Gene Norris (MI) 

2009 
Ernest Harrison, Jr. (OK) 
Glen Johnson (VA) 
Keith Woody (TX) 

Boord of Trustees of Free Will Baptist Bible College 
Chairman: Gene Ou~and, 14869 N. Rend City Road, Sesser, ll62884 

2008 2010 2012 
Bob Bass (TN) Steve Ashby (OK) A. C. Allen (S() 
Gene Outland (ll) Billy Hanna (GA) Ken Simpson (MO) 
Archie Roriiff (N() Terry Pierce (MS) Mark Stripling (AR) 
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Boord of International Missions 
Chairman: Danny Williams, 235 Meadowlark Rood, Winfield, AL 35594 

2008 2010 2012 
Jeff Manning (NO Sherwood Lee (SC) Nelson Henderson (AR) 
Bill Von Winkle (TX) Tom McCullough (MI) Jerry Norris (MO) 
David Williford (TN) Donny Williams (Al) Randy Wilson (OK) 

Board of Home Missions 
Chairman: James Puckett, 301 Paxton Court, Norman, OK 73069 

2007 2009 2011 
Jerry Atwell (MS) loyd Locklear (MI) Harold Blankenship (TN) 
Bobby Shepherd (AR) Ron Porker (LA) Robert Thebeau (MO) 
Matt Upton (CA) James Puckett (OK) Randy Wright (AL) 

Board of Retirement and Insurance 
Chairman: Ron Barber, 525 S. Main, Ste. 500, Tulsa, OK 7 4103 

2007 2009 2011 
Bobby Bowers (SC) Jock Daniel (GA) Ron Barber (OK) 
Craig Cook (TN) William Ferguson (MI) Tim Hall (KY) 
Jock Word (NC) James Lowe (OH) Milburn Wilson (TX) 

Boord of Master's Men 
Chairman: Cliff Donoho, 4029 Calumet Drive, Antioch, TN 37013 

2007 2009 2011 
Roy Copeland (OK) Cliff Donoho (TN) B.J. Morgan (MO) 
Rudy Taylor (MI) Johnny Fowlkes (AR) Mike Mounts (OH) 
Jason Vinson (Al) Rick Stone (KY) Ernie Taylor (IL) 

Boord of Trustees of the Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Chairman: Wayman Fields, P.O. Box 17 4, Millport, Al3557 6 

2007 2009 
Brian Hurst (MO) Rick Locklear (MI) 
Donnie Miles (SC) Barry Simpson (TN) 
Wendell Walley (CA) Phil Whiteaker (AR) 

2011 
Wayman Fields (Al) 
Roy Harris (TN) 
Melvin Worthington (NC) 

Foundation Board also includes diredols of national agencies: 
James Forlines (IM) Matt Pinson (FWBB() 
Lorry Powell (HM) Marjorie Workman (WNAO 
Kenneth Akers (MM) Ron Hunter (SS & CT) 
Roy lewis (R&I) Keith Burden (Exec. Off.) 
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Boord of Sunday School and Church Training 
Chairman: Michael Waddell, 2701 Florence Boulevard, Florence, AL 35630 

2008 2010 2012 
Nuel Brown (CA) Tim Eaton (OK) Mark Braisher (MO) 
Danny Dwyer (N(} Tim Owen (FL) Edwin Hayes (OH) 
David Reece (TN) Michael Waddell (AL) David Womack (IL) 

Commission for Theological Integrity 
Chairman: Leroy Forlines, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 
2007 Leroy Forlines (TN) 2010 Craig Shaw (OK) 
2008 Matt Pinson (TN) 2011 Paul Harrison (TN) 
2009 Steve Ashby (OK) 

Historical Commission 
Chairman: Darrell Holley, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 
2007 Jack Williams (TN) 201 0 Darrell Holley (TN) 
2008 David Crowe (TN) 2011 Jeff Cockrell (S(} 
2009 Robert Picirilli (TN) 

. Media Commission 
Chairman: Mike Jones, P.O. Box 13266, Florence, SC 29504 
2007 Kevin Norris (MI) 2010 Doug Kite (N(} 
2008 Sandy Goodfellow (TN) 2011 Monte McKenzie (GA) 
2009 Mike Jones (S(} 

Music Commission 
Chairman: Chris Truett, 1936 Banks School Road, Kinston, NC 28504 
2007 Doug Uttle (TN) 2010 Chris Truett (N(} 
2008 James Stevens (TN) 2011 Donnie Burke (GA) 
2009 Daron Dwyer (N(} 
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Proceedings 
The 70th annual session of the National Association of Free Will 

Baptists met july 16-19, 2006, at the Birmingham:Jefferson 
Convention Complex in Birmingham, Alabama. "Opening Our 
Eyes" was the theme for the meeting. Dean Jones served as conven­
tion manager and Chris Truett as music coordinator. 

Sunday School - July 16, 2006 
Sunday School began at 10:00 a.m. with Jeremy Thomas lead­

ing the congregation in singing "Blessed Assurance" and the chorus 
of "Great Is Thy Faithfulness." 

Danny Williams led in prayer and introduced the Sunday School 
teacher. Jerry Williams taught the lesson from Galatians 3: 1-14 on 
"Faith From First To Last." 

Sunday Morning- July 16, 2006 
Morning worship began at 11 :00 a.m. with jeremy Thomas 

leading the congregation in singing "All Hail The Power," "Glorify 
Thy Name," and "Majesty." Danny Williams welcomed .the asse~­
bly and called for the offering. The offering was rece1ved whde 
Jennifer Morris sang "H is Eye Is On The Sparrow." The congrega-
tion sang "Praise Him, Praise Him," "I Sing Praises," and "Because 
He Lives." 

Danny Williams introduced the speaker and Jennifer M orris sang 
"The Midnight Cry." Tim Campbell, Executive Director of the 
Arkansas State Association, preached from 2 Corinthia ns 4 : 1-6 on 
"Opening Our Eyes To The Lost." The congregation sa ng "The 
Church's One Foundation" and the service was dismissed. 

Sunday Evening - July 16, 2006 
Evening worship began at 7:00 p.m. with the Horne Family pro­

viding the call to worship. Josh Boer led the congregation in singing 
"Oh! The Blood Of Jesus" medley. 

William Smith gave a welcome and called for the offering. Paul 
Creech led in prayer. The congregation then sang "No O ther 
Name," "And Can It Be," and "The Wonderful Cross." 

William Smith introduced the speaker and the Faith Trio sang, 
"They Should Have Cried Holy." Len Blanchard , pastor of 
Shallowford Free Will Ba ptist Church in Marietta, Georgia , preached 
from Genesis 3: 1-7 on "Opening Our Eyes To Our Sin." 'just As I Am" 
was sung as the invitation and the service was dismissed. 
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Monday Evening - July 171 2006 
, The eve~ing wors~ip ~gan with the National YET Team singing, 
,O~r Dwell1ng Place. , Shns Truett led the congregation in singing, 
M1ghty Is Our God, I Sing The Mighty Power Of God," and 

"Blessed Be The Lord God Almighty." Tne Convention Choir, direct­
ed by Donnie Burke, sang "How Great Is Our God." Presider Ernie 
L~wis welcomed the body and led in prayer. Rick Cash, Promotional 
~1rector for the Alabama State Association, gave a welcome and 
Introduced State Representative Scott Beason who gave greetings on 
beh?lf of the governor of Alabama. Clerk Randy Bryant callea the 
sess1on to order and introduced the moderator, Tim York. Moderator 
York appointed the following committees: 

Credentials Committee: Charles Thigpen (TN), Chairman 
Millard Sasser (CA) Gene Norris (MI) 
Jim Marcum (NC) jim Patton (KY) 

Nominating Committee: Tim Eaton (OK), Chairman 
Glen johnson (VA) Len Blanchard (GA) 
David Taylor (AR) Terry Pierce (MS) 
Keith Woody (TX) Edwin Hayes (OH) 

Resolutions Committee: Fred Hanson (Atl.-can.), Chairman 
Danny Thompson (AL) Mike jones (SC) 
Chris Clay (IN) jim Williams (MO) 

Obituary Committee: George Harvey, Jr. (AZ), Chairman 
Ed Hutchinson (FL) jim Cox (WV) 
Gene Outland (IL) jay Baines (Mid-Atlantic) 

Ernie Lewis introduced the speaker. The Convention Choir under 
the direction of Chris Truett sang, "No More Night." The congrega­
tion sang, "It Is Well" and "I Will Sing Praise" followed by a testimo­
ny by Roy Harris. 

. David Potete, pastor of Northwest Free Will Baptist Church in 
Ch1cago, IL,. pr~ac~,e~ from 2 Kings 6:8-2? on "Opening Our Eyes 
~o The Poss1.bd1t1es. Wherever He Leads was sung as the invita­
tion and Ern1e Lewis dismissed the service in prayer. 

Tuesday Afternoon - July 181 2006 
Moderator Tim York called the business meeting to order at 1 :30 

p.m. The moderator brought a devotion from Titus 1 :3 on "Preaching 
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The Word" and concluded with prayer. 
The clerk read the Credentials Committee report. Motion carried 

to receive the report and seat the delegates. 
Motion carried to have the Executive Committee bring to the 

2007 convention written clarification of exactly who qualifies for the 
designation of standing delegate as named in Part V, Article Ill, of the 
Treatise and, if necessary, propose an amendment to the Treatise to 
clarifv the designation. 

The clerk read a partial report of the General Board. Motion 
carried to receive Item 1 of the report. 

Executive Secretary Keith Burden gave the reports for the 
Executive Office and ONE Magazine. Auditor Terry Hill gave the 
financial reports of the office. Motion carried to receive the reports. 

Dean jones was recognized and presented a gih for his tenure 
as convention manager. 

Director Larry Powell gave the Home Missions Department 
report. Paul McKissick, Ken and Paula Dodson, and Bob and Brenda 
Lewis were presented plaques in recognition of achieving self-su~ 
porting status. Chaplain Tracy Kerr brought greetings on behalf of 
Free Will Baptist chaplains. Col. Kerry Steedley and his wife, Brenda, 
brought greetings to the convention and were presented a plaque 
recognizing their 28 years of service. Motion was carried to receive 
the report. 

Director Ken Akers gave the Master's Men Department report. 
Motion carried to receive the report. 

Director Ray Lewis gave the Board of Retirement and Insurance 
report. john Brummitt gave the financial report. Motion carried to 
receive the report. 

The clerk read the final report from the General Board. Motion 
carried to receive the report and act on it item by item. 

Motion carried to adopt Item 2 of the General Board report as 
presented by Executive Administrator Roy Harris. 

Motion carried to adopt Item 3 of the General Board report. 
Motion carried to adopt Item 4 of the General Board report . 
The clerk read the Nominating Committee report for General 

Board members. Motion carried to receive the report and elect 
members for terms ending in 2009 and for replacement of Nathan 
Ruble with the unexpired 2008 term. 

The clerk read the Nominating Committee report for Executive 
Committee members with terms enaing in 2009. Ernest Harrison, Jr. 
(OK), Glen johnson (VA), and Keith Woody (TX) were elected. Gary 
Fry (MO) was elected to fill the 2008 unexpired term of Nathan Ruble. 
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Tuesday Evening - July 18, 2006 
The evening worship began at 7:00 p.m. with the Convention 

Choir singing, "The Days Ot Elijah" directed by Doug Little. Bryan 
Hughes led the congregation in singing, "Wonderful Grace Of 
Jesus," "You Are My Allin All," and "I Worship You, Almighty God." 

On behalf of the Music Commission, Chris Truett presented Dr. 
Randy Sawyer with a gift of appreciation for his years of service. 

Ernest Harrison, Jr., welcomed the assembly, introduced the 
speaker for the .service and received the offering. Following prayer 
by Ernest Hamson, Jr. I the Convention Choir, directed oy Chris 
yruett, sang 'jesus, .~hat~ ,0ighty Name." The c~,ngregation sang, 
He Keeps Me Smg~~g, I d Rathe~ Ha,ye jesus with a solo by 

c.had Do~?ho, and Who Can Sat1sfy? The Music Commission 
Tno sang, Your Grace Still Amazes Me." 

Jim Puckett, Missions Director for the Oklahoma State Associ­
atio~, preache? f~?';;1 Luke 24: 1 3-~,5 on "Opening Our Eyes To The 
Real1ty Of Chnst. I Surrender All was sung as the invitation and 
the service was dismissed. 

Wednesday Morning- July 19, 2006 
The business session began with the Assistant Moderator William 

Smith reading from john 15: 1-5. 
Director. William Evans gave the Free Will Baptist Foundation 

report. Dav1d Brown gave the financial report. Motion carried to 
receive the report and adopt the budget. 

. ~irector Ron Hunter gave the Sunday School and Church 
Trammg Board report. Clarence Lewis gave the financial report. Jeff 
Crabt~ee an.d Dennis Wiggs were presented plaques in recognition 
o~ !he1~ serv1ce on the Sunday School" and Church Training Board. 
K1b Hdl (VA) was recognized as the CLEAR Teacher of the Year." 
Motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Motion was mad~ !o change the name from "The Sunday 
School and Church Tram1ng Board and Randall House Publications 
of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc." to "Randall 
House Publications of the National Association of Free Will Baptists 
Inc." M~tion carried to table the name change. ' 

Edw1n Hayes (OHL David Womack (GAL and Mark Braisher 
(MO) were elected to the Board. 

Director James Forlines gave the International Missions 
De~artment report. Rob Conley gave the financial report. Motion 
earned ~o rece1ve. ~he refo~. Milton Worthington was presented a 
plaque 1n recogn1hon o h1s service to the noard. Randy Wilson 
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(OK), jerry Norris (MO), and Nelson Henderson (AR) were elected 
as board members. 

President Matthew Pinson gave the Free Will Baptist Bible 
College report. Tom Sass gave tne financial report. Gary Fry, outgo­
ing board chairman, Col. Mark johnson, and Dr. Melvin Worthington 
shared their perspectives on the relocation plans. 

Greg Ketteman and Gary Fry were presented plaques in recog­
nition of their service on the college board. Motion carried to 
receive the report. 

Motion carried to make the following changes to the Free Will 
Baptist Bible College Charter and By-Laws: 

Section IV, # 1 , Line 3. Strike "Treasurer," and insert "Vice 
President for Financial Affairs." 

Section IV, #2, Line 2. After "President," strike "Academic Dean, 
Dean of Students and Treasurer/ Assistant Secretary." Insert the fol­
lowing titles so that after "President" the list now reads "Provost, Vice 
President for Student Services and Dean of Students, Registrar, Vice 
President for Institutional Planning, Vice President for Institutional 
Advancement, and Vice President for Financial Affairs/ Assistant 
Secretary." 

Section IV, #5, Line 1 . Strike "Academic Dean," and insert 
"Provost." After "President," strike "Academic Dean" and insert 
"P II rovost. 

Section IV, #6, Lines 1 and 2. Strike "Dean of Students," and 
insert "Vice President for Student Services and Dean of Students." 

Section IV #7, Line 1. Strike "Academic Dean," and insert "Provost." 
Section IV, # 7, Line 3. Strike "Academic Dean," and insert "Provost." 
Section IV, #8, Line 1. Strike "Treasurer/ Assistant Secretary," 

and insert "Vice President for Financial Affairs/ Assistant Secretary." 
Section rv, #8, Line 1 . Strike ''TreasureG" and insert ''Vice President 

for Financial Affairs." 
Section IV, re-number beginning with #9. The new #9 with a 

new paragraph will be "Vice President f<?r lnsti!,ut~onal Pl<?nning." 
The new # 10 with a new paragraph wdl be V1ce Pres1dent for 
Institutional Advancement." This section will now have 13 items. 

Section IV, #9. Insert new paragraph. "Vice President for 
Institutional Planning. Under the supervision of the President, the 
Vice President for Institutional Planning shall be an advisor to the 
President. He will work with the Provost to expedite long-range plans 
for the college concerning accreditation and professional organiza­
tions. He will also supervise records, registration, and general aca­
demic information." 
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. S~ction IV, # 1 0. Insert new paragraph. "Vice President for 
ln_st1tut1on~l Advancement. Under the supervision of the President, the 
y1ce Pres1dent for lnstit~tio~al Advancement shall give leadership 
m the ~reas of denom1n?t1onal relations and fundraising. He is 
:espons1ble for representmg the college at denominational meet­
mgs, and for informing t~e Free Will Baptist constituency of the state 
of ~he college. A~ the_ pnmary fundraiser, he is responsible for devel­
opl_n~ and coordmatmg a planned program of fundraising that is 
suff1c1ent to meet the financial needs of the college." 

12, S~~~o1ndV. Change old numbers 9, 10, and 11 to numbers 11, 

. Section IV # 1 3. Last par?gr?p_h. Revis~ to read, "Such staff may 
1n~lude, but are not necessanly llm1ted to D1rector of Public Relations, 
D1rector _of Enrollment Servi~es, and Comptroller." 
. Se~t1on V, 1.~. Strike. Academic Dean, Dean of Students," and 
msert Provost, V1ce Pres1dent for Student Services and Dean of 
Students." 

Section V, #3, Line 3. Strike "manifest," and insert "manifested." 
Section V, #4, Line 2. Strike "Academic Dean," and insert "Provost." 
Section V, #5, Line 1 . Strike "Academic Dean," and insert "Provost." 
The following were elected to the Bible College Board of 

Trustees: 2008 - Bob Bass (TN); 201 2 - Ken Simpson (MO), A. C. 
Allen (SC), and Mark Stripling (AR). 

Wednesday Afternoon - July 19, 2006 
The ahernoon business session began with Ernie Lewis reading 

from Hebrews 1 2: 1-4. 
Chris Truett gave the _Music Commission report. Randy Sawyer 

was presente~ ~ plaque ~n appreciation for his 13 years of seNice 
on the comm1ss1on. Mot1on carried to receive the report. Daron 
Dwyer (NC) was elected to the 2009 unexpired term and Donnie 
Burke (GA) was elected to the 20 1 1 term. 

Mi~e Jones gave the Media Commission report. Motion carried 
to rece1ve the report. Monte McKenzie (GA) was elected to the 2011 
term on the commission. 

Leroy F:xlines _gave the _Commission for Theological Integrity 
report. M?hon carn~d to rece1ve the report. Motion carried to adopt 
the followmg resolut1on o~ marri~ge as presented by the commission: 

Wherf!as Free_ Wdl_ Bapttsts have historically respected the 
authonty of Scnpture m matters of marriage, 
And whereas the scriptural view of marriage is under assault by 
the current secular culture 

I 
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And whereas both Scripture and nature as desif!ned by God 
affirm the union of one man and one woman m a one-flesh 
relationship, 
Be it therefore resolved that the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, in its seventieth annual session, reaffirm that: 
The biblicallY, sanctioned one-flesh union. is the s<;>le a0d beauti­
ful context of the divine plan for the manta/ relattonshtp of man 
and woman as image-bearers of God, as well as the founda­
tion for the family as the basic, divinely ordained unit of human 
society. 
Violations of this one-flesh union, whether heterosexual, homo­
sexual, premarital, or extramc:rital, contra~ene the_ divine plan 
for the family and the conceptton and rearm$ o~ c:ht!dren, bnng­
ing spiritual despair and guilt and death to tndtvtduals and cul­
tures. 

Paul Harrison (TN) was elected to the Commission for Theological 
Integrity for the term to expire in. 20 ~ l . . . . 

Jack Williams gave the H1stoncal Comm1ss1on report. Mot1on 
carried to receive the report. Jeff Cockrell (SC) was elected to the 
20 l l term on the commission. 

Ron Hunter gave the NYC report. Marcus Brewer demonstrated 
the TruthQuest competition event. Motion carried to rece_ive the r~port. 

Marjorie Workman gave the WNAC report. Motion earned to 
receive the report. . . . 

The clerk gave the registration report. Mot1on earned to rece1ve 
the report. . 

Executive Secretary Keith Burden gave the Budget Comm1ttee 
report. Motion carried to receive the report. . . 

The clerk read the Obituary Committee report. Mot1on earned 
to receive the report. The body stood in memory of those listed and 
Roy Hutchinson led in prayer. . . 

The clerk read the Resolutions Committee report. Mot1on earned 
to receive the report and act on the resolution by giving the Alabama 
State Association a rising vote of thanks. 

The clerk read the final Nominating Committee report. The fol-
low; ng were elected: 

Moderator - Tim York (TN) 
Assistant Moderator - William Smith (GA) 
Clerk - Randy Bryant (FL) 
Assistant Clerk- Ernie Lewis (IL) 
Motion carried to adjourn. Tim York dismissed in prayer. 
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Wednesday Evening - July 19, 2006 
. The evening w~xs~ip service was preceded by a video presenta­
tion on Impact B1rm1ngham. The service began with the Men's 
Chorale, directed by Daron Dwyer, singing "Shout To The North." 
Presider Rick Cash, welcomed the body and introduced Paul Bryant, 
director of "Operation Renovation." On behalf of the youth of 
Alabama, Paul pr~sented a check for $47,000 to missionary Mike 
Corley for renovation of a camp in Russia. 

~r~ce Kir;;brel led the, congregation in singing, "Revive Us 
Agam and jesus Saves. Home and international missionaries 
were introduced. Larry Powell and James Forlines led in a commis­
sioning service for new missionaries. Executive Secretary Keith 
Burden prayed the commissioning prayer. The Convention Choir 
directed by Daron Dwyer, sang, "Go Into The World." The mission~ 
?ffering was received followi~g prayer by ~aime Lancaster. Rick Cash 
mtroduced the speaker. Dr. R1chard Hendnx, pastor of Madison Free 
Will Baptist Church, Madison, AL, preached from Matthew 9:35-38 
on "Opening Our Eyes To The Harvest." "Here Am I, Send Me" was 
~ung ~,s .the invitation~, The service concluded with the choir present­
mg a Fmale Medley under the direction of Chris Truett. 
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Credentials CommiHee Report 
We, the Credentials Committee, have examined the letters from 

the following states, districts and local churches and found them to 
be in order as presented below. . 

From the following state associations which are ent1tle~ to ?e 
represented by five delegate~: ~laba~a, Arkansas, Cal1forn1a, 
Florida, Georgia, Idaho, lll1n01S, lnd1ana, Kansas, Kentucky, 
Michigan, Mississippi, Missouri, No:th. ~arolina, Ohio,. C?k~ahoma, 
South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, V1rgm1a and West V1rg1n1a. 

From the following district associations which are entitled to be 
represented by three delegates: Arizona, Atlantic-canada, 
Colorado, Mexico Association, Mid-Atlantic, New Jersey, New 
Mexico, Northeast, Northwest and the Association of Mexico. 

From the following local churches entitled to be represented by 
one delegate: Hawaii, Puerto Rico, Virgin Islands and Wisconsin. 

We recommend that the delegates from the state associations, 
district associations and local churches listed above be seated for this 
session, along with their other delegates who are properly registe~ed. 

We recommend that all lay delegates entirled to represent by vtrtue 
of their positions on standing boards be seated if properly registered. 

Charles Thigpen (TN), Chairman 
Gene Norris (MI) James Patton (KY) 
Millard Sasser (CA) Jim Marcum (NC) 

General Board Report 
The General Board of the National Association of Free Will 

B<?ptists met on Monday, july 17, 2006, at the Birmingham 
jefferson Convention Complex, Medical Forum Auditorium, in 
Birmingham, Alabama. As a result of this meeting, we offer the fol­
lowing recommendations: 

We heard the reports of the Executive Office, ONE Magazine, 
WNAC, Home Missions, Master's Men, Board of Retirement and 
Insurance, Free Will Baptist Foundation, Sunday Sc~ool an~ Ch~rch 
Training Board, International Missions, Fr~e. Wtll Bap~tst. Btble 
College, Music Co~missio~, M~dia Commt~stc:>n, Commtsston for 
Theofogical lntegnty, Htstoncal <:;:ommtsston and. Budget 
Committee. We recommend that thetr reports be recetved and 
budgets adopted. 

We recommend the adoption of the Disaster Relief Plan from the 
Disaster Relief Task Force. 

Based on a request from the Northern Quarterly of . the 
Cumberland Association in Tennessee, we recommend a commtttee 
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of Kei~h Bur?en, Tim York, Randy Riggs, David Crowe, and Ken 
~kers mvest1~ate th~ condition ot the facilities and property of the 
F1rst Fre~ Will Bapt1st Church of America in New Durham, New 
Ha~psh1re, and_ b~1ng, a repor~ with recommendations regarding the 
Nat1on~l Assoe~at1on s potent1al role with assistance to the 2007 
~onvent1o~ .. VY_e further recommend the National Association author­
IZe the sol1c1tat1on of funds for immediate repairs. 

We_ recommend Kansas City, Missouri, for the july 17-20 2016 
convention. ' ' 

Disaster Relief Plan 
1 . The National Association will: 

• Create a channel for receiving and disbursing disaster relief 
funds. 

• Gathe~ di_saster information and communicate it to the 
• denomination ?s quickly and accurately as possible. 

Serve ~sa pomt ot contact between disaster needs and avail­
able ?Isoster responders. (A list of res~nder services will be 
comp1led and kept by the Executive Office.) 

2. Cooperation between States and the National Association 
• Eac~ state is asked to appoint a "contact person" who can 

prov1de accurate information about the severity of disasters 
and needs within his state. 

• Names of_ those :'contact persons" selected should be given to 
the Execut1ve Off1ce to be mcluded in a national list of Contact 
Personnel. 

• T~is pers~:m would be responsible for connecting those in need 
w1th avadable disaster resources. 

3. Disaster Identification 

• Hurricanes, Floods, Tornadoes, Earthquakes, Wildfires, 
Terrorist Attacks, Etc. 

4. Disaster Mobilization 
• Notification of a disaster must be received. 
• T~e disaster must impact Free Will_ Baptis~s or be of such mag-
• n1tude that a r~sponse b~ Free Wdl Baptists is appropriate. 

A reque~t for d1saster ass1stance must be received from 0 state 
leader (1.e:, State Promotional Director, State Moderator, or 
state appomted Contact Person). 

5. Disaster Response 
How it will work: 
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• A disaster occurs. 
• It is identified as a national disaster through the established cri-

teria. 
• A channel for giving is made available via the NAFWB web-

site directly to the Executive Office. Any money received for 
disaster relief will be placed directly into an account that has 
been established for that purpose. 

• A request for assistance is made by a state leader. 
• Funds will be sent to the state. The state will best know how 

and where the money should be used and can establish lines 
of accountability for those on the local level to whom funds 

are disbursed . 
• Monies remaining aher requests for financial assistance have 

been honored will remain in the disaster relief account and be 
in place for use in future disaster relief efforts. 

• It is not our goal to control or impede the efforts of other Free 
Will Baptists who are involved in disaster response or relief. 
Our goal will be to enhance those efforts by creating a net­
work of available disaster relief/response seNices and connect 
those who need these services with those who may provide 

them. 
• This plan is a work in progress and will change as we learn 

through experience. 
• Our Free Will Baptist people are compassionate and giving 

people. The purpose of this plan is to have a basic framework 
in place to enable our people to become involved in helping 
others in times of national disasters. 

Nominating CommiHee Report 
Free Will Baptist Bible College Trustees 

2008 Replacing Greg Ketteman (TN) ......... Bob B_ass (TN) 
2012 Replacing Richard Barnes (VA) .......... Ken S1mpsc:m (MO) 

Replacing Gary F~ (MO) ............. Mark Stnplmg (AR) 
Replacing A.C. Allen (SC) ............ A.C. Allen 

International Missions Board 
20 l 2 Replacing Randy .Wilson (OK) .......... Randy W~lson 

Replacing jerry Norris (MO) ........... jerry Norns 
Replacing Milton Worthington (NC) ...... Nelson Henderson (AR) 

Sunday School and Church Training_ Board 
2012 Replacing Edwin Hayes (OH) .......... Ed~1n Hayes 

Replacing Dennis Wiggs (NC) ......... Dav1d Won:ack (GA) 
Replacing Jeff Crabtree (Atl-can) ........ Mark Brash1er (MO) 
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Commission for Theologic It feQ · 
2011 Replacing Paul Harrison (TN) ...... ~ .. ~ .f"~f>Harrison 
20 1 1 . Historical Commission 

Replacing Joe McKnight (SC) .......... .jeff Cockrell (SC) 

20 1 1 R 1 · Media Commission 
ep acmg Monte McKenzie (GA) M . 

· · · · · · · · . onte McKenz1e 

2009 R I . Music Commission 
ep aCing Randy Sa\1\:Yer (NCJ 

2011 Replacing Donnie Burl<e (GA) · · · · · · · · .DDaro~ Qvvyer (NC) 
· · · · · · · · . . onn1e Burke 

200 . . General Boarc/ 
8 Mlssoun (ref?lacing Nathan Ruble) ..... 

2009 North Carolina (replacing jim Marcum) . j~aM Fry 
Northeast Assn. (replacing jim Nason) : : : : ;~ arcum 

ONoh:thw( eslt A~sn.M(r~placing Darrell Smith) .. ~. ~~r~OnSmith 10 repaCing rke Stokes) M'k 
Oklahoma [replacin Ernest H · : · · · · · · · · 1 e Stokes 
South Caro ina (repl~cing Mik~J~~e~)Jr.J · · ·~1st Harrison, Jr. 
Tennessee (replacing Charles Thi n) . . . . I e Jone~ 
T~x~s. (replacing Keith Wood ) ~~ · · · .C~arles .Th1gpen 
.VIrginia (replacing Glen Johnfon) ....... Keith Woody 
West Virginia (replacing Carl Vall~n~~)· .... lGtlhen jMohnson 

· ... u er organ 

2008 Executive CommiHee 
Replac!ng Nathan Ruble (MO) ... 

2009 Replacmg Ernest Harrison Jr (OK) ...... Gary Fry (f!'O) 
Replacing Glen Johnson ('VA) · · · · · · .GErn

1 
est Hamson, Jr. 

Replacing Keith Woody (TX) · · · · · · · · · · · ~n Johnson 
· · · · · · ..... Kerth Woody 

Mod General Officers 
era tor: Rep~acing Ti_m York (TN) .. .. .... Tim York 

~~~;·k0Rodepel ra~or. RRepdl~acBmg Wil iam Smith (GA) William Smith 
. aCing an 'L ryant (Fl) . . . . R d 

Asst. Clerk: Replacing Ernie lewis (ll) ..... Eo~ yl Bryant 
. . · · · ... . rn1e ew1s 

Nomrnatrng Committee: 
Rick Cash (Al), Chairman 
Ron Helms (Ml) 
Ken Simpson (MO) 
Ernest Harrison, Jr. (OK) 

Paul Smith (Fl) 
Mike Jones (SC) 
Tim Hall (KY) 

National Youth Conference Report 
?ervices have seen the hand of God work th h th 

mus1c and the r 0 li d roug e messages 
lasted' 40 minute~sf:~:!~s n ues ay dvening the altar call alon~ 
for Him. We have over 350w0ere r~stpond ing h~nd mokmg decisions 

E . h reg1s ere ror t 1s year's NYC 
ntnes ave continued to climb h . . . . . 

eoc year In portJc1pot1on in 
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competition. The lost three years stack up this way, 2004 - 1640, 
2005- 1697, and this year 2006 we had 1732 participants. We 
hod 95 entries in the signing (Sign Language) category alone. Some 
asked how it is going so smoothly, I hove replied tnot God is in con­
trol and working through on incredible team of coordinators. When 
yeu wont excellence, you surround yourself with excellence and that 
is what our coord inators strived for coming into this convention. 

NYC Competition Coordinator/Event Coordinator- Danny Conn 
NYC Service Coordinator- Charles Cook 
Truth & Peace Coordinator- Allen Pointer 
Notional YETeom -Angie Deel 
Reach That Guy- Aaron Baker & Terry Mosley 

We introduced last year the Buck A Week missions offering and 
challenged the teens to begin to redefine how missions could be 
funded a generation from now. This program did not get the atten­
tion it needed through the year for promotion and therefore this 
year's offering was a bit lower than the potential teens have. This 
year we collected $8,297.05. This is going to be on ongoing part­
nership with International Missions and Home Missions combining 
efforts with Randall House to see what we con do to raise significant 
unplanned dollars for missions. The program allows the two mis­
sions agencies to highlight featured designated areas that the dol­
lars will be allocated toward each year. A significant portion of these 
dollars will be placed into endowments to create permanent gih giv­
ing opportunities for years to come. I believe that if every teen par­
ticipates and we do this for twenty years, it will forever alter our 
course in missions giving. A Buck A Week DVD was produced to 
help promote the offering for 2007. Contact Randall House 
Publications for a free DVD for your church. 

T&P {Truth & Peace Student Leadership Conference) 
Tremendous year for Truth and Peace, they hod a staff that chal­

lenged their depth and leadership for God. These young people 
help run the convention and go bock to their churches stronger and 
more spiritually confident. 

National YETeam (Youth Evangelistic Team) 
This year's team seemed to hove on unusual chemistry of cohe­

sion. They traveled with their program to five states for ten services. 
The National YETeom is selected from top winners or number 1 rat­
ings of music and drama competition. 

Reach That Gur_ 
Reach That Guy has been providing service opportunities to our 
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youth and their youth leaders as well as adults for nearly 8 years. 
Each year around a thousand volunteers go out into the communi­
ty where our convention is held to do service proiects, evangelism 
outreach, and improve the community. This year we had 940 par­
ticipants each doing two to eight hours of volunteer service. 

NSCWC (National Sludents and Children~ Workers Conference) 
It will be held September 29 and 30 just outside of Branson, 

Missouri, in a place called Rockv lv\ount (the lake of the Ozark.s) where 
you will find a retreat atmosphere unlike anywhere else. Jonathan 
N\cKee will be the featured speaker. You can register online for this event. 
Miscellaneous 

I would like to feature and show one competition item that many 
of our churches are unaware exists. This is a Bible competition that 
works for all churches especially when you do not have a team for 
tic-toe-toe or Bible bowl. It is a single person event with an electron­
ic board presenting information about our denomination in cate­
gories of knowledge such as doctrine, home missions, international 
missions, Old Testament, New Testament, etc. This is based upon 
the game show Jeopardy. Marcus Brewer will demonstrate. 
Summary 

This year has gone so smoothly. God gets all the credit. 
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Minutes 
of the 

Seventy-First Annual Session 
of the 

Women Nationally 
Active For Christ 

• Convention 
of the 

National Association 
of 

Free Will Baptists 

when convened in 

Birmingha•n, Alaba•na 
July 17-18, 2006 
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WNAC 
P.O. Box 5002 

Antioch, TN 37011-5002 

Executive Committee 
President 

Debe Taylor 
103 Chisholm Trail 

Hot Springs , AR 71913 
501-760-4824 

taylorgolf@juno.com 

Vice-President 
Rebecca Pugh 

298 Andy Drive 
Drummo nds, TN 38023 

90 1-840-21 00 
rccpugh@yahoo.com 

Secretary 
Phyllis York 

623 Knollwood Drive 
LaVergne, TN 37086 

615-535-1267 
maste rs@nafwb.org 

Members at Large 
Linda Harvey 

19225 N. 30th Place 
Phoenix, AZ 85050 

602-569-68 7 4 
nvfwbc@qwest.net 

Shirley Jackson 
428 Kimberly 

St. Pete rs , MO 63376 
636-39 7-6399 

rsjacksson 1 05@juno.com 

Carolyn Hendrix 
138 Lewis Lane 

Madison, AL 35758 
256-461-7 453 

carolh 1952@yahoo.com 

Executive Secretary-Treasurer 
Marjorie Workman 

1408 Revenna Court North 
Antioch , TN 37013 

615-366-05 73 
marjorie@nafwb.org 

Theme: Set Your Hearts 
Scripture: Deuteronomy 32:46 

Music Coordinator: Carolyn Hendrix 
Worship Leader: Jane Brazil 

Pianists: Liz Hester & Danielle McCraney 
Organist: Carolyn Hendrix 

Proceedings 
WNAC Seminar 
Monda'( july 17 

':Set y;f our Hearts Toward Home" was the title of the one-hour 
semmar or women on Monday a~ p 
challenged us to set our hearts on alleGrnodoo~. redsentedr jennieh Bhlair 
to :h.ld D be s wor s an teac t em 

our c ' ren. e Taylor served as presider for the seminar. 

A- 32 

"Intrigue Your Heart" was the title of the second one-hour sem­
inar. Presenter Angie Outlaw sparked our interests as she demon­
strated ways of teaching missions to children. Marjorie Workman 
served as presider for the seminar. 

Business Session 
Tuesday, july 18 

Women Nationally Active for Christ met Tuesday morning, July 
18, 2006, at 8:30 a.m., in the Birmingham Jefferson Convention 
Complex, East Hall 2-3, Birmingham, Alabama. President Debe 
Taylor presided over the meeting. The session opened w ith congre­
gational singing. Shirley Jackson, member at large, opened theses­
sion in prayer. Alabama WAC State President Carolyn Hendrix wel­
comed the convention to the state of Alabama. The convention 
enjoyed the 2005 Russian E-Team puppet presentation. 

Sarah Fletcher, editor of CoLaborer magazine, presented the 
Creative Arts Awards. The winners were as tallows: 
Programs 
First: Traveling Light- Amanda Kilgore, Greeneville, TN 
Second: God's Good Clouds- Cheryl Akers, Jacksonville, FL 
Third: God's Makeover - Sue Winchester, St. Louis, MO 

Plays/Skits 
First: The Cross - Diane Bridgman, Gritton, NC 
Second: Past, Present, Future Fashion Show- Karen Ferguson, 
Houston, TX 
Third: Through Miriam's Eyes -Vicki Turner, Carterville, MO 

Photography 
First: Tne Lord God Made Them All -Rebekah Plunkett, Pleasant 

View, TN 
Second: Trees of the Field - Rebekah Plunkett, Pleasant View, TN 
Third: He Maketh Me Lie Down in Green Pastures - Kay Brown, 
Charleston, AR 

Art 
First: Come 0 Holy Spirit Come - Kay Brown, Charleston, AR 
Second: A Christmas Snow at the Old Country Church -Janice D. 

Jones, Smithfield, NC 
Third: Haven of Rest- Kay Brown, Charleston, AR 

Devotional 
First: I Almost Missed You - Patricia Collins, Asheville, NC 
Second: Intimacy in Worship -Jamie Myers, Lebanon, MO 
Third: Spiritual Offspring -Michelle Williams, Raytown, MO 
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Poetry 
First: My Dreams for Isabella- Freeda M. lucas, Cromona KY 
S~cond: The Juggling Act -Jamie Myers, lebanon, MO ' 
Thrrd: Seasons of My Soui-Jamie Myers, lebanon, MO 
Articles 
Firs~: Salvation Through the Pig Pen - Pamela S. Hackett, Boiling 
Sprrngs, SC 

S~cond: Gold, Silver, Precious Stones -Jean Perry, Durham, NC 
Thrrd: Pebbles- Charlcie Boyd, Ashland City, TN 

The Credentia.ls Committee (Chairperson Rebecca Pugh, TN; 
June Hersey, J:l; lrnda Harvey, AZ) submitted the following report: 

The fo~lowrng 19 state conventions submitted reports and paid 
memb~rshrp. fe.es: Al?bama, Arkansas, California, Florida, 
G~orgr?, lllrnors, lndrana, Kentucky, Michigan, Mississippi, 
Mrssourr, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, South Carolina 
Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, West Virginia. ' 

The following two districts with no state convention submitted 
reports and paid membership fees: First Arizona and New Mexico. 
. The f~llowing five local gr~ups with no district or state conven­
tron su?mrtted ~epo.rts . and pard .m~~bership fees: First Topeka, 
Kansas, St. Crorx, Vrrgrn Islands; Trr-crtres, Washington; Cheyenne 
Wyoming; Valley, Utah. ' 

ln. addit~on, th~re were 3.1 del~gates from local groups in good 
sta~drng. wrth therr representrng hrgher body (district or state) that 
pard therr $ 1 0 representation fee. 

Mot~o~ carried to accept the report and seat the delegates. 
Maqorre Workman gave the Executive Secretary-Treasurer's 

report. She reported that a new promotional booklet has been print­
ed that covers al! you wa~t to know about WNAC. She explained 
the WNAc; natrona! project. Christmas Joy envelopes would be 
used to rars~ the .necessary funds to provide Christmas gifts for 
orphaned chrldren rn Central Asia. She announced that the Central 
Asra~ trip to distribute the gifts was scheduled for January. The team 
consrsts of ten women. The goal is to supply 5000 gift bOxes at $15 
each. 

Mrs. Workman tha~ked the convention for their continued sup­
port through membershrp fees. She explained that one benefit for 
n:embers would be a discounted price for the Branson Retreat. She 
drrected the con~ention.'s att~ntion to the Digest of Re orts, page 
1h8 2b,l for WNAC s audrt whrch states the office finishedthe year in 
t e ack. 
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Mrs. Workman encouraged the convention to increase giving to 
the Cleo Pursell Foreign Student Scholarship fund so there would be 
more money available for students. 

Mrs. Workman revealed the new 2007 program and plan book, 
Farther Still. Sarah Fletcher, CoLaborer editor, presented a 
PowerPoint presentation "Set Your Hearts Toward Tomorrow" to 
introduce and promote the new program changes. Beginning in 
2007, the program cycle will shift from January through December 
to September through August. To implement the change Farther 
Still will be an eight-month Bible Study on prayer written by Mrs. 
lorene Miley. Sarah also introduced another change - the ending 
of CoLaborer magazine and the beginning of Together With God. 

Motion carried to accept the report and adopt the Budget for 
2007. 

Diana Bryant, FL, Chairperson, presented the Resolutions 
Committee Report. Motion carried to accept the report and vote 
item by item. 

Item # l: We recommend that scholarships be given from the 
Cleo Pursell Foreign Student Scholarship Fund as follows: 

Cote d'lvoire: $7 50 for training for Pastor Silas and his wife in 
the area of family counseling. 

Cuba: $750 for the students at the Cedars of Lebanon Seminary 
in Pinar del Rio, Cuba. 

South India: $1,000 for the students attending the Volena 
Wilson Bible Institute. 

Russia: $500 to help the Bible Institute ministry in Chelyabinsk 
and Krasnodar. 

Mexico: $ 1,500 for Seminary of the Cross in Reynosa to be used 
for student scholarships. 

Motion carried to adopt Item # l . 
Item #2: We recommend that the WNAC Emphasis month be 

changed from August to May with Mother's Day to be designated 
as WNAC Emphasis Offering Sunday, beginning in May 2007. 

Motion carried to adopt Item #2. 
Item #3: We recommend that the guidelines listing those eligi­

ble to receive items from the Provision Closet be expanded to 
include our Bible Institutes and other Foreign and National 
Ministries with disbursements to be made based on request from the 
Regional Directors of International Missions or the General Director 
of Home Missions. 

Motion carried to adopt Item #3. 
Item #4: We recommend that since TV programming has 
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become so offensive, we contact the networks and ask them not to 
air pr?grams .conta.ining immorality, nudity, and alternate lifestyles, 
espeCially dunng pnme time viewing. We recommend that letters be 
sent not only from our National Agency, but also from State, District, 
and local women's groups. We also encourage contact be made 
by individual women. 

Motion carried to adopt Item #4. 

Those serving on this commiffee were Diana Bryant, Fl, 
Chairperson; Amy Johnson, IL; Jan Clay, IN; Khristi Shores, NM; 
Tracy Payne, OK. 

Jonda Patton, Chairperson, presented the Appreciation Committee 
Report. We, ~he appre~iation committee, want to recognize the 
WNAC Executive Commrttee and the WNAC staff for their efforts in 
making this year successful for WNAC as they have directed and led 
us to "Set Our Hearts." Also, we recognize their efforts in coordi­
nati~g the 71 st annual session of Women Nationally Active for 
Chnst. Further, we recognize our hostesses, the Alabama Women 
Active for Christ, for their year of planning, preparation, and prayer 
for our convent/on. vve truly feel welcome and their hospitality has 
been graCious. Add,honally, we recognize all of our musicians, our 
presenters, and our speakers for both our seminars on Monday and 
for our services today. Our hearts have been blessed and encour­
aged by the things we have seen and heard. Therefore, we recom­
n:end that all. of the.se pe_ople ~e highly commended for their com­
brned efforts rn making thrs. years VI/NAC convention a tremendous 
success and that they be grven a nsrng vote of appreciation. 

Those serving on the committee were: Jonda Patton KY 
Chairperson; Dot Gore, MS; Anne Worthington, NC. ' ' 

Motion c.arrie.d to adopt. the Appreciation Committee's report. 
The Reg1strat1on Comm1ffee Chairperson, Belinda Adaire, AR, 

gave a partial report as follows: 
Number of persons registered: 

WNAC National Officers (Standing Delegates) - 6 
State Presidents (Standing Delegates) - 1 1 
State Field Workers (Standing Delegates) - 9 
State Delegates (Elected Delegates) - 1 19 
local WNAC Delegates (paying $10 representation fee)- 31 
Total Delegates - 1 7 6 

Non-Voting Attendees: 
Visitors - 709 

Missionaries (U.S. & International) - 33 
Grand Total Registered - 918 
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Those serving on this committee were Belinda Adaire, AR, and 

Terra Smith, GA. f h R · t r 
Motion carried to accept the partial report o t e eg1s ra 1on 

Committee. 

1 0:30 A.M Missionary Service 
Jane Brazil, WNAC worship leader, c?lle? the assembly to wor­

ship with congregational singing. A spee~al t1me of prayer was led 
b Dr. Mary Wisehart remembering those women who ha~e gone 
0~ to heaven. Shirley Jackson challenged the attendees to g1ve gen­
erously to the morning offeri n~, the~ pra~e~ the offertory prayer. 
Rachel Williams provided spee~al mus1c. M.1ssronary speakers, Sthve 
and Becky Riggs were introduced by Pres1dent Debe Taylor. T ey 
shared the need 'to "Set Our Hearts" to become enlarged an? our 
eyes opened to be able to see outside our ?~n. pec:>ple g~oup, and 
that the most important thing about our mm1stnes 1s Chnst. Th~y 
shared a PowerPoint presentation about the people anhd workk ~n 
France and challenged the congregation to pray for t e wor In 

France. t ·ty t · 
Debe Taylor gave the congregatio~ an ?ppor un1 o g1ve 

through an "Out the Door - Open Bible offenng to help fund the 
Cleo Pursell Student Scholarship Fund. 

Fellowship Luncheon 
Tuesday, july 18, 2006 

12:00-2:00 
The Fellowship Luncheon was held in the Sheraton Ballroom. 

Guest speaker Icy Mae Fredericks from Fultondale, Alabama, spok
1

e 
of her obedience to the Lord as He directed her to help !he peop e 
in Haiti. She shared with the audience some of the diff1cult1~s she 
experienced while serving in Haiti and.~t the age of 88 she stdl con­
tinues to serve the Lord among the Ha1t1ans. 

State Presidents and Field Workers Reception 
A reception for state presidents and field workers was ho~ted by 

the WNAC staff in the Sheraton Meeting Room #428 follow1ng the 
Tuesday evening service of the National Association. 

Synopsis of the Mi~utes of . 
WNAC Executive Comm1Hee Meetlng 

Sunday, july 16, 2006 . 
The Executive Committee met in the Sheraton Meeting Room 

#430 in Birmingham, Alabama. Members present were: Debe 
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~~~~/;mR~t:~d~ P~~J· ~hyllis York, linda Harvey, Shirley Jackson 

called the meeting to ord~~lorl~nr:o~~~~e~ r~dsf~;~t f~~ Ta~lo; 
7: 14 and sh?~ed devotional thoughts. An overview of the sd~~d'l ed 
ev~nts ~rtaJnmg to the 71 st Annual Session of WNAC u e 
revJ~we . ~onorarium for the Ridgecrest Retreat s eaker wa were 
0f\otJon earned to send recommendations on to the WNAC s set. 
tron. Tentative cflans were discussed for the little Rock A konven­
conve~tion an plans for the Branson Retreat were up,datredansTahs, 
comm1ttee approved ·d· · e 
Scholarship Fund b pro~' lng a'~Oopport~nity to_give to the Student 

Y hav1ng an pen B1ble Otfe · " h d 
aher the mission service on Tuesday. enng at t e oor 
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WOVEN NATIONAUY 
ACTIVE FOR CHWT 

2006 WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST REPORT 
Marjorie Wo rkman, Executive Secretary-Treasurer 

SET YOUR HEARTS (Deuteronomy 32:'16) 
This year's theme challenges us to set our hearts to the obedience of God's Word so that we may draw 

near to His heart. 

ENCOURAGE YOUR HEART IN BIRMINGHAM 
We are meeting for our 71'1 WNAC annual convention here in Birmingham, AL. Members of E·Team Russia 

2005 will show how they used puppets in ministry. Mtssionaries Steve and Becky Riggs will challenge us 
to set our hearts to win the world For Christ. Seminars by Jennie Blair and Angie Outlaw will offer ideas 
and principles for the unique challenges of teaching and parenting in today's postmodern world. lcey Mae 
Frederick, WNAC Fellowship Luncheon speaker, will share her amazing story of God's provision for her 
ministry 1n Haiti. This year's convention will give attendees opportunities to Impact Birmingham with the 
love of Chnst through door to door visitation, prayer walks, and kindness evangelism. 

THE HEART OF LAST YEAR'S CONVENTION 
Last year's convention delegates Increased the laura Belle Barnard Foreign Student Scholarships from 

S3,000 to $3,500 to be disbursed as follows: 
1. $1,250 to Robert and Philippe in Cote d'lvoire; 
2. $950 for the nve students at the Volena Wilson Bible Institute in Conoor, Tamil Nadu, South 

Ind ia 
3. $500 to students at the Cuban Cedars of lebanon Seminary. 
'f. $800 for a student at the Seminary of the Cross, in Reynosa, Mexico. 

Also, delegates voted to increase membership Fees (dues) from $10 to $15 per member. Local delegate 
fees to the WNAC Convention increased from $5 to $10. 

ENLARGE YOUR HEART FOR THE WORLD 
Join us in sharing Christmas Joy with children in Central Asia. Each $15 ~ift will provide a Christmas box 

containin~ a children's Bible, !-shirt, warm socks. toothbrush, toothpaste, soap, penci ls and a notebook, 
instant chocolate drink, fruit tea, cookies. chocolate and other candies and a stuffed animal. 

SET YOUR HEART FOR GROWTH 
A total of 19 states and two distrids (with no stale organization) plus four local ~roups (with no district 

or state organization) reported a total of 625'+ members last year. Since January of this year we have had 1'+ 
new iroups Interested in organizing. 

Subscribe to and read CoLaborer magazine. It is written with Free Will Baptist women on our hearts. 
Articles are relevant, informative, and inspiring. 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR GENEROUS HEART 
Thank you for sharing in the ministry of WNAC. Your partnership in this Kingdom work will reap 

eternal rewards. You gave more than $500,000 to missions or missions-rela1ed causes last year. 
Your gifti and the volunteer services of Mrs. Wanda Powell made it possible for WNAC to operate in 
the black- to God be the glory. 

SET YOUR HEART TO ATTEND AND/ OR PRAY FOR: 
2006 NATIONAL RETREAT RIDGECREST, NC, SEPTEMBER 21-23 

Missionary Lynette Morgan Will Challenge Your Heart 
2007 NATIONAl RETREAT BRANSON, MO, FEBRUARY 22-2'+ 

Guest Gail MacDonald Will Stir Your Heart 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Executive Committee of the 
Women Nationally Active for Christ 

Nemboni 

AMSliCAH IHS1T111TE OF 
001 liflt:D PUBUCACCOUHTAHTS 

TUINESSEE SOCIETY OF 
001 I IRED PU8UC ACCOIJHTAHTS 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Women Nationally 
Active for Christ (an auxiliary of the NationaJ Association of Free Will Baptiste) (a nonprofit 
organization) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related statements of activities and cash flows 
for the yeara then ended. These financiaJ statements are the responsibility of the Organization's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financiaJ statements based on our audtte. 

We oonducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain 
reasonable asaurance about whether the financial statements are free of materiaJ mtsstatements. An 
audtt includes examming, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
finanetaJ statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting pnncples used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaJuating the overall financaJ statements presentation. 
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basia for our Oplnlon. 

In our opinion, the financiaJ statements referred to above present f81rly, in all material respects, 
the financiaJ position of the Women Nationally Active for Christ as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 and 
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in oonformity with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 

February 6, 2006 
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(An Auxiliary 
WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 

of the National Association o: ~ree 
Statements of Financial Pos1t1on 

December 31, 2005 and 2004 

cash 
Accounts receivable - Note 1 
Inventory - Note 1 

ASSETS 

'vable ne t of allowance for 
No t es rece1 ' 57 in 200 4 ) 
doubtful accounts of $2,333 ($1,3 

Accrued interest receivable 
Property and equi pment at cost, less 

accumulated deprecia tion of $2~,369 
($37,391 in 2004 ) -Notes 1 & 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred reve nue - Note 7 

Total liabilities 

commitments - Notes 4 & 9 

Net assets 
Unrestricted - (deficit) 
Temporarily restr icted 
Permanently restricted 

Total liabilit i e s and net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements . 
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will Baptists) 

2005 
$2 44 ,612 

11,694 
5,4 46 

6,263 
1,951 

7,012 

$2]6 . 97Q 

( 

$29,268 
41,014 
70,282 

2,785) 
190,6 13 

18,868 
206 , 696 

i_276 1278 

( 

2004 
$238,339 

11,483 
5,904 

1,870 
1,770 

5,832 

$265 . 198 

$39, 469 
41,563 
81,032 

18,488) 
184, 796 

17,858 
18 4 ,166 

i_2651198 



WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
{An Auxiliar of the National Association of Free Will Ba tists) 

Statements of Activities 
For the Years Ended December 31

1 
2005 and 2004 

Unrestricted 
Revenue and other support: 

Dues and fees 
Designated contributions 
Magaz~ne and literature sales 
Convention and retreat income 
Gifts and offerings 
Interest income 
Rent income 
Gain ( loss) on value of investment 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Satisfaction of program restrictions 

Total revenue and other support 

Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Cost of magazine and literature printing 
Travel and promotion 
Conventions and retreats 
Office expense 
Postage 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Administrative expense 
Depreciation 
Bad debts 
Insurance expense 
Dues and subscriptions 
Special projects 
Continuing education 
Designated contributions 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements . 
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2005 

s 62,440 
375,932 

92,041 
31,541 
72,046 

7,326 
3,564 
1,370 

6,336 

652!596 

991 726 
23,167 
37,354 

1,896 
34,309 
12,898 
3,622 

27,060 
10,850 

300 
1,556 

976 
929 
52 

5 ,166 
50 

376(982 

636 , 893 

~15 1 703 

2004 

$66,065 
345,465 
107,422 
20,504 
77,274 
6,620 
3,240 
1,988 

23,529 

652(107 

119,818 
30,634 
44,387 
2,800 

22,498 
13,568 
3,807 

24,600 
3,510 

304 
1,648 

( 328) 
974 

16 
23,196 

345(479 

636 1 911 

~ 15( 196 

Statements of Act v~ d 2004 
Ended December 31 , 2005 an For the Years 

Temporarily restr~cted 
Gifts and offerlngs 

(Continued) 

t rest income . . 
In e 1 sed from restr~ct~ons: 
Net a~sets ~e eoaf program restrictions 

Sat~sfactlon 

Increase (decrease) · ted net assets in temporarily resLrlC 

Permanently restricted 
Gifts and offerings 

· t d net assets Increase in permanently restr~c e 

Total increase in net assets 

_ beginning of year Net assets 

Net assets - end of year 

, t nd accompanying see accountants repor a 
notes to the financial statements . 
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2005 

$11,922 
231 

6 1 336) 

5(817 

1,010 

1 1 010 

22,530 

184,166 

~206_. 696 

2004 

$10,437 
920 

( 23 1 529) 

( 12 1 172) 

672 

672 

3,696 

180(470 

~,166 



(An Auxiliar WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
of the National As · . 

socJ.atJ.on of Free Will B 
Statements of Cash Flows a tists) 

For the Years Ended December 31 2005 d 
• an 2004 

Operating activities 
Increase in net assets 
Adjustment to reconcJ.·le . 1ncrease (de . net assets to t crease)1n ne cash provided ( 

operating activities: used) by 
Depreciation 
Bad debts 

I,oss on disposition of property 
Changes in 0 . peratJ.ng assets and 

' equipment 
liabilities: 

accounts receivable 
inventory 

(Increase) decrease in 
(Increase) decrease in 
(Increase) decrease in 

Net cash 

interest receivable 
accrued 

Increase (decrease) in accounts 
Increase (decrease) J.·n d f . e erred 

provJ.ded by operating activities 

Investing activities 

Collection of loans r eceivable 
New note made 
Purchases of property and equipment 

Net cash used by · J.nvesting activities 

Increase i n cash 
and cash equivalents 

payable 
revenue 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of years 

cash and cash equivalents at 
end of years 

See accountants' report and . 
notes to t he f. . accompanyJ.ng 

1.nanc1al statements . 
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2005 

$22,530 

1,556 
976 

62 

( 211) 
458 

( 181) 
{ 10,201) 
( 549) 

14£440 

631 
( 6,000) 
{ 2£798) 

( 8,167) 

6,273 

238£339 

S244. 614 

( 

( 

2004 

$ 3,696 

1,648 
( 328) 

( 2,417) 
6,185 

335 
6,739 

{ 4t 511) 
11£347 

455 

555) 

100) 

11, 24 7 

227£092 

S238.332 

Note 1 -

WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
(An Auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2005 and 2004 

organization and summary of significant accounting policies 

The Women Nationally Active for Christ is a nonprofit 
organization and an auxiliary of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc. located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of 
the Organization is to publish the Free Will Baptists ' magazine for 
women, to receive and disburse funds for missionaries and provide 
other services to Free Will Baptist women. The Organization's 
support comes primarily from donor contributions, dues and fees, and 
magazine sales. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under 
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code under a group 
exemption of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
In addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a "private foundation· within the meaning 
of 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated 
business income for 2005 and 2004. 

The following significant accounting policies have been 
followed in the preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The organization prepares its financial statements using the 
accrual basis of accounting, which involves the application of u.s. 
generally accepted accounting principles; consequently, revenues and 
gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are 
recognized when incurred . 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statements presentation follows the recommendations 
of t he Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of 
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, Financial 
Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the 
Organization is required to report information regarding its 
financial position and activities according to three classes of net 
assets; unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, 
and permanently restricted net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
u.s. generally accepted accounting principles includes the use of 
estimates that affect the financial statements. Accordingly, actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
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WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
(An Auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Notes to the Financial Stat~ents 

Note 1 -
(Continued) 

December 31, 2005 and 2004 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 

Contributions 

The Organization accounts for contributions in accordance with 
the recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in 
SFAS No. 116, Accounting for Contributions Received a nd 
Contributions Made. In accordance with SFAS No. 116, contributions 
received are recorded as unrestricted, temporari ly restricted, or 
permanently restricted support, depending on the existence or nature 
of any donor restrictions. 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in 
temporari ly or per manently restricted net assets depending on the 
nature of the restricti on. Whe n a restriction expires (that i s , 
when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of activities 
as net assets released from restrictions. 

Property, equipment, and depreciation 

The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing, at 
cost, all expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $500 
with a useful life of at least two years. Depreciation is computed 
on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets 
generally as follows: 

Equipment 5 - 20 years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a 
separate component in unrestricted net assets. 

Accounts and note s receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts 

The Organization issues credit to churches and individuals for 
the purchase of magazines a nd literature. These churches and 
individuals are located all across the United States. 

The Organization loans money to Bible col lege students for the 
payment of college tuition. The student is required to sign a note 
for the money. These notes are uncollateralized. These students 
are located across the United States. There are numerous l oans with 
varying interest rates and maturity dates. Accordingly, the fair 
value of these notes approximates the carryinq value net of the 
allowance for doubtful accounts, 

A-46 

(An Auxiliary 

WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
of the National As sociation of Free 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2005 and 2004 

will Baptists l 

. t accounting pol icies Q~~~~~Qn~a~n~dLJs~u~mro~a~r~~v_fo~f~sui~g~n~~~·f!f~£C~a~n~~~~~~~~~~--­Note 1 _ organizat ion 
(Continued ) 

Note 2 -

Note 3 -

. counts receivable to be fully . 
Management cons~ders ac for doubtful accounts ~s 

d . 1 no allowance 
collectible; accor 1ng y, . Management considers the notes 
required for accounts rece1vabl: · l partially col lectible and 
r eceivable that are overdue t~l e ~~eyfor doubtful accounts in the 
accordingly has recorded an _a owa 

f $2 333 ($1,357 1n 2004). a.mount o • 

cash equivalents 

ll highly liquid investments 
The Organization considers a h n purchased to be cash 

a maturity of three months or less w e 

with 

equivalents. 

Inventory 

Inventory is 
method) or market. 

fi t ·n first out stated at the lower of cost ( rs ~ , 

Property and equipment 

t and equipment follows: A summary of proper Y 

Equipment 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Restrictions on net assets 

2005 
$28,381 

( 21,369) 

s 7,012 

2004 
$43,223 

( 37,391) 

~ 5, 832 

il restricted net assets 'l'emporar Y are available for the following 

purposes: 

student Loan 
~oreign scholarship 
Provision Closet · H se 
Free Will Baptist Bible College Miss~on ou 

2005 
~99,202 

3,408 
76 ,543 
11,460 

Sl..20 I 613 

Permanently restricte d a ssets are restricted to: 

Endowment Trust s 18,868 
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2004 

$98,986 
5,381 

67,763 
12,666 

$184,lli 

s 17.858 

~; ., 
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Note 4 -

Note 5 -

Note 6 -

Note 7 -

Note 8 -

WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
(An Auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2005 and 2004 

Lease 

The Organization entered into a year-to-year lease agreement 
with the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. for office 
and storage space. The rent expense for the year amounted to 
$27,060 ($24,600 for the year ended December 31, 2004). 

Pension plan 

The organization participates in the master pension plan of 
the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists. The plan is a defined contribution plan . The 
Organization contributes 5% of gross salary for all employees with 
five or more years of service and 3% of gross salary for employees 
with less than five years of service. Employees are allowed to 
contribute to the plan but are not required to contribute. Pension 
expense for the year amounted to $3,815 ($5,252 in 2004). Onder the 
plan, an account is maintained for each participant and upon 
retirement the participant can either receive a lump sum 
distribution or purchase one of several types of annuity accounts. 

Concentration of credit risk 

The Organization maintains cash deposits at a financial 
institution located in the United States. Accounts at the 
institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
up to $100,000. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the cash deposits 
were fully insured. 

The Organization also has $187,823 ($185,077 in 2004) on 
deposit with the Free Will Baptist Foundation. These funds are 
uninsured. 

Deferred revenue 

Deferred revenue r e sulted from magazine subscriptions rece ived 
for 2006 issues. 

Fair values of f i nancial instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the 
Organization in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial 
instruments : 

Cash, accounts receivable, accrued interest receivable and 
payables : The carrying amounts reported in the statements 
financial position approximate fair values because of the 
short maturitie s of those instruments. 
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of 

(An Auxiliary 
WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 

of the National Assoc iat ion of Free Will Baptists) 

Note 8 -

Note 9 -

Note 10 -

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2005 and 2004 

Fair values of financial instruments (Continued) 

Notes receivable: Based on current interest rates, the 
carrying value approximates the fair value of the notes 
receivable at December 31, 2005 and 2004. 

commitments 

The Organization entered into a leas~ for o~fice equip~ent;1 
N ember 1 2005 and wLll expLre on Octo er , The lease began on ov ' ' f $165 The lease 

2008. The lease has a fixed monthly payment o · 
expense for 2005 was $330. 

1 ts r equired are as follows: Future minimum renta paymen 

Year ended December 31 Amount 
2006 $1, 982 
2007 1,982 
2008 1,651 

Total $5,615 

correction of an error 

The organization determined that revenue and exp~n~es related 
to the ProvJ..sion Closet program should have been cl:s~J..=J..~dn:~ 

· · t d net assets rather than unres r1c e 
temporarJ..ly restrJ..~ et "on also determined that interest earned on 
~ss::~n~:eo~r~~:J..~:u~ent Loan Program should be cla~sified as 
~~;estricted net assets rather than tempora:ily restr1cted ~~t 

ThJ..· s correction was made by restatJ..ng the temporarL Y assets · t t the 
· net assets and the unrestricted net asse s a . 

restrJ..cted t t ' g the 2004 temporarily restrJ..cted b inning of 200 4 and by res a J..n 'l 
eg nrestricted revenue. As a result, temporarJ.. Y 

revenue and u . d $18 051 and unrestricted net assets t 'cted net assets 1ncrease , .
1 res rJ.. . . of 2004 and 2004 temporar J.. y 

decreased $18,051 a~ the be~J..~~~~gand unrestricted revenue increased 
restricted revenue =~~=~~eon the total increase in net assets for $402 . There was no 
2004. 
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2007 WNAC SALARY BREAKDOWN 

Executive Secretary-Treasurer 
Salary 
Social Security/Medicare 
Retirement 
Insurance 

TraveVLrfe 
Hospital 
Dental 

Christmas Bonus 
Total Salary and Benefits 

Executive Assistant 
Salary 
Social Security/Medicare 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Life 
Hospital 
Dental 

Christmas Bonus 
Total Salary and Benefits 

Editor 
Salary 
Social Security/Medicare 
Retirement 
insurance 

Life 
Hospita l 
Dental 

Ch ristmas Bonus 
Total Salary and Benefits 

Bookkeeper 
Salary 
Social Security/Medicare 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Life 
Hospital 
Dental 

Christmas Bonus 
Total Salary and Benefits 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 225.00 
$ 5,730.00 
$ 350.00 

$ 175.00 
$ 5,730.00 
$ 350.00 

$ 175.00 
$ 5,730.00 
$ 350.00 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

2006 2007 

41,485.00 
3,234.63 
2,114.14 
6,305.00 

$ 42,728.00 
$ 3,331 .55 
$ 2,136.40 
$ 5,575.00 

$ 225.00 
$ 5,000.00 
$ 350.00 

797.80 
53,936.57 

$ 821 .70 
$ 54,592.65 

31 ,067.00 $ 
2,422.33 $ 
1,583.22 $ 
6,255.00 $ 

$ 175.00 
$ 5,000.00 
$ 350.00 

597.44 $ 
41 ,924.99 $ 

27, 1~.00 $ 
2,116.61 $ 

830.04 $ 
6,255.00 $ 

$ 175.00 
$ 5,000.00 
$ 350.00 

522.04 $ 
36,869.69 $ 

10,400.00 $ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

200.00 $ 
10,600.00 $ 

32,310.00 
2,496.30 
1,615.50 
5.525.00 

621 .35 
42,568.15 

28,389.00 
2,213.52 
1,182.93 
5,525.00 

545.95 
37,856.40 

10,400.00 

200.00 
10,600.00 

G~nd Total of Salary and Benefits $ 143 33 2 
(Ed1tor's hospital insurance [$5,000.)) is presently not a WNAC Incurred expen~ ~ $ 145,617.20 
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WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
2007 PROPOSED BUDGET 

Estimated Income: 
General Fund Offering 
Convention Offering 
Convent•on Expense Gift 
Delegate Fees 
Dues 
Interest Income 
Uterature Sales 
Magazine Subscriptions 
Miscellaneous 
Rest of the Family Offenng 
Emphasis Offering 
Postage & Handling 
Together Way 
Endowment Trust Interest 
Convention Luncheon Tickets 
Travel Income 

Total Income 

Estimated Expense: 
Salaries 
Employee Benefits 

Payroll Tax Expense 
Employee Retirement 
Health, dental, life insurance 
Christmas Bonus 

Insurance: General & Workers' Comp. 
Legal and Professional Services 
Convention Expense 
Executive Comm1ttee Expense 
CoLBborer Magazine Expense 

Mailing 
Writers 
Printing 
Postage 

Miscellaneous Expense 
Office Rent 
Office Supplies and Materials 
Phone 
Postage 
Printing 
Service Contracts 
Subscriptions 
Travel and Promotion 
Continuing Education 
Equipment (additions and repairs) 
Spec~aiProjects 

Total E.xpenses 

s 7.n3.57 
$ 4,527.40 
$ 18,815.00 
$ 2,117.28 

$ 3,500.00 
$ 500.00 
$ 30,000.00 
$ 4,500.00 
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2006 
$ 50,000.00 
$ 3,500.00 
$ 12,000 00 
$ 300.00 
$ 70,000.00 
$ 3,000.00 
$ 22,000.00 
$ 90,000.00 
$ 5,500.00 
$ 3,000.00 
$ 14,000.00 

$ 273,300.00 

$ 110,098.00 
$ 33,233.25 

$ 2,000.00 
$ 4,800.00 
$ 20,000.00 
$ 5,000.00 
$ 38,500.00 

$ 368.75 
$ 28,600.00 
$ 4,000.00 
$ 3,500 00 
$ 4,000.00 
$ 5,500.00 
$ 4,000.00 
$ 200.00 
$ 4,000.00 
$ 2,000.00 
$ 3,000.00 
$ 500.00 

$ 273,300.00 

$ 8,041 .37 
$ 4,934.83 
$ 16,625.00 
$ 2,189.00 

$ 3,000.00 
$ 600.00 
$ 30,000.00 
$ 3,000.00 

2007 
$ 50,000.00 
$ 3,000.00 
$ 12,000.00 
$ 200.00 
$ 80,000.00 
$ 4,000.00 
$ 14,500.00 
$ 80,000.00 
$ 1,088 00 
$ 3,000.00 
$ 9,500.00 
$ 1,000.00 
$ 2,000.00 
$ 1,000.00 
$ 9,000.00 
$ 1,000.00 

$ 271 ,288.00 

$ 113,827.00 
$ 31 ,790.20 

$ 1,000.00 
$ 5,500.00 
$ 20,000.00 
$ 5,000.00 
$ 36,600.00 

$ 470.80 
$ 28,600.00 
$ 6,000.00 
$ 3,000.00 
$ 3,500.00 
$ 4,000.00 
$ 4,000.00 
$ 200.00 
$ 2,500.00 
$ 1,800.00 
$ 3,000.00 
$ 500.00 

$ 271 ,288.00 



Registration Report 
The 2006 Birmingham Convention registered the following: 

Nation?/ Convention . . . . . .. . ..... . 3,439 
International Missionary .......... 35 
~ome Missionary ............. 62 
L1censed Minister . 42 
Local Church Deleg~t~. : : : : : : : : : : 1 0 
Visitor ................... 2,36l 
State Delegate ............... 78 
Ordained Minister ............ 616 
Ordained Deacon ............ 1 30 
Board/Commission Member 51 
Personnel .. 0 ••••••••••• : : : : :54 

National Youth Conference .. ... .. . . 3,527 
NYC Visitor . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 685 
NYC Personnel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . : 1 02 
NYC Child Visitor ............ 1 85 
Preschool Worship . . . . . 1 06 
NYC Grades 1-3 . . . . 

0 

• • • • • 297 
NYC Grades 4-6 .... : : : : : : : · 344 
NYC Grades 7-8 . . . . . . . . . . 271 
NYC Grades 9-12 ........ : : :537 

Women Nationally Active For Christ ..... 953 
WNAC Visitor . . . . . . . . . . . . . 727 
Local WNAC Delegate . . . . . . . : . 3 3 
WNAC Missionary ............ 35 
WNAC National Officer . . . . . . 6 
WNAC State Delegate ....... _"1.24 
WNAC State Field Worker . . . . . . 1 0 
WNAC State President . . . 1 1 
WNAC Personnel ....... : : : : : : .7 

Total Unduplicated Attendance: 5, 91 3 
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Budget Committee Report 
The Notional Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc./ has approved in this convention these budgets for 2007: 

Executive Office (Includes:) S 7821862.00 
Administrative S 463,962.00 
Convention 318,900.00 

Free Will Baptist Bible College 
(Includes S 1,300,000.00 in unrestricted gifts) 

Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Home Missions 
International Missions 
Moster's Men 
Retirement and Insurance 
Sunday School and Church Training 
Commission for Theological Integrity 
Historical Commission 
Media Commission 
Music Commission 
TOTAL 

611731364.00 

4301264.00 
41800,000.00 
7,5981041 .00 

144,747.00 
492,063.34 

4,207,000.00 
4,025.00 
3,100.00 
3,600.00 
5,025.00 

s 24,644,091.34 

All these ministries receive funds through The Together Way except the Sunday School and Church 
Training Deportment which is self-sustaining. 

The Budget Committee recommends that gifts received through The Together Woy Plan be allocated 
to the notional ministries on the following basis: 

1. Underwrite the Executive Office Administrative Budget above designated gifts/ not to exceed 45% 
of cooperative gifts. 
2. Disburse the balance of cooperative gifts to the following notional ministries according to these 
percentages: 
Free Will Baptist Bible College 
International Missions 
Home Missions 
Retirement and Insurance 
Moster's Men 
Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Commission for Theological Integrity 
Historical Commission 
Music Commission 
Media Commission 
TOTAL 

Respectfully Submitted, Your Servants, 
Ke~h Burden, Executive Secretary 
MaH Pinson/ President of Free Will BaP.tist Bible College 

23.0% 
23.0% 
18.0% 
14.0% 
14.0% 
6.0% 
0.5% 
0.5% 
0.5% 
0.5% 

100.0% 

Bill Evans/ General Director of Free Will Baptist Foundation 
larry Powell/ General Director of Home Missions Deportment 
James Forlines, General Director of International Missions Deportment 
Kenneth Akers, General Director of Moster's Men Deportment 
D. Roy lewis, General Director of Retirement and Insurance 
Ron Hunter, General Director of Sunday School and Church Training Deportment 
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Obituary CommiHee Report 
Arkansas 

justin Barnett, deacon 
john Barrick, minister 
Thomas Holliman, deacon 
Herman jennings, deacon 
Glenn jones, minister 
Eugene Marston, minister 
M.C. Parrish, minister 
Avaugh Vaughn, minister 
Clarence Wcx::x)rome, deacon 

Georgia 
O.B. Ebenson, deacon 
R. D. Folsom, deacon 
Jack Lysaker, home missionary 
Ted Myers, deacon 
Bill Robinson, minister 
Carlis Wilson, deacon 
Rudy Woods, minister 
Warren Wyatt, minister 

Illinois 
James Butcher, minister 
Hall Cherry, deacon 
Denzil Cockrum, deacon 
Dennis Maynard, deacon 
Leon McBride, minister 
Rollie Smith, deacon 

Indiana 
Kenneth Robins, minister 

Mississippi 
Lynn Columns, deacon 
George Culver, deacon 
Bobby Hargett, deacon 
Wi II ia m E. Jones, deacon 
Alvin Lambert, deacon 
Kelly Terry, deacon 
Charles Walden, deacon 

Missouri 
Paul Ambro, minister 
Marion Bailey, deacon 
Edward Climer, minister 
Paul Kitch, minister 
J.W. King, minister 
Fred Oxendine, deacon 

North Carolina 
Lester House, deacon 
Milton "Bill" Pratt, deacon 

Ohio 
Dr. Calvin Evans, minister 

Oklahoma 
Tony Adams, minister 
Wilmont Chamberlain, deacon 
Howard Gage, minister 
Louis Maxwell, minister 
Charles Pendergrass, deacon 

South Carolina 
johnnie Bullman, minister 
Richard Conyers, minister 
Haywood Drew, minister 
Neil Harrelson, minister 
Cornelius (Neal) Harting, minister 
Ernest Lawson, minister 
Marshall Nichols, minister 
LaVerne Poston, deacon 

Tennessee 
Terry Boyd, minister 
Ronald Creech, minister 
Glen Hall, minister 

Virginia 
Clarence Fortner, minister 
Thomas Slemp, minister 
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West Virginia 
Arley Joe Ball, minister 
joe Bryant, deacon 
Forest Cooper, minister 
Everet Mills, minister 
William Sandy, minister 
Hubert Stevens, deacon 

Obituary Committee: 
C3eorge Harvey (AZ), chairman 
jay Baines (Mid-Atlantic) 
jim Cox (WV) 
Ed Hutchinson (FL) 
Gene Outland (Ill 

Resolutions CommiHee Report 

WHEREAS the Alabama State Association has done an exc~llen1 
job in preParing for and ho~ting the 70th se~sion of the Natlona 
Association of Free Will Baptists, therefore be It 

RESOLVED that the National Association exrress its grateful appre­
ciation to' the officers and members o the Alabama State 
Association with a rising vote of thanks. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Resolutions Committee: 
Fred Hanson (Atl-can), Chairman 
Danny Thompson (All 
Mike Jones (SC) 
Chris Clay (IN) 
Jim Williams (MOl 
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The Executive Secretary's Report 

2005 
lbrce years ago the Executive Office faced extraordinary challenges. At that time 

I outlined bold, drastic measures to address those challenges and expressed confidence in 
the denomination's ability and willingness to help. Looking back we know the 
appropriate steps were taken and you have proven our confidence was well-placed. 
• As of :M:arch 2006, the Executive Office is officially out of debt! Through the 

sacrificial efforts of my staff and the consistent, generous support of our churches and 
states, the office closed 2005 in a strong financial position. The majority of our 
support comes through cooperative giving. We appreciate everyone who supports the 

Executive Office. 
• ONE Magazine continues to meet wilh widespread approval among Prec Will 

Baptists. Thanks to lhc leadership of Eric Thomsen and his editorial team, the quality 
of the publication continues to improve with each issue. A brief report of the 
magatine, its financial statement and proposed budget will be presented se.parately. 

• The Free Will Baptist Hymn Book: Rejoice has been reprinted and is now available 
through Randall House. Copyright and royalty issues have been resolved. Revenue 
for royalties has been set aside and is available for advance payment. 

• The 2005 Leadership Conference registration was one of the highest ever. Attendees 
consistently gave the program high marks. Dates for the 2006 conference are 
December 4-5 at the Millennium Maxwell House Hotel in Nashville. 

• To date, six regional Building Kingdom Stewards seminars have been conducted 
featuring Dr. Stan Toler. Others are scheduled. These are made possible through the 
combined efforts of the FWH Foundation, RandaJl House and the Executive Office. 
Interest in the Forward in Faith capital campaign program is increasing. 

• The Executive Office received more than $206,000 in disaster relief contributions in 
2005. A recommendation will be presented during this convention for a contingency 
plan that will help coordinate future relief efforts. 

• Dean Jones' tenure as convention manager comes to a close at the end of this 
meeting. We are indebted to him for his leadership and years of service as a meeting 

planner. 
• On May 1, 2006, Roy Harris assumed duties as Executive Administrator. He will 

serve as convention manager and assist the office in expanding services that aid local 
congregations and pastors. 

The Executive Office has moved from being reactive to our circumstances to 
being proactive to new challenges and opportunities. We exist to serve FWD churches 
and promote the ministry of each national agency. Thank you for the honor and privilege 
to represent Christ and you. 

Your Partner in Ministry, 

Keith Burden 
Executive Secretary 
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Statistical Summary 
1991-2005 

Beginning 
Ending Year Membership Baptisms Members Members Net Membership TotaJs Added Lost Increase TotaJs 1991 22 I .533 8.703 12,931 7.240 5,69 1 227,224 1992 227.224 9,283 12,123 7,223 4,900 232, 124 1993 232, 124 8,828 12,246 6,01 1 6,235 238,359 1994 238,359 7,804 12,393 7,508 4,885 243,244 1995 243,244 8,089 12,70 I 6,232 6,469 249,7 13 1996 249,713 8,436 I 2.155 5,985 6,170 255,883 1997 255,883 8,97 1 II ,946 6,660 5,286 261, I 69 1998 261, 169 I 0,169 14,089 6,345 7,744 268,9 13 1999 268,913 10,200 I 3,965 7,7 15 6,250 275,163 2000 275, 163 10,549 12,932 5,841 7,091 282,254 2001 282,254 8,982 12,252 5,365 6,887 289,14 1 2002 289, 141 8,924 I I ,329 6,233 5,096 294,237 2003 294,237 8,713 I 0,968 6,904 4,064 298,301 2004 298,301 8,407 I I ,084 5,494 5,590 303,89 1 2005 303,891 7,779 9,954 5,629 4,325 308,2 16 

TotaJs 133,837 183,068 96,385 86,683 

Tracking The Together Way Totals 

Designated Co-op TotaJ 
1999 3,066,552.2 I 2.06% 676,020.36 I 1.1 3% 3, 742,572.57 3.59% 82% 18% 2000 3,289.076.32 7.26% 708,470.54 4.80% 3,997,546.86 6.81% 82% 18% 2001 3,170,082.84 -3.62% 736,040.45 3.89% 3,906,123.29 -2.29% 81% 19% 2002 3,253,772.40 2.64% 738,744. 13 0.37% 3,992,516.53 2.21% 81% 19% 2003 3,5 15,300.09 8.04% 770,780.99 4.34% 4,286,081.08 7.35% 82% 18% 2004 3,63 1,305.92 3.30% 782,642.76 1.54% 4,41 3,948.68 2.98% 82% 18% 2005 3,946, 786.84 8.69% 813,333.89 3.92% 4, 760, 1 20.73 7.84 % 83% 17% 
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Terry A Hill 
Ernest R Harper 

~ Hill, Harper &: Associates 
Certified Public Accountants 

Independent Auditors' Report 

761 Old H1ckory Boulev.ard Executive Committee of the Suite 206 

General Board of the National TEL: 615/Jn-3485 Brentwood. TN 37027 

Association ofFree Will Baphs s, nc. ' t 1 FAX: 615/Jn-3488 

• ial sition of Executive Office of the National 
We have audited the accompanying statements of ~nanc . potion) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, 
Associations of Free Will Baptist~, .'~c. (a nonpro ~ o~~8~~~ assets, and cash flows for the years then 
and the related statements of 8Ct1 VItles and chang "b"l" of the Executive Office's management. Our 

• 1 ts are the respons1 1 1ty . 
ended. These financta statem~n . fi ancial statements based on our audtts. 

"b"J"ryl ·s to express an opuuon on these m 
respons• • 1 U d 

. . . standards generally accepted in the nile 
We conducted our audits in accordance With 8Udlll~g d perform the audits to obtain reasonable 

States of America. Those standar~ require that we pr::; material misstatement An audit includes 
assurance about whether the financial state~ents are fj d disclosures in the financial Statements. 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting_ the ~o~n~ an used and significant estimates made by 

An audit also includes assessing the accoununfig pn~~p :tement presentation. We believe that our 
t, as well as evaluating the overall mane• s managemen .. 

. ·d reasonable basis for our opm10n. audtts prov1 e a . 

resent fairly, in all matenal respects, the 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred ~o .abo~e~sociation of Free Will Baptists. Inc. as of 
fi 'a) position of the Executive Office of the 8~1ona d 'ts cash flows for the years then 
lnanCt d h changes in liS net assets an • . 

De ber 31 2005 and 2004, an l e d . the United States of Amenca. en;~~n conformity with accounting principles generally accepte m 

tJo;~-- / ~~ 
April 27, 2006 
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, E~CUTIVE OFFICE OF TIJE NATIONAL 
ASSOCJA TION OF Ji'REE WILL BAI~ISTS, INC. 

Current as:-.e~: 

Cash <tnd cash equtvalents 

Statt'ment' of Financial Po:.ition 

December .H. 2005 and .200~ 

f-unds held by hee Will Baptist Foundation 
Recl•rvables: 

I Jymnal sale.<. 

Other departmental and agency charges 

Total receivables 
Inventory, at lower of cost (firs t-in, first-out merhod) 

or warkel 
Prepaid l'xpenses 

Total current asst>ts 

f' ixed a'>set.~: 
Office equipment and furniture 
Automobr le 

~s accwuulated deprocialion 

Net fixed ass.-ts 

Current liabilities: Ljabjljtjes and Net Assets 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
:\oft' payable 

Convention re\'llnues collecte<l in advance 
Rehllf contributions payable to beneficiaries 

Total current liabilities 

Net assets: 
Executive Ofticc 
Net investment in equipment 
Special Projects 
Convention l-und 

Total net assets 

$ 

$ 

207.845 

5,lH6 
261 

6,107 

14.545 
14.376 

242.873 

J 28.535 
s."'~:w 

n6.755 
129,781 --

6.974 

249,847 

2.186 

30,000 

~.721 
46,907 

220.564 
6,974 

71,927 
(96.525) 
202,940 

197,984 
1,937 

1.068 
3,007 
-k075 

2S.356 
_ 12,672._ 
245.031 

128,535 

128,535 
126,813 

1,722 

246,753 

17,968 
91,953 
49,596 

159,517 

182,260 
1,722 

67,404 
(164,150) 

87,236 

s 249.847 - 246,753 

Sec accompanying n otes lo financial !>tatements. 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE 01<' THE NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION OF l<'REE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statement!. of Activitie.~ and Chang~ in Net A~els 

For the year.; ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 

Executive Special Convention 2005 2004 

Otlice l'r!! j~~t.o; fund Totals Totals 

Rcvcnu~: 

(be Togethllr Way Plan s 4.760.120 4.760.120 4,413,l)4g 

Disbursed to agencies 
and department<; ( 4,374,87 5) (4,374,875) (4,Q..t2,773) 

385,245 385,245 171,175 

Subscriptions to Contact 
Magazine 65,428 

Sales of hymnals 29.756 29,756 35,411 

Gifts and offerings 1.704 8,636 10,340 11,315 

Investment ~gs 
(losses) 2,731 

Convention fees 310,138 3 10, 138 322,922 

Other income 8,758 931 22,086 31,775 19,225 

Total revenues 395,707 30.687 340.860 767,254 828,209 

Cost or hymnal sales: 
Begmmng inventory 2!U56 28,356 50,447 

Other costs 7.834 7,834 7,')43 

Total cost of inventory 36.190 36.190 58,390 

Less ending inventory 14 ,545 14.545 28,356 

Cost of hymnal sales 2 1.645 ?1 64 -- ~ ,:, 30,034 

Gross profit 395,707 9,Q..t2 340,860 745,609 798,175 

l<:xpenses or operations: 
Executive Office 352.151 352,151 348,712 

Contact Magazine 103,369 

Special Projects 4,519 4,519 32,746 

Convention Fund 273,235 273,235 268,527 

Total expenses 352,151 4 ,5 19 273,235 629,905 753,354 

Incre&e in net assets 43,556 4.523 67,625 115,704 44,821 

Net asse~ beginning of year 183,982 67,404 (164.150) 87,236 63,415 

Net assets, end of year s 22],538 7 1,927 (96,525) 202,940 87,TI6 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE 01" THE NATIONAL EXECUTIVE Ol"BCE OF Tllli NATIONAL 

ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. ASSOCIATION 01<' FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Functional Expenses Statement\ of Cash Flo"' 

For the years coded Deet!mber 31, 2005 and 2004 Year~> ended December 31, 2005 and 200~ 

2005 2004 
Executive Special umvention 2005 2004 Ca5h Flows from Operatin& Activities 

["q>enses or operations: 
Office Projects Euw1 Totals Tot.als -14,821 

Increase in net a.~sets s 1 1 5.7~ 

Salaries s !10,421 330 34,279 
Adjusttnents to reconc ile change m net a.~ sets to 

HOlL~ing allowance 
145,030 163,594 net operating activities : 

20,000 20,000 49,000 
Employee fringe benefits 

and health insumnce 27,208 722 
Depreciation 2,968 3,351 

Payroll taxes 
27,930 43,573 

10.371 25 1,969 12,365 15,946 
Travt!l (increase) decrease in: 

17.257 36,057 53,314 38,577 
Executive Committee Receivables (2,032) 24,5 11 

and General Board 2,340 5,334 7,674 
Inventories 13,8 11 22,o91 

Office rental 
17,751 Prepaid expenses (1,697) (7,679) 

32.881 32,881 
Depreciation 

29,892 Tncrease (decrease) in: 
2.968 2,968 3,351 

Legal and audit Convention revenues collected in advanct: ( 19,596) 4.687 
3,099 2.268 5,367 6,529 

Equipment maintenance 
Deferred subscription revenues (18,902) 

Supplies. office expense 4,794 69 4.105 8,%8 
Relief contributions payable to beneficiaries 14,721 

Printing and promotion 
22,844 Accounts payable and accruals (15.782) (39,418) 

P06tage I mail services 
4,395 36,104 40,499 108,479 

902 6 262 1,170 18,912 
Telephone 

Net operating activliJes 108,097 33,462 
2,446 251 2,697 2,440 

Writer's fees 
Audi torium and other 

1,833 <Mb flows from Investing Activities 

convenllon services 146.475 146,475 
Funds held by Free Will Baptist Foundation tr.msferrt-d to On<> Maga1ine (21,000) 

lnt<>rnallonal Fellowship 240 
133,799 Purcbast- of automobile from le-.c;e (8,220) 

Educational Task force 
240 240 ~et lnvesttnent in funds held by rree Will Baptist roundallon 1.937 16.453 

The Together Way Plan 147 
6,937 

147 139 
Auto and copier leases 9,969 

et investing activitjes (6,283) (4,547) 

Auto lease cost for fonner 
9,969 18,858 

Executive Secretary 
Ca~b Flows from •' inancing Activities 

Severance compensation for 
13,357 Proceeds from debt 8,220 

Executive Assistant Repayments of debt (100,173) 25,362 

Church directory 
16,777 

425 425 1,341 
Publications Committee 

Net financing ac tivities (91,953) 25,362 

In terest expense 164 
1,186 

364 2,471 2,999 6,166 
Tempo Music bad debt 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 9,861 54,277 

IJuilding Kingdom Stewards Seminars 3,270 
21,509 Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 197,984 143,707 

3,270 
Support to One Maguine 100,000 100,000 
Other Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year 207,845 197,984 

2,549 30 2,938 5,517 10,324 

Total expenses s 352_,_!1!_ 4,5 19 273,235 629,905 753,354 Snpplemcotal disclosures; 

lntere~ paid 12,747 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. See accompanying notes to financial blatemcnb. 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION Oir FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31.2005 and 2004 

'lbe Execut ive Office operates under the auspices of the Nauonal A . 
gowmed by the ExecutJ' e Commillel' of thl' General Board f th ~· . s~ocllaUon _ of ful' Will Haptists. lnc. and IS o e. auona AsSOCiauon of hl'e Wil l Baptists, Inc. 

(1 ) Sun!mar:y of Sjgnific;ant Accounting Policies 
Basts of Presenta tion 
The financial statemenl\ of the rxecutl\'e Office have been prepared on rhe accrual basis of accountmg. 

' l~e Executive Office follows prO\'ISJOns of Statement of F .·. . . 
Fmancial Statements of ~ot-for-Profit Organizali ns" U d ma;::cml Accountmg Stand~ds (SFAS) l'o. 117, 
to report mfonnauon regardin" its financ··l ,? . dn er AS No 117. the Execullve Office is required 

eo ''' pOSitiOn an acu' Illes accord t hr 1 
unrestricted net asset<>, temporarily restricted net assc!J d mg o t ee c asses of net assets: 
Executive O ffice is required to prescm a statement ~f ~~~nn::ttanently restncted net assets. In addition, the 

further, the Executive Office follows the provisions of SPAS ~o 116 "A . ,. . . 
and Contnbulions Made " wruch r .. nmre o 'b •. . ' ccounttng .or Con.tnbuttons Received 

. . --, s c om uuons receJwd to be reconled . d 
restncted, or pennanently rcstrictl'd support d d. as unrestncte , temporarily 
restrictions l'pen mg on the extstencc and I or nature of any donor 

The ~xec.utive Office also follows the provisions of an inte rctauon 
Contributions Received and Contributions Made) Tnte . ~'l' ., .• of SFAS No. 116 (Accountmg for 
for-profit O rganization Acts as an Agent Truste . In rpret:.~n ' "o. 4-, Transfers of Asset~ in Which a Not­
funds recetved from donors wruch are d~sJ ate~· or term lary . In accordance wtth Interpretation ~o. 4 2, 
for as liabil ity transactions. (sel' note 7) gn by the donor to be transferred to third parties are accounted 

Fixed Assets 
Offtee equipment and furniture are stated at cost l)e re . . . . 
using the straight- line method. Expenditures for main~n~:tlon IS pro~•ded over the useful life of the asset 
not signifteantly extend the tLseful hves of "••ets de ~d repa u-s, renewals, and bcttennents that do 

"·"" are expense as mc urred. 

Income Taxes 
The Execuuve O ffice is exem pt from Federal and state mco . .. . . .. taxes IS made m the accounts me taxes. accordmgly, no proVISIOn for income 

C.ash and Ca.;h J•:guivalents 
For pwposes of the statemeru of cash flows th E . . 
and high~y liquid debt instruments pw-chas;d \:i;~u:;~e i~::ea co~stders all cash funds, cash bank accounts 
cash equivalents. g tunty of three months or less to be cash and 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of fmancial statements requJTes mana en . 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities d di I g lent to make estlll1ales and assumptions that affect the 
fmancial Slatcments and the reported an ~ osw-e of conungent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
results could differ from th06e estimatc.~ounts o revenues and expenses during the reponing period. Actual 

Cban_gcs in Presentation of Financial Statements 
Certam amounts as reported in the '>004 fin· . I - aneta stateml'nls mav ba v be las fi year presentation. ' e en rec s1 1ed to confom1 to current 

6 
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EXEC\ JT IV£ Ol•'FlCE Of THE NATIONAL 
ASSOCL\ TION Olo' FRE.t:: WILL BAPTL"TS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

(1) So o · Si n · kant ccounlin 
{ompcnsatcd Ab:.('nt:el> 
Employees of th<' c~et:Uit\'e Ofllce ,ue enlltkd to patd vacatiOn, paid s ic!.. day:. and personal days orr. 
d~nding on job dass1hcalioo. kng.th of ser-vrce and otht:r factor'> It 1s Wlpractical 10 estmtate the amount 
of compensa110n fm future ab~ences ;md accordmgly, no ltablllly has been recordl'd m the accompanying 
financral ~tatcments The Executive Office'-; policy 1S to recog.mze the cost of compensated absences when 

actually pa1d to the cmployees. 

(2) lnyeoto o of H) moab 
'!be Lxecuuve Offict' h;IS an agrel'went w1th Sunday School and ('burch Trmmng and Rru1dall I louse 
Publication~ (''Randall llouse"). \\hereby Randallllousc warehouses and distnbutes hee \\til Baptist hymnals. 
Further, Randall I louse mvoice.'> the c ustomer, collects funds and rcWJts to tlR· l:.xocuuve Olltce S6.32 for each 
hymnal ~old. Randall House \\ archotL~ed h)1nnals \'alued at a coo;t of <;;I 0.8-15 and <;;2-t,65Cl at Decem her 31. 

2005 and 2004, rc~pcctivcly. 

(3) Pen.,jon 
lbe E~eculJ\ e Ofl ice participates in the master pens1on plan ot the Huard of Retirement and Insurance of the 
:\auonal Association of l ree Will BaptisiS. Inc. lbe plan IS contributory and IS LUatt hed up to a maximum of 
5% of comperu;atron. l.:ruployl'eS may pa11icipate at date of l'Ulploymenl Penswn expensl:' amounted to 
$6.1 HI in 2005 and S I 0,969 tn 2004 The pens tOn plan 1s a defined contrthution plan. l' ndcr the plan. an 
account rs maintained for each partictpant and upon rc11rement the parrrcipant can crther rccerve a lump-sum 

distribution or purchase one of se\'eral types of annuity contracts 

(4) Operating Lease:. 
The l:.xecuU\'e OHice has ent~reu mto noncancduble kas~ arrangemems relaung to a copy wachine and an 

(5) 

(li) 

automobile. Total e~penses runounted to S9.%<J 111 2005 and $4 1.872 (including pur-: has~: of lease vebJclcs for 
fomter employee1>) for :w<H l'he WJniruwu annual payments rl'quired aro? S4,744 lor 200<>. 2007. 200~: and 

S3.558 for 2009 

Funher, the Executive Office rents office space from the Nat ional Office HUJiding located in A ntioch, 
Tennessee The lease agreement IS cancelable with 90 day wntten notice. Offtee lease e\pense amountc.d to 

$3U~81 Ill 2005 amd $29,892 for 20<H. Annual omce h:ase l'xpense Will increase tu $33,479 in 2006. 

~ole payuble 
l:nsccured notes payable. due on demand and repayable to Free Will Baptist Foundation ao; follows: 

2005 

6.5% note payable. for payment of royalties on hymnals 
$ 

7% note payable. for cash shortfall of previous conventions 

lM:1 
24.591 

67,362 

91,953 

One ~~~azjne of the Natjonal Association of tree Will Baptists 
The denomination began the publication- One ~agaJine- dunng the year to combine the publications of certam 

Free Will Baptist agencies and organizations. One \iagazine is funded hy contnbutronc; from each of these 
agencies and organizauons. 'I be Executive Office provided S 100,000 as thelf share of the funding requirement 

durmg 2005. 
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SALARY BREAKDOWN 
2006 2007 

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF TilE NATIONAL 
2005 ASSOCIA TlON OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

EJ(ecutive Secretary 
$41 000 00 $42 525 00 (2 5%) $41 ,943 50 

Notes to Financial tatcmcn~. c.'Ontinucd 
Salary 

20.00000 20.00000 20.00000 
956633 (1530%) 

Housing and Utilnies 
9,4n 36 (15 30'Yo) 9.333 00 (15 30'Yo) 

2 126 25 (S..,o) 
Social Secun1y 

2.050 00 (5%) 

(7) Tlu: T2aether Way Plan 

000 
5.518 46 

lbe Executive Office is responsible for recemng and dtsbursmg funds recerved from "lbe Together Way Plan Renrement 
7,047 69 5.799 02 Insurance (HealtiVOentaiA.ife) 

~ 418 90 
program Designated contributions are disbursed to the named Depanment or agency. and cooperative funds are 

449 47 Oisabilrtyffravel <hsbursed based on the proportion31e sharing arrangement. 'I be followmg summarited these transactions for the 
NOTE Office car furnished 

78 621 49 80,154 94 
year ended December 31. 2005 as compared to 2004 totals. 

78.918 02 
2005 2004 Receipts: Des ignated c . Total Total Executive Administrator 

000 35.037 91 (2 So/o) 

ooperative 

26,481 69 (2%) 
2000000 

Alabama $ 6,412 1,762 8,174 7,435 Salary 
24,000 00 (2%) 000 

Arkansas 547.014 203,429 750,443 401,654 Housing and Utitnies 
7,723. 70 (15 30%) 000 8,420.80 (15 30%) 

1,751 89 (5%) 

California 
243 13,642 13,885 16,198 Social Security 

1 ,324 08 (5%) 0.00 Retirement 
000 5,494 22 

Florida 
573 15,000 15,573 17,233 

Insurance (Hea~h/Oental/Life) 9,400.00 
374 72 

Georgia 442.320 18,055 460,375 454,056 
46045 Q.QQ DisabllilyfT ravel Tllinois 178,342 28,033 206,375 195,593 

000 71,079 54 

Indiana 
24,150 1,6 11 25,761 27,129 69,38992 Kentucky 
5,562 13,859 19,421 I 1,994 Michigan 220,699 27,300 247,999 256,942 EJcecutive Accountant 

37 434 35 (2 5%) 42.848 93 (2 5%) 36,521 32 (2%) 
Mississippi 15.169 9.645 24,814 152,591 Salary 

2 918 80 (7 65%) 3,340 98 (7 65%) 2,793 88 (7 65%) 
Missouri 

587.008 222.651 809,659 784,719 Social Security 
1 871 72 (5%) 2,1 42 45 (501o) 1 ,826 07 (5%) 

New Mexico 
3.477 261 3,738 5,540 Reorement 

6.011 04 5,73050 9,40000 
North Carolina 19,694 43,693 63,387 64,297 Insurance 

5.399 52 5.138 18 HealtVlife 
592.32 

Obio 
177,188 36,011 213,199 244,208 

611 52 
252 81 

Dental 
22086 

Oklahoma 689,023 139,855 828.878 768,556 
Dlsablily 215 48 

824 02 71989 

South C..arolina 658,257 605 658,862 670,099 
Christmas Bonus Tennessee 219.158 27.664 246,822 172,565 

49 176 66 55 139 69 
Texas 

109,705 4.653 114,358 137,671 50,756 75 Virginia 
14.148 1.364 15,512 2,361 

Yearbook Coordinator/ 
West Virginia 7.123 1.307 8,430 6,659 Canada 18,983 436 19,41 9 13,162 Registration Coordinator 

31,476 27 (2 5%) 36 025 45 (2 5%) 30,708 56 (2%) 
2,808.95 (7 65%) 

Contributions totaling $2,500 or less 2,539 2,497 5,036 3,286 Salary 
2,349 20 (7 65%) 2.454 24 (7.65%) Social Security 

1.573 81 (5%) 1 ,801 27 (5%) 
Total receipts $ 3,946,787 813,333 4.760,120 4,413,948 Retirement 1 ,535 43 (5%) 

5,730.50 5,963 40 6011 .04 Insurance 
5,399 52 5,138.18 Heahh/Ufe 5,389.07 

592.32 

Disbursements: 

574.33 611 52 
212 55 

Denial 
185 71 

Executive Office $ 19,245 366,000 385,245 371,175 
Disability 181 18 

692.80 

Foreign Missions 2,597,368 102,887 2,700,255 2,356,274 
605 31 Christmas Bonus Free Will Baptist Bible College 28 1,439 102,887 384,326 389,426 

42.30638 47,271 52 

Home Missions 884,562 80,520 965,082 1,015,181 40,737 77 Retirement & lnsurance 6,748 62,627 69,375 64,486 Master's Men 
13,835 62.627 76,462 67,352 Commission for Theo1ogicallntegrity 1,009 2.237 3,246 2,844 Foundation 
2.923 26,H40 29,763 28,219 Historical Commission 74 1 2.236 2,977 2,773 Music Commission 1,404 2,236 3,640 3,026 Media Commission 804 2,236 3,040 3,731 Hillsdale Free WiU Baptist College 35,950 35,950 25,516 Other 

100.759 100,759 83,945 - ---
Total disbiD"Sements $ 3.946.787 813,333 4.760,120 4,413,948 
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2007 
EXECUTIVE OFFICE 

ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGETS 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

2005 2005 PROJECTED EXPENSES 
Budget ActuaJs 

Salaries 
$135,655 07 $106.046.52 Housing 

44,00000 20.000 04 Social Security 
22,344 14 10 396 09 Retirement 
4,685 58 5,458 56 Employees Insurance 

33,11767 19.584 36 
(Dental/Disability/Health/Life/Travel) 

Auditing/Legal 
3,500 00 3,098 95 Automobile Lease (1 Car) 
5,110 32 21 188 38 Copier Lease 
7,000 00 5.384.11 Equipment Maintenance 
I ,000 00 0 00 Computer Supplies 
4,00000 1.903 42 Executive Committee 
2,500 00 2.340 00 General Insurance 
3,200 00 2 165 47 lnt'l Fellowship of FWB Churches 

240 00 240 00 Leadership Conference 
50000 0 00 Offrce Rental 

32,881 20 32.881 20 (S1 12persq ft x2491 ) 
Office Supplies/Expense 

3,000 00 I 665 92 Other 
3.000 00 I 113 57 Postage 
1 700 00 902 23 Pnnting 
2,500 00 2 039 12 Promotion 
1,250 00 2355 67 Books/Dues/Registrations 
1,700 00 1,224 73 Telephone 
3,250 00 2.446 38 Tog Way Plan/Stewardship Education 1,000.00 147 36 Travel 

22,500 00 19,307 79 Christmas Bonus (EX1ra Week's Salary) 
1,292 88 3,299.66 EX1ra Week Ret. in lieu of 4th week 702.33 1,404.66 

vacation beginning 16th year of service 
One Magazine 

30,596.00 99,999 96 Contact Magazine 
000 1,411 86 Contingency Fund 

6,510,26 .Q..QQ 

2006 2007 
Budget Budget 

$98,910.62 $156,437 29 
20,000.00 40,000.00 
13,856 04 24,137.06 
5,495.53 7,821 .86 

18,667.14 23,732.66 

4.000.00 3,500.00 
5 110.00 000 
8.500.00 4,800 00 
1 000.00 500 00 
4.000.00 2,50000 
3.000.00 2,600.00 
3200 00 2,750.00 

240.00 240.00 
500.00 250.00 

33 479.00 33,479 00 

3.000.00 2,250 00 
3.000.00 1,500 00 
1 700.00 1,500 00 
2,500.00 2,500.00 
1 500.00 1,500.00 
2.000.00 1,700.00 
3 500.00 3,000.00 
1,000.00 300.00 

25,000.00 27,500.00 
1,325.20 1,516.82 
1,325.20 1,516.82 

110.406.80 t 10,406 80 
0 00 0.00 

8.618.07 6,023.53 
Totals 

$378,735 45 $368.006,01 $384,833 60 $463,961 84 

PROJECTED INCOME 

The Together Way Plan 
Cooperative Gifts 
Designated Gifts 

Convention Reimbursement 
Printing Income 

S353,788 53 $366000.02 $360.864.30 $368.081.59 
18,349 09 

000 
000 
000 

Travel Reimbursement 
Other Income 

Totals 

6,597 83 

1924594 
000 

3 317 38 
2,050 70 
6.173 88 

20.469 30 
000 
0.00 
0.00 

3,500.00 

20,878.69 
71 ,431 57 

0.00 
000 

3.569.99 

$378.735.45 $396.787,92 $384.833 60 $463,961 84 
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CONVENTION BUDGET 
Financial Report 

National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

PROJECTED RECEIPTS 

Booth Fees 
Host State (Alabama) 
Local Church Representation Fees ($100) 
Offerings 
Printing Income 

July 16-19, 2006 
Birmingham, Alabama 

2005 
Budget 

$29 00000 
26,000 00 

1,50000 
8,000 00 
5,000 00 

Reimbursements h) 
State Representation Fees ($1 00 per churc 

2,500 00 
242,00000 

Truck Reimbursements 
Other 

1,900 00 
4 50000 

TOTALS 
;.J;l0,4QQ.OO 

PROJECTED EXPENDITURES 

Auditorium 
Printing and Promotion 
ConventiOn Office 

109,900 00 
34.536 02 
58.230 35 

Convention Personnel 
Meals 
Travel 
Lodging 

Convention Officials 
Volunteer Staff 
Honorariums 
Decorator Services 
Meal Functions 
Executive Committee 

3.856 00 
3 175 75 
4 .901 48 
4,471 74 
3,605 88 
2.504 95 

12,30000 
2 283 30 
3,37500 

Meal and Motel Expenses 
Pre-Convention Expenses §,QOQ QO 

Sub-Totals 249,140 47 

National Committee Expenses 
Surplus Revenue 

(Operating CapitaVPayment on Conv Loan) 
TOTALS 

10,800.00 
oo,gs9 53 

3~MQQ,QQ 
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2005 
Actuals 

$29,500.00 
36,609.95 

1,10000 
8,636.22 
7,068.80 

12,579.73 
235,859.03 

2,845.64 
6,661,10 

340,860.47 

123,340.66 
36,163.91 
52,565.07 

4,208.00 
2,821 22 
4,029 45 
4,364 22 
4,095.51 
2,17912 

13,245.91 
2,580.73 
3,375.00 

12.450.81 

265,419.61 

5,345.98 
Q.QQ 

27Q,765,59 

2006 
Budget 

$29,000 00 
30,000 00 

1,000 00 
8,000 00 
6,500.00 
2,500 00 

235,000.00 
1,900.00 
5,000 00 

318,900,QO 

77,70000 
28,350 00 
79,241 01 

4,036.00 
3,083 70 
5,922.75 
4,725 10 
5,345.25 
1,400 00 
8,130 00 
2,764.90 
3,37500 

17,500 00 

241,573 71 

11,200 00 
661 26 29 

318,9QQ.QQ 



CONVENTION BUDGET 2005 2005 2006 

. Financial Report 
NatiOnal Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

cONVENnON OFFICE 
Budget Actuals Budget 

July 16-19,2006 Aud"rt 
$2,750.00 2,743.24 3,250 00 

Birmingham, Alabama eonvention Manager 
21 .664 76 23,53712 24,482 92 

Payroll Taxes 
1 657 35 1,1 47 42 1,219 76 

Retirement 
1.083 24 722.16 000 

PROJECTED RECEIPTS 2005 2005 
executiVe Office Reimbursement 000 0.00 18,538 33 

Budget Actuals 
2006 Courtesy Car 

10000 19.00 10000 

Booth Fees 
Budget EquiPffient Rentals 

Host State (Alabama) $29.000 00 $29 500 00 
Computers, Printers 60000 375.00 60000 

Loca~ Church Representation Fees ($100) 26,000 00 38,609.95 
$29,000 00 Cop19rs (2)/Paper 2.500 00 1,580.44 3,500 00 

Offenngs 1,500 00 1,100.00 
30,00000 Tables/Chairs/Trash Cans, etc 80000 311.00 80000 

Printing Income 8,00000 8,636.22 
1,000.00 Office Expense/Supplies 2.750.00 1,920.19 2,750.00 

Reimbursements 5,000 00 7,068.80 
8,000.00 Postage 

350.00 26218 350.00 

State Representation Fees ($1 00 per church) 2,500 00 12,579.73 
6,500.00 Pre-Registration Salaries 11 ,000.00 9,094.48 10,100 00 

Truck Reimbursements 242,000 00 235,859.03 
2,500.00 Payroll Taxes 

85000 695.74 800.00 

Other 1,90000 2,845 64 
235,000.00 Pre-Registration Staff 2,500 00 1,647.56 2,500.00 

4.500 00 6,661.10 
1,900.00 Payroll Taxes 200.00 126.05 200 00 

TOTALS 
5.000.00 Pre-Registration (Supplies, Postage) 5,500.00 4,367.71 5,000.00 

320.400.00 340,860.47 318,900.00 
Registration (Supplies) 50000 894 52 t,OOO 00 

Registration Computers/Printers 2,250.00 1,800.00 2,500 00 

PROJECTED EXPENDITURES 
Telephone 

275.00 251 .40 650 00 

Two-Way Radios 90000 1,069 86 90000 

AUDITORIUM TOTALS 58,230.35 52,565.07 79,241.01 

Rental 
Flowers 37 50000 35,059 79 CONVENTION PERSONNEL 

Other 50000 
000 

First Aid Staff 
410.00 50000 MEALS 

Uab~irty, A?CAP, BMI, CCLI Insurance 2.20000 2.27700 2,500 00 
Mus1c/Equ1pment 1 00000 416 16 

Debbie Burden (27 meals @ $12.00 each) 32400 324 00 324 00 

Offering Buckets 3.00000 5,713.64 
1.000 00 Keith Burden (33 meals@ $12.00 each) 39600 39600 39600 

7,00000 
Signs 10000 0.00 

Dari Goodfellow (27 meals@ $12.00 each) 324 00 324.00 324 00 

So~nd System!AV Equipment 50000 1,094.02 
100.00 Melody Hood (27 meals @ $12 00 each) 324.00 324.00 324.00 

Umon Personnel 5000000 69,489.72 
1,000 00 Dean Jones (33 meals @ $12.00 each) 39600 396.00 396.00 

50,00000 
Usher Badges 600000 2,400 00 Steve Pate (18 meals@ S12.00 each) 21600 216.00 21600 

Pollee Security/Badge Checkers 10000 559.57 
6,000.00 Eric Thomsen (21 meals@ $12.00 each) 25200 252.00 25200 

9,00Q 00 
600.00 

TOTALS 
5,920.76 9.000.00 

Roy Harris (33 meals @ $12.00 each} 216.00 216.00 396.00 

Convention Interns (8) 1 408,00 t,760 00 J.~Qa.oo 

109,900.00 123,340.66 77,700.00 TOTALS 3,856.00 4,208.00 4,036.00 

PRINTING AND PROMOTION 
TRAVEL 

Convention Brochure 
Convention Materials 9,10000 8,824.56 Debbie Burden 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Digest of Reports 
0.00 

Ke~h Burden 182.25 50.00 169 10 

Programs 6,675 00 7,770.97 8,000.00 Darl Goodfellow 182.25 182.25 169 10 

Photos 2,150 00 

Pre-Convention Printing! Art 5000 
2,042.39 2,25000 Melody Hood 182.25 182.25 169.10 

ONEMagazme 1,561 02 
59 99 100.00 Dean Jones 182.25 182.25 169 10 

15.00000 
2,466.00 3,000.00 Steve Pate 182.25 182.25 169 10 

TOTALS 
15.000.00 15,00000 Eric Thomsen 182.25 182.25 169 10 

34,536.02 
Roy Harris 182.25 182 25 169 10 

36,163.91 28,350.00 Convention Truck (Fuei!Mealsffrailer Rental) 1,90000 1,677.72 1,900 00 

TOTALS 3,175.75 2,821 .22 3,083.70 

LODGING 

Keith Burden 0.00 195.55 0.00 

Dari Goodfellow (8 nights @ S111 75) 801 28 694.40 89400 

Melody Hood (8 nights @ $111. 75) 801 28 76339 894.00 

Dean Jones 000 113.98 000 

Steve Pate (7 nights@ $111 75) 64722 624.66 782.25 

Eric Thomsen (6 nights @ $111 .75) 600.96 54.00 670 50 

Roy Harris (5 nights@ $111 .75) 462.30 443.40 1,11750 

Convention Interns (1 4 nights@ $111 .75) 1.58844 1,140.07 1,584 50 

TOTALS (Includes applicable tax and parking) 4,901.48 4,029.45 5,922.75 
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CONVENTION OFFICIALS 2005 2005 2006 DECORATOR SERVICES 2005 2005 2006 
Budget Actuafs Budget Budget Actuafs Budget 

Moderator- Tim York 
Travel Booth (80) lnstallat10rvDraped Tables $3 40000 S4 617 30 $2,88000 

Meals $153 90 $153 90 $169.10 Exhibrtor Badges 10000 301 66 30000 

(18 meals@ $12 00 each) 
21600 216 00 21600 RegistratiOn 

Lodg1ng (6 mghts @ S111 75) 
60096 

Chairs Counters. Skirted Tables. Carpet 2 50000 5 428 75 3.00000 

Honoranum 58806 670.50 Electncrty Mask1ng Drape 50000 340.00 35000 
40000 400 00 400.00 Stage 

Clerk • Randy Bryant 1,370.86 1,357.96 1,455.60 Carpet 1 50000 1 747 20 1 000 00 

Traver Risers 200000 000 000 

Meals 25000 261.60 210.00 Skirted Tables!Cha1rs 30000 411 00 10000 

(18 meals@ $12 00 each) 21600 216 00 216.00 SkirtingJDrapingtStage Set-Up 2.00000 400.00 50000 

Lodg1ng (6 nights @ $111 75) 
60096 533 80 Honorarium 670.50 TOTALS 12,300.00 13,245.91 8,130.00 
40000 400 00 400.00 

Assistant Moderator- William Smith 
1,466.96 1,411 .40 1,496.50 MEAL FUNCTIONS 

Meals 
(18 meals@ $12.00 each) 

216 00 216.00 21600 Executive Committee 
Lodging (6 nights @ $111 75) 

600.96 
Breakfast (14 people@ S14.10) 197.40 240.19 0 00 

520 80 670.50 Luncheon (30 people@ $20.50) 615 00 630.04 0 00 

Assistant Clerk - Ernie Lewis 
816.96 736.80 886.50 Dinner (30 people@ $36.56) 0 00 0 00 1,096 80 

Meals General Board Breakfast 818 40 951 39 863.50 

( 18 meals@ $12 00 each) 21600 216.00 21600 (55 people @ S15 70) 
Lodg1ng (6 nights @ $111 75) 

60096 
State Leaders Breakfast 562 50 669 11 706 50 

642 06 670.50 (45 people@ $15.70) 
816.96 858 06 886,50 Presidents' Breakfast 9Q.QQ ~ 9a.1.Q 

TOTALS (Includes applicable tax and parking) 4,471 .74 4,364.22 
(6 people@ S16 35) 

4,72.5.10 TOTALS 2,283.30 2,580.73 2,764.90 

VOLUNTEER STAFF 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Music Coordinator- Chris Truett 
554 76 

MEAL AND MOTEL EXPENSES 

Lodging (6 mghts @ S111 75) 56966 670.50 (For the Executive Committee Meetmg prior to the 2006 National Convention} 

News Coordinator - Deanna Hollifield 
46230 

Gene Noms 37500 375 00 37500 

Lodging (5 nights @ $111 75) 647 65 558.75 Nathan Ruble 37500 375 00 37500 
Rick Cash 37500 375 00 375 00 

Organist - Deena Armstrong 
46230 

Glen Johnson 375 00 375 00 375.00 

Lodgtng (5 nights @ $111 75) 406 90 558.75 Tim Campbell 375 00 375 00 375 00 
Keith Wooay 375 00 375.00 375.00 

Photographers (3) 
500 80 

J L Gore 375 00 375 00 375 00 

Meals (45 meals@ $12 00) 526.00 540.00 Ernest Harrison, Jr 37500 375 00 37500 
Fred Hanson 375 00 375 00 375 00 

Pianist - Brian Floyd 
46230 Lodging (5 nights @ $111 75) 488 28 558.75 TOTALS 3,375.00 3,375.00 3,375.00 

Tnping · Mike Anderson 
701 12 

PRE-CONVENTION EXPENSES 

Lodging (7 nights @ $111 75) 661.60 782.25 
Impact Bm11ingham 000 0.00 2,500.00 

Usher Coordinator - Billy Walker Pre-Convention Meetings/Site Inspections 6.00000 12.~~0 a1 ]~.QQQ QQ 

Lodging (5 nights@ $111 75) 
46230 441 90 558.75 

TOTALS 6,000.00 12,450.81 17,500.00 
Translator Rooms 

Lodg1ng (1 0 mghts@ S111 75) 35352 1,117 so NATIONAL COMMITTEE EXPENSES 

TOTALS (fnclude.s applicable tax and partdng) 
3,605.88 

Executive Committee 10 700 00 5,345 98 10 700 00 
4,095.51 5,345.25 Nominating Committee 10000 000 500 00 

HONORARIUMS 
TOTALS 10,800.00 5,345.98 11,200.00 

Jerry Williams 
Tim Campbell 175 00 175 00 17500 SURPlUS REVENUE 
Len Blanchard 17500 175 00 175.00 (Operating Capital for Future ConventiOns) 60.459.53 0.00 66,1 26.29 
David Potete 175 00 175 00 175.00 
Jim Puckett 17500 175.00 175.00 GRANO TOTALS $320.400.00 S270,765.59 S318,9oo.oo 
Richard Hendrix 175.00 175.00 175.00 
Stephen Ashby 175 00 175.00 175.00 
Burt Hall 000 000 175.00 
TOTALS 1.454 95 • 1, 129.12 . 175.00 

2,504.95 2,179.12 1,400.00 
·stan Toler Honorarium/Expenses 
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Tm-y A. I I ill 
r:rnel R. Harpe!r 

Hill, Harper &: Associates 
Certified Public AccoW\tants 

Independent Auditors ' Report 

Executive Committee of the 
General Board of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

761 Old H1cl<orv Boule\'ard 
Suite 20t> ' 
Brentwood, TN 17027 
TEl~ n 15/377-3485 
FNl615/3"'7-341!8 

We have audited the accompanying statements of linancial position of Bui lding Services Fund of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 2005 
and 2004. and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets. and cash flows for 
the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund's management 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the~e financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance w1th auditing standards generall; accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the aud1ts to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit mcludcs 
examining, on a test bas1s, evidence supportmg the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as weU as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 

audits provide a reasonable bas1s for our opinion. 

In our opm1on, the linanc1al statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects. the 
financial position of the Building Services Fund of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. Inc . 
as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the changes m its net assets and its cash flows for the years then 
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Aprill9, 2006 
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BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCL\ TJON OF 
FRF.E WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Current a.'>se~: 
Cash and mterest bearing deposits 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Property, planllmd equjpmenl: 
Land and land improvementc; 
Uuilrung 
Building services equipment 
Ocpanmcntal workstations 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Statements of Financial Position 

December 31, 2005 and 2004 

Assets 

Net property, plant and equipment 

UabHitics: 
Liabilities and Net Asset'! 

Accounts payable 
Nott:s payable and Jong-tenn debt 

Total Uabilities 

Net a.c;sets: 

Opemtions 

Net investruent in property, plant and equipment 

T olal net asset<; 

See accompanying note.<J to financial statemen~ 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ ] 28,337 
2,281 

130,618 

2 14,296 
1.479,813 

94,422 
77,228 

1.865,759 
1,023,483 

842,276 

972,894 

19.634 
10,703 

30,337 

110,984 
831,573 

~2.557 

972,894 

59,016 
15,248 

1,830 

76,094 

2 14,296 
I ,477,588 

94,422 
77.228 

1.863,534 
943,731 

9 19,803 

995 897 

18,659 
26,451 

45,110 

57,435 
893,352 

950,787 

995 897 

BUU.DING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 01,. 
FREE WIT.L BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statement:. of Activities and Change~> in ~ct Asset-. 

For the year> ended December 31,2005 and 2004 

2005 2004 

Senicec<l for Total 

Onerntion~ 1> ~l!!lrtm!m L'> T otals t'ynds 

Revenues: 
Bwldiog rental s 26l:U43 268,343 243,1)48 

Reimbursement from depanmcnts 452.754 452,754 454,520 

Other 
1.926 1,926 2.320 

Net assets released from 
departmental reimbursement~ 452,754 (452,754) 

Net revenues 723,023 723,023 700,788 

Expense!>: 
ExpenM:~ incurred for departments: 

l:.mployee benefits 286.31l) 286,339 293,018 

Stewardship office expeos<' 5.305 5,305 6,213 

Leadership Conference 23,325 23,325 24.654 

Property and liability insurance 43A06 -B,406 39,169 

Telephone 22,406 22,406 19,1 X I 

Mailroom and other 68,392 68,392 74,875 

449,173 449,173 457.J 10 

Bwlding opernting e:~:pense~: 
Salaries 59,606 59,606 59,243 

Payroll taxes 4 .637 4,637 4,536 

Employee benefits 2 1,275 21,275 16,531 

Janttonal services 28.321 28,321 26,534 

Deprectation 79.751 79,751 77.932 

Aud1t and legal 3.9·0 3.~3 4.69-t 

~ner.d insurance 17.784 17,784 14.642 

Supphes and office expense 9.538 9,538 8,293 

Utilities I telephone 28,808 28,808 26,506 

Repairs and mainte nance 13,578 13,578 30,177 

Interest expense 1,963 1,963 1,5 14 

Mailroom and other 12.876 12,876 10,635 

282.080 282,080 281,237 

Total expenses 73 1.253 731,253 738,347 

Decrcw.c in net assets (8.230) (8,230) (37,559) 

Net as~ts at beginning of year 950,787 950,787 988,346 

Net ussets at end of year s 942.557 942,557 950.787 

See accompanying notes to financial 1>tutements. 
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BUll..DlNG SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WILl. BAPTL'iTS, INC. 

Statements of Ca!>h Flow~; 

Years ended Oecember 31. 2005 and 2004 

Ca:,h Flow:, fm m Qperntjng Activities 
Decrease in Dt'l assets 

Adjusrruents ro reconcile decrease m net assets ro net ,...,.,ra!Jn . 
-,..~ g aCIIVIlle;s: 

Depreciation 

(Increase) decrease in: 
Recc n·able~ 
Prepaid expenses 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accruals 

:\et operating activi11es 

Cas h Flow.> from Investing Actjyjti«::. 
Purchase of property and equipment 

Net investing activities 

Cas h Flows from t 'inancing Activities 
Proceeds from debt 
Repayment of debt 

~ et financing acti vir 1es 

locrease in cash and cash equiValents 
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, a t end of year 

Supplemental disclosures: 

Interest paid 

Equip~ent acquisii.Jon through mstallment debt agreemenr· 
Bas1s of equipment · 

$ (8,230) (37,559) 

79,752 77,932 

12,967 (7,725) 
uno (1,268) 

975 (8,950) 

87,294 22,430 

(2,225) (4,625) 

(2,225) (4 6'>5) 
- ---''--.:..:' .;:.-~ 

( I 5,748) (12,797) 

( 15,748) (12,797) 

69,321 5,008 
59,016 54,008 

128,337 59,016 

1.963 1,405 

Installment debr assumed 
$-==--:= - I 3,146 

13,146 

Sec accompanying n otes to financial s tatem en ts. 
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BUlLDING SERVICES F UND OF Tllli 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREF: WO.J. BAPTISTS, INC. 

Note:. to Financial Statemen t:. 

December 31. 2005 and 200~ 

The fund operates under the au~pices of the National Association of rrec Will Raptisrs. Inc and is governed by a 
management comnnllee charred by tht> Execulln.' St>cretary of the ~ational Associallon of hee Will Baptists, Inc. 
The mnnagewt'nt colllJ1lllltte is co111posttd of lhe di.r~lors of the Departments whtch occupy the National Ofrices 

Facihry. 

(1) s rs· T A · P r · ummar:y o u:nu cant ccountmg o JCies 
Hasis o[ Presentation 
The financial statements of the rund have be<.'n prepared on t11e acaual bas1s of accounting. 

lbe fund adheres to tht' provts1ons of Stat.-menr of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) .Ko. 117, 
"financial SJatements of ~ot-for· Profit Org<WILation~". Cnder SrAS o 117, the Fund is r~uired to report 
mfom1auon regarding its fmancmJ pos11Jon and activilles according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted 
net assets , temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently rcstnctcd net a~scts , 1f any In addiuon. the fund 
is required to present a statement of cash flows . 

Prope11y. Plant an d Ec1uinment 
Propeny, plant and t'lJU1pment and fum1ture art' statt'd at cosL OttprectatiOD IS prondttd ovttr the eslinlllted 
useful Life of the assets Ul>mg tht: straight-linl' method. Expenditures for mamllmance and repairs, renewals. 
and beuermems thar do nor significantly exten d the useful hves of assets are expensed as incurred. 

Income Taxes 
The Fund is exempt from federal and srate income taxes; accordingly, no prov1s1on for mcomc taxes is made 
in the accounts. 

Cash and Cw.b Etauiyalcnts 
l-or PUIJX>S~s of tht' statemenr of cash Uows, the Fund considers all cash funds, cash bank accounts and 
highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an origmal maturity of three monlbs or less to be cash and cash 
cquiva Ients. 

l 'se of Estimates 
The prcparatjon of financial statements requires management ro make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amoun ts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statem.mrs and the reponed anwunts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estwmtes. 

Compensated Absences 
[rnployees of the rund are entiUed to prud vacation, paid sick days and personal days off, depending on job 
c lassification, length of service and other factors. Tl is impractical to csrimatc the amou.nr of compensation 
for future absences and accordingly, no habi liry bas been recorded in the accompanymg financial statements. 
l b t' Fund's policy is to recognize the cost of compensated absences when actually paid ro employees. 

Chanaes in Presentation of Financial Statem ents 
Certain amOWlts as reported in the 2~ financial statements may have been reclassified to conform to current 
year presentation. 
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BlliLDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WD.L BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial St.atcmen~. <:ontinucd 

(21 ~Ote> Payable and Long-tenn Debt 

(3) 

(4) 

Summary of notes payable and long-tenn debt payable to f rec Will naptist roundation is as follows: 

Free Will Bapti!>t Foundation : 

6.5lJ!- unsecured installruent nott.>, \\luch requtres monthly payments 
of $800 including principal and intert's t with final payment made 
during :wos $ 

6.5% installment note sc.cured by truck, which requires monthly payment~ 
of$282 including principal and interest which wa~ repa id in 
March 2006 

Equipment provider: 

14.5% installment note secured by phone system and vo1ce nmil upgmde, 
which requires m onthly paymems of$442 including prmcipal and interest 
with fmal payment due September 2007 

Less current portion of notes payable and long-tern• debt 

Xotes payable and long-t.enn deht mature $6.558 m 2006 and ~. 145 in 2007. 

Pen!>ion 

$ 

2005 

9,141 

2,203 5,332 

8 ,500 l 1,978 

10,703 26,451 

6,55~ ___ 16,087 

The f-und paruc•pates in the mas!t'r pension plan of the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the 
l'\ational Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The plan is conrrihutory and is matched up to a maximwn of 
5% of compensation. Employees may participate at date of employment Pension expense amounted to $2,669 
in 2005 and $2,616 in 2004. The pension plan is a defmed contribution plan. Under the plan, an account is 
maintained for each participant and upon retirement the participant can e ither receive a Iwnp-sum distribution 
or purchase one of st:verdl types of annuity contrdcls. 

O pemtina Leases 

lbe Fund has entered into noncancelable lease arr.mgeruent:. relating to mailing equipmenL Total rent 
expense amounted to S5,688 for 2005 and $5,688 for 2004. The minimwn payments required are: $5,688 in 
2006; and $2,844 in 2007. 

(5) Rental Jnrome 

!be Fund rents offtee space of the National Office Bu1lding located in Antioch, Tennessee to v-arious 
denonunational agencies. The lease covers the period from September 1 through August 31 of each year, to 
be renegotiated and renewed by mutual agret:ment from year to year. Each lease agreement is cancelable by 
e•ther party with a 90 day written notice. Rental income amounted to 'S268,343 in 2005 and $243,9-lS for 2004. 
The lease agreement has been renegotiated, effective January I , 2006 rents will be increased 2<J, from base 
rental rates. This rental increase will result in rentalmcome for 2006 to approximate $275,000. 
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2007 
BUILDING SERVICES BUDGETS 

FINANCIAL REPORT 

2005 
Budget 

PROJECTED INCOME 76 

$268.342.80 $273.221.76 $273.221 ' 
(20 329@ $1 .12 ~ $22,768.48 mo.) $2§8.342.80 ~~;;u:....:= 

2005 
Actuals 

2006 
Budget 

2007 
Budget 

Sq
uare Footage ' 76 $273 221 76 

$268.342.80 $268.342.80 $273,221 . . . 
T otallncome 

PROJECTED EXPENSES 

Audit & Legal 
General Supplies 
Insurance (Employee) 
Insurance (Plant) 
Janitorial Services 
Janitorial Supplies 
Mail Room 
Mail Truck 
General Maintenance/Contingency Fund 
Network Expense 
Payroll Taxes (Employer's S.S.) 
Postage Meter/UPS 
Retirement 
Salaries 
Telephone 
Telephone Lease 
Utili ties 
Christmas Bonus/Extra Week's Salary_ 
Debt Service Payments/FWB Foundation Loan 
Other 

Total Expenses 

$6,500.00 
4 ,500.00 

19,267.18 
20,000.00 
30,000.00 

3 ,500.00 
9 ,500.00 
6 ,500.00 

47,043.98 
10,000.00 

4 ,556 45 
500.00 

2 ,668.46 
59,561.32 

3,000.00 
0.00 

27,500.00 
1,145.41 
9,600.00 
3,000.00 

$3,942.74 
2,805.24 

18,523 87 
17.784 .43 
28,321 15 

2 ,543 .73 
10,324.21 

5,293.74 
13,578.19 

4 ,026 63 
4 719.41 ' . 

162.63 
2 ,668.56 

58,580.13 
4 ,084.27 
4 ,908.75 

24,679.28 
1,026.34 

10,262.37 
641.71 

$6,500.00 
4 ,500.00 

20,595.29 
22,000.00 
32,000.00 

3.500.00 
11 ,000.00 

4 ,755.82 
55,650.91 

7,500.00 
4 ,760.17 

500.00 
2,735.17 

61 ,050.36 
3,000.00 

0.00 
30,000.00 

1,174.04 
0.00 

2,000.00 

$268.342.80 $218,877.38 $273.221 .76 
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$6,500.00 
4 ,500.00 

22 .630.62 
24 .200.00 
35,000.00 

3 .500.00 
12.500.00 

2 ,000.00 
40 ,078.12 

7 ,500.00 
4 ,869.96 

500.00 
2 .803.55 

62,581 .15 
5 ,000.00 
3 ,980.07 

32,000.00 
1,078.29 

0.00 
2.000.00 

$273.221.76 



BUILDING SERVICES 
SALARY BREAKDOWN 

M;ontenance ~endent 
~.~~Rooms....,....._ s_,. 
s~s.c .. ,rv 
Insurance IHoalti\'Oerll<lll!lei 
D•abl•ly 
Rearom..,t 
Ctwoolm;as 11onuo 

Recllp!IOnostf'hone S)<sr.m Aaro,..tral(J( 
AUI$1\Wlt Bookkeeper 

Slli;wy 
Socooll Sec..ory 
lnaU"anc• 
Dental 
HeolllhiUfe 

DIG<lbtlily 
Reurement 
Chnslmas Bonos 

P3fl·llme Worl<tH 
Salary 
Soa.r S«:urory 
Chrf&rn~ 80006 

313.24 
5,389.07 

200S 

$28.026 24 12'1.) 
2.144 01 17 656.) 

13250 00 
165 35 

1 401 31 (5'1o,) 

44,986 91 

25,343 08 (2"l.) 
1938 75 (7 65"-l 
5,702 31 

149.52 
l267 15 (5 ... ) 

34,400 81 

75 days 
6,1 92 00 1~'10 32 hr 1 

!U.§.a (7 65'1<.1 

6,665 69 

A - 86 

34456 
5.927 98 

$28.726 90 (2 5'1o,) 
2 239 87 (1 65"-) 

14.00000 
16i 4i 

I 436 34 15'1.. 1 

~ 

47 125 04 

25.976 66 (2 5"l.) 
2,025 43 (1 65~.) 
6,272 54 

15326 
1,298 83 (5'1..) 

49950 

36.22627 

75 days 
6.346 80 (2 5'1.'1 0 58 hr ) 

4i4 87 (7 65'1o,) 

122M 

6.963 72 

37902 
6.520 78 

2007 

$29,445 07 i2 5'1.) 
2.29:587 1765"l,) 

1540000 
173.73 

I 47225 t5"l.1 

~ 

49.353 17 

26,626 08 (2.5"l.) 
2,076 07 (7 65'l'.) 
6,89980 

15709 
I ,331.30 (5%) 
~04 

37,602.38 

75 days 
6,51000 (2.5'1<.:1085tw.) 

498.02 (7 65'!1.) 

~ 

7,008.02 

ONE Magazine Report 
2005 

Your denominational magaL.ine completed its first fu ll year of publication with 
the release of the 2006 February/March issue. In view of this milestone the following 
observations can be made: 

• The publication is being enthusiastically received among Free Will Baptists. 
When the 2005 Apri1!\1ay issue came oul 3.308 new subscribers had been added 
to the mailing list (an average of 9.06 new homes per day). 

• The magazine is having a far-reaching impact. ONE Magazine is currently 
delivered to more than 58,000 individual or family mailboxes bi-monthly. More 
people are rece1 v:ing more information about our national ministries than ever. 

• The quality of ONE Magazine consistently improves. The response of its readers 
confirms this. Clearly, there will always be room for improvement. Managjng 
Edjtor E1ic Thomsen and his editorial team are working hard to address readers ' 
concerns and make the magazine better. 

• The first year's auditor's statement indicates ONE Magazine is on solid financial 
footing. The magazine ended the year with a healthy fund balance. Consequently, 
the 2007 proposed budget calls for no increase in contributions from participating 
agencies. We remain committed to practici ng good stewardship. 

God has given Free Will Baptists a powerful tool of communication in ONE 
Magazine. It is proving to be one of the most effective means of sharing the exciting 
story of what God is doing among us. It is YOUR magazine. Thank you for making its 
first year of publication a success. 

Grateful for your support, 

Keith Burden 
Editor-In-Chief 
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~~ Hill, Harper&: Associates 
l 'ti!Sa C t-rtificd Public Accountants 

T ttrrv A I hll 
1-rno•st R. Jl.lrper 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Executive Committee of the 
General Board of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

761 Old Hickory Boulevard 
Swte206 
Brentwood. TN 37027 
TEL: 615/377-3485 
FAX 615/377-3488 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial pos111on of One Magazine of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 2005 and, 
2004. and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash tlows for the years then 
ended. These financial slatements arc the respon~ibility of the Fund's management Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 011 our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance \\lth auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that \~e plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements arc free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing lhe accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, lhe 
financial position of One Magazine of the National Association of free Will Baptists, Inc. as of 
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then 
ended in conformity wilh accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

March 24, 2006 
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ONE MAGAZINE 
OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 

FREE WU..L BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statcmenll> of Fimmcial Po~ition 

December 31. 2005 and 200-l 

Current llSl>els : . 
Cash and interest bearing depostts . 
Funds held by Free Will Baptist Poundation 

Total current asscll; 

Fixed as~ts: 
furniture and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Net fixed assets 

Liabilitic~> and Net Al>!?Cll> 

U abili ties: 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue - start up contribution 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
U nrestricted operations 
Endowment funds 

Total net assets 

See accompanying nolei to financial statements. 
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$ 

2005 

79,622 
22,291 

101,913 

6,688 
(669) 

6,019 

2004 

10,000 
21,000 

31,000 

$ 107,932 31,000 -==....:........0= ==----~~ 

$ 36,292 
10,000 

"19? 36,- - 10,000 

50,640 
21,000 21 ,000 

71,640 21,000 

$ 107,932 21,000 



ONE MAGAZINE 
OJ<' THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 01•' 

FREE WTIJL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Acthitie~> and ( 'hangcl> in Net A~el., 

For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 

Ren•nues: 

Ass<>ssruentl> to publish One Magazine from 
f·rt>c WlfJ Baptist departments and agencies 

Cont!lbutions 
I nwstnu:nt t'aJnings 
Other 

Total revenuelo 
Expense~: 

Direct co~t of publication: 
Prtnhng 
Postage and mailing ser\'ices 
Des1gn 
Grnplucs expense 
Wntcr·s fees 

Total direct cos t of publication 
Emplo)'ec compemation: 

Salary 
Payroll Ta~cs 
Retirement 
Other employee benefits 

Total employee compensation 
Operating expen~e~> : 

Suppltcs and other office expense 
Travel 
Depreciation 

Totul operating expenses 

Total expensel> 

Increase in net a'sets 

Transfer of ltl>~cts from Contact Magazine 

Net a~~ll> at beginning of year 

Net aso;eL~ at end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

s 
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2005 
l!nrestricted Endowment 
Operation-; Funds 

366,450 
10.000 

1 .~37 

49 1 

378,778 

139,369 
~6.800 

26,334 
1,961 

971 

255,435 

5 1.963 
3,975 
2.549 
6,221 

64.710 

4,421 
2,901 

669 

7,993 

328,13~ 

50,640 

2 1.000 

50,6-W 2 1,000 

Total 

366,450 
10,000 
1,837 

491 

378,778 

139,369 
86,800 
26,334 

1,961 
971 

255,435 

51,963 
3,975 
2,549 
6,223 

64.7 10 

4.421 
2,903 

669 

7,993 

328,138 

50,640 

21,000 ---
21,000 

71,640 21,000 

ONE .\1AGAZINE 
OJ<' THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 

FREE WJU.~ BAPTISTS, INf'. 

Statem cnl'> of Cash Flo"~ 

Years ended Oecemher Jl. 2005 and 2004 

_c,lSh Flow:. from Opemtjng Activities 
Jncrease JD net asl>C ll> · 
Adjus tments to rr:concilt- dccre.ase in net assets to nel opera! m~ <It'll\ lite~ 

DeprcciaUon . 
. d't d IO Funds Held hy Free W ill Oaptlst rounclauon Earnangs ere • e 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue 

:\ct operaling acti\'i6es 

r.a.~b t"lows [rom lnve.<;ting t\cth'itie~ 
Purchase of fLxcd assets 

:->et inveslmg activities 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents. at beg.inning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year 

Sec accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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s 

s 

50,640 

669 
(1.291) 

36,292 
(10,000) 

76,3 10 

(6.688) 

(6.688) 

69,622 
10,000 

79,622 

10,000 

10,000 

10,000 

10,000 



ONE MAGAZINE 
OJ< TilE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 

FRRE WILl, BAPTISTS, INC. 

Note~o lo Financial Statements 

December 31,2005 and 2004 

One.' Magallne oper.1tes under the ausp1ces of Lhe :"\alional Association of f-ree Wtll Baptists. Inc. and is goveml!d by an 
ovemght committee cha1red by the Executive Secrc.'tary of the.' ~alional Association of Free Wtll Baptists, Inc. 
The oversight comnllttee IS coruposl!d of the dtrectors of the Depanments which participate in One Magazine. 

One Ylag:ume was lonnecl as follows: 
At the 2004 convention of the :"\atiooal Association of fre~ Will Oaptisrs. Inc., approval was given to cease 
publication of Contact Magazine (the otlicial publication of the Executive Office of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptist~. Inc ) elTective DL-cemher 2004. further, approval w-.ts g1ven to begin One Magazine to provide 
informahon for the denoruinat ion regarding Lhe acm·ities of the var ious ruirustrie~ of Free Will Baptists. 

Further, effective December 31, 2004, the r::~:ecutive Office of the National Association of Free Will Aaptists, 
Contact Magazine division, transferred funds amounting io $21,000 held by rrec Will Oaptist Foundation which 
were des1gnated as [nciO\'-'Went funds . 

One S1agazine is funded by monlhly assessments to the vanous 1-ree Will Baptist orgaruzalions as in<hcated at note 2. 

( 1) Summary of Signifkanl Accounting Policies 
lJasis of Presentation 
The financial statements of the l'und have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

One Magazine adhl!res to the pro,·istons of Stal~ment of Financial Accounting St;mdards (SFAS) No. 117, 
"Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations". Coder Sf AS :"\o 117, the l-und IS require<! to report 
infommt10n regardmg liS financial post lion and activitit!S according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted 
net assets. tempor.trily restncted nd assets, and pem1anently rt!SlTicted n~t assets, if ;my. In additton, a 
statement of ca~h flows is required. 

Fixed Assets 
rum11ure and eqUipment arl! stat~d at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful file of the 
assets using Lhe str.tight-line method. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, renewals, and betterments that 
do not significantly extend th~ useful lives of assets are exp~nsed as incurred. 

Income Taxes 
One Maga1ine is exempt from Federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no proviSion for income taxes is 
made m the accounts. 

Ca:.h and Cash Eyujvalents 
For purposes of the statement of c<JSh flows, aU cash fonds, cash bank accounts and highly liquid debt 
instruJnent~ purchased with an onginal maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash and cash 
equivalents. 

Use of Estimates 
fhe preparation of fmanctal statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that a!Tect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and dtsclosure of contingen t assets and liabilities at the date of the 
fmanc ial statements and the reported ;unounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could d1ffer from those estimates. 

Compe nsat.ed Ab:,encg:, 
I:Jnployees of One Magazine are entilled to paid vacation, paid s1cb. da~ and personal days off, dependmg on 
JOb classification, length of service and other factors. lt is imprclCticalto estimate the amount of compensation 
for future absences and accordingly, no liability has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements. 
The f7und's policy is to recognize the cost of compensated absences when actually paid to employees. 

s 
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(Z) 

(3) 

(4) 

ONE ~1AGAZINE 
01~ TILE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 

FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 
Note!> to Financial Stalemenb, continued 

_AssPssmenLs to J>Ublish One Magazine fr~m 
£:;;Will Baptist departments and agencies 
The followin~ assessments were made: 

Execuuve Office of the National Association of 

Free Will Baptists: 
Admmistrall' e budget 
convention budget 

rrec Will Oaptist Foundatlon 
rrce Will Baptist Bible College . . 
Doard of Home Missions of Ule National AsSOCiation of 

rree Will Baptists . . 

ti. I M;"st·ons of the ~ational J\ssocmtmn of Intema una "' • 
Free Will Baptists 

Master's Men 
Sunday School and Church Training Board 

and Randall House Publications . 
Board of Retircmenl and Insurance of !he Nat.tonal 

Association of Free Will Baptists 

$ 

$ 

100,000 
15,000 
40,000 
40,700 

61,000 

43,750 
6,000 

40,000 

20,000 

366.450 

Projected 

~ 

] I 0,407 
16,56 I 
+l,163 
49.02 1 

67,348 

57,96-1-
7,9-l9 

44,163 

22,081 

419,657 

Re lated Party Transactions . . f F W'll Baptists, Inc. provided office space and certain 
The Executive Offtce of tbe National Association o rce I 
administrative services to One Mag3.7.ine at no cost. 

to One Magazine. During 2005. One 
.d tmg and related services 

Randall £louse Publications provl es prm 
Magazine paid S 157,259 for sucb services. 

Pension . . \an of the Board of Retirement and lnsuranc~ of the 
The Fund participateS IJl the . ma~ter. pensl~n ~e lan is conlTihutory and is matched up to a m<uomwn of 
National Association of free Will napusts.' l_n . at ;te of em lovment. Pension expense amounted to $2,~9 
5% of compensation. Employees may paructpa~ d "'- d p tn:bution plan Under lhe plan, an account IS 

· 2""·' 1b pension plan 1s a euue con · d. ·b t'on 
in 2005 and S -0- m VV"'· ~ . th artici ant can either recdve a lump-sum IStrt u ' 
maintained for each participant and up~ reurement e p p 
or purchase one of several types of annuitY contracts. 

(5) C'..oncentmtion of Credit Risk th amount of funds held by free Will Baptist 
· · k of loss relattng to e ()Q (' h 

One Mag3.7.ine has an accountmg ns . . ed . financial institutions arc insured up to $100,0 . as 
Foundation. Further. cash balances mamtam . m 

L · · 2005 and "004 balances did not exceed Lhe insurable umt Ill - . 
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REVENUE 

Convention 
Execut1ve Office 
Free W1ll Baptist Bible College 
Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Home Missions 
International Missions 
Master's Men 
Randall House Publications 
Retirement & Insurance 

Endowment 
Graph1cs 
Subscription Revenue 

Total Revenue 

EXPENSES 

Salary & Benefits 
Auto Allowance 
Capital Asset Additions 
Computer Services 
Des1gn 
Graphics 
Mail Services 
Mailing List Maintenance 
Miscellaneous 
Postage 
Postal Returns 
Printing 
Promotions 
Supplies 
Telephone 
Travel 
Writer's Fees 

Total Expenses 

2007 
ONE MAGAZINE 

BUDGETS 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

2005 
Budget 

$1 5.000 00 
100,000.00 
44,400.00 
40.000 00 
61,000.00 
52,500.00 

7,200.00 
40,000.00 
20.000.00 

500.00 
3 ,000 00 

Q.QQ 

2005 
Actuals 

15,000.00 
99,999 96 
40 ,700.00 
39,999.96 
60,999 96 
43,750.00 

6.000 00 
39,999.96 
20,000.08 

546.68 
(50 00) 

540 50 

2006 
Budget 

$16,561 .02 
110.406.80 
49,020.62 
44. 162.72 
67,348.15 
57,963.57 

7,949.29 
44,162.72 
22.081 .36 

500.00 
3 ,000.00 

Q_QQ 

$383·600·00 $367.487.10 $423.156.25 

$64,000 00 
0.00 
000 
0.00 

30,000.00 
5,000.00 
7,500.00 
2,000 00 
1.000.00 

120,000.00 
6,000.00 

140,000.00 
0.00 

2 ,500.00 
0 .00 

2,500.00 
3.000.00 

$64,710 92 
0 00 

6,688 32 
184.70 

13,373.71 
1.960.94 
3.470.95 

559.33 
467 .51 

75,750.00 
1,622.22 

121,434.47 
173.15 

3 ,520.57 
74 83 

2,903 00 
970.99 

$65.600.00 
000 
0.00 
0.00 

33,000.00 
5,000.00 
8,250.00 
2,000.00 
1,320.25 

139,986.00 
6,000.00 

154,000.00 
0.00 

2 .500.00 
0.00 

2 .500.00 
3,000.00 

2007 
Budget 

$16,561.02 
110.406.80 
49,020.62 
44,162.72 
67,348 15 
57,963.57 

7,949.29 
44,162.72 
22,081 .36 

500.00 
3,000.00 

MQ 

$423.156.25 

$67,240.00 
4,000.00 

0.00 
500.00 

34,320.00 
5,000.00 

10,000.00 
1,500.00 
2,646.25 

115,000.00 
4,500.00 

169,400.00 
400.00 

2 ,500.00 
150.00 

3 ,000.00 
3 ,000.00 

$383.500.00 $297,865.61 $423.156.25 $423,156.25 
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Home Missions North Amen ca Report 
Dear Friends , 

The year :!005 was a tremendous time of harvest for our mission. Our church planters 
won many precious families to Jesus. Thank you for your support of our efforts in sharing 
the message of salvation with lost people for whom Jesus died 1n Mexico. C.anada. the 
islands and all the United States. 

These Church Planters went Self-Supporting in 2005 

Frank and Brenda Bratcher. Carthage. TN 
Joel and Hope Nason. Laconia. NH 
Bill and Debbie Pitts , Lancaster. OH 

These Home Missionaries were approved for service. 2005 

Chad and Paula Kivette. Grand Junction. CO 
Dana and Betty Booth, Rochester, NY 
Tommy and Pam Jones. Greensburg, PA 
Nate and Jenna Altom. Greensburg, PA 
Alfredo and Ruth Bottello. Bartlesville. OK 
Robert and Holly Ketchum, Seattle, WA 
Freddy and Katherine Gillentine. Abilene. TX 

Seminaries 

Our semmaries ill Mexico continue to have great success. t-.1any graduates are no"' 
serving ill our missions and churches all across tlus great country. We are extremely 
grateful for the excellent work of our associations in Mexico. 

The Gwen Hendnx Seminary. Inman. SC has 31 graduates involved in Hisparuc 
ministries all across the United States. The seminary continues to make a great 
contribution to the Hispanic outreach. 
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Cross Cultural Ministries 
Our mission has seen significant a-rowth . . . . 
Our work with the Ojibwa Tribe i~ Oaeml; ';;t~ Russtan. ~1Spanlc and Korean ministries. 
to develop. o ' at the While Earth Reservation continues 

Mission To the Military 
Our chaplains continue to have a fruitful . . 
Air ~orce, Reserve Forces and National G::~~stzt around the world with the Army, Navy 
Baptist candidates in preparation forth . . . . the pre~e_nt, we have five (5) Free Will 

IS mm1stry to the mtlltary. 

Financial Blessings 
This past year CELF loaned a record of $5 038 06 . . 
you Free Will Baptist for gifts totaling 4.3 ~illi~n ~~~~6~~~hurch bmldmg efforts. Thank 

Thank you, dear friends of Home Missions for your prayerful support. 

Rev. Larry A. Powell, 
General Director 
Home Missions Department 
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A Synopsis of Minutes of 
Home Mission Board Meeting for 2005 

April 26, 2005 

MJS/C to approve Chad and Paula Kivette as National Home Missions to go to Grand 

Junction. Colorado. 

MJSIC to send $ 1,000.00 a month beginning may 2005 through April 2006 to the 
Altamira, Mexico work for the Bible Institute and the Convention Center. 

A new program called, Missionary Intern Program was introduced to the Board. This 
program is designed for a married couple or single men students who have completed 
their studies at a Free Will Baptist Bible College and desires to become a full time church 
planter with the National Home Missions Department. Single men students must be 
married before becoming a full-time missionary/church planter with the department. The 
graduating couple or single male applicant who has not had pastoral experience will work 
with tone of our church planters for two years, learning the skills of church planting and 
then will be qualified to apply for full time missionary/church planter status. 

December 5 -7, 2005 

A motion was made to hire Allen and Jenny Hall as National Home Missionaries to 
establish a Free will Baptist church in York, Pennsylvania. M/S/C to accept them as 
missionaries to York, Pennsylvania. 

A motion was made to hire Robert and Holly Ketchum as National Home Miss ionaries. 
M/S/C to accept them as our missionaries to Seattle, Washington. 

M/S/C to accept Alfredo and Ruth Botello as a Joint Project between the National Home 
Missions Board and the Oklahoma State Home Missions Board to establish an Hispanic 
Free Will Baptist church in Oklahoma. 

M/S/C to award George Lemlin, missionary to Ogema, MN $25,000.00 from the CELF 
endowment fund. Also, to award the Hispanic Institute in Inman, SC with $25,000.00 
from the CELF endowment fund. 
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WARREN, DENNEY & WALLACE 
CERllREO P\18UC ACCOIJNTAHTS 

,..,_.. 
ROII£RTRAYWARREN CPA 
WIUJAiol H DENNEY CPA 
lARRY 1111UCt: WAU.ACE_ CPA 
JOEL 0 CXll.UN. JA CPA 
JANET W L£E CPA 

1lfE \IOWNTEER BlDG 
SUITE 100 

~19 PUIS PARI< BlVD 
NAStMU.E. l)f 37 217-108$ 

(1115) 311$.5100 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees of the 
Board of Home Missions of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists of the 
United States of America, Inc. 

Antioch, Tennessee 

Mom ~>eta 
AMERICAN INS'ITltfTE OF 

CERllREO P\IBUc ACalUHTAHJs 
TEHNESSEE SOCIETY OF 

CERllREO P\18Uc ACalUHTNm 

We have audited the accompanying statements of finanClaJ position of the Board of Home 
Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of the United States of America, Inc. (a 
nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related statements of activities and 
cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Organization's management. Our responsibility is to express an optnion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
Uruted States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit mcludes examining, on a test basis, evtdence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
finanC18.l statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall finanC18.l statements presentation. 
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opLWon. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Board of Home Missions of the National Assoetation of Free Will Baptists of 
the United States of America, Inc. as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the changes in its net assets 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

February 17, 2006 
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BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, INC. 
Statements of Financial Pos1t10n 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Assets 
Cash. Note 7 
Investments . 
Investments in Church Extension 
Loan Fund - Note 4 
Accounts receivable - related party - Note 4 
Accounts receivable - employees 
Inventory - Note 1 
Property and equipment, at cost 
less accumulated depreciation of $68,586 

($145,015 in 2004)- Notes 1 & 2 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Total liabilities 

Commitments - Note 5 

Net assets 
Unrestricted 

Operating 
Board designated - Note 6 

Temporarily restricted - Note 3 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
Dotes to the financial statements. 

-2-
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2005 

$ 362,169 
11,718 

409,849 
241,878 

16,956 

158,801 

$1.201.371 

$ 25.589 

25,589 

828,922 
Q4Q,255 

1,172,177 

3,6Q5 

1,175,782 

$1201.371 

2004 

$ 380,692 
13,459 

715,640 
100,000 

658 
22,262 

161.738 

$1 394 449 

$ 6.862 

6.862 

1,017,826 
1§~.QQO 

1,182,826 

204,761 

1.387,587 

$1 394.449 



BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NA~ONALASSOCIATION OF FREE WJI.I. BAPTISTS 

F THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA INC. 
Statements of Activities 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2QQ5 and 2Q04 

Unrestricted 
Revenue: 

Cooperative program 
Designated contributions 
Management fees . Note 4 
Interest income 
Dividend income 
g:,n (l?ss) on .sale of property & equipment 
N ealized gam (loss) on value of investment 

et ass.e~ released from restrictions: 
RestrictiOns satisfied by payments 

Total revenue 

Expenses: 
Administrative expenses 
Missionary expenses 
Missionary land & building 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in unre....-:cted t ""u ne assets 

Temporarily restricted 
Revenue: 

Cooperative program 
Designated contributions 
Net ass_e~ released from restrictions: 
Res~.n~tlons satisfied by payments 

M1Sstonary expenses 
Missionary land & building 

Increase (decrease) in temporarily 
restricted net assets 

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets . beginning of year 

Net assets. end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the fipancial statements. 

·3· 
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2005 

$ 168,585 
640,567 
185,000 
32,424 

4 
( 7,839) 
( 1,745) 

3.606.561 

4.623.557 

1,027,645 
2,926,681 
{27~,88Q 

4,634,206 

( 10,{249) 

796,497 
2,608,908 

( 2,926,681) 
( 679,880) 

( 201,15{2) 

( 211,805) 

1.387.587 

$ U75 782 

2004 

$ 223,599 
560,955 
180,000 
24,966 

2 
( 392) 
( 7,799) 

3,092.984 

4.074.315 

926,594 
2,840,081 

252,903 

4,019,578 

54,737 

791,582 
2,435,038 

( 2,840,081) 
( 252.903) 

133,636 

188,373 

1.199,214 

$1,387 587 

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, INC. 
Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended December 31. 20Q5 and 2004 

Qperating activities 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to 
net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
(Gain) loss on sale of property & equipment 
(Gain) loss on value of investment 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in receivables 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and 
accrued expenses 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Redemption of investments 
Acquisition of investments 
Proceeds from the sale of property & eqwpment 
Purchases of property and equipment 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Financing activities 

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of years 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of years 

See accountants' report and accompanving 
notes to the financial statements. 

-4· 
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2005 

($ 211,805) 

16,505 
7,839 
1,745 

( 141,220) 
5,306 

18.727 

( 302.903) 

452,654 
( 146,867) 

1,500 
( 22,907) 

284,3BO 

( 18,523) 

380,692 

$ 3~2.169 

2004 

$ 188,373 

19,923 
392 

7,799 

( 39,313) 
2,766 

2.438 

182.378 

220,891 
( 633,328) 

2,300 
( 23.B34) 
( 433,971) 

( 251,593) 

632,285 

~ at~Q.fla2 



Note 1-

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Orgaruzation and summary of significant accounting poliCieS 

The Board of Home MlSsions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of 
the United States of America, Inc. 1s a nonprofit organ12at10n affiliated with the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose 
of the Organization is to establtsh and support Free Will Baptist Mission churches m 
the United States (including U.S. Virgin Islands and Puerto Rico) and Mexico. The 
Organization's support comes primarily from donor contributions. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 50l(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a "private foundation" within the meaning of 509(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business mcome for 2005 or 2004. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the 
preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Organization prepares its financial statements using Lhe accrual basis of 
accounting, which involves the application of generally accepted accounting principles; 
consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses 
are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statements presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial Accounting Standards 
(SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 
117, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position 
and activities according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets, 
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles includes the use of estimates that affect the financial statements. 
Accordingly, actllal results could differ from those estimates. 

Investments in Church Extension Loan Fund 

Investments consist of investments in the Church Extension Loan Fund. 
Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market value at December 31, 2005 
and 2004. 
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Note 1-

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Organization and summary of sirnificant accounting policies (Continued) 

Contributions 

The Organization accounts for contributions in accordan~ with the 
6 . . cial Accounting Standards Board m SFAS No. 11 • 

recommendations of ~he ~manRe . d d Contributions Made. In accordance with 
Accounting for Contributions ~Ive an t 'cted temporarily 
SFAS No. 116, contributions rec~lvedd are r~o~:e:~i=:~ ;~e erlstence or nature of 
restricted, or permanently restncte suppo ' P 
any donor restrictions. 

. ted as an increase in temporarily or All donor-restricted support ts repor f h tn' t' When a 
. ts d ending on the nature o t e res c Ion. perm.a~ently r~stncted ~et a~e e~ ulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction 

restriction exprres (that 18• w en a 8 P 1 ssifi.ed to unrestricted net 
. lish d) tern orarily restricted net assets are rec a 
lS accompd e 'ted. Pthe statements of activities as net assets released from 
assets an repor m · d t ts 

. t' The Org""';zation has no permanently restncte ne asse . restnc tons. <UU ' 

Propertv and equipment and depreciation 

· lizin t st all expenditures for The Organization follows the practice of capi~a dg, a fulco lif' of at least two 
. · f $500 and an estunate use e 

property and e.q~pm.ent m extecedss o traight-line basis over the useful lives of the 
years. Depreoation IS compu on a s 
assets generally as follows. 

Automobile 5 years 
Office furniture and equipment 3 - 20 years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a separate component in 
unrestricted net assets. 

Cash equivalents 

The Organization considers all highly liquid .investments with a maturity of 
three months or less when purchased to be cash eqwvalents. 

Inventory 

lnvento is stated at the lower of cost (first in, first out me~od) or market. 
Inventory cons~ of books, pamphlets, videos, door hangers and vartous other small 

items. 

Investments 

Investments are composed of equity securities and are valued at fair value. 
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Note 2-

Note 3-

Note 4-

Notes to the Fmancial Statements 
December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment is as follows: 

Land - Puerto Rico 
Automobile 
Office furniture & equipment 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Depreciation for the year 

Restrictions on net assets 

$ 

( 

~ 

$ 

2005 2004 
105,000 $ 105,000 
54,530 61,645 
67,857 140,1Q8 

227,387 306,753 
68,582) ( 145,012) 

158,801 ~ ] 6],73§ 

16,505 $ 19 923 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for th ~ ll . 
e xo OWl.Ilg purposes: 

Missionaries 
Church Extension Loan Fund $ 

$ 

These net assets are restricted d d 
when the donor restriction is satisfied. ue to onor restrictions. 

Related party transactions 

2005 
-0-

3,605 
3,605. 

2004 
$ 201,156 

3.{205 
$ 204.761 

They are released 

The Board of Home Missions provides offi 
the employees of a related party, the Church Ex ce ?Pace for and pays the salaries of 
the Church Extension Loan Fund paid the Boar::rs~:rn Lo~ F~d. During the year, 
$185,000 ($180,000 at December 31 2004) to . b e MisslOns a management fee of 
salaries. The Board of Home Missi~ h . relDl urse the cost of the office space and 
Church Extension Loan Fund Th :~ asl.Jolvested money in a demand note of the 
($715,640 at December 31 2004) ~ ~nee m this ~vestment at year-end was $409 849 
~ome Missions' managem~nt co~stan~:::.~~~~nt l S ;ncollateralized. The Board of 
. e Loan F_und to make sure that the Loan Fun~es t e monthly fin~~cial statements of 

nsk of the mvestment This. t . lS solvent and to mJmmize the credit 
h ~ th . mves mentIs short term . tur 

c ange"" erefore cost approximates fair value. m na e and the interest can be 

The Board of Home Missions h 
Fund for unrestricted earnings durin ~ a receiVable from the Church Extension Loan 
end was $241,878 ($100,000 at DeceZ:be~eJt:~oo!~e balance on this receivable at year-

-7-
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Note 5-

Note 6-

Note 7-

Note 8-

Lease 

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

The Board of Home Missions entered into a lease agreement on October 1, 1990 
with the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. for office and storage space. 
The Organization entered into a new lease agreement on July 1, 2000. The term of the 
lease was July 1, 2000 to August 31, 2000, then beginning September 1, 2000 the lease 
became a year to year lease. The rent expense for the year amounted to $55,242 
($50,220 for the year ended December 31, 2004). 

Designation of unrestricted net assets 

During 2001 the Board designated $165,000 in unrestricted net assets to reduce 
the deficits in missionary accounts. During 2005 the Board designated $178,255 in 
unrestricted net assets to reduce deficits in missionary accounts. The total amount of 
Board designated unrestricted net assets is $343,255. 

Concentration of credit risk 

The Board maintains cash deposits in excess of the federally insured amount of 
$100,000. At December 31, 2005, the excess amount over the federally insured limit was 
$262,169 ($280,692 in 2004). The Board has not experienced any losses in such cash 
deposits and management believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk related 
to cash. 

The Board also has $409,849 ($715,640 in 2004) invested in a demand note of 
the Church Extension Loan Fund. This note is uninsured. 

Fair values of financial instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Organization in 
estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments: 

Cash, cash equivalents, investments in Church Loan Fund, receivables and 
payables: The carrying amounts reported in the statement of financial position 
approximate fair values because of the short maturities of those instruments . 

Investments: The fair value of investments lS based on quoted market price for 
those investments. 
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Note 9-

Now 10-

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED S~ATES OF AMERICA. INC. 
Notes to the Fmancial Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Investments 

Investments are stated t £ - al a au- v ue and consist of equity securities: 

Equity secw-ities 
Cost 

$144.684 

December 31. 2005 

Fair 
Value 

$ 1L718 

Investment return is summarized as follows: 

Net realized and unrealized income (loss) 

Equity securities 
Cost 

$144 681 

December 31. 2004 

Fair 
Value 

s 13,459 

Investment return is summanze· d r 11 aS10 ows: 

Net realized and unrealized . mcome 

Pension plan 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

<Depreciation) 
($ 132.96§) 

( 1.745) 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

<Depreciation) 
($ 13L225) 

( 7,799) 

The Board participates in the master . 
and Insurance of the National Associ t. f ;ensJo~ plan of the Board of Retirement 
5% of gross salary for missionaries anadlodn o. _ree ~ill Baptists. The Board contributes 
Of · d a mirustrative empl 'th semce an 2% of gross salary r . . . oyees WI 5 or more years 
l h 10r m1ss1onanes and d · · tr -ess t an 5 years of service Pe . a IDirus ative employees with 
Th: pet_lSion plan is a defin~d con::~~~:::,:ns:s am~unted to $48,724 ($36, 765 in 2004). 
mamtamed for each participant and p t~· nder the plan, an account is 
a 1 dis - . upon re rrement the part' · . 

ump-sum tribution or purchase one of seve al t f IClp_ant can either receive 
r ypes o annwty contracts. 
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WARREN. DENNI<;Y & WALLACE 
CERllFIED P\IBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

THE VOlUNTEER BLDG 
SUITE100 

319 PWS PARK BLVD 
NASIMU£. TN 37217-1098 

(615)366-5100 Membero ,.,._ 
fiOIIERT RAY WA/lREI'I. CPA 
WUJM1 H OENHEY CPA 
1.)I!Sff ~ wN.J.J,CE.. CPA 
JOEL 0 COU.UM JR CPA 
JNf£T W LEE. CPA 

AMERICAN INS~ OF 
cemRED PIIBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

TENNESSEE SOOElY OF 
cemRED PIIBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDJ'l'OH'S REPORT 
ON SUPPLEMENTARY fNFORMATION 

To the Board of Trustees of 
the Board of Home .Missions of the 
Nanonal Association of Free Will Baptists 
of the United States of America. Inc. 

Our report on our audits of the baste financial statements of the Board of Home Missions for 
2005 and 2004 appears on page 1. We conducted our audtts Ill accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
aucliting standards for the purpose of formmg an opiJllon on the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. The schedule of functional expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
reqwred part of the basic financial statements. Such mformation has been subjected to the aucliting 
procedures applied io the audits of the baste financial statements and, io our opinion, is fairly stated io 
all material respects in relation to the basic financ1al statements t.aken as a whole. 

February 17, 2006 
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BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF TH 
NAT6~~AL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WJLLi.PTISTS 

HE UNITED STAtES OF AMERICA. INC 
F Schedule of Functional Exnenses · 

or the Years Ended December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Admimstrative exnenses 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes 
H . all o~mg owance and employee benefits 
Retirement 
Cost of literature 
Promotion expense 
Utilities 
Office expense 
Printing and postage 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Auto and travel expense 
Board meeting expense 
Insurance expense 
Telephone 
Together Way Office 
Scholarships 
Flowers and gifts 
Bank service charges 
Miscellaneous 
One magazine 
Depreciation 

Total administrative expenses 

Missionarv exnenses 
Salary and wages 
Retirement 
Promotion expense 
Printing and postage 
Literature 
Auto and travel expense 
Insurance expense 
Designated contributions 
Miscellaneous other expense 

Total missionary expenses 

Missionary land & buildings 

Total expenses 

See accountants' report on supplementary infi . ormation. 
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2005 

$ 332,794 
13,614 
99,623 
10,442 
20,888 
91,142 
15,263 
31,972 
56,855 
55,242 
4,606 

107,926 
13,430 
78,003 
4,338 
1,750 
3,500 
1,524 
3,973 
3,255 

61,000 
16.505 

1.027.645 

2,377,468 
38,282 
4,884 

96,357 
69,631 

157,989 
44,558 
77,616 
59.896 

2.~26.2SI 

679,880 

$4 634.206 

2005 2006 2007 

General Director: 
$49,693.65 $51 ,184.46 $53,259.99 Salary 

Housing $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 

Utilrties $2,600.00 $2,700.00 $2,800.00 

Ret~rement $3,384.69 $3,459.22 $3,562.99 

2004 
Insurance· $10,500.00 $11 ,500.00 $12,500.00 

TOTALS $84,178.34 $86,843.68 $90,122.98 

$ 312,731 
Office car furnished 

12,931 
97,187 
9,917 
5,019 

69,842 
13,898 
22,502 

117,154 
50,220 

D~rector of Development: 
Salary $34,530.05 $36,213.95 $37,948.36 

Housing $21 ,600.00 $21,600.00 $21 ,600.00 

Utilities $2,600.00 $2,700.00 $2,800.00 

Retirement $2,806.51 $2,858.30 $2,977.41 

Insurance • $6,500.00 $7,000.00 $8,000.00 

TOTALS $68,036.56 $70,372.25 $73,325.77 

Office car furnished 

4,400 
71,515 
16,217 
74,070 
3,951 
1,674 
6,000 

Director of Missionary Assistance: 
Salary S34,530.05 $36,213.95 $37,948.36 

Housing $21 ,600.00 $21 ,600.00 $21 ,600 00 

Utilities $3,500.00 $3,600.00 $3,700.00 

Retirement $2,806.51 $2,858.30 $2,977.41 

Insurance· $14,000.00 $15,000.00 $16,000.00 

2,401 TOTALS $76,436.56 $79,272.25 $82,225.77 

4,789 Off1ce car furnished 
10,253 

Director ol Church Growth: 
19,923 

926.594 

Salary S38, 130.05 $39,813.95 $41 ,548.36 

Housing $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 

Utilities $3,300.00 $3,400.00 $3,500.00 

Retirement $2,806.51 $2,858.30 $2,977.41 

2,287,721 
26,848 
1,369 

95,954 
78,236 

155,096 

Insurance· $14,000.00 $15,000.00 $16,000.00 

TOTALS $76,236.56 $79,072.25 $82,025.77 

Office car furnished 
Insurance•: 
Travel, Life, 
Health, Dental 

36,662 
86,319 
71.876 

2,84Q,081 

252,903 

$4 019 578 
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2007 STATE QUOTAS 

Alabama 
Alaska 
Arizona 
Arkansas 
California 
Canada 
CELF 
Colorado 
Florida 
FWB Foundation 
Georgia 
Hawaii 
Idaho 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Iowa 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Louisiana 
Maine 
Massachusetts 
Michigan 
Mid-Atlantic 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
Montana 
New Hampshire 
New Jersey 
New Mexico 
North Carolina 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
Oregon 
Other Income 
Other States 
Pennsylvania 
Puerto RICO 

South Carolina 
South Dakota 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Utah 
Virginia 
Virgin Islands 
Washington 
West Virginia 
Wisconsin 
WNAC 
Wyoming 

TOTAL 

A- 112 

$475,000.00 
$10,000.00 
$50,000.00 

$280,000.00 
$130,000.00 

$6,000.00 
$130,000.00 

$70,000.00 
$40,000.00 
$10,000.00 

$130,000.00 
$2,500.00 
$5,000.00 

$115,000.00 
$60,000.00 

S5,000.00 
$15,000.00 
$95,000.00 
$20,000.00 

S5,000.00 
55,000.00 

$160,000.00 
$35,000.00 

$150,000.00 
$200,000.00 

$1 ,000.00 
$5,000.00 
$1,500.00 

$10,000.00 
$375,000.00 
$160,000.00 
$375,000.00 

$5,000.00 
$250' 000.00 

$20,000.00 
$30,000.00 

$5,000.00 
$170,000.00 

$1 ,000.00 
$500,000.00 
$150,000.00 
$10,000.00 

$190,000.00 
$50,000.00 

$8,000.00 
$105,000.00 
$35,000.00 

$135,000.00 
$5,000.00 

$4,800,000.00 

2001 Budget 

5alanes!Housmg 
Personal Rev1vals 
Ret1rement 
Insurance 
Health Spend1ng 
Auto and Travel 
Postage 
Pnnt1ng 
Promotion/ Advert1si ng 
Office Supplies/Maintenance 

Utilities 
Board Expense 
Uterature 
Rent 
Phone and FAX 
Depreciation 
Payroll Taxes 
Medicare Taxes 
Legal and Audit 
Together Way 
MISC 
Scholarships 
Flowers/Gifts 
MISC. Rece1pts 
BUild My Church 
Land/Building 
FM Exchange 

TOTALS 

Adm1mstrative MISSIOnary Total 

5450.00000 52.800 000.00 $3.250,000 00 

520.000 00 520,000.00 

515,000.00 $45,000.00 $60,000.00 

$85,000.00 $50,000.00 5135,000.00 

510,000.00 $10,000.00 

5100,000.00 $200,000.00 $300,000.00 

$20,000.00 $55,000.00 $75,000.00 

$70,000.00 $70,000.00 $140,000.00 

550,000.00 $5,000.00 $55,000.00 

$20,000.00 $20,000.00 

$15,000.00 $15,000.00 

$15,000.00 $15.000.00 

$25,000.00 $85,000.00 $110,000.00 

$60,000.00 $60,000.00 

$5,000.00 $5,000.00 

$20,000.00 $20,000.00 

$12,000 00 $12,000.00 

$3,000.00 $3,000.00 

54,000 00 54,000.00 

$2,000.00 $2,000.00 

$2,000.00 $25,000.00 $27,000.00 

$5,00000 $5,000.00 

$2,00000 $2,000.00 

$10,000.00 $10,000.00 

$130,000.00 $130,000.00 

$300,000.00 $300,000.00 

$15,000.00 $15,000.00 

$1 ,140,000 00 $3,660,000.00 $4,800,000 00 
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WARREN, DENNEY & WALLACE 
camFIEO PU8UC ACCOUNTAHTS 

THE 1/0llJNmR BlDG 
SU1TI100 

R08eRT RAY WARREH CPA 

319 PLUS PARK BlVD 
N4StMU£, TN 37217·109e 

(615) 36&-5100 
MembeB 

wtUJAM H DENNEY CPA 
IAARY BRIJC£ WAUAC£. CPA 
JOEl 0 <XlU.UM. JR CPA 
JAH£T W LEE. CPA 

To the Board of Trustees of the 
Church Extension Loan Fund 
Antioch, Tennessee 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

AMERICAN INS1TTUTE OF 
CERTIAED PIIBUc~ 

TENN£55EE SOCIETY OF 
CERTIAEDPUBUc~ 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial pos1tion of the Church Extension Loan 
Fund (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related statements of 
activities and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the Organization's management. Our responsibility is to express an opiruon on these financial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance With auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matenal misstatement. An audit includes 
exammmg, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes aSBessing the accounting pnnciples used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Church Extension Loan Fund as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

February 17, 2006 
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN. ~UND 
Statements of Financial Position 

December 31, 2005 and 2004 

Assets 
Cash - Note 6 . 
Certificate of deposit 
Notes receivable - No~s 1 & 8 
A ued interest receiVable 

ccr ty d equipment- at cost, less 
Proper W.:~d depreciation of $12,413 
accu.m N t 1 & 2 ($16,635 in 2004)- o es 

Total assets 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Llabibt1es Note 4 
Accounts payable - related party -

Accrued interest N te 9 
Revocable and irrevocable trusts - o 
Deferred compensation - Note 10 

Notes payable - Notes 3, 4 &. 8 N tea 1 & 11 
Accrued unrelated business mcome tax - o 

Net assets 
Unrestricted 

Total liabilities 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanYing 
notes to the financial statements. 

-2-
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2005 2004 

$ 1,872,850 $ 1,606,704 
1,000,000 

21,816,050 19,600,174 
127,260 114,334 

7 815 9,33;1 

$24.823 975 $21 aao 545 

$ 241,878 $ 100,000 
200 106 

1,667,329 1,636,780 
96,210 166,210 

20,988,329 17,671,063 
1347 

22.995.293 19,574,159 

1.828.682 1.756,386 

1.828,682 1.756,386 

$24.823.975 $2},330.545 
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Statements ofActiyities 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Operating 
Revenue 

Investment income 
Interest income on notes receivable 
Other revenue 

Expenses 
Interest expense 
Office expense 
Auto and travel 
Management fee _ Note 4 
Promotion 
Postage 
Professional fees 
Depreciation 
Build My Church Project expense 
Transfer to Fr~e Will Baptists Home Missions 
Unrelated busmess income tax 

Increase (decrease) in operating net assets 

Build Mv Church . Note 5 
Reyenue 

Designated contributions 

Exnenses 

Increase (decrease) in Build My Church net assets 

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanYing 
notes to the financial statements. 
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$ 

Unr~stricteg 
2005 2004 --

$ 25,320 $ 5,700 
1,543,835 1,327,736 

18.10ij 
1.569.155 1.351.541 

1,033,720 916,091 
7,952 9,775 

35,364 21,821 
185,000 180,000 

2,931 22,176 
2,656 2,354 
5,391 5,090 
2,916 2,800 

50,000 50,000 
241,878 150,000 

1,347 

1.569,15!:! 1.360,107 

-0- ( 8,566) 

72,296 101,651 

-0- -0· 

72,296 101.651 

72,296 93,085 

1.756.386 1.663.301 

1 828 682 $ L756.386 

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Qperating activities 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets 
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable 
Increase (decrease) in deferred compensation 
Increase (decrease) in unrelated business income tw< 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Additions to notes and bonds receivable 
Collection on notes receivable 
Addition to certificate of deposit 
Additions to investment in trusts 
Disbursements from investment in trusts 
Purchase of new equipment 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Financing activities 
Addition to trusts 
Termination of trusts 
Additions to notes payable 
Repayment of notes payable 

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Supplemental disclosures 
Interest received 

Interest paid 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
DOtes to the financial statements. 
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200Q 

$ 72,296 

2,916 

( 12,926) 
141,878 

94 
( 70,000) 

1347 

135.605 

( 4,918,363) 
2,702,487 

( 1,000,000) 

( 1.398) 

( 3,217,274) 

122,911 
( 92,362) 

6,020,371 
( 2,703,105) 

3.347,815 

266,146 

1.606.704 

$ 1.872.850 

$ 1.582.081 

i 1,033,814 

2004 

$ 93,085 

2,800 

( 13,829) 
41,405 

( 6,580) 
( 50,000) 

66.881 

( 5,282,810) 
2,912,007 

( 2,340) 
519,612 

( 1.8f!3,f!31) 

84,096 
( 84,945) 

4,212,808 
( 1.831.475) 

2,380.484 

593,834 

1.012.870 

$ 1.606.704 

$ 1 319 607 

i 1.122.671 
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Note 1-

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Organization and summary of Significant accountmg policies 

The Church Extension Loan Fund is a nonprofit organization under the direction 
of the Board of Home MissiOns of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of the 
United States of America, Inc. located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of the Fund is 
to loan money to Free Will Baptist Churches, primarily Home Mission Churches, for 
purchase of land and buildings. The Organization's support comes primarily from 
interest on notes receivable. 

The Fund is exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc. In addition, the Fund has been determined by the Internal Revenue Servioe 
not to be a "private foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. The Fund had $9,980 unrelated business income for 2005. There was no 
unrelated business income for 2004. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the 
preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Fund prepares its financial statements usmg the accrual method of 
accounting which involves the application of U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles; consequently, revenues and gams are recognized when earned, and expenses 
and losses are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 
No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the 
Fund is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net 
assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles includes the use of estimates that affect the financial 
statements. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Contributions 

The Fund accounts for contributions in accordance with the recommendations of 
the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SFAS No. 116, Accounting for Contributions 
Received and Contributions Made. ln accordance with SFAS No. 116, contributions 
received are recorded as unrestncted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted 
support, depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. 

-5-
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Note 1-

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

. . d ummarv of significant accountmg policies (Continued) Orgaruzat10n an s _ 

Contributions (continued) 

. ted as an increase in temporarily or 
All donor-restricted support ts rep.or on the nature of the restriction. Wbe~ a. 

permanently restricted ~et assets de~e~~ time restriction ends or purpose restrictlOn 
restriction expires (that lS, when a ~tlp a ts are reclassified to unrestricted net 
is accomplished), temporarily restrlctedfnetti.a~t~es as net assets released from restrictions. 

ted . the statements o ac Vl 1 t 
assets and repor m . . ted permanently restricted net asse s. The Fund has no temporarily restrlc or 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

. . li . at cost all expenditures for property 
The Fund follows the prac~ce of capfullta"~ngf, t least two years. Depreciation is 

. f $500 Wlth a use llle o a £ ll . and equipment m excess o . fulli f the assets generally as o ows. 
computed on a straight-line basis over the use ves o 

Automobile 5 years 
Office eqwpment 5 years 

d . ent balance has been recorded as a separate The net property an eqwpm 
component in unrestricted net assets. 

Investments 

price. 
d f uity securities and are valued at quoted market Investments are compose o eq 

Notes receivable 

ill B tist Churches primarily Home Mission 
The Fund loans money to Free W . ~P E ch chur~h is required to give a first 

Churches, for the purchase of land ~nd dbf tr !s. Pr:cipal and interest on the loans is 
mortgage on the property or sign a ee) o u Mteen to twenty year period except for 
Payable monthly at 7.0% (7.0% in 2004 over a . d to pay interest only. The Board of 

. tructi n which are reqw.re Th 
churches still under cons o . ble as other interest rates change. e 
Trustees changes the rate on these ~ote~ece::,~et value. The churches are located 
carrying value of these loans approxuna s m 
throughout the United States. 

t aturi. ties of these notes are as follows: The aggrega e m 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 

Thereafter 

-6-
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$ 1,132,324 
1,214,180 
1,301,953 
1,396,072 
1,496,994 

15.274,527 
$21 816 050 
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Note 1-

Note 2-

Note 3-

Note 4-

Note 5-

CHURCH EXT~NSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Fmancial Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Organization apd summary of stgrufi . 
cant accountmg polictes (Contmued) 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 

Management considers accounts a d 
accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accon no~es rec~ivable to be fully collectible· 

unts ts reqwred. • 
Cash equivalent§ 

The Fund considers alllu hl li . . 
or less when purchased to b hg y. qwd mvestments with a maturity of thr 

e cas eqwvalents. ee months 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment follows: 

2005 2004 Automobile 
Office equipment $ 14,000 

6.228 
$ 14,000 

11.968 
Accumulated depreciation 20,228 25,968 

( 12.413) 
$ 7.815 

( 16.635) 

Notes payable 
$ 9.33a 

Notes payable constat of 3 - 5% (3 so . 
mdividuals and churches. The Proceeds of % m 2004) unsecured demand notes from 
:~em purchase land and buildings. The Bo!~:sef~tes are then loaned to churches to help 

ese notes payable as other interest rates ch o ustees changes the interest rates on ange. 

Related partv transactioll§ 

w· ~e Fund paid the Board of Home Missions . 
~ Baptists, Inc. a management fee of $185 of the NatiOnal Association of Free 

reunburse the Board of Home u" - . r ,000 ($180,000 at December 31 2004) to 
B d Th n~slOns wr salar t d ' $;:: 878 (;l~~0d00had 0accounts payable to the B~;;~:f ~;:~ e~e~es paid by the 

' • at ecember 31, 2004). SSJons m the amount of 

Desirnated contributions 

The desianatcd trib . r b-:' con utions are amounts . " . 
P ogram. The morues given to this ro gwen to the Build My Church" 
that other funds are loaned to h Ph gram are loaned to churches in the .,.,_ 
Build M Ch c urc es. The total amo . <>a.Uie manner 
th Y urch program has reached $1 000 000 I unt gwen for _the first phase of the 
~program payments totaling $50,000 ($5o 000 ~ D n accordance With the provisions of 

~u sequent to year-end to the land fund f ' a ecember 31, 2004) were mad 
mteres_t earned on loans made with Buil~ ~ tw~hHome Mission's Churches from th: 
:e !~d My Chuz:ch program called the Ro; Th urch ~ntrib~tions. A second phase of 

e amount given through the Roy Thoma omas _emonal Fund has begun. When 
$1,00?,000, then the interest earned from the s Memonal Fund program reaches 
to asstst the Cross Cultural Mi . try loans made with the program ill b 

~~}t given through the end~ the;:! ~e$~~~; ~ss($i~n;2G6eneral Fund. ~e ~=d 
' ' ,902 at December 31 

' 
-7-
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Note 6 • 

Note 7-

Note 8-

Note 9-

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Concentration of credit risk 

The Fund maintains cash depostts in excess of the federally insured amount of 
$100,000. At December 31, 2005, the excess amount over the federally insured limit was 
$2,772,850 {$1,506, 704 in 2004). The Fund has not experienced any losses in such cash 
depostts and management believes it 1s not exposed to any significant credit risk related 
to cash. 

Fair value of financial instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Organization in 
estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments: 

Cash, accrued interest receivable, investment in Free Will Baptist Foundation, 
payables, accrued interest payable and deferred compensation: The carrying amounts 
reported in the statements of financial position approximate fair values because of the 
short maturities of those instruments. 

Notes receivable and bonds receivable: Based on current interest rates, the 
carrying value approximates the fair value of the notes receivable and bonds receivable at 
December 31, 2005 and 2004. 

Notes payable and trusts: Based on current interest rates, the carrying value 
approximates the fair value of the notes payable and trusts at December 31, 2005 and 
2004. 

Concentration 

Included in notes receivable at December 31, 2005 are thirty-one loans which total 
$13,046,133 (twenty-six loans which total $10,525,983 in 2004). This balance represents 
59.80% (53. 70% in 2004) of total notes receivable. 

Notes payable mclude e1ghty-five notes which total $15,082,845 or 71.86% 
(seventy-one notes which total $11,552,229 or 65.37% in 2004) of total notes payable. Of 
these eighty-five (seventy-one in 2004) notes payable, two total $1,154,172 or 5.50% (three 
notes total $1,220,785 or 6.9% in 2004} of total notes payable. 

Revocable and irrevocable trust§ 

Eleven irrevocable and four revocable charitable remainder trusts pay interest at 
6-9% per year. The principal of these trusts was used to make mortgage loans. Interest 
expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 amounted to $124,195 {$133, 798 at 
December 31, 2004). 

-8-
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Note 10. 

Note 11. 

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial StatemeJl41 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Deferred compensation 

Deferred compensation re res . 
Home Missions of the National p . e~ta savmgs trusts transferred fro 

~=~d:~;;:;-;~"'' -~:':.':::!!'::.~!:;;;:::,torero the :!6,~~ 
was adopted all of the acco,;~e. Ml~Sions _adopted a pension plan AftX:r~~me Mi~siona. 
except for the account of the ti~ dt e savmgs trusts were transfe:n.ed to the pens~on plan 

re re general director. e pens1on plan 

Unrelated business income tax 

. The Fund was subject to unrelated . 
that It made to a commercial entity busmess tax from interest it collected loa . ona n 

The components of the unrelated b . . usmess mcome tax are: 

Current payable 2005 2Q01 
Deferred taxes $ 1,347 $ -0-

.Q. ·Q· 
$ I 347 ~ ·Q;; 

.g. 
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Master's Men 
The Men's Ministry of the National Association of Free \Viii Baptists 

As 2005 began, we started gearing up for what weather forecasters said was going to be a 
busy year for hurricanes. WOW, did they ever get it right this time. We began to get 
equipment, recruit volunteers and prepare should the need arise. Well it did. Hunicane 
Katrina smashed the Gulf Coast with force that few have seen. The Gulf Coast Free Will 
Baptist Church in Gulfport, MS was damaged. Volunteers from across our denomination 
stepped up through donations and in person to rise to the occasion. The first week there 
we had over fifty men and women arrive to help in the rebuilding. But it didn't end there. 
Over the next several weeks men and women continued to come to Gulfport to help their 
Free Will Baptist brothers and sisters and their neighbors recover. 

Though Disaster Response was the biggest attention getter, there were other things 
happening. We continued our sports fellowship ministry by holding our two annual golf 
tournaments and our national softball tournament. We held our National Retreat at Camp 
Hope in IL with Bro. Tim York as our guest speaker. We he\d our largest National Rally 
in Fresno, CA. We partnered with Home Missions and held an Operation Saturation 
event in Green Bay, WI. In October we joined with WNAC to host our third National 

Marriage Enrichment Conference. 

We continue to grow in numbers as we added ten new chapters in 2005 . 

We appreciate all those that support Master's Men a11d ask for your prayers as we 

continue to help our churches help their men. 

Your fellow servant 

Kenneth W. Akers, General Director 

Synopsis of Board Meetings 

May 2. 2005 
7 Board members present. Approved Dec. 2004 minutes. Reviewed and approved 

financial report. Approved 2006 budget. 

December 4-5, 2005 
8 members present. Approved May 2005 minutes and financial report. Discussed ways to 
• Increase Father's Day Offering. Approved 2007 budget. Discussed Disaster Response 

Team purpose statement and criteria for response. 
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TAMARA L. BECKMAN 
CERnFJED PlffiUCAOX>UNTANT 

To the Board of Directors of 
The Master's Men 
A11tioch, Tennessee 

6 SOtmi MADlSON A VEi'<1 .. ic 
CXX>KEVII..LE,1N 38501 
OFFI~ ~.H) S26-5189 
FAX (931) S2~90M 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

I have audited the accompanying statement of financial position ofThe Master's Men (a 
nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 2005, and the related statements of activities, and 
cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of The 
Master's Men's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on my audit. 

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position ofThe Master's Men as ofDccember 31,2005, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

April27, 2006 
Cookeville, Tennessee 
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THE M ASTER'S MEN 
STATEMENT OF FiNANCIAL POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2005 

Current Assets - cash 
T st Account- Build a House 
:ceivablc Trust-Build a House 
Trust Account- Lifetime Member~ 
Interest Receivable 

Inventory 
Accounts Receivable 

Total Current A<>Sets 

$ 105.448.13 
5.315.77 

48,406.()6 

100.625.00 
7,510.16 

430.00 
10 634.98 

$ 278.370.10 

Fixed Assets 
Equipment and Furniture . 
Accum. Deprec•ation- Equ•p/Fum. 

Capitalized Leases 
A """rtiLtltion-Cap. Lease Accum. ru•"' 

Total Fixed Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Payroll Tax Payable 

Accrued Wages 
Retirement Payable 
Other Accrued Expenses 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Temporarily Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Asset~ 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

59.385.82 
( 46.132.16) 

4,017.80 
(2.913.56) 

5.343.83 
123.07 
444.00 
359.75 

87.98 

250.779.36 
35,490.01 

. a\ an of the financtal ~tatement.~ 
1be accompanying note~ are nn tntreg p 2 
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14 257.90 

6,358.63 

286.269.37 

$ 292.628.00 

~ 292.628.00 



THE MASTER'S MEN 
STATEMLNT OF ACTI\ ITJES 

FOR THE YEAR E OED DECntUER J l. 2005 

TempwJnl} Llnr.:,tno:tcd 

Rt>H!nut'S &. Gains 
Rc-cn,ccd A"c'' Net A'-cr-

Gill' and Donalton' IIIJ.S lX.61 s I 1.5~/l lo:-1 
Du..-, lrom Mem~r> -125.00 11!.70:! ~:! Cnc)perali •c Program 

76,-lt-d .:!X Mcrchandi,..- Sale> 
J.R89.RO Special E•enh 
9,600.00 

TnuroJmcnc & Confcrcm;.: income 
l5.-IO:!.O I lntcrc't Income 
9.588.71 Gam on Di,p.l,al 
.l,.'\50.00 Ml\l'CIIancou' Income 

392.20 -----Total Rc:wnu~, & Gain$ II 1.2o.t6 1 169.175. 17 

N('t Asscr~ Rt'l('llsed from Rt'striction~ 

DtsJ\ter R.:l•ef (9.4:!7 67) 9.-127 (> 7 M1.ssiun\ 
< 11.4:!2 .U1 11.422.33 Ma,ccr\ Hands Projcccs ( 13.950 {)()) IJ. YSO 0() Opera11on S:Huration 1678.60! 678.60 

Tuwl Rc,~nuc,, Gams & Other Suppon $ 75.11!4 95 204 653.!SJ 

1-.:\0Cfl.\I.'S 

Salanc, and Wages 
04.105 50 PR T J\<''- and BeneiiLs 
8.597 !!5 

Co'l of Sale~ and Printmg 
2.176 70 Tra•cl E.\pcn'e 
7.45-l IS5 

Conferl'nccs & Conwnttons 
4.6-13 56 

Ollkc: bpcn"~ 
4.114 18 Tc:lcphone 
2.294.~2 Pose age 
UOIXO Rent Expense 

24.497.00 Profc,sional Fees 
I. 750.0<.1 

Bool.~ccping E~pcnse 
<)()() ()() 

Mmi\ try & Resource Drvclopment 
ll.!j6K.2J 

Tournamcm Expense 
:!:l,905.0ll Soc•al Events 
9,049.:11 Dues. Subserip110ns. Fees 
8.794 35 Dcprcc•auon Expense 
3.536 29 Arnoruzatton Exprnsc 

200 S9 Interest Exprn~c 
164% M•,ccllanci)U, E!lpcnse 
467.23 

Total Expcnscs s s 179.842.60 

Change: m Net Aso;c:l\ 75.784 95 :!4 .1> II 23 Net A\\CI\· Begmning of Year 174.99-141 10.6711.78 
No:t As'<.'ls-End of Year 

250.779 36 s 35.490 ()J 

The "'-.:c>mpan1 mg IIOIC\ Jft dO Jnl~graJ pan of Jb<, fin3ncJaJ >Lilc~ol 

J 
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THE MASTER'S MEN 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ~ 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200~ 

TO!al 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 100.596.18 $ 12:!,427.45 Increase in Net Asl>et<; 
19.127.32 
76.461.28 

d' ments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets 3.889.80 A JUSt ... 
9.600.00 to Net Cash Provided by Operating Acttvttles: 

$ 3,536.29 35,40:!.01 Depreciation 
200.89 9,588.72 

Amortization 
(9,588.72) 3,550.00 

Interest on Investments 
164.96 392.20 

Interest Expense 280.438.78 
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets: 

47,321.97 
Accounts Receivable ... 

[ncrease (Decrease) in Operating Liabthttes: 
4.899.38 

Accounts Payable 
(213.42) 

Payroll Tax Payable 
(36.25) 

Accrued Wages 
19.50 

$ 280.-+38 78 
Retirement Payable 46.304.60 

Total 146.900.78 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 6-1.105.50 

8.59785 
2.176.70 

Cash Flows £rom lnvesti!!,g Activities 
(3.610.00) 7.454.85 

Fixed Assets Purchased 
0.01 4.643.56 

4.13-1.18 Transfers from Trusts & Investments 
(53,298. 74) 2.294.82 Transfers to Trusts & Investments 

II 980.59 1.301.80 Interest Received (44,928.14) :!4.497.00 
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities 1.750.00 

'100.00 
Cash Flows from Financing Activities I 1.868.23 

5,000.00 23.90508 Loan Proceeds 
(5.000.00) 9.049.31 Paid on Principal 

(164.96) 8.794.35 
lnterest Paid (164.96} 3,536.29 

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities 200.89 

101.807.68 164.96 

Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 640.45 
467.23 

$ 179.842 60 Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents 
$ 105.448.13 

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents 
I 0<>.596.18 
185,673.19 

$ 286.269.37 . aJ an of the fmanc•al statemenL-. 1ne accompanying notes are an mtreg P 
4 
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THE MASTER'S MEN 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3 J, 2005 

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Governing Body 

The Master's Men operates under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists and is governed by a Board of Directors. 

Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying financia l statements of The Master's Men have been prepared on the 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues arc recognized when earned and expenditures are 
recognized when incutTed. 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The Department follows Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No.117, 
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organi:arions. Under SFAS No.117, the 
Department is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
accordingly according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets. temporarily. 
restricted net assets. and permanently restricted net assets. In addition, the Department Is 
required to present a statement of ca'ih flows. As permitted by this statement, the 
Department has discontinued its use of fund accounting and has. accordingly. reclassified 
its financial statements to present the three classes of net a-.sets required. 

Promises to Give 

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the 
Organi.~:ation that is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the 
donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the 
fiscal year in which the contributions arc recognized. All other donor-restricted 
contributions are reported as increases in temporari ly restricted net assets are reclassified 
to unrestricted net assets. 

Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Receivables are presented in the financial statements at the amount deemed collectible by 
management. Any provision for doubtful accounts is recognized using the direct write­
off method. 

Investments 

The investments are valued at the lower of cost or market. For gifts, the cost is 
determined by the fair market value of the security at the time of the gift. 

Inventories 

The inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. with cost being determined by 
using the frrst-in, frrst-out method. 

5 
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Tht Ma.rter'~ Men 
h Finannal Statement~ Nnttt tot e 

>J 7()()5 Dtctmhtr _, ... 
Par:t Two 

E · t and Depreciation d . 
Property. qwp.men . entctl in the financial '>tatcments a.t cost an are. 
Property and eqmpme~t arc .pres hod cr the estimated useful li ves of the a<;sets depreciated by the stratght-hnc met ov 
ranging from 3-20 years. 

T es . . d. g1y no provision Income ax . r· fedenl and stale mcome taxes, accor m , The Department IS exempt I om • 
. . e taxes is made in the financial statements. lor mcom , · 

Estimates . . n conformity with generally accepted accou.nting 
The preparation of financial statements I . . t s and assumptions that affect certam 

. mcnt to make esnma e th . 
principles requucs man~gc . . u· gly actual results could differ from osc reported amounts and dtsclosures. Accor tn , 

estimates. 

Cash and Casb Equivalents h De artment considers all highly liquid 
For purpose of ~e statement of cas~ ~~~· ~n~ ini~a1 maturit} of three months or Jess to investments available for current use 
be cash equivalents. 

Note 2 Property and Equipment 

. d by the Department at December f rt and eqlllpment owne The following is a summary 0 propc Y 
31,2005: 

Equipment and furniture . . 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Property and Equipment, Net 

Note 3 Capitalized Leases 

$ 59.385.82 
< 46.232.16> 

$ 13.153.66 

. . . a tists urchased an office bui lding to hous~ various 
The National Assoctallon of Free Will ~ p. PTh Board of Directors has entered tnto an 
departments and agenc1es o . . d d to contribute to the debt serv1ce cos 

. t'lhe denommattOn. e . ' LS 
. h. butldtng an agree · 

agreement to lease space m. t 1S new . ' I the debt has been retired. The construction 
during the construction penod and ~o ~ontmu~ untl being amortized over a period of twenty years. 
period costs of $4,017.80 were capitalized an are . . . of December 31. 2005 were 

. . r 2005 and accumulated amortl.~:auon as Amortuauon expense 1or 
$200.89 and $2.913.56. respectively. 

Note 4 Deferred Revenue 

There were no deferred revenues for 2005· 

6 
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The MtHtn··s Men 

NoTe\ to The Financial StaTemena 
Decnnher 31, 2005 
Page Thret• 

Note 5 - Restricted Fund BaJance 

The restricted fund balance is revenue desi nated f; . . . . 
following as of December 31, 2005. g or specific proJects and consists of the 

B_u_il~ A House campaign 
L~fetJme Membership 
Dtsasler Relief 

Total 

$ 50,180.59 
!OJ ,050.00 
99,548.77 

$250.779.36 

Note 6- Compensated Absences 
There was no compensated absence balance at December 3 J' 2005. 

7 
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Projected Expenses 

Salaries 
01rector 
Salary 
Housing 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total 
Secretary 
Wages( 40hrslwk@8.50) 
FICA 
MED 

Total 
Total Salaries 

Office Operations 
Rent 
EqUipment & Supplies 
Telephone 
Postage 
Total 

Accounting 
Bookkeepmg 
Audit 
Total 

Resource Development 
Printed Materials 

Department Travel 
National Association 

Total Expenses 

Projected Income 
Dues 
Father's Day Offering 
Together Way 
Softball 
Golf 
G1fts 
Sales 
Endowment Income 
BAH 
Master's Men Conference: 
Total Income 

2007 Masters Men 
Financial Reports 

2005 Budget 2005 Actuals 2006 Budget Proposed Budget 2007 

31,880.00 
20.400.00 

2,614.00 
6.500.00 

61 ,394.00 

17,680.00 
1,097.00 

257.00 
19,034.00 
80,428.00 

22,692.00 
6,000.00 
3,000.00 
2.500.00 

34,192.00 

900.00 
1,500.00 
2,400.00 

7 ,200.00 

10,000.00 
2,500.00 

136,720.00 

21,000.00 
6,000.00 

71,720.00 
4,000.00 
4,000.00 
9 ,000.00 
6,000.00 
8,000.00 
5,000.00 
2,000.00 

136,720.00 

33,000.00 
20.400.00 

1,705.00 
6,051.65 

61,156.65 

10,741.75 
665.94 
155.76 

11 ,563.45 
72,720.10 

22.321.20 
4,835.27 
2,294.23 
1,301.80 

30,752.50 

900.00 
1,750.00 
2,650.00 

2,176.70 

7,454.84 
2,794.35 

118,548.49 

19,127.32 
3,166.43 

70,783.25 
2,024.02 
7,931.78 
8,422.41 
3,889.80 
6,622.31 
2,240.77 

-115.89 
124,092.20 
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34.280.00 
20.400.00 

2,734.00 
6.500 00 

63,914.00 

17,680.00 
1,097.00 

257.00 
19,034.00 
82,948.00 

22,580.00 
6.000.00 
3.000.00 
2,500.00 

34,080.00 

900.00 
1.750.00 
2,650.00 

7,200.00 

10,000.00 
2,500.00 

139,378.00 

20,000.00 
6,504.00 

69,874.00 
4,000.00 
4,000.00 

17,000.00 
5.000.00 
6.000.00 
5,000.00 
2,000.00 

139,378.00 

39,393.00 
20,400.00 

2,990.00 
6,500.00 

69,283.00 

17,680.00 
1,097.00 

257.00 
19,034.00 
88,317.00 

22.580.00 
6.000.00 
3.000.00 
2,500.00 

34,080.00 

900.00 
1,750.00 
2,650.00 

7,200.00 

10,000.00 
2,500.00 

144,747.00 

20,000.00 
11 ,617.00 
70,130.00 

4,000.00 
4,000.00 

17,000.00 
5,000.00 
6,000.00 
5,000.00 
2,000.00 

144,747.00 



of The '-.JtKliU) fu'<llLI!KIO 

w f~tt Will B.tJ!U>t' 

Board of Retirement 

. August I, 2005, was an important day in the life of the Board of 
~~ttrement and Insurance. On that day, for only the second time in the 36- year 
htstory of the board. there was a change in leadership. The first time was 
August I, I 993, when Bill Evans took over from Herman Hersey Tw J 
years later I took over from Brother Bill. The transition for Bt'II and. eve 
well. me went 

'!"'e come to the national this year with a completely new staff. John 
Brummitt became our new Business Manaoer on April J 2006 d M · p·J · b b , , an anan 

t gn.m ecame our new administrative assistant on May 30. They are both 
workmg out well and are a blessing to work with. 

2005 was a good y~ar. for the Board of Retirement and Insurance. We 
had 72 new enrollees: ?nngmg our total active participants to 1442. The 
breakdown of our parttctpant base is shown in the chart below. 

5.6% 

28.5% 

Participant Breakdown 
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• 950 Ordained Ministers 
0 411 Lay Employees 
• 81 Inti. Mlss./Wives 

From the above chart we see there are 950 ordained ministers enrolled 
in our plan. At least 201 of them are not pastoring one of the 2470 churches 
listed in the2006 Free Will Baptist Yearbook. Some of these 20 1 are no longer 
employed by a Free Will Bapti. t church or agency while others serve as 
Associate Pastors or in other non-pastoral staff positions. Some teach in one 
our five colleges. work in our bookstores, Christian School . state offices, etc. 

This means that out ofthat950, only 749 (3 1 %) are pastoring Free Will 
Baptist churches. At least 1721 of our pastors are not enrolled in the 
denominational retirement program. 

There arc 426 of those 749 pastors who have received no retirement 
contributions from their church so far this year. Only 323 (13%) of our 2470 
churches are contributing anything toward their pastor's retirement through the 
retirement plan adopted by the national association. 

My goal as the director is to get as many of the remaining 2147 churches 
accepting their responsibility for their pastor's future needs as well as present 
ones. I want to see every FWB pastor enrolled in our program. I believe it is 
the best thing going ror our pastors and we ought to take care of them. 

Last year was a record year for contributions. We received 
$2,777,001.96 in total contributions. We processed over 18,000 transactions. 

The IRS has expanded the rules concerning contribution limits. The 
first contribution limit relates to the total Salary Reduction Contributions 
allowed. For 2006 that dollar amount is $15,000. 

There arc two special annual "catch-up" contribution limits that apply 
in limited cases. 

• Age-50 Catch-Up ($5,000 per year) 
• 15-Years or Service Catch-Up ($3,000 per year) 

If a participant qualifies for both of the catch-up contribution limits, 
he/she can contribute a total of $23,000 in Salary Reduction Contributions in 
2006. Total contributions, including after-tax, pre-tax and employer, cannot 
exceed the lesser of $44,000 or 100% of salary. 
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We now manage $29 5?3 vo5 93 · . . 
A · - ,oo · m retirement tund f · . 

s you can see from the chart below m . d . !) or our PartJctpants 
d , ore an more of our 1 · 

a vantage of the tax deferred benefit. peop e are taking 

3.1% 

54.8% 

Breakdown By Funds 

12.1% 

30.0% 

• After-Tax Funds 

0 Salary Reduction Funds 
• Employer Funds 
0 Rollover Funds 

In 2005 we had total · thd 1 
was down $400,000 over 20~. raw as from the plan of $ I ,302,335.32. This 

Also in 2005 we had thre · · 
annuity. We now have 53 ~ parttcJpants settle their accounts by taking an 

annutty contracts totaling $20,937.56 per month. 

In addition to these 53, there are 49 · · 
for a specified period of months from 12- 1 fartJCJ pants who made settlements 
these contracts is $35,9 l 7_6 f. 0· The total monthly payments to 

That means that every month we are . 
retirement benefits. paymg out $56,855. I 7 monthly 

Participant loans are still po 1 La 
$250, 189.49 bringing our total parf:u. ar. I st year we made new loans totaling 

CJpant oans to $475,945.25. 

We were able to pay 3% di v·d d .. 
half of2005 and 9 25m th 

1 
en s to our PartiCipants in Plan 1 the first 

· 'lo e second half Our ave · 
history of our plan is 8 72~ A · rage eammgs over the 37-year 

· o. verage returns are: 
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1 year- 2005 6.125% 

3 years - 2003-2005 12.708% 

5 years - 200 1-2005 5.155% 

I 0 years - 1996-2005 8.278% 

Life of plan - 1969-2005 8.72% 

During the last quarter of2005 we began the long and involved process 
of developing a newly revised Plan Document. Danny Miller and Erica 
Summers, attorneys who specialize is 403(b) retirement plans, have worked 
very closely with our office to confirm that our retirement program meets all 
guidelines set down under the 1986 Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b )(9). 
Their firm, Connor & Winters, is the legal counci l for the Church Benefits 
Association and the Church Alliance that the Board of Retirement has belonged 
to for many years. 

Jf you are a participant in the retirement program and have not received 
your copy of the Summary Plan Document, please let us know. 

The new plan document brings some changes to the plan. Some are 
dictated by the IRS Code, some were made by our board in order to make it a 
better plan for our participants. Some of the changes are: 

I. 

2. 

3. 

All participants, except those receiving a monthly distribution, 
receive the same rate of earnings, no matter their plan number. 

There is no longer a vesting schedule earnings. 

All earnings will be tax deferred beginning January 1, 2006. No 
more 1099-Div. 

Our staff is here to serve you and we look forward to helping you 
prepare for your retirement years. Give us a call @ 1-877-767-7738 (toll-free) 
and let us help you develop a plan suited for your needs. 
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Summary of Board Meetings 
April 26-27, 2005 

In attendance: Ron Barber, Jack Ward. Milburn Wilson, Craig Cook, 
Jack Daniel, Bobby Bowers, Jim Lowe, Henry VanKiuyve. and Bill Ferguson. 

The audit, the first quarter 2005 financial report. and the 2006 budget were presented and approved 

Recommendations were made and approved to release the annuity 
poor investments to Manning and Napier for management. Also, a 
recommendation was made and approved to move the funds invested with 
Harris BrctaU to Manning and Napier to create the "Integrated Advisors Portfolio.' ' 

Ray Lewis, Director of the Board of Retirement, effective August I, 
2005, named "priorities for consideration: a planned document, new 
literature/brochures, and to s tart a college outreach.'' 

Henry VanKiuyvc was commended for his many years of loyal and faithful service to the Board. 

December 6, 2005 

In attendance: Jack Daniel, Bobby Bowers, Tim Hall, Milburn 
Wilson, and Jim Lowe. 

The Board reviewed and approved the financial statements for 2005. 
Revised guidelines for participant loans were approved. 

The life insurance carrier was changed from Unum Provident to 
Guardian Insurance Company. 
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SUITE100 

319 PlUS PARI< BlVD 
NASHVIUE. TN 31217 ·10118 

1615) 366-5100 

Independent Au 111 dito ' Report 

The Board of Directors the 

Momben 
MIERICAH INSTITUTE Of 

fED N ~· ~ ACCOUNTAHlS c:;fA:i r~ 

TENNESSEE SOCI£lY Of 
C£RTIF1ED PUOUCACCOUNTAHlS 

Board of Retirement and I nsura~ceBof ..:~ts 
. ti' f Free Will ap....... t 

National As80Cla on o . . f the Board of Retiremen 

an . g statements of financial posttio~"~ as of December 31, 2005 
We have audited ~bnale accoA mp·aJ'c: of Free Will Baptists_(the "Boar ts and cash flows for the years ,__ of the Natio 880Cl . . . d changes m net asse 

0 
and .l.U"uranc; the related statements of actiVIties an 'bility of the Board's manag~ent. ur 
and 2004, an financial statements are the respo~ ts based on our audits. then ended. These inion on these financial statemen 

responsibility is to eXpress an op dards orally accepted in the 

udits in accordance with au g rform the audits to o tain ditin stan geo b . 
We conducted ~ur a standards reqwre that we plan and pe terial miBBtatement. An 

United States of Amenca. Thoseb th the financial statements are free of mtsaand disclosures in the 
reasonable aBBuran . . t basis, evidence suppo . · Cl les used and 81 can ce about w e er rting the amoun 'gnifi t 

audit includes exammmg, on~t teslso includes asseBBing the accountinfing P~l ~tement presentation. We 
financial statements. An au a 11 evaluating the overall ancta s 

b gement as we 88 · · estimates made Y mana 'd ' aaonable basis for our oplDlon. 
dits proVI e a re ects 

believe that our au f . 1y in all matenal reap • 
. . ncial statements referred to above presen!ti~l 'Association of Free Will 

In our oplDlon, the~ f Retirement and Insurance .of theN ts and its cash flows for the 
the financial poaitionboft:: 2005 a:d 2004, and the changes in lallytsnet asseted in the United States of 
Baptists as of De~m er • . with accounting principles gener accep years then ended m conformtty 
America. 

Marcll31, 2006 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statements of Financial Position 
December 31. 2005 and 2004 

ASSETS 

Operating Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Funds invested with the Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Total operating assets 

Retirement Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Investment in marketable securities and instruments, 
at fair market value- Note 3 

Accrued investment income receivable 
Notes receivable, net of allowance for doubtful 
accounts - Note 2 

Total retirement assets 

Office Furniture. Equipment and Automobiles, 
at cost, net of accumulated depreciation- Notes 1 & 1 

Total assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying notes 
to the financial statements. 
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December 31. 
2005 2004 

$ 
72.723 
72,723 

3, 750,512 

27,968.723 

673.788 
32.393.023 

15.636 

$ 11,871 
72.523 
84.39:1, 

1,545,767 

26,884,773 
85,289 

755,810 
29.271.639 

20.702 

$29.376.135 

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS 

Liabilities N te 6 . . . 
Annuities payable-

0 
and other liab1htJes 

ts Payable accrued expenses Accoun . : . 
Totalliabilit1es 

Net Assets 
unrestricted: 

Operations: . 
0 erating funds (deficit) 
D~slgnated for futu:c asset purchases 
Net invested in equipment 

Operating net assets 

Retirement accounts: . . 
Net assets available for partlc~p~n~:) 
Designated as reserve funds ( ef lCld 

· erve un s Designated as annmty res 
Retirement net assets 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 
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December 31. 
2005 2004 

$ 3,375.172 
26,034 

( 

3,401.206 

26.303) 
72,723 
45,636 
92,056 

29,006,417 
11.703 

29.018,120 

29,110,176 

$32.511,382 

$ 3.352,379 
19,805 

3,372,184 

( 3.414) 
72.523 
20,702 
89 811 

26.043,108 
( 145.368) 

17 000 
25,914,740 

26,004,551 

$29,376.735 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 

THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE \VILL BAPTISTS 
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Years Ending December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Suuuort, Revenue and Other Additions 
Contributions from participants 

Investment income: 
Gains of investment portfolio: 

Net realized gains (losses) 
Net unrealized gains (losses) 

Interest and dividends from 
investments (net of investment fees) 

Total investment income 

Income earned from interest bearing notes: 
Interest income 
Gain on sale of property 

Total income earned from interest 
and sale of property 

Forfeitures and late charges 
Gifts 
Reimbursement from Free Will 
Baptist Foundation 

Miscellaneous income 
Total other income 

Total additions 

Allocation for operations 

Net additions after allocation for operations 

See accountants' report and accompanying notes 
to the financial statements. 
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2005 
Retirement 
Accounts O~erations Total 

$2,997,716 $ $2,997,716 

910.510 910,510 
256,365 256,365 

1,166,875 1,166,875 

984,456 984.456 
2,151.331 2.151.331 

56,206 56,206 
1,540 1,540 

56,206 1.510 57 746 

531 531 
72,810 72,810 

170 170 
531 72,980 73.511 

5,205,784 74,520 5,280,304 

329.625) 329.625 

1,876,159 404,115 5,280,304 

2004 

Retirement 
Total O~erations Accounts 

$2,504,756 $ $2.504,756 

292,576 292,576 
2,092,128 2,092,128 

2,384,701 2,384,701 

717,892 717,892 
3.102,596 3.102,596 

60.534 60,534 
24.393 24,393 

84.927 84,927 

512 512 

69,422 69,422 

7,500 7,500 

2 517 2,517 

512 79.439 79.951 

5,692,791 79,439 5,772,230 

( 281.441) 284.444 

5,~Q8,347 363.883 5,772,230 
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I30ARD OF RETIREMENT AN_QJNSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
Statements of ActivitiPs and C'hangt>s in Net Assets (cominued) 

For lhe Years Endmg December 31. 2005 and 2001 

2005 
Rcllr<'mcnt 
AccountL 0Qerations 

Net additions after allocation for operations U.876,159 $ 404,145 

P'~nses and Other Deductions 
Withdrawals by participants l,:H2,580 
Transfers to annuities by participants 239,911 
Insurance deductions from participant's accounts 39,368 
Income allocated to annuitant obligations 180,830 
Salaries 

119.949 Housing 
17.925 Fringe bf'nefits 
68,574 Travel and promotional 
27,074 Office supplies and expense 
65,070 Occupancy 
2-!,875 Board members expense 
13,117 Legal and auditmg 
22,169 DepreciatiOn 
12,110 Miscellaneous 

90 1 037 Total deductions 1,772, 779 101,900 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 3,103,380 2.245 

Total 

$ 5,280,304 

1,312,580 
239,911 
39.368 

180,830 
119,949 
47,925 
68,574 
27,074 
65,070 
24,875 
13,117 
22,169 
12,110 
1 127 

2,174,679 

3,105,625 

Net assets at beginning of year 25,914,740 89,811 26,004,551 

Net assets at end of year 

See accountants' reoort and accompanying notes 
to the financial statements. 
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$29,018,120 $ 92 Qfi6 ~ - .$29,110.176 

2004 

Retirement 
Operations Total Accounts 

~ 5.408.347 $ 363,883 ~ 5,772,230 

1,647,190 1,647,190 
228,257 228,257 

110,001 40.001 
209,963 209.963 

75,010 75,010 
57,569 57,569 

52,529 52,529 

19,513 19.513 

51,124 51.124 

45,287 45.287 
17,939 17.939 
11,173 11,173 

8,556 8.556 

810 1142 1982 
2,466,093 2.126.251 339,842 

3,282,096 24,041 3,306,137 

22,632,644 65 770 22,698,414 

J25,914,7t10 ~ ~811 U§..Q~5l 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statements of C'ash Flows 
For the Years Ending December 31. 2005 and 2001 

Retirement 
Accounts 

Qash flows from operating activities 
C'ash received from: 
Contributions from participants and employers 
Gifts 

$ 2.997,716 

Income earned fTom interest and sale 
of loan property 56,206 

Investment income 1.069.745 
Forfeitures and late charges 531 
Reimbursement from Free Will 
Baptist Foundation 

Miscellaneous income 
Cash paid for: 
Supplies and employees ( 44.247) 
W1thdrawal of funds by participants ( 1,552.491) 
Income allocated to annuitant obligations ( 180$JQ) 

Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 2,316,630 

Ca:2h flow:2 from investing activities 
Purchasf's of office furniture and equipment 
Investments: 

Purchases of investment securities ( 16.523. 784) 
Funds invested with Free Will 
Baptist Foundation 

Proceeds from sale of investment 
securities 

Proceeds from sale of equipment 
Notes receivable: 

New loans made 
Collection of notes receivable 

Net cash provided (used) 
by investing activities 

Sec accountants' report and accompanying notes 
to the financial statements. 

( 
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16,606.709 

250,293) 
aa2.31s 

164,~47 

2005 

Operations 

$ 
72,810 

170 

( 378,772) 

( 305,792) 

( 43,004) 

( 200) 

7,500 

( 35,704) 

Total 

$ 2,997,716 
72,810 

56,206 
1,069,745 

531 

170 

( 423,019) 
( 1,552,491) 
( 180.830) 

2,040,838 

( 43.004) 

( 16,523, 784) 

( 200) 

16,606,709 
7,500 

( 250,293) 
332,315 

129,243 

2004 
Retirement 

Total Accounts Operations 

$ 2,504.756 $ $ 2,504,756 
69,422 69,422 

51,927 51.927 

748,157 748,157 

512 512 

7.500 7,500 
4.967 4,967 

( 41,228) ( 327.333) ( 368.561) 
( 1,875,447) ( 1.875.447) 

L 209.963) ( 209.96:3) 

1.182,011 ( 245.444) 936.570 

( 5,431) ( 5,431) 

( 21,956,834) ( 21,956.834) 

( 21,698) ( 21,698) 

20,348,182 20,348.182 

( 229,761) ( 229.761) 
341,3!21 341,351 

( 1.~~7,062) ( 27,129) ( 1,524, 191) 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2005 and 2001 

Retirement 
Accounts 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Allocation for operations 

($ 329,625) 
Net additions to (withdrawals from) annuities 
payable 

22.793 
Repayment of loan from Foundation 

Net cash provided (used) 
by financing activities ( 306,832) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 
2.201, 715 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
1,545,767 

Cash and cash equivalents of end of year 
$3,750_&12 

Recon~iliatiQn of increa~e (gecrease} in net assets 
to cash flows from operating activities 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 
~ 3, 1oa.~ao 

Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) 
in net assets to net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Allocation for operations 
Collection of bad debts 329,625 ( 

Loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment 
( 

Loss (gains) on investment transactions ( 1,166,875) 
Decrease (increase) in accrued investment 
mcome 

85,289 
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, 

accrued expenses and other ( 1.789) Total adjustments 
( 756, 750) ( 

Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 

$ 2.34£,_63.0 

See accountants' report and accompanying notes 
to the financial statements. 
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2005 

Operations Total 

$ 329.625 $ 

22,793 

329,625 22,793 

( 11.871) 2,192,874 

11.871 1,557,638 

s 3,750,512 

~ 2,245 ~ 3,105,625 

12,110 12,110 
329.625) 

1,540) ( 1,540) 
( 1,166,875) 

85,289 

11.018 6,229 
308.037) ( 1.064.787) 

.aQQ_,_~ L2..fr40.838 

2004 

Retirement 
Operations Total j\ccounts 

($ 284,444) $ 284,444 $ 

444 ,867 144,867 

160.423 284.444 414,867 

( 154,625) 11,871 ( 142,754) 

1.700,392 -0- 1,700,392 

.U.5.45,767 L ll.811 ~7.638 

$3,282.096 $ 24.041 $ 3,306,137 

8,556 8,556 

284,444 ( 284,444) 
( 30,000) ( 30,000) 

( 2,384. 704) ( 2,384, 704) 

30,565 30,565 
2,450 2,450 

( 387) 3,953 3,566 

( 2.100,082) ( 269,485) ( 2.369,567) 

$~.18~014 (L2~k~) $ 936,570 
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Not('- 1 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financ1al Stsltcments 
Dccembl'r 31. 2005 and 200 t 

Summary of Significant accounting pohciC::co 

Organization 

. The ~?ard o~ Retirement and Insurancf' of the National Associl'ltion of Free Will 
llapttsts (~he Board ) 1s operated under tht-> ausp1ces of thf' National Association of Free 
W1llllapt1Sts .. Inc. The purpose of the Board 1s to maintain contributory retirement 
accoun_ts f~r licensed ~r ordained mmisters and lay employees of churches, schools and 
denomma~wn~l age~clCs of the Natwnal Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The 
Board mamtarns th1s retirement pension plan pursuant to ScctJOn 103(b) of the I t a1 
Revenue Code of 1986, which is an ex<.'mpt church plan under the provisions of th: erdn co e. 

Accrual basis and financial statement presentatiOn 

The financial statements of the Board have bt>en prepared on the accrual basis of 
flccountmg. 

The Board classifies its revenue, expensf's. gains. and losses into three classes of 
net assets based on the existence of absence of donor-1mposed restrictions. Net assets of 
th<.' Board and changes therein arc classified as follows: 

U?rest~cted net assets- Net assets that art' not subject to donor-unposed 
st1pulatwns. 

Tempor~rilv restricted net assets Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stlpulattons_ that may or will be met f'ither by acnons of the Board and/or the 
passage of ttme. 

P:rman~ntly restricted ~et ~ssets - Nt-t assets >~ubject to donor-imposed 
stLpulatwns that are mamtamed pt-rmant-ntly by the Board. Generally. the 
donors of these assets permit the Board to usc all or part of the income earned 
on the related investments for general or specific purposes. 

. ~e am~u.nt for each of these classes of net assets is presented in the Statements 
?f Fmanclal Pos1t10n, an? ~~e amount of change in each class of net assets is displayed 
m the St~tements of Acttv1t1es and Changes in Net Assets. The Board had no 
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets at December 31, 2005 and 2004. 

. Further. contributions received are recorded as unrestricted. temporarily 
restricted. or per~~ently restncted support dependmg on the existence and/or nature 
of any donor restrictwns. 

-7-
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Note -1 

I30ARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSUHANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statemen~ 
DecembN 31. 2005 and 200 I 

Summary of significant accounting policies- (continu<'d) 

R<.'tircm<.'nt Pension Plan 

Under the terms of the retrrement pensLOn plan which the Board maintains. 
contributions may be made to the Plan through (•mployer contr1butions. salary reduction 
contributions. voluntary employee contributions and general contributions. The 
participant may elect from two plan typ<>s. Plan l requires e~lPloyer contnbu~ions for 
such employee to be at least 5% of tht> employt>t-'s compensatiOns. Plan 2 requrres t_he 
total of employer contributions. salary reduction and voluntary employee contnbutwns 
to be at least 3% of the employee's compensation. A third plan exists that members may 
enter initially upon employment or when they lose eligibility to panicipate in Plan l or 
2. Minimum con tributions required by this p lan arc $10 per month and can be made by 
any of the plan's contribution means. Total employer contributions and salary rcd~ct_ion 
contributions that may be made for a participant Ill any year shall not exceed the lirmts 
imposed by IRS Code Sect10ns 402(g). 403(b) and 415. 

Each participant's account lS cred1tt>d with contributiOns made by and on behalf 
of the participant. Allocations of Plan earnings Are based on account balances and the 
plan elections made by each part1cipant. m; defined in the Plan. on the last day of each 
adjustment period. The benefit to which a participant is entitled is the benefit that can 
be provided from the participant's account. 

On retirement. death or disability. paructpants receive payments of their 
individual vested account balances based on options and provisions as defmed in the 
Plan. Benefits are recorded when paid. 

Although it has not expressed any intt>nl to do so, the Board has the right under 
the Plan with the approval of the Association. to terminatt> the Plan. In the event of 
Plan termination. participants will become 100°o vested in their accounts. 

The Board contributes to this Plan on behalf of its employees. Contributions for 

2005 amounted to $10,863 ($9.293 for 2004). 

I nvestmcnts 

Investments in marketable secur1ties arc reported at fair value with gains and 
losses included in the Statemenl of Activities and Changes in Net Assets. Investments 
in marketable securities are valued at current quoted or estimated market value. Non­
marketable investments are carried at cost unless a permanent loss of value has 

occurred. 

Office furniture. equipment and automobiles 

Office furniture, equipment and automobiles are recorded at cost. Depreciation 
is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective 
assets, generally 6 years for automobiles and 5- 10 years for furniture and equipment. 

-8-
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Note- 1 

Note - 2 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31. 2005 and 200J 

Summary of significant accounting pol1C1es- (contmued) 

Income taxes 

The Board is exempt from mcome taxes; accordingly, no provision for income 
taxes has been made in the accompanymg financial statements. 

Cash and cash eouivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Board considers all cash on 
hand, deposits in fmancial institutions and highly liquid debt instruments with an 
original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Loan origination fees 

A one-time origination fee for 4~u for each new church loan is charged to 
borrowers to cover service fees throughout the life of the loan. These loan origination 
fees are amortized to revenue over the life of the related loan. 

Uses of estimates in the preparation of financial statements 

Judgment and estimation is exercised by rnanagemem in certain areas of the 
preparation of financial statements. The more s1gruficant areas include the collectibility 
of notes receivable, the determination of fa1r value of investments, and the recovery 
period for office furniture, equipment and automobiles. Management believes that such 
estimates have been based on reasonable assumptions and that each estunates are 
adequate. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Notes receivable 

Following is a s ummary of notes receivable: 

Participant notes (net) secured by retirement 
account balances 

Churches and agency notes secured by related 
real property 

2005 

$ 6,325 

667..163 
$ 623,.188 

2004 

$ 4,267 

751.543 
_$_J5~810 

The notes bear interest at various rates from 3.0% to 11.25% and mature at various 
dates from 2006 through 2012. 
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Note- 3 

AND INSURANCE OF 
BOARD OF RETIREM-::;~1 OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

HE NATIONAL ASSOCIA . 
T Notes to Financ1al Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2001 

t l·n marketable securities and instruments Investmen s 

Investments: 
Mutual funds 
Common stocks 
U.S. Government issues 
Corporate bonds 
Real estate trust 

Total Investments 

2005 
Market 

Value Cost 

$ 4.606,249 
14.307.431 

5,630,612 
2,108,811 
1.015.620 

$ 27,968,723 

$ 4,408.122 
12,705,694 
5,525,292 
2,340,546 
1.000.010 

$25,979 664 

(Depreciation) 
Appreciation 

$ 198.127 
1,601,737 

105,320 
68,265 
15.610 

$ 1 989 059 

. l in to marketable securities and 
For 2005, total investment gam re at g ted of investment gains of $1,166,875 

instruments amou~t.ed ~ $2;:;s!3:5~(~;~~~~~vestment fees of$52,671). Inv:stt~:l:~ 
and interest and diVIden s ~ d f.7 84o- and 8 57o-o based on the average mar e 

t d VIe] S 0 · '0 • income (loss) represen e J ~ 2005 
and average cost of such investments or . 

2004 
(Depreciation) Market 

Cost Appreciation V§.}y~ 

Investments: 
297.987 $ 298,750 ($ 763) 

Certificate of deposit $ 
3,357,726 200,936 3,558.662 

2.303.838 Mutual funds 
13,420.247 11.116.409 Common stocks 

7.556,341 7,516,424 39,917 
U.S. Government issues 

863.979 825,683 38.296 
Corporate bonds 

1,167.227 1,132.536 55,021 
Real estate trust 

Total Investments $ 26,881,773 $24,247,528 $ 2 637,215 

. . to marketable securities and 
For 2004. total investment gam relatl~g of investment gains of $2,384,704 

instruments amounted to $3,102.596 and c~~;li~t~:stment fees of $157.641). Investment 
and interest and dividends ~f $7~;·~i!i~: and 13.28% based on the average market 
income (loss) representte~ ::.~~~nvest~ents for 2004. 
value and average cos o 
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Note- t 

Note 5 

Note - 6 

Note - 7 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND_fNSUHANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION O!:_FREE WILL B.\PTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statement:-; 
December 31. 2005 and 200 I 

Office furniture. equipment and automobiles 

A summary of office furniture. eQUipment and automobiles is as follows: 

_ 2005_ 2004 

Office furniture and fixtures $ 48.531 $ 41,723 Computer equipment 
19.524 24,794 Automobiles 
10.128 54 174 

108.483 120.691 Accumulated depreciation ( 62,§17) ( 99,989) 
$ 'l~.na6 :li 20,ZQ2 

Lease and occupancy expense 

Under the terms of a lease agreement with an affiliate. the Board leases 3,933 
feet of office and storage space for $1.10 ($1.00 m 2004) per square foot per month. In 
addition, the Board pays additional expen:-;es related to their share of operating and 
maintenance costs of the building. The Board shares the office wuh the Free Will 
Baptist Foundation. Beginning in 2005 rhe Foundation began paying one-half of the 
rent. Total lease payments, additional operating, and mamtenance costs related to the 
lease were $21.875 and $45.287 for the years <'nded December 31, 2005 and 2004, 
respectively. 

Annuities Payable 

Upon attaining retiremem age. the retiree has the opt10n, among others. tO 

convert his participant account into an annuity to prov1de retirement benefits over his 
remaining life. The periodic benefit is calculated based on mortality tables considering 
life expectancy. As of December 31. 2005 and 2004, the recorded liability amounted to 
$3,375. l 72 and $3,352,379. The actuary has determined that the reserve account 
exceeded the current periodic benefit at December 31. 2005 by $84,463 (the current 
periodic benefit exceeded the reserve account by $159,521 at December 31, 2004). 
Management has determined that there will be no pension benefit increases for 2005. 

Information regarding fmancial instruments 

The Board has an accounting risk of loss in the areas of cash and cash 
equivalents. investments and notes receivable to the extent cash funds are not insured 
by a governmental agency. or notes receivable and mvPstments are not secured by 
mortgages or guaranteed by the United States Governmenl. 
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Note -7 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL A..SSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31. 2005 and 2001 

Information regarding financial instrumcnts- continued 

The following table summarizes the Board's accounting risk of loss as of 
December 31. 2005 and 2004: 

Notes receivable. net of allowance 
for doubtful collections 

Cash and cash equivalents . 
Funds invested with the Free Wtll 
Baptist Foundation 

Short-term liquid investments 
Corporate bonds 
Mutual funds 
Common stocks 
U.S. Treasury notes and bills 
Real estate investment trust 

Notes receivable, net of allowance 
for doubtful collections 

Cash and cash equivalents . 
Funds invested with the Free Wtll 
Baptist Foundation 

Short-term liquid investments 
Corporate bonds 
Certificates of deposit 
Mutual funds 
Common stocks 
U.S. Treasury notes and bills 
Real estate investment trust 

Account 

-llalance 

$ 673,788 
898,751 

72,723 
2.851.758 
2.408.811 
4.606.249 

14.:~07.431 

5.630.612 
1,015,620 

:sa2. Jg~.zlg 

Account 
nalance 

$ 755.810 
765.314 

72,523 
792,324 
863,979 
297,987 

3.558.662 
13.420.247 

7.556.341 
1,187,557 

$29,270.744 
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2005 
Amount 
fnsured/ 
Secured 

$ 673.788 
100.000 

72,523 
1.761,899 

5.630.612 

$ 8,238,822 

2001 
Amount 
Insured/ 
Secured 

$ 755.810 
765,314 

72,523 

294,921 

7,556,341 

Amount of 
Accounting 
Risk of Loss 

$ 
798.751 

200 
1,089,859 
2,408.811 
4.606,249 

14,307,431 

1,015.620 
$21.226,92<1 

Amount of 
Accounting 
Risk of Loss 

$ 

792,321 
863,979 

3,066 
3,558.662 

13,420,247 

1.187,557 
$19.825.835 



BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE 0 
THE NATIONAL A..SSOC~~\TION OF FREE WILL B~TTSTS Board of Retirement and Insurance 

Notes to hnancial Statements Salary and Benefits Breakdown 
December 31. 2005 and 200t 

2005 2006 2007 

Nott'- B Related party transactions Director: 

. ~e Board provided office space and cer . . . . 
Salary 36,354.76 33,896 00 36,558.96 

Housing/Utilitres 28,672.20 31,200.00 31,200.00 

WJII Baptist Foundation lnc Th fi i . tam adrrumstratJve services to the Fr Social Security/Medicare 11,746.31 11,758.78 12,239.81 
h . · · e ounc at10n re1mb . d h B ee 

l ese servtees during the vear::; ended 0 b 3 urse t e oard $-0- and $7 500 fo Christmas Check 1,476.41 1,477.97 1,538.44 
• · ect>m er • 1. 2005 and 2004 · ' r · respect1vely. Retirement 4,524.00 4,660.18 4.850.82 

~e Board had $72,723 and $7:.! r.: 23 . , . Insurance 6,759.78 6,803.24 6.887.43 

Foundatwn, Inc. at December 31 200" ,o d 2'(;;ested Wll~ the Free Will Baptist 
• 0 an 4. respectively. Life 756.12 829.56 829.56 

Medical 5,176.38 5,585.88 5.585.88 

Disability 341.64 387.80 471.99 

Note: Office Car Furnished 
Total 89,533.46 89,796.17 93,275.46 

Business Manager: 
Salary 45,000.00 46,800.00 40.560.00 

Social Security/Medicare 3,727.67 3,876.77 3,162.51 

Christmas Check 865.38 900.00 780.00 

Retirement 3,210 58 3.339.00 2.893.80 

Insurance 13.664.62 14.676.12 5,958.98 

Life 400.00 400 00 133.80 

Hosprtalization 13,052.22 14,000.00 5,585.88 

Disability 212.40 276.12 239.30 

Note: Office Car Furnished 
Total 66,468.25 69,591.89 53,355.29 

Secretary: 
Salary 18,720.00 28,080.00 28,080.00 

Social Security/Medrcare 1,459.62 2,148.12 2.189.43 

Christmas Check 360.00 540.00 540.00 

Retirement 1,335.60 2,003.40 2,003.40 

Insurance 6,317.70 5,844.76 5,876.63 

Life 133.80 133.80 165.67 

Hospitalization 5,078.04 5,585.88 5,585.88 

Disability 112.57 125.08 125.08 

Total 28,192.92 38,616.28 38,689.46 

Member Services Manager: 
Salary 45,000.00 45,000.00 

Social Security/Medicare 3,727.67 3,727.67 

Christmas Check 865.38 865.38 

Retirement 3,210.58 3,210.58 

Insurance 14,665.50 14,665.50 

Life 400 00 400.00 

-13- Hospitalization 14.000.00 14.000.00 

Drsabihty 265 50 265.50 

Total 67.469.13 67,469 13 

Hospitalization Cap· $10,000 Couple· $14,000 Family 

··oisability Insurance is .059 per $100 
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INCOME 
Servtce Fees 
tnsurance Admtn,slrattve Fees 
The Together Way 
Orher Slate Gtfts 
Rest of lhe Famtfy Offenng 
lnleresl Income 
Mtsccllaneous Income 

TOTAL 

EXPENSES 
Salanes 
Fmployee Beneftls 
Houstng 
Travei/Promollon 
Auto Matnlenance 
rurure Purchases/Auto 

Board of Retirement and Insurance 
Proposed Budget for 2007 

2004 2004 2005 
Budge! Aclual Budge! 

5284,443 72 
1 960 32 

64,603 37 
197 31 

2 660 52 
2,51 6 44 
7,500 02 

2005 
Actual 

$329 624 63 
343.50 

68,546 28 
31832 

3,585.51 
1131.64 
1, 726.53 

$363,881 70 $405,276.41 

$82,949.81 $75,010.01 139,931 119,949 
60,000 52,529 87,134 68,574 
57,569 57,569 79,125 47,925 
22,000 16,271 22,000 17,963 
4,500 3,242 5.500 9,110 

2006 
Budge! 

150,139 
75,668 
31 ,200 
22,000 

5,500 7,200 6,600 
Harclware!Soflware F ulure Purchases 

7,200 7,200 
12,000 11,000 

7,200 
12 000 12,000 12,000 Plan! Fund 50,000 

Olftce Expense 
48,291 30,000 24,875 

28,000 35.035 
50,000 

Equtpmenr 30.000 28,981 
5.000 3,927 

40,000 
Educat10111T ratntng 10.000 16,352 

8,500 6 189 
10.000 

Pubhcattons 10,000 
9,000 9,600 10,000 

Board Expense 
10,000 24.000 23 732 

12 500 17 939 
35,000 

Legat 10,000 
13,500 13,117 18.000 

Audtttng 
4.395 12.000 16,003 

10.500 6.777 
12.000 

Olfstle BaCkup Srorage 
11,000 6,166 9,000 

Webstte Development/Hosling!Matnle 
0 0 0 0 
0 

2.400 
Sotrware Matnlenance 

0 0 
3,000 

0 5,000 
Board Insurance 

0 3,000 1 '155 
12,000 2.000 

Mtscellaneous 
0 0 

2,000 1 142 
0 

2,000 1,037 2,000 
TOTAL 

$397,71 9.16 $355,91634 $497,390.46 $423,739.51 $499,1 07.75 

A- 156 

2007 
Pr<>pc:ISed 

413,463.34 
500.00 

70,00000 
300.00 

3.800.00 
2.500.00 
1,500.00 

$492,063.34 

153,923 
67,667 
31 ,200 
30,000 

7,500 
7,200 

12,000 
40,000 
40,000 
10,000 
10,000 
30,000 
15,000 
17,500 
8 ,000 
2,400 
5 ,000 
2,000 

0 
2,674 

$492,063.34 

FOlilldation 
The journey of a thousand miles begins 'With the fir<;t step. 

Thankfully. not only the firo;t step. but many other' ha\t! .tlready been taken. Looking backward 
over the past 26 years to the action of and re!>ponses to the Foundation. it appears we have come a 
long way. However. when llook forward. there is so much yet to do the pce..t achievement!> seem 

small. 

As a denomination, we face the challenge o f cvangcliLing the world. helping churches and agencies 
to build racilities and program to move into the future . Connecting the generosity of our people 
with these challenges and opportunities i~ a major part o f the foundation· s work. How do we do 

that? 

Late last year. a senior couple invited the Foundation to help them accomplish some of their 
family 's financial goals. The have invested in a number of rental properties. Over the year!>. they 
have been succe~!>ful : but looking ahead, they saw !>orne challenges-- property management 
liquidity. capital gains taxes. and eventually tran..,fcr to their children. They have also been strong 
supporters of our Free Will Baptist ministries and wanted to continue that funding. We were able 
to guide them to a solutio n meeting their desires. 

Another Jay family came to us wanting to create a retirement stream of income from investments in 
the stock market. To achieve that goal on their own would have '>ubjected their assets to capital 
gain taxes thereby reducing their income !>tream. A personally designed plan through the 
Foundation protected them from capital gru ns taxe'>. provided regular monthly income and even 
gave them a significant charitable gift tax deduction. 

Gift plan!> of many types are available to our Free Will Baptist family; however, they are like 
clothes. The store racks may be full and even be sold at a great value; but. we want items that fit 
us. That is the job of the Foundation- tailoring IRS approved plans to fit you and your family's 

needs. 

Overall growth in the Foundation was $5,872.672 during 2005. Thi s was down from 2004; 
however, we did maintain a strong growth pattern in both revocable and permanent type 

arrangements. 

Your election of a totally separate Foundation Board was a very good thing. With two meetings 
under their belts, they each appear to be an out!>tanding choice. ln light of their rapid grasp of the 
concepts of our work. I gave them notice of my retirement effective July 31. 2007. They will 
rece1ve resumes and/or declarations of interest in the position o f Director beginning now and 
continuing through October J 5. 2006. Resumes should be mailed to the Foundation office, clearly 
marked "confidential". 

Please pray for the program. the Board and staff. and the selection process. 
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Synopsis of Free \Viii Baptist Foundation Board Meetings 2005 

The Foundation met for its annual board me . . h 
Insurance on April25 2005 Absent R B etmg Wit the Board of Retirement and 
Larry Powell. Candid,ates f~r the. upc:~~~g Fon darb~r, RBon Hunter, Matt Pinson, and 

oun auon oard were named Th fi 
reports were presented and 2006 budget was adopted. . e manciai 

On December 5 2005 the F d · b board. Board officers ~ere el' c oun atton oard met for the first time as a separate 
Standards of Practice. of the C~~~~~~ed ~~~rate officers were reelected. The Model 
established. AmSouth and Sun Trust B I k anner was adopted. Board committees were 
institulions and a one million dollar.lineaonf s wde~e approved ~s Foundation banking 

ere It was established. 
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The Board of Director& 

WARREN, DENNEY & WALLACE 
camf!ED P\JBUC AOCOUNTAHT'S 

'1M£ VOLUNTEER BlOG. 
SUITE 100 

319 Pl.US PARK BLVO. 
NAS111/1Lll,TN 37:11.7·1098 

(615)36&-5100 

Independent Auditors' &port 

~e Will Baptiet Foundation, Inc. 

Metr'\Mta 
-CAN INStm!TE OF 

C€RTIF1ED PU8UC ACOOUNT~TS 
TEPINESSEE SOCIETY Of 

C€11T!Fl£D P\JBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the aocompanying statement.t of :financial position of the Free Will Baptist 
Foundation, Inc. (the •Foundation") as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related statements of 
activitiea and cash flow• for the yeara then ended. These financial etaumenta are the reeponaibility of 
the Foundation's management. Our responsibility ie to express an opinion on tbeee financial 
Btatement.t based on our audita. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standard• require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reaaonable aeeuranoe about whether the fmancialetatementa are free of material misatatement. AJ'1 
audit includes examining, on a teet baei.a, evidence supporting th1,1 amounts and dieclosuree in the 
tinancialetatemsnt.t. AXJ. audit aleo includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well aa evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that ow- audita provide a reasonable basis Cor our opinion. 

In our opinion., the financial statements referred to above preeent fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Free Will Baptiat Foundation, Inc., at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the 
changes in its net aeeete and ita cash tlowa for the years then ended in conformity with aocounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

March 27, 2006 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC, 
Statements of Financial PositlOn 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 2005 

Accrued earnings receivable $ 1,227,536 

Other accounts receivable 342,836 

Loan origination fees 718 

Odffice e~ui~ment and automobiles, net of accumulated 
4,000 

eprec1at1on - Notes 1 & 9 
31,698 

lnvest~ents, at fair market value- Note 2 
Cert1ficates of deposit 
U.S. Government instruments 1,431,527 

Common Stocks 23,881,857 

Real estate investments 1,854,142 

Mutual funds 2,432,415 

Corporate bonds 1,331,944 

Trusts 292,056 
181,181 

Total investments 
31.405,122 

Notes receivable - Note 3 
30,705 

Total assets 
$33tQ42.615 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Uabilities 
Operating liabilities: 
Accrued expenses 

Liabilities to beneftcial owners: $ 1,598 

Interest ?e~ring revocable and savings trusts- Note 4 24,392,695 
Future gift mterests payable - Note 5 
Funds held in trust - Note 6 

2,177,074 
6,163.080 

Total liabilities 
32,734.447 

NetA8scf.s 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets ;lQ8.1ti8 
308.168 

Total liabilities and net assets 
1aa.a~:iUilli 

See accountants' report and accompa . to h fin . nvmg notea 
~ e anc1al statements. 
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2QQ~ 
$ 453,909 

248,330 
582 

1,878,444 
19,787,167 
1,638,422 
1,799,415 

746,365 
414,726 
45,448 

26.309,987 

156,552 

$27.169.3§0 

$ 2,013 

19,805,476 
1,635,004 
5.439,339 

26,881,831 

287.529 
287,521! 

$2J, 169,36{) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION. INC. 
Statements of Activities 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Revenue and Support 
Investment income: 
Interest and dividends, net of investment fees 
Realized net gains (losses) on sale of investments 
Unrealized net gains (losses) from investments 

Total investment income 

Support through "The Together Way'' 
Plan and other contributions 

Interest income - note receivable 
Endowment income 

Total revenue and support 

Allocations of earnings to revocable trusts, 
savings trust, beneficiaries and annuitants 

Revenue and support after allocations 

Expenses 
Reimbursement to the Board of Retirement of 

National Association of Free Will Baptists 
Salaries and benefits 
Equipment expense 
Travel and promotion 
Board expense 
Office expense 
Rent expense 
Printing and publications 
One magazine 
Training and education 
Legal and auditing 
Depreciation 
Amortization of loan origination fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanying notes 
to the financial statements. 
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$ 1,875,594 
272,794 

( 454,910) 
1,693,478 

31,283 
3,251 

273 
1,728,285 

( 1.:n~.Q!2ID 
349,216 

140,525 
6,343 

53,633 
6,499 

10,303 
26,958 

4,310 
43,560 
23,387 

6,913 
6,374 
1,000 
7~2 

328,577 

20,639 

287,529 

$., 308,168 

2QQ~ 

$ 1,125,267 
228,164 
318.388 

1,671,819 

29,295 
7,384 

260 
1,708,758 

( 1,4ao,497) 
278,2!21 

5,000 
103,961 

13,061 
33,186 

1,407 
8,728 

10,310 

12,944 
7,678 

l~Q 
196,465 

81,796 

205,733 

$ 287 529 



FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION. INC. 
Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Cash flows for operating activities 
Cash received for: 

Contributions 
Interest and dividends 
Other income 

Cash p~id to suppliers and employees 
AllocatiOns of earnings to revocable trusts . ' 

savmgs trusts, beneficiaries and annuitants 
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchases of office equipment and automobiles 
New loans made 
Principal payments received on notes receivable 
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 
Purchases of investment securities 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Pr?Ceeds from additions, net of withdrawals, to future 

g1ft mterest, revocable and savings trusts 
Contributions to funds held in trust 

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Reconciliation of increase in net assets 
to cash flows from operating activities 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Depreciation 
~alized a~d unre~zed (gains) losses on investment transaction 

ecrease (mcrease) m accrued investment income 
Decrease (increase) in loan origination fees 
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statement§. 
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( 

( 

( 
( 

$ 

2005 

31,147 $ 
1,781,088 

3,524 
326,618) ( 

1.;n~.oe~> ( 
110.072 ( 

38,072) 
8,220) ( 

134,067 
4,930,099 

2004 

30,341 
1,066,525 

7,644 
203,499) 

1,43Q.~tm 
529.486) 

( 10,207,350) 

31,754) 
126,910 

6,953,950 
( 14.678.717) 
( 7.629.611) ( 5,189.476) 

( 3,786,288) ( 3,098,649) 
~.63~.319 11,041,§1!7 
5,853,031 7,949,048 

773,627 ( 210,049) 

453.909 663.958 

~ I,22Z.riaa i :1~a.9fr9 

$ 20,639 $ 81,796 
6,374 

182,116 ( 546,552) 
( 94,642) ( 57,696) 
( 4,000) 
( 415) ( 7,034) 

L lUUl:Z2 (~ ri2!;1,486> 

Note 1 · 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC, 
Notes to the Financ1al Statement§ 

December 31. 2QQ5 and 2Q04 

Summary of Significant Accounting Po4cies 

Ft·ee will Baptist Foundatton, Inc. (the Foundation) is operated under the 
auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

Accrual Basis and Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements of the foundation have been prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting. 

The Foundation classifies its revenue, contributions, expenses, gains, and losses 
into three classes of net assets based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed 
restrictions. Net assets of the Foundations and changes therein are classified as follows: 

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations. 

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that may or will be met either by actions of the Foundation and/or 
the passage of time. 

Permanentlv restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that they be mamtained permanently by the Foundation. 
Generally, the donors of these assets perm1t the Foundation to use all or part of 
the income earned on related investments for general or specific purposes. 

The amount for each of these classes of net assets is presented in the statements 
of financial position and the amount of change in each class of net assets is displayed m 
the statements of activities. The foundation had no temporarily restricted net assets at 
December 31, 2005 and 2004. 

Income Taxes 

The Foundation is exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c) (3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptist, Inc. In addition, the foundation has been determined by the Internal Revenue 
Service not to be a "private foundation "within the meaning of 609 (a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 2005 and 2004. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Foundation considers all cash 
on hand, deposits in financial institutions and highly liquid debt instruments with an 
original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Fmane1al Statements 

Judgment and estimation is exerc1sed by management in certain areas of the 
preparation of financial statements. The more significant areas include the coUectibility 
of notes receivable and determination of fair value of investments. Management 
believes that such estimates have been based on reasonable assumptions and that such 
estimates are adequate. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

-5· 
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Note 1-

Note 2-

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNPATION. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Investments 

Investments in marketable securities are reported at fair value with gains and 
losses included in the statements of activities. Investments in marketable securities are 
valued at current quoted or estimated market value. Nonmru·ketable investments are 
carried at coat unless a permanent loss of value has occurred. 

Liabilities to Beneficial Owners 

The Foundation has recorded liabilities for assets they held as trustee, 
mtermediary, custodian or agent for beneficial owners of income or remainder interests. 
Generally, the Foundation's liability is limited to assets held within a specific trustor 
account. 

Office eauipment and automobiles 

Office equipment and automobiles are recorded at coat. Depreciation is provided 
on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, 
generally 3-5 years for automobiles and 5 years for equipment. 

Investments 

A summary of investments at market value and cost is as follows: 

2QQfi 
Market/ 
Stated Appreciation 
Yi!hu: CQa~ ( d!:lJ2r!:lci§tion) 

Investments: 
Marketable Securities: 

Certificate of deposits $ 1,431,527 $ 1,492,704 ($ 61,177) 
U.S. Government instruments 23,881,857 24,528,505 ( 646,648) 
Common stocks 1,854,142 1,582,407 271,736 
Mutual funds 1,331,944 1,249,857 82,087 
Corporate bonds 292,056 325,183 ( 33,127) 
Trusts 181,181 181,181 
Real estate investment trust 1,932,415 1,932,415 
Real estate 2QQ,QQQ 2QQ,QQQ 

Total Investments $3I,~Ii.l22 i;u .:za2.21i2 (i aaz.130) 

-6-
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Note 2-

Note 3-

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC, 
Notes to the Financial Statement§ 

December 31, 2005 and 2004 

Investments (continued) 

Investments: 
Marketable Securities: 
Certificate of deposits 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common stocks 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Trusts 
Real estate investment trust 

Total Investments 

MarketJ 
Stated 
Value 

$ 1,878,444 
19,787,167 
1,638,422 

746,365 
414,726 

45,448 
1.799.415 

$26.309.987 

2004 

Coat 

$ 1,921,074 
20,106,391 

1,365,928 
678.520 
398,670 

45,448 
1,799.415 

$26,314.446 

Appreciation 
(depreciatjonl 

($ 
( 

($ 

42,630) 
318,224) 
272,494 
67,845 
16,056 

4.459) 

. d to $1 693 478 for 2005, consisting of investment 
Total investment mcome am~u~te , • 4 This investment income 

Losses of $18~,116 and ir:,tere~ :~~~1~ads:~d::~~:::e5;::e ·market value and average cost of 
represents yJ.elds of 5.87% an · 
such investments for 2005. 

. . d to $1 671,819 for 2004, consisting of investment 
Total mvestment mcome am~~te , 2 267 This investment income 

game of $54~,552 and in~res~ ~n:2~~::::~:ft:!·!v!~age. market value and aversge cost of 
represents yJ.elds of 2.39" an · 
such investments for 2004. 

Notes Receivable 

Notes receivable consist of obligations from related parties as follows: 

6.5% demand note receivabl~ b~ the Executive 
Office of the National Assoctatwn of Free 
Will Baptists. 

6.5% demand note receivable ?Y the ~a~ional 
Association of Free Will Baptists Buildmg 
Services Fund. 

7 0% demand note receivable by the Executive 
Office of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists. 

6 5% note receivable due in 36 monthly installments 
~f $282 through 2006, relating to the purchase of 
a truck by the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists Building Services Fund. 

-7-
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$ 

2005 2004 

-0- $ 27,892 

-0- 9,895 

-0- 74,182 

2,205 5,583 



r 

Note 3-

Note 4 • 

Note 5-

Note 6 · 

Note 7-

Note 8 · 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Notes Rece1Vable (continued) 

6.963% note receivable due in 180 monthly installments 
of $1,390 through 2019, relating to the purpose of 
providing a building for the Japanese Field Council 
in Hokkaido, Japan. This note is not secured by 
any real estate but is guaranteed by the Board of 
International Missions of the National Association 
of Free Will Baptists. 

Int!:l~flt a~arin& Rel::Qj;.abl~ and Saving Trust§ 

2QQ§ 2QQ4 

28.500 a9.ooo 

$ 30.705 $ _166.552 

The Foundation maintains revocable trusts and savmgs trusts which totaled 
$24,392,696 and $19,805,475 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The trusts pay 
interest to the trust beneficiaries. The rate of interest paid is dependent upon the amount of 
income earned from the related investments. Withdrawal from the accounts, which may 
require a 7-60 day notice, is without penalty, and the trusts are without maturity. 

Future Gift Interest§ Payable 

The foundation maintains charitable trusts amountmg to $1,234,011 and $675,339 
and gift annuities amounting to $943,053 and $959,665 as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, 
respectively. These future gift interests pay interest at spectfied rates ranging from 5.0% to 
10.4%. 

Funds Held in Trust 

The Foundation holds funds in trusts that are subject to restrietlons by the donor 
requiring that the principal, and in certain instances earnings, be invested in perpetuity, 
and only the income be distributed to the beneficiaries of the endowment. The rate of 
interest paid is dependent upon the amount of income earned from the related investments. 
As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the permanently restricted endowment funds totaled 
$6,163,080 and $5,439,339, respectively. 

Relakd Partv TransactiQns 

The Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptiste provided office space and certain administrative services to the Foundation for fees 
of $·0· and $5,000 for 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

Information Regarding Financial Instruments 

The Foundation has an accounting risk ofloss in the areas of cash and cash 
equivalents and investments to the extent they are not insured or guaranteed by a 
governmental agency. The Foundation may also be at nsk of loss with respect to the 
market values of other investments. The following table summarizes the Foundation's 
accounting risk ofloss at December 31, 2005 and 2004: 

-8· 
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Note 8 · 

Note 9-

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

Dece;ber 31. 2005 and 2004 

. Regarding Financial Instruments (continued) 

-
______ _jD~ewc~e~m~b~e~r~3~1~.~2~0~0~5~~~~ 

Amount Amount.of 

Information ~ - -

Cash and cash equivalents 
Short term liquid in~estments 
Certificates of deposlt 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common stock 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Real estate investment 
Trusts 
Receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Short term liquid investments 
Certificates of deposit 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common stock 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Real estate investment 
Trusts 
Receivables 

$ 

Account 
Balance 

776,536 
451,000 

1,431,527 
23,881,857 

1,854,142 
1,331,944 

292,056 
2,432,415 

181.181 
374.259 

~33t0.06.U7. 

Account 
Balance 

$ 306,344 
147,565 

1,878,444 
19,787,167 

1,638,422 
746,365 
414,726 

1,799,415 
45,448 

405.464 
i27.169.36Q 

I nsured/ Accounting 
Secured fusk Qf Loss 

$ 100,000 $ 676,536 
451,000 

1,268,004 
23,881,857 

U6.69P861 

173,523 

1,854,142 
1,331,944 

292,056 
2,432,415 

181,181 
374.259 

i 7 316,056 

Amount Amount _o 
Insured/ Accountmg 
Secured Risk of LoS!! 

$ 100,000 $ 206,344 
147,565 

1,626,065 
19,787,167 

$21.660.7_91 

252,379 

1,638,422 
746,365 
414,726 

1,799,415 
45,448 

405,464 
$ 5,508,663 

Qffice equipment and autom®iles 

. ent and automobiles is as follows: 
A summary of office eqwpm 

Office equipment 
Automobiles 

Accumulated depreciation 

.g. 
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$ 

( 

i 

2005 2004 
11,203 $ -0-
26.869 -O· 
38,072 -0-

6.374) (\.... __ __.-O....,-) 

31,698 §..i----=-·0-· 



Note 10-

Note 11-

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statement§ 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Lease and occupancy expense 

The Foundation shares the office with the Free Will Baptist Board of 
Retirement. Under the terms of a lease agreement with an affiliate, they lease 3,933 
feet of office and storage apace for $1.10 ($1.00 m 2004) per square foot per month. In 
add1tion, they pay additional expenses related to their share of operating and 
maintenance coats of the building. Beginning in 2005 the Foundat ion began paying one­
half of the rent. Total lease payments, additional operating, and maintenance costs 
related to t he lease were $25,958 for the year ended December 31, 2005. 

Commitments 

The Foundation obtained a $1,000,000 line of credit with a local institution 
during the year ended December 31, 2005. Tho line ia unsecured and carries an interest 
rate of 1.5% below the institution's prime rate. This line of credit ia open ended and 
there are no advances payable at December 31, 2005. 

-10-
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2006 

William Evans 

Salary 
Housing/Utilities 
Soc Security I Medicare 

Retirement 
Hospitalization Insurance 

Life Insurance 
Dental Insurance 
Disabilitv Insurance 
•office Car Provided 

David Brown 

Salary 
Soc Secunty I Medicare 
Retirement 
Hospitalization Insurance 
Ufe Insurance 
Dental Insurance 
Disabilit~ Insurance 
·ottice Car Provided 

Dotty Moore 

Salary 
Soc Security I Medicare 
Retirement 
Hospitalization Insurance 
Life Insurance 
Dental Insurance 
Disabilit~ Insurance 

Annual Total 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION 

SALARIES AND BENEFITS 2006 - 2007 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$37,250 
$29,534 
$11.716 

$4,627 
$4,775 

$756 
$303 
$389 

$89,350 

52,530 
4,019 
3,677 

12,739 
198 
750 
313 

74,226 

$26,960 
$2,062 
$1,348 
$4,775 

$134 
$303 
$161 

$35,743 

$199,319 

2007 

William Evans {7 months} 

Salary 
Housmg/Utthttes 
Soc Security I Medicare 

Retirement 
Hospitalization Insurance 
Ufe Insurance 
Dental Insurance 
D1sablht:i Insurance 
•office Car Provided 

David Brown 

Salary 
Soc Security I Medicare 
Retirement 
Hospitalization Insurance 
L1fe Insurance 
Dental Insurance 
Disab1lit~ Insurance 
·Office Car Provtded 

potty Moore 

Salary 
soc Security I Medicare 

Retirement 
Hospitalization Insurance 

Life Insurance 
Dental Insurance 
Disabilit~ Insurance 

New Employee 

Salary 
Soc Security I Medicare 

Retirement 
Hospitalization Insurance 

Ute Insurance 
Dental Insurance 
Disab1litv Insurance 

Annual Total 
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$22,381 
$17,745 

$7,039 
$2,745 
$2,785 

$441 
$177 
$227 

$53,540 

$54,106 
$4,140 
$3,787 

$13,121 
$198 
$750 
$313 

$76,415 

$27,769 
$2,t24 
$1,388 
$4,775 

$134 
$303 
$161 

$36,654 

$36,887 
$2,346 
$1,533 
$3,183 

$89 
$101 
$183 

$44,322 

$210,931 



INCOME 
The Together Way 
Gifts 
Interest Income 
Endowments 
Miscellaneous 
Management Fees 

Total 

EXPENSES 
Salaries 
Salaries Part-Time 
HOUSing 
Employee Benefits 
Auto Depreciation 
Travel 

Magazine Expense 
Board Expense 
Promotion 
Office Expense 
Rent 
Printing 
Publication 
Training & Education 
Auditing 
Legal 
Bank Fees 
Telephone Expense 
Postage 
Equipment 
Miscellaneous 

Total 

• 

FOUNDATION BUDGET 

Ac tual Actual Approved 
2004 2005 

Approved Proposed 2005 2006 2007 
$ 28,377 $ 29,320 $ 29,500 $ $ 919 $ 29,500 $ 29,500 $ 750 $ $ 19 $ 950 $ 1,200 $ 5.000 $ 260 $ 

$ 50 $ 273 $ 250 $ $ 275 $ $ 313 $ 100 $ 275 
$ 242,292 $ $ 319,310 $ 275,000 $ 370,000 

100 
$ 375,000 

$ 271,867 $ 349,216 $ 310,600 $ 40o,ns $ 406,075 

$ 65,992 $ 90,943 $ 92.330 $ 8,759 $ $ 169,274 $ 147,683 
$ $ 5,000 $ $ $ 11 ,947 $ 11,948 $ 29.210 $ $ $ 17,745 
$ 

37,636 $ 39,679 $ 58,947 $ $ 6,374 $ 45,503 
$ 12,216 $ 

9,500 $ 8,090 $ 6,374 24,234 $ 22,000 $ $ 10,310 $ 37,500 $ 35,000 43,550 $ 40,000 $ $ 1,406 $ 55,000 $ 48,000 6,500 $ 12,000 $ $ 20,971 $ 12,000 $ 14,000 29,399 $ 18,000 $ $ 6.471 $ 22,000 $ 30,000 6,689 $ 
$ 5,000 $ 7,000 $ 5,000 $ 25,958 $ 7,000 
$ $ 

25,958 $ 26,424 $ 27,059 3,354 $ 
$ $ 

3,000 $ 3,000 $ 4,500 956 $ 1,000 $ $ 12,944 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 23,683 $ 16,000 $ $ 7.080 $ 38,000 $ 24,000 6,868 $ 8,000 $ $ 598 $ 8,000 $ 8,000 45 $ 50 $ $ 486 $ 1,500 $ 1,000 1,000 $ 100 $ $ 577 $ 100 $ 1,000 2,007 $ $ 1,193 $ 1,311 
$ 600 $ 2,400 $ 2,000 $ $ 13,061 $ 2,000 $ 1,500 5,342 $ $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 190 $ 782 $ 7,500 

2,500 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 
$ 196,464 $ 328,578 $ 319,065 $ 75,403 $ 456,435 $ $ 20,638 $ (8.465) 

430,264 
$ (55,660) $ (24,189) 
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INTRODUCTION 

Randall House Publications 
Sunday School and Church Training Department 

General Dtrector's Report 

One major lesson that my k1ds teach me, is when they come and tell me, "My leg 
hurts." Knowing that God has so wonderfully created bones and muscles that grow w1th 
our bodies, I remind them that th1s IS just growing pa1ns and it will pass. Why should 
we expect anythmg less 1n ministry and busmess? We too, experience growing pams 
and there are times we wish they will go away but w1thout them our structure cannot 
be significantly stretched tnto what God Intends. 

No publisher has undertaken what we have done without significant growtng patns. In 
comparison to other publishers who have rev1sed or launched a new line of curnculum, 
we are tracking extremely well. I have spoken with some of the key leaders of our 
competitors and they are amazed and even a little env1ous at all that we have 
accomplished especially considering we are a denominational publisher. One who I had 
a strategy meeting with about six weeks ago sa1d, "Most denominational publishers 
never get to do real min1stry because of politics and select groups that have scared 
them from doing anything significant for God." They are fam11iar with our denommat1on 
and are amazed at the new curriculum and how it is being accepted so well. 

Most publishers have to invest one to two million dollars per line (age group) when a 
revision or launch is made and many times, 1t IS never truly recovered. We have had to 
invest in this launch, and more than expected. I am encouraged that we have invested 
tn growth rather than exped1tmg a slow decline. I am not aware of any "successful" 
business that does not have to continue to reinvent itself regularly wh1ch means 
growing pains, wise risks, and some failures. Coffee shops bring us new flavors and 
accessories, car companies have new models and revisions to existing models every 
year, pharmaceuticals are always exploring new solutions. In fact, I cannot think of 
anyone who produces the exact same item Without any changes for more than five or 
ten years. 

I can remember looking at our slow but all too rapid decline in literature sales three 
years ago. I knew that we would not have the luxury of waiting two or three years to 
make the changes needed. We would have lost too much revenue, lost too much cash 
needed for the Investment, and lost too much opportun1ty for vis1on casting before our 
denom1 nat1on. 

As a result, the year 2004 was a tough hard press forward into new areas and new 
directions. I have tried to allow 2005 to be a year we settle in before making 
advancements that are more significant. Nehemiah teaches us that you pioneer a 
while and then you manage or settle what you have JUSt stretched to obtain. In the 
military, the terms are advance, occupy, and regroup. We are regrouping and taking 
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care to manage wha~ we have just o~cupied. It is like the slinky dog with a s . 
ody. The head IS the visionary who goes ah d Pnng for a 

•. stretches the body. Then the back h If h ea on the path and 
head Th · a as to catch up with th 

,-4'1i:':::::J!E,_....., · at IS a very true example of what lead h ' e 
stretch the organization and then allow it t te~ 1p does. We 
stretch again. That is the only way you moveof ca c dup a~d then 
strides. orwar IS With such 

The slinky dog has stretched and stretched and we h . . 
catch up ~o we can continue the path of our ·ourne ave been waltmg for thmgs to 
the backside has caught up and you Will fin~ th J· I am happy to report to you that 
taken to make this happen. e ocumentattOn showmg what it has 

The s~mky dog shows that when the back catches 
up ~lth the front, everyone is happier and IS 
certainly less stretched. We are back in the 
black and have been now for three quarters The 
first quarter of this year 2006 is our first .solid 
~uarter and the one I would like to count as the 
first f~r the sake of the profitability plan, which 

-

you Will see later m this report It is ood t . 
making every part of Randall .House gtick . o reall~e that all the work that goes into 
difference. We still have red ink f 20~s ~orkmg and the results are making a 
the results of first quarter. We predi~~d . 5 JUSt as we predicted all year long after 
exactly where we are However afte th JUSt over one hundred thousand and that is 
h · , r e second quarter wh . 

c anges, we have been in the black. en we made more strategic 

r am very pleased and thankful before G d h 
the CLEAR product line. We have turnedo het at o':'r denomi~at~on has welcomed 
and beyond it. I will walk you throu h h ad~ QUICkly both Wlthm our denomination 
pains and the growth. g w at this year has brought us, both growing 

$100,000 
$80,000 
$60,000 
$40,000 
$20,000 

$0 
-$20,000 
-$40,000 
-$60,000 
-$80,000 

-$100,000 

Profit and Loss for s Quarters 

1 st-05 2nd-05 3rd-05 4th-05 1 st-06 

$8 ooo, 

$11 ,509 
-$580 

0 
<f'· -$52,694 

"ii>78,5_07 ___________ ____j 

The time that goes into making all of th· 
rollouts reminds me of a story 1 read f IS wodrk of ~trateg1c changes and new product 

rom my evotlonal several years back. 
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~ In the Far East the people plant a tree called the Chinese bamboo. During the first four 
years they water and fertilize the plant w1th seemingly little or no results. Then the fifth 
year they again apply water and fertilizer - and in f1ve weeks' time the tree grows 
ninety feet in height! The obvious question is: did the Chinese bamboo tree grow nmety 
feet in five weeks, or did it grow ninety feet in five years? The answer is: 1t grew during 
ninety feet in five years. Because if at any time during those five years the people had 
stopped watering and fertilizmg the tree, it would have died. " 1 

Let's recount for a moment the t1me line bringing us to th1s point. I realized early in 
2002 that for twenty plus years, our units and dollars had been dropping and people 
were leaving to find a better product elsewhere. We took the logical and managed risk 
of producing a better product. We realized that this was going to be a major 
undertaking and 1t was so large that we have to credit God w1th having made it 
possible. 

Make no mistake, the investment of labor hours, public relations, marketing and dollars 
has been very high. In fact, the decision had to be made before we entered mto this 
project whether we continue the same path trying to prop up what appears to be a 
losing battle or do we commit our resources to a potentially better product. 

RH P had two Choices 

PROP UP 
OPERA nONS 
FORB YEARS 

- Investing 
in Future 

= Limited Future 
(No Options) 

The previous graph shows the road less traveled by small denominations for fear of 
making the constituents upset for the sake of change. If we did not change, we would 
be looking at cuts for the wrong reasons not the right ones. We have had to invest our 
savings to make this happen. The opposing v1ew would have been to sustain what we 
were doing in order to prolong the inevitable. 

Most of what we are facing is the investment of a new curriculum. When other 
publishers spend millions on a specific line and we can roll out every line brand new for 
only $300,000 then I feel like we have moved a mountain. However, some of the costs 
are art services, writers' fees, and outside printing. 

We could have continued to survive on our cash reserves for several years but we 
would have followed the path that other small denominations have gone. One begins 
laying-off people who are valuable to making your products better until you have no 
means or working capital to make the products better and then you become a reseller 
of others' material. At that point, we would lose our denomination's distinctives, our 
doctrine, and our churches over time would slide from the fabric that has woven them 
into Free Will Baptists. I would challenge all pastors to continue to support Randall 
House Publications because of th1s very item, if you choose to go elsewhere whether by 
choice or to make a statement, one day you may not have anything to come back to. 

1 
Dare to Succeed-A Treasury of Insptratton and Wisdom for Life Career, Honor Books, 1991. 
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I truly believe that what Randall House ha . 
teachrng our doctrrne, and per etuates done wrll pres~rve our publishing, continue 
grandchildren. There are those wh~ do not our t Free Wrll Baptrst legacy for our 
foresrght for saving their krds or grandkids f wan ~~y change, but I feel they have no 
decided t hat w e should be fam ·l· rom a 'e of searchrng for Jesus. We have 

t bl ' h . I les modeled after De t es a IS t heir w ays early. We will not kn . u eronomy 6 and 
who is a CLEAR Child will make a stron ow the effect of thrs but I am sure a child 
college student for our colleges. ger teen, and a CLEAR Teen wrll make a better 

We are doi_n~ this . for those who come after, because 
excellence, rt rs our JOb to defrver it today and tomorrow Free Will Baptists deserve 

4.000.000 
3.600.000 
3,200,000 
2,800 000 
2 400,000 
2.000.000 

Curriculum Sales by 3 Years 

2,894,386 
2,476,035 • .. 

2003 2004 

3,190,177 .. 

2005 

CLEAR rs now ready to reach more churches be 
specraf marketrng campaign for the fate I yond FWB and we are preparing a 
we ever have before We have afs summer early fall to reach more people than 

· o rearranged the dut f 
people (whrch we now refer to as "Ch h . . res o one of our senior safes 
three states of retail and he will ha~~~ M~nrstry Consultants") to free him of his 
accounts would be categorized as non ~ ~ ath IS called special accounts. Special 
denominatrons, and any large group -~h~1 s~f~ as state bookstores, charn stores, 
denominatrons such as ones who have ~eakiS ~; hallow us to focus on some other 

pu rs rng houses or no publishrng houses. 

Our state bookstores should be ecstatrc about 
bottom lines has increased by 35% since 2003CL~AR because our contribution to their 
$468,292 back to our state bookstores in 200J \~ -fast full pre-CLEAR year. We gave 
$630,882. They should be our bi es · . rs past year, 2005, we gave them 
the Sunday School curriculum W~g h t fans as therr sa lanes are greatly dependent on 
and we have some who prom~te th ave some very good representatives among them 
of the doctrine it teaches. We fo~k ~~~~~cfanies e~ually as much as ours regardless 
strongly promote what we are trying to accom t~· contrnurng to_ partner ~ith those who 
of our denomination's pubfr'sh·rng d P rsh and help wrth furtherrng the success 

I 
• . en eavors. The most · . 

re atronshrp rs fairly representing our d . , . Important factor of thrs 
churches. We do have concerns abou~nomrnatron s materrafs to our Free Will Baptist 
contracted bookstores that protect thte representatron of our curriculum by our 
companies to our churches. These boo~st emtory but represent other currrcufum 
unrt sales While our own retail accounts we ~res ads a whole contrnue to have declining 

ave lrect access to be increasing. 

CLEAR is offering a new product, "Teachin . , 
weekly reproducible lesson helps and are b g Essentials, for the adults. These are 
web site. We have had tremendous part· . ~rng . rntroduced as free downloads on our 
thrs product's success. We will transfe ~~~a ~on rn the number of downloads to proJeCt 
this year. r IS 0 a hard copy sellable item in the fall of 
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we also came up with a coding system to assist the teachers on how an item is used. 
This is critrcal 1n the first two quarters that they use 1t. CLEAR products are used. so 
differently from traditional curriculum that some teachers who do not read the rnsrde 
covers where instructions are contained rn the books that they miss the big picture and 
get frustrated. The coding system is very easy. We have desig~e_d _small-circle~ icons, 
one with a house if it is to be used at home, one wrth an apple 1f 1t rs a teachers book, 
one with a pencil if it is a student book, and one with a globe if it is used as an 
outreach product. You will begin to see these appear on the covers of our books in 

future quarters. 

CLEAR sales are tracking well. We are seeing increases rn unrts and dollars now from 
quarter to quarter. As of closing out 1st quarter of 2006, the trend is continuing. 

FINANCIA L STRATEGY 

We had a very bad 2005 first quarter in which we already drscussed back in the April 
Board Meeting. We reported a down quarter in sales, which was the adjustment quarter 
of everyone who tried it for the first time but did not re-order. This resulted in $78,000 
foss from operations (As reported in April) in first quarter alone. Continuing to work to 
make things happen to control costs, such as implementing the Computer To Plate CPT 
System, working on work flow, getting qualified designers to reduce the costs of 
outside art production, seeking two part time editorial assistants to help work flow. We 
have worked to reduce the expenses; however, our expenses are very much 1n line. 
The result is we brought second quarter down to a $52,000 loss, third quarter was 
break even, and fourth we got back in the black w1th almost $12,000 to the good. 
However, the real proof came 1st quarter of 2006 with a profit of $80,000. We want to 
see this continue through the year. This is a pos1tive turn around of $160,000 from 
same time fast year. 

Our auditor recommended that we address inventory. He has continued to request 
significant amounts of inventory be written off based upon appropriate accountrng 
rndustry standards that every auditor answers to and our reports must be rn 
compliance. Ever since we started publishing books many years ago, assets are 
attributed to the balance sheet of the organizatron based on quantity on hand. The 
quantity on hand should reflect a true asset. That means the product should be easily 
transferred into cash if needed. If these items cannot be sold within two years, one 
must write off these items to prevent falsely misstating one's assets. After careful 
review, our Auditor and management feel that our inventory has been misstated and is 
unfairly affecting our balance by implying we have more assets than we do. We are 
providing an allowance for loss of $85,000 of inventory that we feel will not sell or sell 
out of within two years and revising our policy of how inventory assets are maintained 
and reported. Our auditor recommended that the years prior to 2003 be restated and 
the only effect this will have on 2005 or the current year is a reduction in both 
inventory and net worth. 

We have been operating under our profitability plan since last year. Each quarter we 
have reduced outside printing, moved up our ship dates to bookstores, and watched 
expenses in all areas. The results of this profitability plan does just what we wanted, it 
produces profit. You will notice that we began to operate in the black for the third and 
fourth quarters of 2005. The first quarter of 2006 is in the black. I would like to see the 
second quarter of 2006 do the same. At this convention, the board will review the 
financial statements to determine if we can reinstate salary increases. The black 
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numbers should be sufficiently hi h h 
status. I want two strong quarter;in ~n~~;. to grant the raises without effecting profit 

Here is the plan that was approved in the December 2005 board meeting. 

Profitability Plan 
COST Savings 
• Freeze Salaries 
• No cost of living raises or ment raises in January 06 
• Cut planned expenses for the convention 
• Cut portions of the 2006 budget 

o Convention 
o SCM items ~mainly because of no full time position) 
o Non-essential equipment purchases 
0 . Stay down four full time positions 

• Not hire sales manager immediately 
• Reduc~ number of outside print jobs of curriculum 
• Mamtaln more art design in house 
• Hold on releasing certain books for publishmg 

REVENUE Generation 
• Sales people are on commiSSIOn 

o Incentives for new accounts 
0 Bonus for specific products 

• Trent ~roject can produce $100,000 to $1,000,000 
• Targe_tlng key partnerships to distribute products 
• Courtmg other major groups/denominations 
• Hymnal Book Sales will increase 

~hese measures have been followed and I . . 
fmance committee approves sala . WI I continue to be until a review of the 
the same compensation level with~u~e~~~~sf ~~r incredibl_e te~m continues to work at 
year and a half ago. 0 IVIng or ment ra1ses that they achieved a 

As you review the profit and loss state . . 
frugality and conservative measures h~~~t a~d the fmanclal statements, you will see 
Please note one key observat ion that h~ een l~plemented throughout the year. 
estimates of producing CLEAR. This iswi~ II our estimates of revenue ~nd missed our 
budget in April of 2004 before arge part because we submitted the 2005 
underestimated the costs in areas s~~h ever ?~gan produ~tion of CLEAR. We have 
sales having leveled out we have a . as w;ltl~g, art services, and printing. With the 
commg through the fir~t full year ~;lpp o~ ot~ expected revenue and expenses after 
quarters. ro uc IOn where all four quarters are CLEAR 

STUDENT & CHILDREN MINISTRIES 

The use of program coordinators has work d . 
from our churches that we a t . _e well so far In all areas except for fears 
· · re no g1vmg due atte t · 
mtent1onally hurting SCM This is a fa f n IOn or worse that we are 
am very committed to the outh :n r r?m the truth and my heart as the director. I 
produced a curriculum to m~et the ~e~~lldr;n I of our denomination. That is why we 
what we can do for this area. ho s 0 a 1 ages. We must continue to increase 

, wever, more emphasis will be placed on helping 
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leaders of youth and children than trying to add more programs that deal directly with 

the youth. 

National Student and Childrens Worker's Conference will be in the fall as opposed to 
the spring due to the transition and the sale of a key sight, Stonecroft that cancelled all 

the contracts. 

Here are the coordinators of key programs for 2006 NYC programming: 
• NYC Competition Coordinator - Danny Conn - FL 
• NYC Worship Coordinator- Charles Cook - SC 
• Truth and Peace Director- Allen Pointer - AR 
• YET Coordinator - Angie Deel -TN 
• NSCWC Coordinator- Joe Wilson - MO 

We have over the past four years reduced the SCM deficit significantly. 

I look forward to selecting someone who will lead our Student and Children Ministries 
to new heights. This process we are and will follow should begin after the convention 
and we will continue until the right person is found and the redefined duties are 
completed. The process we will follow to hire a new director is as follows: 

Board 's Youth Committee and General Director 
• Accept recommendations 
• Ask for initial round of information 
• Review the submitted information 
• Narrow the would be candidates 
• Ask for a personality assessment 
• Seek interviews with all the final candidates 
• Director will hire candidate for position 

BOOK DIVISION 

Our refocused efforts in this area have proven to be similar to the adolescent years of a 
growing child. Just as we learn more about this world and think we have most of the 
answers, we realize how little we really do know. I have been working closely with 
Thomas Nelson to gain insight into this world. The result of this relationship has opened 
some doors for us that we are still cultivating. It is easy to say that it could catapult our 

book division forward ten to twenty years. 

Emily White, our Book Acquisitions Editor, is doing a tremendous job. She knows how 
to multi-task and pay close attention to details. We have worked hard on a process that 
screens books before they get to the board level and seeks to allow only what we feel 
is sellable to either FWB or large markets to make it through the channels. This has 
proven to be successful in that all three popular market books we produced last year, 
sold out in less than nine months total for ALL three titles. One of these sold out within 
six months. This process has some upfront costs but will prove that the books should 
begin to see larger print runs/more printings more often. This will go a long way to 
reduce the need to write off unsold inventory in the years ahead. 

Our book division has produced some solid products this year. Our featured items are 
The Case of Stuart's Ship by Stan Toler and Debra White Smith, Through the Eyes of 
God by John Marshall, Regaining Balance by Randy Sawyer and The Randall House 
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Bible Commentary- HEBREWS by Stanley Outlaw. We have also released a new cover 
for the Dr. Miley biography. 

Bobby Jackson's 6 Steps was translated into Spanish. We also had given Bible Book 
Store in North Carolina permission to translate and print at no royalty fees the tract 
"God's Simple Plan of Salvation" by Bob Shockey into the Yourba Language in which 
approximately 40 mill1on Africans speak this language. This tract is not being sold but it 
is being given away to people in Nigeria and other places. 

Stuart's Ship was reviewed very favorably in Christian Parentmg Magazine, and 
Asptring Retatl Magazine. Stuart's Ship while a very good book, I am convinced that we 
were allowed to pnnt 1t by God to open two doors that had been previously closed. One 
IS to publish non-Free Will Baptist authors when a topic or title is worthy and will help 
our denomination or our denomination's publish10g house. Second, possibly the most 
vital door is that we were able to get into the biggest distribution network in the 
country Ingram Books. I have been try10g to get us into Ingram for over two years 
without any success. Publishing this author and this book allowed us to get all of our 
other titles into Ingram Books. When we publish a Toler or a Trent, then our theological 
books and other Randall House titles go into the same places that we sell Toler or 
Trent. 

We have been able to establish two major relat1onsh1ps 10 the distribution arena. We 
now have our products in Ingram and Appalachian. Ingram is the country's biggest 
distribution channel that handles Chnstian and Secular titles. Appalachian is the 
country's most recognized and used distribution channel for Christian t1tles and is the 
preferred source for Lifeway. 

We are achieving one of our goals ahead of schedule in this area. We will, for the first 
time in Randall House Publication's history, have our authors represented at the CBA 
Christian Booksellers Association in Denver this year for signings. We will be sending 
Randy Sawyer, Robert J. Morgan, and Debra White Smith/Stan Toler. We will have 
them signing books and giving them to store owners who are part of CBA. 

The Randall House Bible Commentary Hebrews written by Dr. Stanley Outlaw was also 
published this year. We will continue to try to release one commentary per year until 
they are completed. 

The book division has released the Trent project that is entitled, Team Building 
Discovery Kit. This is a $249.99 kit that will help any set of relationships in a church, 
organization, or family become stronger at communicating, problem solving, and 
plannmg. Nelson is partnering with us on some marketing of this project before and 
during CBA. 

BOOKSTORE 

Our bookstore is continuing to provide solid resources to churches in our denomination. 
Our manager, Becky Beverly, is working very hard to watch the sales and profit goals 
of her department. Her numbers are steady and fluctuate only according to two-year 
events where we can be at conferences. 
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have assumed operations of an on 
d IS a new venture for us. we I think this is a win for the college, 

common Groun s offee shop and snack shop. 
us bookstore, c ' . . 

camP d Randall House Publ1cat1ons. 
the students an 

COLLEGE ADVANTAGES therwise be used. This would Include 
College could reclaim space that could ~ of about 15 feet Wide by about 45 

h f mer snack shop are 
two areas, t e or a that IS two small rooms. 
feet long and the bookstore are . h 

t of dead mventory to wnte off eac 
College would not have a Sizable t~~~~~entory a bit better than a part time 

~~~~e~~ :~· h~: ~~~~~p:~;:c~ein this field. 
be responsible 

. t" The college would no longer 
Reduce labor/salary obllga 1 ~n. of these three entitleS. 
for the employees' salanes o any 

. a manager that has over 25 years 
The student manager would ben~~t fr~: serve as an internship that IS as 
of experience to mentor them. IS sibility that is available to studentsd 
close to real world busmess and respon management, product display, an 

ld be mvolved 10 mventory 
They wou 
personnel management. 

RANDALL HOUSE ADVANTAGES h ps of students before they reach 
Randall House could mv~s~ in th~~el~~~~ ~e able to plant in them some 
their profession and ~mlstry. are in school. ThiS IS one of the pnmary 
·dentity awareness while t~ey 
'purposes to partiCipate in thiS venture. . 

d faculty For two agenCieS 
. · · t at10n an · . . · 

Build better relationships With admlmS r m worlds apart. ThiS relattonshlp 
-1 apart we can see d t and better 

that are just 8 ml es . ~ t in leadership of stu en s, 
allows for more Interaction, _mvestm~ 
fellowship among some quality peop . 

f 
. d awareness for services relating to publishing and selhng 

we want to be the top 0 min . t. 
. ur denomlna !on. 

books for anyone 1n ° 
ITEMS/TASKS PROJECTED 

NEW It is time to allow parts of the organiz~tlo~ 
We would like to be tackling. more, how~~~n this IS done, there are a couple of proJect 
to catch up and maintain solid footing. 

we are considering. ke strategic 
. t that we need to ma 

S curriculum - The products have hit t~= ~o~~ding more money to produce the~ 
~cisions on what to offer our peo~le.rWee e~ch :ear on this curriculum. our people a 
than we have in return. Th~ sales ec m 
buying electives for these times. . t' A midweek 

h ve asked for in our denomma ton. I church 

we are looking ~t ~o~e~~~:n~ac~Ymp:tition participation el~e~~ ~~!~e ~~~; term a 
curriculum IS destre o ete at district or state. e 

f they choose not to comp 
even I .d week services. 
curriculum for the ml 
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I am proposing that our name be shortened from "The Sunday School and Church 
Training Board and Randall House Publications of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc." to "Randall House Publications of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc." I have spoken with our denomination's attorney about the legal Process 
of changing our name. We are purposing it for your consideration for this year and for a 
vote in 2007. Randall House Publications has been for over 20 years, the name used for 
us among our Free Will Baptist people. It is what appears on our checks, business 
cards, letterhead, and our building but it is not our legal name and causes confusion 
dunng contractual times among clients and vendors. 

Reasons for shortening the name (o Randall House Publications of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

• Common name already used by our people 

• The name Free Will Baptists are known in the publishing market place 
• CTS is not being used by most of our Free Will Baptist Churches 
• Places an emphasis on a shorter and more simplified name 

• Help our imprint carry our Free Will Baptists to more distribution destinations. 

• Most of all, it helps in vendor/contract relationships 

Thank you for allowing me to serve you, our denomination and most of all our lord in this role. 

Imagining Great Things, 

Ron Hunter, Jr. 
General Director & CEO 
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IR'I[I~ Hill, Harper & Associates 
l~ Certified Pubhc Accountants 

TmyA.Hill 
Emest R. Harper 

Independent Auditors' Report 

The Board of Directors 
Sunday School and C hurch :raining Board 
and Randall House Publicanons 

761 Old H•ckory Boulevard 
Suire 206 
Brentwood, TN 37027 
TEL 615/3n-34~5 
FAX. 615/377-3488 

. . h Sunday School and Church . an . n statements of fmancial posllr?n ?f t e December 31, 2005 and 
W•. h•"< '"'~"' ::;:,:;~'~' gPobli<Otooo• (• ooop'Ofi< '"'"'""'"1 d ':.:~ no~ '" <ho '"" lhoo T20raO~·~;d B~: re~~ed statements of activities and c~ab~lg.rtyes ~~ ~~; ~~:·.sa:anagement. Our responsibllrty 

. . ts are the respons1 1 • 
ended. These financial statemenfi I statements based on our audlls. · ·on on these mancra 
is to express an °P

101 
d · the United 

. . tandards generally accepte m I 
d cted our audits in accordance with audlu~g s d perform the audits to obtain reasonab e ~· ooof ~m.n~. Tho" '"''"" reqoi" '"'' ~ :, M 'r" m•«ri•l m;'"'"~"'· Ao ~,,;, ;"""'" 

.::;::,,';. •boo< wh<lh" <h• fio~;•l '"'"~'"':.,. "':mo;,: Md di•d"""' ;, "'' ""'"'"1 ""'~;"~, . t 1 basis evidence supportmg d d significant esumates rna 
examirung, on a es . the accounting princrples use an . believe that our 
An audit also includes assessm_g II financial statement presentation. We 

ment as well as evaluaung the overa t 

m~';':Oro.;d., """Mblo ,.,;, '"'"' op;o;oo. . lh 

au ent fairly in all matenal respects, e 

In ou~ opini~~· th~!;a;~~~a;~~eh:~~':n:~:~h~~~~~~ ~~:dandand .Rtsa~~l ~~:e :a~b~~a~~~ ~~~ 
financ1al posJtJon ° h · its net assets t • 

be Jl 2005 and 2004, and the c anges m ed . the United States of Amenca !::::in ~onf~rmity with accounting principles generally accept m 

~~~LJ~ 
March 30, 2006 
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SI JNDA \' SCHOOL AND CJJliiH' II TRAINING BOARJ) 
AND RANDALL 110l'SE Pl'BLICATIONS 

Bala nce Shccls 

n et:emher 31. 200.5 and 200-S 

Current ru.~et<,: 

Ct\h ,mtf ~-a~b e<IUJ\alenl~> 
Ca~h and mten·st bearing <.kpo::.lls 
\a!>h mn~~tccl with the f-ree Wt.ll n~pr··t r: ., 

( · " " ·ounuar 1011 
t'fl lilt:all':> 11( tll'PO~>II 

1\t:l·uunts rece•vabi<': 

Tracl~o• ncr of allowance tor doubtful an:ounrs of 
'1>10,000 m 2005 and 2004 

r lllployccs :mel other 

Total receivables 

lnwntc1ry 

Deferred dmr!!cs and prepaid expenses 

Total current Uli!>elo, 

Pr(:~.erty, plant and equipment at cost: 
w nu 
nw ldrng 

Pnntmg ~ervtce cqwpmcnr 

c >ftkt> and <t<Jnunrstr.tll\ <' equipruent 
Autornohlfes and !rucks 

l.l'Ss a~·cumuJated deprec•atiOn and arnortinuon 

S et propert)'. plant and equipment 

Cu rnmt liabiliti~: 
1\l·counts payable 

Cum•nt ponion of long l<'rm debt 
Accrued t!Xpensl's 
Dut> to affiliated org;mi.tar ion 

Total current liabilities 

Long 11!1"111 debt 

Total liabilities 

l in restricted net a'-'>eh 

Commitment!) 

See accompanvino notes to fin 'aJ · . ..., · anCJ s~tements. 
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s 

s 

... 

1005 .2001 

s I 00.053 122,555 
10~.535 276,169 
50.000 50,000 

136,253 100,024 
1,620 1,246 

137,873 I 01,270 

362,12R 306,399 
76.1 I I 43,436 

834,700 899,829 

I l0.3..fl 110,3-f I 
85(>.85(, 850,125 

1.009.963 S.H.631 
11J9.985 184.731 
8 1.9:.?!) 81,928 

2.259.073 2,070.756 
U7 .. P7-+ 1.25-+,o.n 

884,7•)9 816.713 

1.71 '),49') 1,716,s.t2 

.179,062 120.511 
7S,442 51,!!21 
35.785 42, 124 
5.S46 1.068 

299,135 215,524 

330,561 290.941 

629.696 506.465 

1,089.803 1,210,077 

I 7 19.-+99 1,716.542 

SllNDA Y SCHOOL AND ClllJRCII TRAINING ROARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBLIC A TIONS 

Statement~ of Activity a nd Changel> in Net Assets 

For the yearli ended December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Revenue~: 

~et sales: 
Cumculum 
Randa II II ou~l' books 
Merchandase 
Vacauon Bible School 
Bookstore 
Pnnung 
Other sales 

Net sales 
rrcighr and handhng 
Other inl·ome 
Interest income 
Gain on sale of assets 
Conuruss10n income on hymna l sales 

To~l revenues 
Expens~: 

Cost of sale.\: 
Inventory at beginmng of year 
Merchandise purchases 
Depr~tallon 
Ednona1 
Pnnung production 

l .cs~ tn,·entory at end of year 

Total cost of sales 
SeiHng, general and administrathc: 

Adnumstrauve I accounting 
Rookstore 
Sales 
Ruilding 
Marketing 
Shipping 
General 
Oepreciat ion 
Interest expense. mcluding finance charges 

Tota l selfjng, general and administrative expenl>e!> 

Total expenses 
Increase (decrease) in net assets from operation'> 

Other (income) expense: 
Youth department 
Prmting contributed to the denonunalion 
Denowmauona1 ministries 

:-Jet other expenses 
Dec~e in net ~ets 

:-Jet assets. beginning of year ~ restated 
:-let aMcb. end of year 

Sec RlX"ompanying not~ to financial statement~. 
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2005 

s 2.559,295 
15-+,-+()7 
28.~7 1 
15,6()1 

388,096 
205,751 

31.430 

3,383,573 
130,357 
53, 125 

'),9 11 
20,100 
50.121 

3,6-+7.187 

391.399 
'23-+.918 

57.616 
662.312 

1.148,397 

2 -+9-+.652 
3()2, I '28 

2.132,524 

334.727 
172.695 
310,9<.15 
125.9 1-+ 
178,905 
257,403 
140,594 
62.6 15 
22,474 

1,606,322 

3,738,8-46 

t91,659) 

26,6()2 
3,927 

0.974) 

28,6 15 

(120.274) 

1.210,077 
-

s 1.089,~03 

200.$ 

2.~51 ,Oll\ 
II 5,083 
21.251 
17.7-+5 

293.015 
'>7.~5 
5 1.612 

:!,94(),77') 
130,996 
53,166 
19,481 
10,550 
38,73S 

1, 199.7 10 

128..+61 
266,-t.02 
76.541 

511.833 
S33,617 

2,016,85-+ 
1(}1,399 

I ,625.455 

329JHO 
157,361 
~20,250 

152 650 
188.943 
213,924 
103,248 
6 1,980 
18,863 

1,547,029 

3. 172,484 

27,226 

53.940 
11,656 

1.127 

66.723 
(39,497) 

1.2-+9.574 

1,210.077 
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SHNDA y SCHOOl. AND CJHJRCH TRAJNIN(' DO 
AND RANDALl - y A RJ) 

~ HOUSE PUBLICA TJONS 

Statements of Cash f<lows 

For the years ended l>ecember 11 2oo-
- • ;, and 2004 

Cash 1-"1( f twsrom Oper.ujng Acthjtje~ 

Dt-<.:rcase 10 net a~set~ 
A(ljustmrnt~ ro rrconcile dccrc~M 

0, . .._,~ 10 net assets to n ·t -
cpreclatiOil and anwnilat JOn · · c opcratmg actl\'llll'S: 

Clncreill.e) Ut'\:rea.sc in. 
Receivahles 
T nvrntories 

I Deferred charges and prepaid expenses 
ncrease (<kcrease) m: 

Accounts payahk 
Accrued expenses 

Due to attlllated organi7ation 

-~et opcruling a~:tiviti~ 

Pu 
. Cash Flows from lnve~ting Acthitie 

n::hase ot p - !\ 
ropcrty, plant and cquipml'nt 

Net invesling H<.:tivitie.s 

Proceeds lrom long term debt 
Repayments of long term debt 

Ca,b flo" f F' . :» JQmrnanrtng A 1 • · • r 1 )OJ!Je;, 

~et financing acti , i tie., 

Decrca~>e in t-ru.h and ca•b . aJ 
~ cqwv cnts 

Ca::.h at hcginoing of year 

Ca1>th at end of year 

Ca.\h and cash · . 1 eqwva ent\, a~ reported h 
~ash and interest bearing deposrts on t e balance ' heet, a:. follows: 

ash mvested wrth the f-ree Will Baptist f·oundarmn 

Supplemental djsclosures: 
lnterest paid 

Sec accompanying notes to r . 
mancra/ statements. 
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s 

s 

s 

2005 
~ 

s ( 110.274) 
(39.497) 

I :?0.:?31 

(.~6.603) 

(55,729) 

(32.675) 

58,551 
(6,339) 

__ 4.778 

(6!>,060) 

088,317) 

W<IO J7) ----

131,265 
(65,024) 

66.241 

(l 90.136) 

391>.7:?-1 

208,588 

100,053 

138,521 

29,432 
(62.938) 
(30,701) 

29,989 
(5.076) 
(5,315] 

54,415 

(56,402) 

(56,-102) 

(49.266) 

(49,266) 

(51 .253) 

449.977 

398,724 

122,555 
_!_0!>.535 276.169 ---
20!>,5~ 398,724 

22,474 18,863 

SllNDA Y SCHOOL AND CllllRCIJ TRAINING BOARD 

AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBLJCA TIONS 

~otes to "Financial Statement.. 

For the yean ended Decemher 3 1.2005 and 200-t 

The Randall Hous~ op~rat<'~ under th<' auspices of the :-=auooal Assocmtion of rree Will Aapllsts and 1s governed b} " 

Board of Directors 

(l) Swumary oCSignilklUll An·ounling Polidc:> 
nasi<. of PrCM>ntalion 
The fmaochrl s talelllt!n!S have been prepared on Lbe <~ccrual ba~rs of an·ounting. Randall Hou:>e adnpted 
S tatement of Finuocial Standard:. ( S!--1\S) No. 117 "hoancial Statem~nLs of '\ot for-pro fit OrgamLallons". L nder 
srAS No. 117, Ranctall llOlL~C IS requm:d to report intomlalion regarding ils tinancial positjon and actiVIties 
according to three cla:.ses of net asse~: unrc:>stncled net assets: remporanly resu·Jcled net assets: and penuaneolly 
res tric ted oel assetS. if any. In addition. i{undall House is rc.qutred to pre~~DL a statem~ot of ca.:;h fiow.s . 

l nyentorics 
ln\'entones. except for warehoused inventory, are staled ar Lhc lower of coM or marker. wnh cost bt>mg d<'t~muned 
by use of Lhr first-in, first our method. Warehoused inventory 1s valued u~lll!! a ml.'thodology to cll'tenrunc an 
allow.tDCe for loss for slow mo' ing ilt>m~ ba:.t>d on a fomJUla to compute a two ye;u· shdJ hfe valuation. 

Prope rty. Plant and Ecmipment 
Propert)·. plant and t>qurpmt>nt ar<' staled at cost. Lxpeodllurel> for rnainlcnunce and repairs. fl'O~wals. and 
bertt>nuent.s that do not significantly extrnd tht> useful lives of asse~ are expenl>ed as incurred Oeprec1aU1>n ts 
provided using the st raight-linr method. 

lw:ome Taxes 
Randall llou~e is exempt from federal and state mcome taxes. accordrngly. no pro' ismn for income ta~I.'S 1s madr 
in the accounts. 

Cash and C.a,h Equivalents 
l--or purposes of the Matemenl of ~:ash flows. Randall Hou!>e constders all l'ash funds. ca:.h hank ac~:ount.s and htghly 
l1quicl debt in~Ullmcnts purchased with an origmal maturity of threr moolhs or less ro he cash and cash equl\·alcm.c; 

Estimat~ 
The preparatiOn of financial sr.atcmcnls rcttuires management ro ntakc estunates ancl assumptJon~ that affect 
ccrtam reported amounLs and disclosures. Accorclmgly. actual f'l>Sult~ could d1ffer from those l'Stimates 

Changes in orescohaliog 
Certain amounts in the prior period linancJal statements may have Jx--en rec lass1fied to confonn to cun·ent 
presentallon. 

fair Value of Financial Ins truments 
The carrymg value of cash, accounts recervable. inventory. accounrs payable and accrued expenses approximate 
fatr value because of the short maturity of the instruments. The carrying valurs ot liabihues are not matcnally 
different from the estimated fair value of these instruments. 

Compensated Absences 
Employees of the Randall House an:: cotiiled to pa1d vacatjon, sick leave and personal days off. depending on JOh 
classtflcatlon. length of service and other factors . Prov1sivn for accrued \acauons and !>icl. leave pay<~ble are madt' 
in the fmancial statements and an:: included in accrued expen.~es. 

Advc&1i:.ing Costs 
Advc1tising costs arc expensed as mcurrrd and amount to S23.-t75 a.nd $ 16.201 in 2005 and 2004, respectively 

5 
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SlJNDAY SCHOOL ANU CIH IRCJI TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL IIOlJSE PliBLICATIONS 

J\otes to Financial <;;ta tement<;, continued 

1.!1 C'oonmtrat jon ••f< red jt Risk 

R<Uicl.tll I loll'\C L'\ a distributor of Bthlt• ha~' 
dt>n•liiHnallonal pu!>lit<lliono; Rand II cd (\undal ~chnol and C'hurch tramm~ cumculum and 
r re<.' Will Bapll'\1 church<.'s and r:lro,:;~,use t':l;lt'otl'\ credu to cl:. tU:OIOJUt'~ l~hkb t·onsist . . . other 
sui>Jl-..t to mk ot loss "" hooksror'-'' Thl·sc a~·~·oun s ' • . prunanJy of 
\~clh lht' J rt't' \\ill B;~;~~n~:~~:lllhc OUL~ Ianclrng halaoCl' at ;my poc~l ~~rclln~~[ ~::::.;~rah7ed ~nd ate 

loss C'a"h ancl certif-icates ol cit• posit t>~el ~ the lamounr of ~I 0~.535 art' subject to risk r;;;ds mvcsred 
nt $I 00 ooo . • In .J ocal hank art' rrlsw·etl hy tlle ·r f) r (' acco~ting 

· · · · up to a maxonum 

131 ,\g n:cmeot with Atli liated Organizati . . 
Ramlall Huusl' w·trehouse; d d on to J)is trrbute Hymna ls 

(41 

f' lh ' an Js tnbutes The Jir • W' ll ., 
v l' Natw naJ Assocmlion of 1- • w · . . ec I oaptist llynw Book for tb • . 
funds and rt•mir~ $6.32 to the :,:e t'IJJ Bapt is t:., !Jw. Randall llou:.e im·oict's U1"e _E~ecuuve Office 

R I JJ 
ro.,ccu 11·e Oltke , 1. r ' customer collects 

an< a !Joust' wa1. warehousing · ''s 11 )C~:I.'Illht•r -~I. 2005 and · 
\'alut> of ':>~.00() ;m<J ~24.600. ~ approximatt'ly l.<JOU ;md 6,000 hyuwals with an 2004, respectively, esllmatt'd replacement 

Dunng tlw war r.h~ 11 aJ . - · ' ¥mn was reprmt 1 b 
r•J)·allle:. of ~ 1.45 for e~ch b I ec y Randall If oust'. l'nder Llu.~ . 
r
> wma sold to lh<' [: , . . .tgreement, !be Board >aprt~l IrK· I he uwentorv me lu. dec! . • Xt'l: uun• Otlrn· of lhl' :".. I pays , m not[ 4 he low amounts rn '>~5.4 ~5 . auona .1\!isociation of Free Will 

I m enton 

Jm·t•ntones consc<;t of the lollowm· "co !: mponems: 

I mc.hed cumculum 
\Vorl, tn progr.:s'\ 
Book!> 1 ore 

.zoos 2004 

Pnntmg r.11~ ruatenals 
llymnals ( ~ee note 'abo\'e) 

VI· ;u·ehoused olhcr books and merchantiJSt' 
Allowance for loss 

l'il,5(H 

~ ~1.440 

''" 9'(i 
73.305 
3'J • .WM 
15A35 

~5.000 - ~6.564 

Sw norr 11 for r. . ')_ 362.128 

147.045 
85.000 

< rscusswn of change in ace . otmung prim:iple fo1 a llow·t .... 1 . L onv - 1\orm Debt • nn \ '' uatJOn for mventory loss. 

Ranrlall flou~e has a 5.06'%· momh l . IJ 
nwnUlly paymen!l> of 'i 666 . I d. y ms ta mem oblrgafion payable wi th 

• • me u m g w terest and · 1 payment due <.ktobt-r 2010 d~b . . prmcapa. With fma l 
· St'CUI't' Y pnntmg pre~s 

Randall I louse has a 6 .,'i"' LhJ . ·-· '('moo y UJSta!lru bl 
montJJly paylnCnb of., 5'P . · I d. . ent o lgatwn payable with 

-· • ·' me u mo uuerest d · · 
payment clut• \llav .,010 sc cl b "' an prmcapal, with final 

, . cure y computcri7ed plate proce~~or 

fora! long-term debt 

Current portion of 1ong-lt71D debt 

Matuntit'~ ol long-tt'nn deb! is as follows: 

~ 
s 7~.442 

lOftZ 
S2,807 

6 
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39.190 
102.366 
56.901 
45.897 

62,045 

306,399 

Total 
409.003 

(6) 

(II) 

(9) 

SllNDAY SCHOOL AND CIJllRCII1 RAINING HOARD 
AND RANUALL IIOllSE l,l lBLICA TIONS 

:'\ules tn rinancial '-;talt'menl,, t•nnlinu ed 

f ru:.jon 
Randall I louse paniupates an lhc ma\tt'r pcn•>~nn plan nt thl' Bnar.t ''' R.:llrenu.'nt and [n,UI-ancc ot the ""auunal 
J\SSQCiaLLon of l-rt>e \\'all Bapllits. lnl' lbe plan '' t't>ntnhut<•l! and a:. malt'ht•tl up to a maximuru nl Y, ul 
compcn~auon r.mployees wtth L\\'(' yc~ ol s.:TI'K<' 1113) pan•upat<' at annt,·ersary dare nf empl<>)1llenL Pcn-;um 
c:r;pense amounted to $44 . .+55 an 2005 ancl ~tU>2lJ 1n 200.+ I hc pt•n-;u•n plan '" a defrncd contnhuuon plan 
under the plan. an account is ruamtamed for t:<Kb parlltap<ml amlup•IO rt'llrl'Utt'nl !be partinpanl c;m eitht'r ren·i'e 

a lump-sum cl1strahution or purchase one of \CI'Cral type' nl annutl'y (nnrra<.l' 

)'outh Dcpnrlgwnt 
The purpose of the Youth Department ts rn pn•l•tcfc uuni\111<'" ami wr\ice\ to y••ulh ;md ynuth workers t)f the 
National Assodation or 1-tee VI ill Bapusb. inc I he foliO\\ Ill\( a' a waulltal) of lhl' deparW!ent's acll\'ilJCS: 

I -.;pcndirurcs for conferences ancl relate.! 'en·ic<·~ 

Ucner-.tl and adruini'\tr.tli'<' expenst"> 

TotaiL·xpcn.Jature' 

Printing Contributed to the Denomination 
R;tml.Jil Housl' comnbuted pnnung co:.~.:> to !be dL·nollllnall;>n of h•lluws 

Churt·h Director) I Y ..-art>ook 

2005 2004 

'j, 210.034 loiJ.255 
----- -- -

156.524 I 07 993 

80,172 115.20~ 

236.696 .!2~ 195 

$ (26.6621 ___Q_ '.1)40) 

11.6:-6 ---- ----

DenomjnntionaiMinistri e~ 
The purpo~c of denominational mint'tri.:~ i~ to prcll'illc tr.ullllll! ar thl.' local thurch level h'r the ad\'anccment ot 

'lunda} ~chool tt'achers. 'lht' following 1s" ~urumary ol the tll'p;U1mt•nt's aclJVItl<::. 

R~venue from conferences and rclatctl servtn'S 

b;pendilllres for conference~> anti r<' ht!t'tl ~en·1ces 

[xcess of expenses ovcr revenues 

$ 

$ 

2005 

39.032 

37.058 

1,974 

7004 ---
I 5. 7-1!1 

16.lPS 

_ ___i1,127J 

Related Party Transactions 
Free Wjll Uaptb t Bible College 
Durwg tht' year. the operation of 1-ree \\ t1l Bapll'\1 B1hle College'~ hoo~tore. l.-.uupus store and snacksbop were 
assumed h} Randall Ho11se. Revenues from these sail's amounted 1o .;,(>-! 0S2 and resultutg cosb. mcludin~ 
merchandise purchased. salaries and other opcraung l'O~h. amountcd to <.,(i7 .9'1.' lor 2005 

Executiye O ffice of the :\atiooal \ ssociatinn of k rn \\ill Hantist:> 
The dcnominauon began a pubhcaiJon lOne \llagallncl dunng the year rn comh1ne the pub!Jcatjons of ccrtain 

hce \\ t1l BapllSI agencies and organuauons. One ~ lagaane a:. funded b) ,·ontribuuons froru each of !be 
agencu~s and organiZations. The Randall flouse pro\'idecl 540.000 as thctr 'hare of the funclJng requarement 
during 2005. Further. thc Randall llousc pnnt~ and prov1cles mathng services for One \lfagazinc. Included 1n 

fl'Veoues i.s $157 259 for :!005 for these SCTI'ICt'S to C >ne MagaLIDl' 

7 
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Sl iNDA y SCHOOL AND CH VRCJJ TRAINING BO 
AND RANDALL liOtJSE P(JBLICA TlONS ARJ> 

Note.. to Financial Statement<;, continued 

( ' hange in t\pulication of A · 
I @ UDIJOJ: Pri . I 
n order to more fairl s tall.' h • ..:nop e 

ol valu y 1 c trnancla l Statements lbt• R d 
mg \~1tr\·houscd mvcnrory IS ncct•ss· ' an all House has dercnnmt•d rhar a 

Randall Tlousr chaneed it's noJ·. ,. ary. ~ e cont·ur Wllb tJle chanoe m val . . f . change In the methOd 
all . . ' ,. rc y o \'alumg \\'llf''h . c uar.wn o wan.>h d . 

OW,1J~cr lor loss due ro slow movine 'tc h . ~ OU~l'~ IO\'enroly from cost to a mt•tl d I OUSl" mventory. 
basrs ol Lht• method value:. new lllt·rch~ I . ms _a sed on a lomJUJa lo compure a rwo ·ear 10 o o?Y to dctennioe an 
All inwnloly with a lifi• f andlse. e•lbcr purchased or printt'd at f ) _shelf hfe valuation. The 
irrms. lne eftcct of the ~-hoan;:::e.r thl~~ ~-o Y<'ars is valued ba~cd on a. co~~;~ta~~othe ~lrst two years m in \'entory 
for ea<·h of the )l'<trS reported~ rb ·a~~ ~~atl~ll ol accounring principle~ produced an . ~I o . tw~ ye<~rs sales of tb()S(> 

~ e . t'U o lbc changt' tn previously i ssued fin· . ·. Ia owan<:c for loss of $85.000 
.me Ia statements is as folio%: 

-~et Assets: 

A~ pn.•,iou-,1} reported 
Chanoe · · li · 

<-> Ul app cauon of accounrio~ prindple 
h> I'Cl'o rd allowance tor IOVI.'nto - I ry oss 

A~ rc~tul<>d 

Inventory·: 

A:. prcviou:.ly reported 
Chanee in appl 

• ICalron of accountrng principle 
to rt"Cord allow;mce lor ID\'entory loss 

A~ restated 
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.$ 1.295,077 1,334,574 

_ _@,000) - - (85,000l 
s l.:? 10.077 . 1.149.574 -
$ 391,399 NIA 

{85,000) NIA 

$ ~06.199 NIA - -=---== 

REVENUES 

SALES • CURRICULUM 

SALES · RHP 
SALES· MISCELLANEOUS 
300.38 · Printing Sales 
300.40 · Freight and Handling Income 
300.34 · Bookstore 
SALES · FWBBC BOOKSTORE 
300.75 · POS Discounts Given 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENSES 
Costs of Outstde Purchases · RHP 
Costs of Outside Purchases • Bookstore 
Creative Services 
Printing Production 
Depreciation 

TOTAL COST OF SALES 

GENERAL EXPENSES 
Marketing Department 
Bookstore 
Administration 
Sales 
Shipping 
FWBBC Bookstore 
Building 
General 

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ASSETS 

OTHER EXPENSES 
Denominational Ministries 
SCM Department 

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 
INCREASEJ(DECREASE) IN ASSETS 

REVENUES 
SALES- CURRICULUM 
300.02 · Curriculum Sales · SS 
300.04 · Curriculum Sales • Spanish 
300.06 · Curriculum Sales · CTS 
TOTAL CURRICULUM SALES 

SALES- RHP 
300.05 · Merchandise - RHP 
300.08 · Helps & Supplies · SSICTS 
300.1 0 · Helps & Supplies - Spanish 
300.12 · Competitive Activities Sales 
300.14 · Children's Church Sales 
300.16 · Spanish Book Sales 
300.18 · Randall House Book Sales 
300.19 · Randall House Electronic Sales 
300.20 · Rejoice Hymnal Sales 
300.21 ·Rejoice Worship Hymnal Sales 
300.22 · National Sales 
300.28 · Growth Campaigh 
TOTAL SALES- RHP 

2007 
BUDGET 

$3,720,000 
$259,400 
$128.700 
$210.000 
$135,000 
$325,000 
$108,900 

·$680,000 
$4,207,000 

$137,850 
$206,550 
$735,400 

$1.031.600 
$60.000 

$2,171,400 

$239.750 
$151,500 
$365.300 
$305,800 
$293,200 
$107,270 
$151,100 
$203,840 

$1,817,760 
$3,989,160 

$217,840 

·$54.663 
-$63,300 

-$117,963 
$99,877 

$3,720.000 

$3,720,000 

$2,000 
$35,000 

$100 
$20,000 

$500 
$800 

$152,000 

$25.000 

$24,000 
$0 

$259,400 
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2006 
BUDGET 

$3.656.000 
$267,500 
$181.400 
$200,000 
$145,000 
$300,000 

$0 
·$622,000 

$4,127,900 

$224,800 
$172.400 
$594,500 

$1.083,100 
$76,000 

$2,150,800 

$215,000 
$172,300 
$347,500 
$394,300 
$223,400 

$0 
$134,600 
$175,600 

$1 ,662,700 
$3,813,500 

$314,400 

-$75,000 
-$64,050 

-$139,050 
$175,350 

$3.650,000 
$0 

$6,000 
$3,656,000 

$4 ,000 
$50,000 

$500 
$20,000 
$5,000 
$1 ,000 

$155 ,000 
$0 

$3,500 
$500 

$28,000 
$0 

$267,500 

2005 
BUDGET 

$3.167.061 
$245,433 
$106,980 
$150,205 
$120,311 
$326,450 

$0 
·$515,450 

$3,600,990 

$218,005 
$191 ,564 
$534,657 
$623,839 

$76,000 
$1 ,644,065 

$195,224 
$181,195 
$242,399 
$362,997 
$236,165 

$0 
$162,959 
$324,842 

$1 ,705,781 
$3,349,846 

$251,144 

·$74,500 
-$68,958 

-$143,458 
$107,686 

$3,112,061 
$5,000 

$50,000 
$3,1 67,061 

$12,682 
$38,443 

$446 
$16,602 

$7.538 
$1,594 

$150,782 
$0 

$2,404 
$632 

$14,211 
$99 

$245,433 

2005 
ACTUAL 

$3.190,177 
$244,566 
$119,124 
$205.751 
$130.357 
$324,013 

$64,082 
·$630,882 

$3,647,188 

$10.128 
$201,323 
$662,312 

$1 ' 148,397 
$57,616 

$2,079,776 

$178,905 
$157,511 
$334,727 
$310,995 
$257.403 

$67,932 
$125,914 
$225,683 

$1 ,659,069 
$3,738,846 

-$91,657 

-$1,953 
·$26,662 
-$28,616 

-$120,273 

$3.177,105 
$848 

$12,224 
$3,190,177 

$1,968 
$31 ,245 

$184 
$15,570 

$93 
$755 

$151 ,743 

$0 
$15,048 

·$912 
$28,871 

$0 
$244,566 



·---

FWBBC BOOKSTORE SALES 
320 40 FWBBC _Textbooks 
320.42. FWBBC- Snacks SchoolS 
320 44. FWBBC A upp1 es - ppare 
320 46 . FWBBC - AthletiC Apparel 
320.48 . FWBBC- Bibles1Books.Gitts 
320. FWBBC Bookstore Sales- Other 
TOTAL FWBBC BOOKSTORE SALES 

SALES • MISCELLANEOUS 
300.30 · Bullet1n Serv1ce 
300.02 VBS 
300.34 Bookstore 
300.36 ·Video/Audio 
300.42 · Interest Income 
300 46 · Serv1ce Charges 
300.48 . Recreation Fund 
300.49 - Sales - Vrrco Furnrlure 
300.50. MIScellaneous Income 
300.51 Commrssion Income - L TNG 
300.52 CommrssJon Income - Signs 
300.53 . Commrssron Income - JM Stewart 
300.54 . Commission Income FWB H 
300.56 CommJssron Income~ Cathed:a7nal: 
300.58 . Commissron Income - Generic 
300.59 Commission Income - CPN 
300.60 . Drsposal of Assets 
300.76 . SCM Overhead Allocations 
GIFT CERTIFICATES OUTSTANDING 
300 · RHP Sales - Other 
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS SALES 

COST OF OUTSIDE PURCHASES - RHP 
310-02 ·COG - Curriculum 1 ss 
310.04. COG- Curriculum- Spanish 
310.05. COG- RHP Merchandise 
310-06 ·COG- Curriculum CTS 
310.08 COG- SSICTS Helps & Supplies 
310.10. Helps & Supplies I Spanish 
31 0 12 . COG - Competitive Activities 
310·14 ·COG- Children's Church 
310 16 · COG - Spanish Books 
310 18. COG- RHP Books 
310·19 COG RHP Electronic Book 
310.20. COG Rejoice Hymnals 

~~00.221 COG - Rejoice Workshrp Hymnals 
· 2 COG Natrona! Merch 

310.24 ·COG_ ETA 
310.26 ·COG Camp 
310.28 ·COG Campargn 
310.30. COG - Bulletins 
310.32 ·COG VBS 
310·34 ·COG- Bookstore 
310·36. COG- Audio I Video 
310.45 ·COG- Supplies 
310.49. COG- Vireo Furniture 
310.50. COG- Miscellaneous Sales 
310 59 · COG - Change in Inventory 
310.60. COG RHP Change rn Inventory 

2007 
BUDGET 

$90.000 
$12.600 
$1,500 
$1.800 
$3,000 

$0 
$108,900 

$200 
$0 

$800 
$0 

$5,000 
$3,000 

$750 
$0 

$15.000 
$2.000 

$750 
$600 

$38.000 
$32.000 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$30,600 

$128,700 

$16,000 
$0 

$2,000 
$0 

$10,000 
$100 

$6.000 
$500 
$500 

$65.000 
$0 

$10,000 
$250 

$12,000 
so 
$0 
$0 

$100 
$0 

$400 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$10,000 

A- 190 

2006 
BUDGET 

$0 

$200 

$700 

$16,000 
$3.400 
$2,500 

$13,000 
$4,000 
$1 ,000 

$0 
$75 ,000 
$35,000 

$0 
$0 

$30,600 
$0 
$0 

$181,400 

$48,000 

$2,000 
$500 

$10,000 
$0 

$6,000 
$500 
$500 

$35.000 
$0 

$2,000 
$300 

$10,000 

$100,000 

2005 
BUDGET 

$0 

$376 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$15,456 
$3,330 
$2,291 

$0 
$13,123 
$3,276 
$1 ,748 

$36,226 
$31 ,154 

$106,980 

$9,616 
$0 

$17,273 
$11,209 
$10,530 

$860 
$7,712 

$533 
$2,887 

$39,127 
$1,541 

$609 
$0 

$8,377 
$0 

$145 

$93,595 

2005 
ACTUAL 

$53,862 
$6,346 

$835 
$1,536 
$1,503 

$0 
$64,082 

$1 40 
$0 

$721 
$0 

$9,911 
$2,757 

$430 
$0 

$14,694 
$1,561 

$665 
$1,285 

$35,985 
$30 782 

$0 
$275 

$20,100 
$0 

-$182 
$0 

$119,124 

$16,514 
$0 

$1,009 
$133 

$8,728 
$111 

$4,603 
$57 

$285 
$64,023 

$0 
$9,795 

$249 
$11,993 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$84 
$0 

$364 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

·$110,763 

313.00 ·Freight rn RHP 
625 · Coupons Redeemed 
722 · Shrinkage 
310- Cost of Sales- RHP -Other 
TOTAL COST OF OUTSIDE PURCHASES· 

2007 
BUDGET 

$2.000 
$3,000 

$137,850 

COST OF OUTSIDE PURCHASES • BOOKSTORE 
315.05 ·COG- Bibles $18,000 
315.10 ·COG- Books $62.000 
315.15 ·COG Cards $2.000 
315.20 ·COG- Church Supplies $10,000 
315.25 ·COG- Curriculum VBS $33,000 
315.30 ·COG- Curriculum ISS $40.000 
315.35 ·COG Gifts $18,000 
315.40 ·COG- Jewelry $800 
315.45 ·COG- Miscellaneous $8,000 
315.50 ·COG- Music $4,000 
315.53 ·COG- Rejoice Worship Hymn $0 
315.55 ·COG- Robes $0 
315.60 · COG - Video $750 
315.65 ·COG- Video Rental $0 
318.00 · Frerght in Bookstore $10.000 
315 ·Cost of Sales- Bookstore- Other 
TOTAL COST OF OTSIDE PURCHASES· B $206,550 

PRINTING PRODUCTION 
350.02 · PP - Salaries 
350.04 · PP Travel Expense 
350.05 · PP - In House Printing 
350.06 · PP - Supplies 
350.07 · PP - Equipment Maint. 
350.12 · PP - Dues & Subscriptions 
350.16 · PP Entertainment 
350.18 · Outside Printing 
350.19 · Outside Bindery 
350.20 · PP - Postage 
350.23 · PP - Telephone 
350.26 · PP - FICA 
350.29 · PP - Retirement 
350.32 · PP - Insurance 
350.34 · Pressroom Supplies 
350.36 · Pressroom Maintenance 
350.38 · Pressroom Parts 
350.40 · Pressroom Stock 
350.42 · Pressroom Ink 
350.44 · Bindery Supplies 
350.46 · Bindery Maintenanc 
350.48 ·Bindery Parts 
350.50 · CTP Supplies 
350.52 · Camera Film 
350.54 · CTP Marntenance 
350.56 ·Camera Parts 
350.60 · Stripping I Masking Supplies 
350.62 · Stripping Plates 
350.88 · Outside Purchases 
350.90 · PP - Miscellaneous 
350 · Printing Production - Other 
TOTAL PRINTING PRODUCTION 

$230,000 
$1,000 

$0 
$1.000 
$1.000 
$1.000 

$100 
$310.000 

$60,000 
$0 
$0 

$18,000 
$10,000 
$38,000 
$18,000 
$10.000 
$15.000 

$170,000 
$11,000 

$2.500 
$3,000 
$1,000 
$3,000 

$0 
$12,000 

$0 
$500 

$55,000 
$60.000 

$500 

$1,031.600 

2006 
BUDGET 

$10,000 

$224,800 

$14,000 
$50,000 

$2.400 
$12,000 
$29,000 
$32,000 
$10,000 

$1,000 
$3,500 
$6,000 

$0 
$0 

$2,500 
$0 

$10.000 
$0 

$172,400 

$226,000 
$1,000 

$1,000 
$1,000 
$1,000 

$100 
$450,000 

$25,000 
$0 
$0 

$17,500 
$10,000 
$33,000 
$19,000 

$5,000 
$3.000 

$165,000 
$11,000 

$5,000 
$3,500 
$1,500 
$3.000 

$17,000 
$13,000 

$0 
$4,000 

$32,000 
$35,000 

$500 

$1,083,100 
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2005 
BUDGET 

$1 ,523 

$12,468 

$218,005 

$10,901 
$180,663 
$191 ,564 

$169,359 
$1,000 

$0 
$1.000 

$0 
$0 

$100 
$120,000 

$20,000 
$0 
$0 

$12,956 
$5.523 

$26.901 
$18,000 
$10,000 

$5.000 
$160,000 

$14,000 
$6,000 
$2,500 
$2,500 

$0 
$20.000 

$0 
$0 

$500 
$28,000 

$0 
$500 

$623,839 

2005 
ACTUAL 

$1 ,912 
$3 134 

-$2.102 
$0 

$1 0,'1 28 

$17,617 
$60,532 

$1,849 
$10,058 
$32,739 
$39,536 
$16,857 

$731 
$8,026 
$3.642 

$70 
$0 

$624 
$0 

$9,041 
$0 

$201 ,323 

$227,924 
$0 
$0 

$884 
$1,140 
$1,110 

$89 
$498.179 

$54,731 
$4 
$0 

$1 4,856 
$10 124 
$32,816 
$15.268 

$8,301 
$3,850 

$152,468 
$9.871 

$479 
$1,819 

$236 
$4.476 
$6,777 
$3,834 

$0 
$1,399 

$44,562 
$52.620 

$583 
$0 

$1,148.397 



2007 2006 2005 2005 2007 2006 2005 2005 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL 

$500 $500 $1,000 $200 
CREATIVE SERVICES 

410.12. SalestCS- Dues & Subscnptlons 
$5.000 $5.000 $5,000 $1.691 

360.02 · CS - Salaries $350,000 $330,000 $257.623 $330,185 410_2o. Sales.cs- Postage 
$22,000 $21.000 $20,000 $21,739 

360.03 · CS - Housing Allowande $47.000 $45,000 $47,128 $43,125 410_23. Sa1es CS- Telephone 
$14.000 $23,000 $17,364 $14.478 

360.04 · CS- Travel $2,000 $1,000 $5,000 $1,707 410.26. Sa1estCS ·FICA 
$7.000 $7,000 $2,000 $6,640 

360.05 · CS - In House Printing 
$0 $0 410.29. Sales/CS- Retirement 

$30.000 $20,000 $42,855 $19,244 
360.06 · CS - Supplies $4,000 $5,000 $12,000 $4,353 410.32 . Sales/CS - Insurance 

$1,000 $1,000 $15,000 $474 
360.07 · CS - Equipment Maintenance $2,500 $3,000 $4,500 $1,641 410.88. Sales/CS - Entertainment 

$0 $15,000 $0 
360.08 · CS - Equipment Rental $0 $0 $0 41o.89. Sales/CS- Promotions 

$300 $300 $300 $0 
360.09 · Color Separations $0 $0 $0 410.90 ·Sa es/CS Miscellaneous 

$0 
360.10 · CS - Conventions & Seminars $2,000 $2,000 $2,500 $2,434 410 ·Sales-Customer Service Other 

$362,997 $310,995 $305,800 $394,300 
360.11 · Sottware Supply $2,000 $2,500 $2,500 $1,686 TOTAL SALES CUSTOMER SERVICE 360.12 · CS - Dues & Subscriptions $1,500 $300 $300 $1,510 360.14 · Art Serv1ces $110,000 $30,000 $7,500 $103,963 MARKETING 

$75.000 $55,000 $36,571 $59,666 
360.15 · National Expense $0 $2,500 $2,500 $0 420.02 · MKT Salaries 

$16,000 $581 $5,363 $0 
360.16 · CS - Entertainment $200 $500 $1,000 $8 420.03 · MKT - Housmg Allowance 

$5,000 $3,000 $10,000 $2,399 
360.20 · CS - Postage $200 $200 $500 $20 420.04 · MKT - Travel Expense 

$0 $0 $0 $0 
360.23 · CS- Telephone $0 $0 $0 420.05 · MKT - In House Print1ng 

$10,000 $5,000 $8,000 $4.491 
360.26 · CS - FICA $29,000 $18,500 $1 4,374 $21,490 420.06 · MKT - Supplies 

$1,000 $500 $500 $2,416 
360.29 · CS - Retirement $10,000 $10,000 $8,740 $8,808 420.07 · MKT- Equ1pment Ma1ntenance 

$2,000 $2,000 $6,500 $35 
360.32 · CS - Insurance $60,000 $56,000 $41,592 $52,108 420.1 o · MKT - Conventions & Sem1nars 

$750 $2,000 $500 $767 
360.34 · Curriculum Develpmen! $15,000 $25,000 $25,000 $2,900 420.12 · MKT - Dues & Subscriptions 

$25,000 $25,000 $12,000 $22,357 
360.35 · Product Improvement $0 $0 $0 420.15 · National Expense 

$2,000 $1,000 $2,500 $1,216 
360.36 ·Writer's Fees $90,000 $50,000 $100,000 $81,158 420.16 · MKT - Entertamment 

$500 $10,000 $18,000 $199 
360.37 · Register of Copyrights $2,000 $2,500 $1,000 $1,770 420.20 · MKT- Postage 

$2,500 $0 $0 $2,171 
360.88 · Ou1side Editing/Proofing $7,500 $10,000 $3,394 420.23 · MKT Telephone 

$4,500 $3,000 $4,632 $3,884 
360.90 · CS - Miscellaneous $500 $500 $900 $51 420.26 · MKT - FICA 

$1,000 $2,000 $1,789 $330 
TOTAL CREATIVE SERVICES $735,400 $594,500 $534,657 $662,312 420.29 · MKT Retirement 

$20,000 $18,151 $15,261 420.32 · MKT - Insurance $20,000 
$60,000 $23.475 $30,000 $30,000 

ADMINISTRATION/ ACCOUNTING 
420.34 · MKT Advertising 

$34,813 $60,000 $40,000 $15,000 
400.02 · AD/AC - Salaries $220,000 $218,000 $124.480 $21 4,923 420.36 · MKT - Promotion 

$0 $0 $0 
400.03 · AD/AC - Housing Allowance $30,000 $28,500 $30,778 $27,600 420.38 · Printing & Color Separation 

$0 $0 
400.04 · AD/AC- Travel Expense $24.000 $25,000 $25,000 $19,211 420.88 · Extra 17 

$0 $0 
400.05 · ADIAC - In House Printing $0 $0 $0 $0 420.89 · Extra 18 

$500 $500 $500 $61 
400.06 · AD/AC - Supplies $8,000 $5,000 $5,000 $6,498 420.90 · MKT - Miscellaneous 

$0 
400.07 · AD/AC- Equ1pment Maintenance $3,000 $2,000 $2,000 $1,642 420 · Marketing - Other 

$239,750 $215,000 $195,224 $178,905 
400.08 · AD/AC - Equipment Rental $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $0 TOTAL MARKETING 400.10 · AD/AC - Conventions & Seminars $2,000 $2,000 $3,000 $742 400.12 · AD/AC - Dues & Subscriptions $1,000 $500 $500 $510 BOOKSTORE 

$90.000 $110 000 $105,977 $110,001 
400.16 · AD/AC - Entertainment $2,500 $2,500 $3,000 $2,128 425.02 · RB - Salaries 

$4,000 $10,000 $4,439 425.04 · RB- Travel Expense $4.000 
400.20 · AD/AC - Postage $300 $1,000 $3,000 $5 

$0 $0 $0 
400.23 · AD/AC- Telephone $4,000 $3,500 $2,500 $3,749 425.05 · RB - In House Printing 

$2.500 $1,500 $1,000 $2,352 
400.26 · AD/AC - FICA $19,000 $1 4,000 $11,616 $13,991 425.06 · RB - Supplies 

$500 $500 $500 $523 
400.29 · AD/AC - Retirement $10,000 $10,500 $14,404 $9,819 425.07 · RB - Equipment Maintenance 

$1,000 $2,000 $3,000 $858 
400.32 · AD/AC - Insurance $35,000 $29,000 $13,121 $29,841 425.08 · RB - Software Fees and Services 

$1,000 $1,500 $1,500 $728 
400.70 · AD/AC- Automobile Expense $5,000 $4,000 $2,500 $4,070 425.10 · RB Conventions & Seminars 

$500 $500 $645 425.12 · RB - Dues & Subscriptions $500 
400.75 · ADIAC- Automobile Lease $0 $0 $0 

$1,000 $2,500 $5,000 $483 
400.90 · AD/AC - Miscellaneous $500 $1,000 $500 $0 425.16 · RB - Entertainment 

$3,500 $3,500 $817 
400 ·Administrative/Accounting- Other 

$0 425.20 · RB - Postage $2,000 
$0 $0 $0 

TOTAL ADMIN/ACCOUNTING $365,300 $347,500 $242,399 $334,727 425.23 · RB - Telephone 
$7,200 $8,500 $8,107 $6,612 425.26 · RB - FICA 
$3.500 $5,500 $3,587 $4,461 

SALES/CUSTOMER SERVICE 
425.29 · RB - Retirement 

$25,000 $21,000 $22,224 $21,313 
410.02 · Sales/CS - Salaries $200,000 $275,000 $226,978 $222,127 425.32 · RB - Insurance 

$12,000 $10,000 $15,000 $4,279 
410.04 · Sales/CS- Travel Expense $7,500 $5,000 $1 ,000 $9,730 425.34 · RB - Advertising 

$1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $0 
410.05 · Sales/CS - In House Pnnting $0 $0 $0 $0 425.66 · Workshops Expense 

$300 $300 $300 $0 
4 10.06 · Sales/CS - Supplies $6,000 $6,000 $8,000 $5,771 425.90 · RB - Mtscellaneous 

$0 
410.07 · Sales/CS- Equipment Maint. $4,000 $5,000 $10,000 $2,884 425 · Randall House Bookstore - 01her 

$151 ,500 $172,300 $181,195 $157,511 
410.08 · Sales/CS - Equipment Rental $0 $500 $500 $0 TOTAL BOOKSTORE 41 0.1 0 · Royalty Payments $5,000 $8,000 $8,000 $4,907 410.11 · Sales/ - Conventions & Seminars $3,500 $2,000 $5,000 $1 ,1 10 
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SHIPPING 
430.02 ·SA· Salaries 
430.03 · SA · Housing Allowance 
430.04 ·SA· Travel Expense 
430.06 · SA · Supplies 
430.07 · SA · Equipment Maintenance 
430.08 SA • Equipment Rental 
430.12 · SA • Dues & Subscriptions 
430.20 · SA Postage 
430.23 · SA Telephone 
430.26 · SA · FICA 
430.29 · SA Retirement 
430.32 · SA · Insurance 
430.40 ·SA · Freighl Expense 
430.90 · SA · Mrscellaneous 
430 · Shrpping & Aecerving · Other 
TOTAL SHIPPING 

BUILDING 
440.02 · PM · Salanes 
440.03 · PM · Housing Allowance 
440.04 ·PM· Travel Expense 
440.06 · PM · Supplies 
440.07 · PM · Equipment Maintenance 
440.08 · PM - Equipment Rental 
440.20 · PM - Postage 
440.23 ·PM- Telephone 
440.26 · PM - FICA 
440.29 · PM Retirement 
440.32 · PM - Insurance 
440.34 · PM - Building Maintenance 
440.40 · Utrlrlres 
440.45 · Buildrng Insurance 
440.90 · PM Miscellaneous 
440 · Plant Maintenance - Other 
TOTAL BUILDING 

FWBBC BOOKSTORE 
460.02 · FWBBC - Salaries 
460.04 · FWBBC- Travel Expense 
460.05 · FWBBC - Building Rental 
460.06 · FWBBC- Supplies 
460.07 · FWBBC · Equipment Maintenance 
460.08 · FWBBC - Equipment Rental 
460.12 · FWBBC · Dues & Subscriptions 
460.20 · FWBBC · Postage 
460.23 · FWBBC- Telephone 
460.26 · FWBBC - FICA 
460.29 · FWBBC - Retirement 
460.32 · FWBBC · Insurance 
460.40 · FWBBC - Textbooks 
460.42 · FWBBC · Snacks/School Supplies 
460.44 · FWBBC - Apparel 
460.46 · FWBBC- Athletic Apparel 
460.48 · FWBBC - Bibles/Books/Gifts 
460.90 · FWBBC- Miscellaneous 
460 · FWBBC Bookstore- Other 
TOTAL FWBBC BOOKSTORE 

2007 
BUDGET 

$77.000 
$0 
$0 

$18.000 
$1,500 

$15,000 
$0 

$30,000 
$0 

$5,900 
$2,500 

$18,000 
$125,000 

$300 

$293,200 

$20,000 
$0 
$0 

$7.500 
$3.000 
$1,000 

$0 
$0 

$1,300 
$0 
$0 

$30,000 
$55,000 
$33,000 

$300 

$151 ,100 

$18,000 
$900 

$5,000 
$500 
$100 

$70 

$1 '100 

$69,000 
$7,500 
$1,000 
$1,800 
$2,300 

$107,270 
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2006 
BUDGET 

$53.000 

$15,000 
$2,000 

$15,000 
$300 

$6,000 
$0 

$4,100 
$2.700 

$10,000 
$115,000 

$300 

$223,400 

$20,000 

$6,000 
$3,000 
$1,000 

$1,000 
$1,300 

$30,000 
$45,000 
$27,000 

$300 

$134,600 

$0 

2005 
BUDGET 

$50,762 
$0 
$0 

$16,000 
$2,500 

$21,000 
$300 

$10,000 
$0 

$3,883 
$3,051 

$13,369 
$1 15,000 

$300 

$236,165 

$21,745 
$0 
$0 

$8,000 
$5,000 
$1,000 

$0 
$1,500 
$1,664 

$0 
$4,750 

$35,000 
$50,000 
$34,000 

$300 

$162,959 

$0 

2005 
ACTUAL 

$76,862 
$0 

$20 
$13,701 

$972 
$12,868 

$0 
$19,710 

·$35 
$4,845 
$2,501 

$1 3,864 
$11 2,044 

$50 
$0 

$257,403 

$17,205 
$0 
$0 

$7,101 
$3,325 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$1,398 
$0 
$0 

$19,325 
$47,71 2 
$29,848 

$0 
$0 

$125,914 

$9,465 
$564 

$2,500 
$1,690 

$204 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$761 
$0 
$0 

$44,446 
$4,414 
$1,189 
$1,536 
$1,163 

$0 
$0 

$67,932 

GENERAL EXPENSES 

490.05 . GE - In Ho~se Pr n!lng 

490_06 . GE - Supplies 

490.07 . GE _ Equ1pment Ma ntenance 

490.08 . GE . Equipment Rental 

490.10 . GE - Honorarrums 

490.14. Depreciatron 

490.15 . Interest Expense 

490.18 . Bank Service Charges 
490.20 · Insurance 

490.25 . RHP Board Expense 

490.30 . Legal & Audit 

490.35 . GE Automobile Expense 
490.40 · Bad Debts 
490.45 . Recreation Fund Expense 
490.50 · Taxes 
490.55 . Payroll Services 
490_60 . Together way Printing Exp 
490.63 . ONE Magazine 
490.88 . Research and Development 
490.65 . Year Book Printing 
490.90 . GE . Miscellaneous 
490 . General · Other 
TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 

STUDENT AND CHILDREN MINISTRIES 
INCOME 
300.62 · NYC 2005 
300.63 · NYC Fees 2006 
300.64 . Truth & Peace Fees - 2005 
300.65 . Truth & Peace Fees 2006 
300.66 · NYET Fees- 2005 
300.67 · NYET Fees 2006 
300.68 · NSCWC Fees 2005 
300.69 · NSCWC Fees 2006 
300.70 ·Youth Collections 
300.71 · Springboard 2006 
300.72 ·Springboard Fees- 2005 
9100 ·Youth Revenues· Other 

TOTAL SCM INCOME 

2007 
BUDGET 

$0 
$3.000 

$10,000 
$10.000 

$1.000 
$62,000 
$25,000 
$18,000 

$0 
$18,000 
$11,000 

$3,000 
$1,000 
$7,000 

$16,840 
$8,000 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$10.000 

$203,840 

$100,000 

$85,000 

$7,500 

$20,000 

$2,000 

$6,000 

$220,500 

STUDENT/CHILDREN MINISTRIES EXPENSES 
450.02 · YD - Salaries $55.000 

$0 
$3,000 

$0 
$1,000 

$0 
$0 

$1,000 
$500 

450.03 · YO - Housing Allowance 
450.04 ·YD. Travel Expense 
450.05 · YD - In House Printing 
450.06 · YO - Supplies 
450.07 · YO - Equipment Maint. 
450.08 · YO - Fundraising 
450.1 o . YO - Conventions & Seminars 
450.12 · YD - Dues & Subscriptions 
450.16 · YO - Entertainment 
450.20 · YD - Postage 
450.23 ·YO- Telephone 
450.26 · YD - FICA 
450.29 · YD - Retirement 
450.32 · YO - Insurance 
450.34 · NYC Expense 2005 
450.35 ·YO- NYC 2006 

$0 
$2,000 
$2.500 
$4,200 
$3,000 

$14,000 
$65,000 
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2006 
BUDGET 

$3.000 
$5,000 
$5.000 

$500 
$62,000 
$16,000 
$13,100 

$18,000 
$11,000 

$2.500 
$1,000 
$4,000 

$16,500 
$8,000 

$10,000 

$175,600 

$85,000 

$72,000 

$6,000 

$25,000 
$3,000 

$12,000 

$203,000 

$55.000 

$2,500 

$2,000 

$2,500 
$350 
$300 

$2,000 
$2,500 
$4,300 
$1,000 

$1 4,000 

$50,000 

2005 
BUDGET 

$3 000 
$8,000 
$5,000 

$500 
$62,000 
$24,000 
$13,100 

$15,000 
$10,000 

$2,500 
$1,000 
$4,000 

$12,742 
$4,000 

$150.000 

$10,000 

$324,842 

$80,556 

$63,468 

$6,658 

$25,786 

$3,249 

$13,723 

$193,440 

$53,659 
$15,277 

$2,460 
$0 

$2,737 

$154 
$228 
$350 

$82 
$1,977 
$2,259 
$5,274 
$2,878 

$27,1 45 
$41 ,059 

2005 
ACTUAL 

$0 
$2,908 
$8,723 

$10,054 
$0 

$62,615 
$22,474 
$17,968 

$116 
$14,534 
$10,410 

$2,189 
$0 

$6,756 
$16,840 

$7,592 
$0 

$40,000 
$0 
$0 

$2,504 
$0 

$225,683 

$109,902 
$0 

$71,433 
$900 

$5,321 
$0 

$14,709 
$0 

$1.516 
$0 

$6,253 
$0 

$210,034 

$39,063 
$13,300 

$2,691 
$0 

$1,323 
$41 

$0 
$0 

$247 
$47 

$583 
$1,538 
$2,557 
$1,773 

$17,010 
$77,212 

$391 



450.36 · Truth & Peace - 2005 
450.37 YO- Truth & Peace 2006 
450.38 · NYET 2005 Expense 
450.39 · YO - NYET 2006 
450 40 · NSCWC - 2005 
450 41 · NSCWC 2006 
450.42 · YO Springboard 2006 
450.43 · Springbroad - 2005 
450.45 · Convention Salaries 
450.88 · Overhead Allocations 
450.90 · YO Miscellaneous 
450 · Youth Department Expenses - Other 

TOTAL SCM EXPENSES 
SCM INCREASEJ(DECREASE) 

DENOMINATIONAL MINISTRIES 
INCOME 

300.80 · Mid Tenn SS Conference Fees 
300.81 ·Oklahoma Conference Fees 
300.82 · Tn-State Conference Fees 
300.83 · Indiana Conference Fees 
300.84 · WV Conference Fees 
300.85 · N Florida Conference Fees 
300.86 · S Flonda Conference Fees 
300.87 · Illinois Conference Fees 
300.88 · Arkansas Conference Fees 
300.89 · Oh1o Conference Fees 
300.90 ·Canada Conference Fees 
300.91 · Spartanburg, SC Conf Fees 
300.92 · Florence. SC Coni Fees 
300.93 · Tupelo, MS Coni Fees 
9200 · Revenues Denom. Ministries - Other 

TOTAL DEN MINISTRIES INCOME 

EXPENSES 
445.02 · C E Team Leader Salary 
445.04 · C E Team Leader Travel 
445.06 · C E Team Supplies 
445.26 · TEAM CH - FICA 
445.32 · C E Team Leader Insurance 
445.40 · C E Team Leader Promotion 
445.45 · Team Church Travel 
445.50 ·Mid Tenn SS Conference 
445.5 t · Tri-State SS Conference 
445.52 · Indiana Conference 
445.53 · WV SS Conference 
445.54 · North Florida Conference 
445.55 · South Florida Conference 
445.56 · llhn01s Conference 
445.57 ·Arkansas Conference 
445.58 · Oh1o Conference 
445.59 · Canada Conference 
445.60 · Spartanburg, SC Conference 
445.61 · Florence, SC Conference 
445.63 ·ONE Magazine 
445.65 · Yearbook Printing 
445.87 · Oklahoma Conference 
445.88 · Tupelo, MS Conference 
445.89 ·Stewardship/Together Way Printing 

2007 
BUDGET 

$60,000 

$7.500 

$20.000 

$6,000 
$7,500 

$30,600 
$1,000 

$283,800 
-$63,300 

$50,000 
$50,000 

$10,000 
$500 

$2,000 
$1.000 

$0 
$1,000 

$500 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$44,163 
$12,000 

$0 
$0 

$2,700 
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2006 
BUDGET 

$50 000 

$4,500 

$23,000 
$16,000 

$6,000 
$30,600 

$500 

$267,050 
-$64,050 

$24,500 
$24,500 

$15,000 

$2,000 

$2.500 
$500 

$5.000 
$700 

$1,200 
$2,200 
$1,500 
$ 1,600 
$2,600 
$2,500 
$2,500 
$2,000 

$40,000 
$12,000 

$2,700 

2005 
BUDGET 

$54,805 

$3.789 

$22,490 

$19,076 
$6,405 

$294 

$262,398 
-$68,958 

$0 

$0 
$3,000 
$1,000 

$0 
$2,000 
$1 ,000 
$6,000 
$1,500 
$1 ,500 
$1,500 
$1 ,500 
$1,500 
$1,500 
$1,500 
$1,500 

$2,500 
$2,000 

$40,000 
$5,000 

2005 
ACTUAL 

$48,657 
$1,446 
$6,664 

$0 
$16,150 

$0 
$0 

$6,003 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$236,697 
-$26,662 

$6,884 
$11 ,407 

$608 
$0 

$2,790 
$1,930 
$1 ,930 
-$270 

$2,847 
$6,786 

$0 
$841 

$2,736 
$544 

$0 
$39,032 

$4,100 
$1,185 
$2,730 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$400 
$2,820 
$1,077 

$0 
$2,748 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$3,242 
$3,529 

$0 
$1,126 

$5,068 
$0 

$3,927 
$7,599 
$1 ,432 

$0 

5
_90 . Spanish Literature Gilts 

~5_91 . Korean Printing 

445_92 . Russ1an Printing 

445_93 . Scholarships 

445_94 . RHP M1mster's ~u~d 

445_95 . lntergrity Comn:1~S1~n 
445 . Denominational Mlmstnes - Other 

TOTAL OEM MINISTRIES EXPENSES 
OEM MINISTRIES INCREASEJ(DECREASE) 

GENERAL DIRECTOR 
RONALD HUNTER, JR 

SALARY ... 
HOUSING ALLOWANCE 
CHRISTMAS BONUS 

COMPENSATION TOTAL 
INSURANCE 

2007 
BUDGET 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$3.000 
$0 
$0 

$27.800 
$104,663 
-$54,663 

2006 
BUDGET 

$3.000 

$99,500 
-$75,000 

2006 

PACKAGE 

$40,798 
$28,190 

$1.331 

$14,400 

$70,319 

SOCIAL SECURITY $
3

.462 
RETIREMENT $17,862 

2005 
BUDGET 

2005 
ACTUAL 

$74,500 
-$74,500 

2007 
PROJECTED 

PACKAGE 

$42.022 
$29,036 

$1 371 

$14,400 

$3,566 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$40,985 
-$1,953 

$72,429 

BENEFITS TOTAL $88 181 

TOTAL PAY PACKAGE th Q4 rtormance of th~ company for the year. 
••• Salary subject to change dependent on 9 9 

$17,966 
$90,395 

ASSIST ANT DIRECTOR 
CLARENCE LEWIS 

SALARY 
HOUSING ALLOWANCE 
CHRISTMAS BONUS 

COMPENSATION TOTAL 
INSURANCE 
SOCIAL SECURITY 
RETIREMENT 

BENEFITS TOTAL 
TOTAL PAY PACKAGE 

2006 

PACKAGE 

$61,058 
$0 

$916 

$5,400 
$4,741 
$3.053 
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$61 ,974 

$13.194 
$75,168 

2007 
PROJECTED 

PACKAGE 

$62,890 
$0 

$943 

$5,400 
$4,883 
$3.145 

$63,833 

$13.428 
sn,261 



Summary of the Minutes 
for the Sunday School and Church Training Board 

2005-2006 

The Board had three meeting<; in the pa~t year. The fiN mccung '-"<1\ held at the \iational Association in 
Lou''' lllc. K) . \.\ e elected officers and determined commlltcc' 

The econd meeung was held at Randall House in Decemher after the Leader~hip Conference. At that 
meetmg. we approved the SCM Director Initial Que.'>Lionna1re. approved the changing of the discoum terrm 
for hooJ...,tore' \.\hOuse credit cards for payment'>. rccornmentled the printing of the books, Simple by Rob 
Morgan and !he Washing of the Saints· Feet by Matthew Pm,on We accepted the profitability plan proposed 
by the General Director. We approved the speaker~ for the Youth Wor'ihip Sen ice' for NYC 2006. We 
•nstJtuted a policy that would not allow RHP Board Member., to he contracted. employed to write or be 
published hy RIIP. 

We had three conference call meetings where we discussed and approvctl a new NYC Mi<>sions Offering. 

The third meeting was held April 24-25 2006 at Randall I louse. At that meeting. we reviewed the 2005 audit 
anti approved the 2007 budget. We approved a new expanded hook approval process. We authorized the 
publt:-.hing of The Writings of James Arm.iniu~. We approved a wnter. We approved the 2007 NYC Theme, 
"FiN Things First" and changed the name of Truth and Peace to "Student Leader!> hip Conference:· We voted 
to propo~e amending the name of the .. Sunday School and Church Tnumng Board and Randall House 
Puhlicauon!\ of the National Association of Free Will Bapri~r~. Inc·· to .. Rantlall llou~e Publications of the 
Nauonal A'>~ociation of Free Will Baptists. Inc ... 
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INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS 

A Summary of the Acti\.ities on our Ficlds-2005 

. . . . d . h f t e of Christ's church throughout 
Free Will Baptists fat~h~ully ·~_ve~~e •l~ i: ~o~p:lrto the ends of the earth. and \H! 

2005' God has blessed our mtmstry o ta mg . fi ?QQ5· 
. . . Its Field reports give the followrng totals or- . to see mcreasmg resu · 

<J) _ 775 churches and mission works 
(!) - 29,268 total average church attendance 
(!) _ 514 pastors and lay preachers 
<J) _ 255 Bible institute students 
<J) _ t ,441 conversions 

Not only were new annual milestones r~ached in 20?5, but t~e growth rate of the 
past I 0 years continues to improve as detailed m the followmg chart. 

1,600 

1,400 

1,200 

1,000 

800 

600 

200 

Key Activities: 10-Year Rates of Growth 
(1996-2004) 

70% 
Growth 

75% 
Growth 

.2005 

223% 
Growth 

39% 
Growth 

. has used Free W iII Baptists over the past l 0 years to 

H'!'ek.pradtsoemouMr Loro:~~:~ill Baptist international churches met around the world grow IS mg . 
today than ever before. 

A- 199 



p 

These ne"' churches need national leadership. We rejo ice that in 2005 a total of 
514 pastors and lay preachers helped pro\ ide thi s leadership, an incrcasc of 16% from the 
2004 total. 

30,000 

25,000 

20,000 

15,000 

10,000 

5,000 

Overseas Attendance Growth 
(Last 10 Years) 

As seen above, the total overseas attendance continues to steadily rise. The new 
high of 29,268 is a strong 194% increase from 1996. 

In 2005, seven new missionaries began their ministries on an international field. 
They include: Mitchell and Rachel Donahue (Spain); Kyle and Beth Howell (Uruguay); 
Hollie l lubbard (Japan); and Steve and Lori Torrison (Panama). 

In addition to these, Chuck Stewart (Spain) and Tim and Katrina Crowson (Japan) 
were approved for short-term ministries and Matthew and Brooke Turnbough (Spain) 
were granted final approval for career status. 

We are seeing substantial growth in the involvement of Free Will Baptist youth 
and college students. In 2005, 76 students participated in summer E-TEAMs, traveling to 
Chicago, Cuba, BraLil, Japan, Panama, France, Uruguay, and Russia; and 14 college 
students participated in extended overseas mission trips. 

2005- Fina ncial Summa ry 

Financial support for International Missions remains strong. During 2003 and 
2004, the audited combined increase in total net assets equaled $861 ,821. Many of our 
missionaries have raised much financial support during these years. However, these funds 
are not used until the missionary is on the field, possibly more than a year later. Due to 
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, t , thers v. iII show net a. or i ncreascs m net asse s. o 
this factor. -.vhile some yedars show. nmt~tal net a<>~cts of $3 13.617 i<> reported. 

S In '>005. a net ecrease 1 decrease · -

2005 Sources of lnco~e 
(Includes Funds Designated for Creattve 

Other Groups & 
Individuals 

$1 ,421 ,621.22 
21% 

Interest, Gains, 
Misc. 

$128,862.08 
2% 

Total Income for~ was $6.639 910 91 
(Unaudoted CaSh BaSIS) 

We are thankful for the 90 churches that gave overS I 0,000. 

Nashville Donelson FWB Church 1 
Greenville 2 Unity FWB Church 
Limestone 3 Limestone FWB Church 
Purdy 4 Macedonia FWB Church 
Russellville 

5 First FWB Church 
Turbeville Horse Branch FWB Church 6 
Broken Arrow 

7 Bethany FWB Church 
washington 8 First FWB Church 
Ina 9 Ina FWB Church 
Nashville Cross Timbers FWB Church 10 

First FWB Church Albany 11 
Johnsonville 

12 Westside FWB Church 
Goldsboro 13 Faith FWB Church 
Nashville Cofer's Chapel FWB Church 14 
Johnsonville 15 Little Bethel FWB Church 
Liberal 16 Verdella FWB Church 
Liberal 17 Hannon FWB Church 
Royal Oak 18 Central FWB Church 
Lake City 19 Grace FWB Church 
New Bern 20 Pleasant Acres FWB Church 
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Church 
Giving 

$5,089,427 .61 

TN $167.751 23 

NC $67,906.54 

TN $61 ,141 .00 

MO $60,028.06 

AR $56,907.21 

sc $47,953.55 

OK $44,247.95 

NC $37,697.94 

IL $36,224.00 

TN $34,68328 

GA $33.078 48 

sc $32,805 58 

NC $32,260.00 

TN $31 ,609.58 

sc $31 '100.00 

MO $30,252.49 

MO $29,583.50 

Ml $29,28713 

sc $27,854.73 

NC $27,354.18 



21 Fellowship FWB Church 
22 Kingsport 

Bethel FWB Church TN 
23 New Hope FWB Church 

Kinston 

24 Umon Chapel FWB Church 
Joelton 

NC 

25 Sherwood Forest FWB Church 
Chocowinity 

TN 

26 
NC 

Ruth's Chapel FWB Church 
New Bern NC 

27 Thayer FWB Church 
New Bern NC 

28 Piney Grove FWB Church 
Thayer MO 

29 Gilead FWB Church 
Guin AL 

30 Allen Chapel FWB Church 
Scranton sc 

31 Krrby FWB Church 
Batesville AR 

32 Cavanaugh FWB Church 
Taylor 

33 Garner FWB Church 
Fort Smith 

Ml 

34 Heritage FWB Church 
Garner 

AR 

35 T?wnsend FWB Church 
Gilbert 

NC 

36 Frrst FWB Church 
Townsend 

AZ 

37 Lebanon FWB Church 
Florence 

DE 

38 Peace FWB Church 
Effingham 

sc 

39 Frrst FWB Church N Little Rock 
Florence 

sc 

40 Calvary Chapel FWB Church 
N Little Rock 

sc 

41 Wrnfreld First FWB Church 
Buffalo 

AR 

42 Parker's Chapel FWB Ch h 
Winfreld 

MO 

43 F' urc Greenville 
AL 

rrst FWB Church 
44 Fellowship FWB Church 

Inman 
NC 

45 Bethany FWB Church 
Bryan 

sc 

46 First Bible FWB Church 
Timmonsvrlle 

TX 

47 Bethlehem FWB Church 
New Castle 

sc 

48 Good Springs FWB Church 
Ashland Crty 

IN 

49 Peace FWB Church 
Pleasant View 

TN 

so New Hope FWB Church 
Wilson 

TN 

51 Temple FWB Church 
Ina 

NC 

52 First FWB Church 
Greenville 

IL 

53 Freeman Chapel FWB Church 
Northport 

NC 

54 ~ak Grove FWB Church 
Stewartsville 

AL 

55 Frrst FWB Church 
Greeneville 

MO 

56 Mt Olive FWB Church 
Springfield 

TN 

57 Sand Hill FWB Church 
Guin 

MO 

58 Head's FWB Church 
Coward 

AL 

59 L~berty Bible FWB Church 
Cedar Hill 

sc 

60 Frrst FWB Church 
Oakwood 

TN 

61 First FWB Church 
Beaufort 

GA 

62 Porter FWB Church 
Star City 

NC 

63 Red Bay FWB Church 
Scrotovrlle 

AR 

64 Double Branch FWB Church 
Red Bay 

OH 

65 Temple FWB Church 
Unadilla 

AL 

66 Phillip's Chapel FWB Church 
Darlington 

GA 

67 Goshen FWB Church 
Northport 

sc 

68 ~ospel Light FWB Church 
Mt. Holly 

AL 

69 Frrst FWB Church Bonne Terre 
NC 

70 Southpark FWB Church 
Mountain Grove 

MO 
MO 

Huntsville AL 
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$25,932 21 
$24,976.88 
$21,807.69 
$21,686.00 
$21,37525 
$20,942.69 
$20,329.15 
$19,265.73 
$19,212.41 
$18,476.26 
$17,089.67 
$16,990.57 
$16,989.90 
$16,720.00 
$16,691.50 
$16,630.96 
$16,514.49 
$16,389.80 
$16,300.57 
$16,260.00 
$16,124.73 
$16,100.00 
$15,650.00 
$15,602.90 
$15,441 .00 
$15,356.06 
$14,585050 
$14,323.03 
$14,269.63 
$14,237.28 
$13,899.00 
$13,684.45 
$13,640.00 
$13,547.94 
$13.469.08 
$13,388.36 
$13,354.11 
$13,271089 
$13,264.25 
$13,249.42 
$13,210.88 
$13,097.75 
$13,036.08 
$12,869.87 
$12,442.68 
$12,404.25 
$12,310.76 
$12,100.00 
$11,977.00 
$11,903.73 

71 
Bellview FWB Church Colqurtt GA $11 ,89907 1 

72 
White Savannah FWB Church Conway sc $11 .369 94 

73 
Hyde Park FWB Church Norfolk VA $11 ,200 00 

74 
Uberty Bible Church Dyersburg TN $11 .122.60 

75 
Northridge FWB Church Dayton OH $11 090.00 

76 Tupelo FWB Church Tupelo MS $ 10 ,842 55 

71 Frrst FWB Church 
Tuckerman AR $10,822095 

78 Hillsboro FWB Church Hrllsboro OH $10.761 .88 

79 Bethel FWB Church 
South Roxana IL $ 10 ,757 15 

80 First FWB Church Jesup GA $10.623.69 

81 Sherwood Forest FWB Church El Sobrante CA $10,506.22 

82 Farth FWB Church Ray Township Ml $10,494 .69 

83 Tippett's Chapel FWB Church Clayton NC $10,400006 

84 Madison FWB Church Madison AL $10,384.33 

85 Fellowship FWB Church Park Hills MO $10 ,332.11 

86 Bethel FWB Church Chapmansboro TN $10,268060 

87 Trinity FWB Church Darlington MD $10,191033 

88 Blue Point FWB Church Cisne IL $10,191 .24 

89 First FWB Church Gastonra NC $10,122.00 

90 Cornerstone FWB Church Whiteville NC $10.000.00 

We gratefully acknowledge the top I 0 states in gi\ ing to Free Will Baptist 

International Missions. 

Tennessee ............. .... 0 .... 0 .... 0 ................... 0 ...... 00 ° $956.34 7.22 
'-lorth Carolina ..... 0 ........ 0 .... 0 ... o ................. 00 ..... 0 .0 $749.87:'.97 
Missouri .. ooo· oooo oo ...... oo .... O •••••• oo ............ oo ........ oo0 ... $613.490.34 
Oklahoma 0 o• .. 0 oO 0 .. 0. 00 ... 00 ... 0 ..... oO .................. 0 oOO. 0. 0 $596.369.59 
Arkansas . 0 ... 0 0 ... 0 0 0 .. 0 .. 0 0 .. 0 00 .. 0. 0 ...... . 0 ... 00 ........ 0 .... 0 .. 0 SS 7 3,-l2!t~O 
South Carol ina ........ .. ............ . 00 •• 00 . ............ 0 ... ... 00 .. $501.397 026 
Alabama 00 0 ... . . 0 ... 00 . . ..... .. ...... . ...... . ..... . .. 00 . .. . .. ... . 0 .. $413,846093 
Georgia ....... . .. .. .... 00 ••••• • •• 00 ............................ .. .. . $36 7 ,-l02°82 
Illinois ..... .. ....... .. ..... ...... ... .. ... ....... .. 0 ...... . ....... .. ... $220,306.37 
Florida 0 0 ... .... .. .. . ........... .. ..... . ...... . .. 0 . ... .. .. 00 . ..... ... $219,190.68 

Churches gioving over $1,000 to the World Missions Offering 

April is designated International Missions Emphasis Month. Many churches have 
traditionally used April as a special emphasis for the World Missions Offering: howe\er. 
some churches have chosen to take up a special offering at another time. better suited for 
their church calendar. Our ability to plant churches internationally is enhanced in direct 
proportion to the grov.-'th of this offering. Below is a (i!;t of the churches that ga\ eO\ er 

S 1.000 for the 2005 offering. 

1 
2 
3 

Hillsboro FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Bethel FWB Church 

Hillsboro 
Washington 
Kinston 

A - 203 

OH 
NC 
NC 

$10,561 .88 
$8,691 .50 
$5,055.00 
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4 Macedonia FWB Women's Aux. 
5 Purdy MO F1rst FWB Church $5,000.00 
6 Ina FWB Church 

Bristol VA $4,032.10 Ina 7 Unity FWB Church IL $3,642 00 
Greenville 8 Townsend FWB Church NC $3.456.00 

9 Townsend 
Harmony FWB Church DE $3,147.50 

10 Burton 
Heritage FWB Church Ml $2,932.00 

11 Cooper FWB Church 
Columbus OH $2,923.56 

12 Cookeville FWB Church 
Detroit AL $2,730.00 

13 Woodbine FWB Church 
Cookev1lle TN $2,321.33 

14 Winfield First FWB Church 
Nashville TN $2,174.81 

15 Wmfield 
Zephyr H11ls FWB Church AL $2,000.00 

16 First FWB Church 
Ashev1lle NC $2,000.00 

17 Good News FWB Church 
Stanley NC $2,000.00 

18 Bethany FWB Church 
Chesterfield VA $2,000.00 

19 Cofer's Chapel FWB Church 
Broken Arrow OK $2.000.00 

20 First FWB Church 
Nashville TN $1,986.00 

21 Harmony Star FWB Church 
Russellville AR $1,931.12 

22 Claremore 
First FWB Church OK $1,824.83 

23 First FWB Church 
Chma Grove NC $1,804.74 

24 Piney Grove FWB Church 
Brunswick GA $1,530.00 
Gum 25 First FWB Church AL $1,500.00 

26 First FWB Church 
Dickson TN $1,499.00 

27 Shallowford FWB Church 
Owensboro KY $1.400.00 

28 Maranatha FWB Church 
Manetta GA $1,378.50 

29 Umon Ridge FWB Church 
Ardmore OK $1,345.00 

30 Free Will Baptist Church 
Sulligent AL $1,240.00 

31 Sherwood Forest FWB Church 
Christians ted VI $1 ,200.00 
New Bern 32 Southern Oaks FWB Church NC $1 '1 06.97 
Oklahoma City 33 First FWB Church OK $1,103.25 

34 Immanuel FWB Church 
Ada OK $1 ,092.36 

35 Calvary FWB Church 
Winterville NC $1,086.55 

36 New Beginnmgs Church 
Salem IL $1 ,085.23 

37 Bethlehem FWB Church 
Anderson IN $1,040.00 

38 Limestone FWB Church 
Ashland City TN $1,000.00 

39 Wyandotte FWB Church 
Limestone TN $1,000.00 

40 Gray Branch FWB Church 
Mansfield OH $1,000.00 

41 Rocky Pass FWB Church 
Deep Run NC $1,000.00 
Marion NC $1,000.00 

Endowment Report 

To ensure a bold thrust in the ? I st ccn 1 . 
ad\ ocates the concept of our end ~ F tury: ntematwnal Missions strategically 
· · · 0 '-' ment. ree Will Baptist d 
mcreasmg mterest in ways they can b d men an women demonstrate 
to them. They want to be a part of kc _goo steward~ of the resources God has entrusted 

· rna mg an eternal rmpa t ~ h K · 
expcrrenced unexpected financial bl ~s · d c or t e rngdom. Some have 
advancing the cause of Christ aroun~ t~ngs an want to make su:e their resources are 

e world. Others \\-ant therr assets to be at work 
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internationally long after their death. E:,tate planning is a tremendous way to maximize 
stewardship. The table below shows the growth of the endo"vment with the Free Wi II 
Baptist Foundation. 

Endowment Growth 

$1,000,000.00 

$1100,000.00 

$800,000.00 

$700,000.00 

$600,000.00 

$500,000.00 

$400,000.00 

$300,000.00 

$200,000.00 

$100,000.00 

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 

• Endowed Amount Earnings 

Tribute to our Missionaries and Staff 

lt is a privilege to report what God i::, doing through our denomination to a<.hance 
the gospel to peoples of the world. Our international mission agency is equipped with 
qualified and experienced missronaries who fully de\ ote themsel\ es to the task of 
strategically building churches within the communities they serve. They do th1s for no 
other reason than to satisfy the call of God on their I ives to go and make disciples of 
every nation. We gratefully acknowledge Tom and Nancy Hughes who, with their 
retirement in November 2005. completed 35 years of ministry in Bruil. 

Our home office statT is also commilled to advancing the gospel and has faithfull} 
served our Lord throughout 2005. In August. Doug Little, who formerly served as the 
Director of Development. transitioned to Director of MobiliLation. In September. Tim 
York was hired as the new Director of Development. Both of these gentlemen have 
brought much insight and expertise into their new roles. 

Alicia Bunch was hired in February as the Student Missions Coordinator. Natalie 
Cro"' son joined us in August as assistant to the Director of Financial Operations. Tracy 
Jennette, formerly the Administrative Assistant to the General Director, left to pursue a 
short-term teaching assignment in lraq. Gladys Gragg retired in November with 12 years' 
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mmistry in linancial operations. We arc thankful fbr those '' ho ha\e been such an asset to 
our otlice. and we arc excited about those '' ho joined u~ in 2005. 

Board J\ leetings and Actions 

Conference Call - June t 0. 2005 

The Hoard approved the transl~r of \ttil,.c and Cathy Corky from Russia to Central Asia 
and Angela Emerick from France 1\tl-Team to Ccmral Asia. 

National Association M eeting - .July 21 , 2005 

The Board met ar the Hyatt Regency Hotel in Louisville, KY. Members present were: 
Milton Worthington, Bill Van Winkle, Tom McCullough. Sherwood Lee. Jerry Norris. 
Da\ id Williford, Randy Wilson. Jeff Manning. and Danny Williams. 

1 he Board appro\ed a four-year partnership between FWB InternatiOnal Missions and 
the International Training Alliance (ITA) for leadership training. 

The foliO\'- ing missiOnaries were appro\ed for another term of service: Jeff and Susan 
Turnbough (Spain) and Jerry and Carol PinJ..erton (Cote d'hoirc). 

Final approval was granted to Mauhe\\ and BrooJ..e Turnbough as career church-planting 
missionaries in Spain. 

Ema il Ba llot - August 4, 2005 

The Board accepted the resignation of Kristin Wilson as short-term missionary to Brazil. 

Semi-Annua l Meeting- December 6-8, 2005 

The Board met at the Maxwell I louse llotcl in Nashville, TN, on December 6; at the 
lntcmational Missions Office in Antioch, TN. on December 7; and at the Country Inn and 
Suites in Antioch, TN, on December 8. Members present were: Milton Worthington. 
Randy Wilson. Sherwood Lee, Bill Van Winkle, Jeff Manning, Tom McCullough, Jerry 
Norris, David Williford, and Danny Williams. 

The Board gave the approval for FWBJM to open the country of Bulgaria as a mission 
lief d. 

The Board approved the follo\\ing to serve on the FWBIM Advisory Council: 
Frank Breeden. Jerry Dyer - Department of the General Director 
Tom Willey, Jr.- Department of Field Operations 
Roy Harris - Department of Development 
Mauri lio Amorim, Scott Henson. Don Robirds Dcpartmcm of Communications 
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. t d Steve and Becky Riggs to another term of service in France. The Board rcappom e 

d ·ed Tim and Di Keener as full-status career missionaries to !-ranee. The Boar appro\ 

Annual Meeting- April 24-26, 2006 

Th Board met at the lntemational Missions Office in Antioch, TN' . ~temTbers present 
e · d W ·I son Sherwood Lee, Jerry oms. om 

were: Milton Worthmgt~n. Ran ~d ~· lrfi. d Bill Van Winkle, and Danny Williams. 
McCullough. Jeff Mann mg. Da\ I I t or . 

B d roved the following mission statement: d 
1 
~ 

The oar app . B . l t . fonal Missions serves our churches. pastors. an pe?p c 
''Free W11l apttst n ema 1 . . 

1 
b d North Arnenca 

by helping them fulfill their role in establlshmg ch~rc.leS ?t:n h. with the 
so unreached peoples can know the joy of a worshtppmg re auons 1p 

living God." 

The Board approved adding a fourth Regional Director for North Africa and Central 

Asia. 

· · c 1 A ia to David The Board granted final approval for career missionary sen ICe m entra s 

and Angie Outlaw. 

. d f th 'r term of service: Eddie and The following missionanes were approve or ano c B. 
1 

(J ) 
La Rhonda Bowerman (Panama) and Dale and Sandra IS wp apan . 

The Board elected the following oflicers: 
Chairman- Danny Williams 
Vice-Chairman-Randy Wilson 
Secretary-Tom McCullough 
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~R11F1EO PUBLIC ACCOUHTAN!S 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of the 
Board of International Missions of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 
and Subsidiary 

Antioch, Tennessee 

We have audited the accompanymg consolidated statements of financial position of the Board of 
International Missions of the National Association of Free Will Bapt1sts and Subs1d1ary (nonprofit organizations) 
as of December 31 , 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the 
years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on 
our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. Those standards reqUire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An aud1t includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting pnnciples used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opmion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Board of International M1ssions of the National Association of 
Free W1ll Baptists and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the changes in their net assets and 
their cash flows for the years then ended 1n conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

March 31, 2006 
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BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

cash and cash equivalents - Notes 1 & 2 
Investments in trusts - Notes 1 & 2 
Investments - Notes 2 & 10 
Accounts receivable from employees and 
missionaries - Notes 2 & 12 

ASSETS 

Note receivable - Notes 2 & 13 
Property and equipment, at cost, net of accumulated 
depreciation - Notes 1 & 3 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Supplemental retirement insurance payable 
Accrued severance pay payable 

Total liabilities 

Commitments - Notes 7 & 8 

Net assets 
Unrestricted (deficit) 
Temporarily restricted- Note 4 
Permanently restricted - Note 4 

Total 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

-2-
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2005 
$ 966,785 

2,056,116 
5,740 

288,809 
84,036 

140 590 

$ 3 542076 

$ 289,021 
488,012 
149.234 

( 

926.267 

107,436) 
2,697,004 

26.241 

2,615,809 

$ 3 542.076 

2004 
$ 1,671,550 

1,671 ,466 
6,780 

172,109 
96,018 

123.645 

$ 3,]41 568 

$ 208,813 
451 ,932 
151 397 

812.142 

( 16,670) 
2,919,855 

26.241 

2.929.426 

$ 3,741,568 



BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
Consolidated Statements of ActiVIties 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 

Unrestricted 
Revenue: 

Contributions- Notes 1 & 5 
Investment income 
Gain (loss) on investments 
Other income 
Gain (loss) on disposal of property & equipment 
Net as~e~s released from restrictions: 

Restnctlons satisfied by payments 

Total revenue 

Expenses: 
Support services 
Missionaries 
VISION campaign 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily restricted 
Revenue: 

Contributions - Notes 1 4 & 5 
Contributions - Subsidi~ry 
Net as~e!s released from restrictions: 

Restnctions satisfied by payments 

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets 

Permanently restricted 

Increase in permanently restricted net assets 

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

-3-
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2005 

$ 1,166,307 
2,354 

41,202 
68,736 
10,978 

5,573,185 

6,862,762 

1,430,118 
5,285,880 

237,530 

6,953,528 

( 90,766) 

5,270,446 
79,888 

( 5,573,185) 

( 222,851) 

( 313,617) 

2,929,426 

$ ~.615,809 

2004 

$ 1,314,502 
6,187 

192,632 
17,870 
2,208 

5,201,911 

6,735,310 

1,220,291 
4,936,999 

264,912 

6,422,202 

313,108 

5,265,149 
20,827 

( 5,201,911) 

84 065 

397,173 

2,532.253 

$ 2,929 ~26 

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 

Qoeratinq activities 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 

Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets to 
net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Loss (gain) on investments 
Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and 

accrued expenses 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Purchases of equipment 
Proceeds from sale of equipment 
Purchases of mvestment 
Proceeds from sale of investment 
Addition to note receivable 
Collection on note receivable 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Financing activities 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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2005 

($ 313,617) 

59,195 
( 41 ,202) 
( 10,978) 

( 116,700) 

114 125 

( 309,177) 

( 147,745) 
82,583 

( 642,408) 
300,000 

11 982 

( 395,588) 

-0-

( 704,765) 

1,671,550 

$ 966,Z85 

2004 

$ 397,173 

54,285 
( 192,632} 
( 2,208) 

( 71,461) 

28 363 

213,520 

( 121,533) 
57,980 

( 41 ,556) 
8,392 

( 108,000) 
11 982 

( 192,735) 

-0-

20,785 

1,650,765 

$ j 6Z1 ,550 



s 

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Note 1 -Organization and summary of significant account1ng pohc1es 

The Board of International Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists 
(formerly the Board of Foreign Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) is a 
nonprofit organization affiliated w1th the National Association of Free Will Baptists, located in 
Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of the Organization is to establish and support Free Will 
Baptist Mission Churches throughout the world. The Organization's support comes primarily 
from donor contributions. The Board of International Miss1ons of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists' subsidiary is a nonprofit organization established to meet the spiritual needs 
of hurting people around the world. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 501 (c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists. The Subsidiary is exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code under an advance ruling. In addihon, the Organizations have been 
determined by the Internal Revenue Serv1ce not to be a "private foundation" within the meaning 
of 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code There was no unrelated business income for 2005 
and 2004. 

Principles of consolidation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Board 
of International Missions of the National Assoc1at1on of Free Will Baptists (the parent) and its 
subsidiary. The Organization has adopted the provisions of the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants (AI CPA) Statement of Posihon No. 94-3 (SOP 94-3), "Reporting of Related 
Entities by Not-for-Profit Organizations.· SOP 94-3 states that a not-for-profit organization 
should consolidate another not-for-profit organization if the reporting not-for-profit organization 
has both control of the other not-for-profit organtzation, as evidenced by either majority 
ownership or a majority voting interest in the board of the other not-for-profit organization, and 
an economic interest in the other not-for-profit organization. 

The Organization is also required to comply with Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) Statement No. 57 (FAS-57) "Related Party Disclosures." Under this standard, all 
material related party transactions have been eliminated in the consolidating process and 
substantive disclosure of these amounts is not required. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements· 

Basis of accounting 

The Organization prepares its consolidated financial statements using the accrual basis 
of accounting, which involves the application of generally accepted accounting principles; 
consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are 
recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Consolidated financial statements presentation follows the recommendations of the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial Accounting Standards 
(SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, 
the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets, unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net 
assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 
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Note 1-

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31 . 2005 and 2004 

Organization and summary of significant accoun!lng policies (Con!lnued) 

Basis of presentation (Continued) 

Unrestricted net assets- Net assets that are not subject to donor-Imposed stipulations 

. N t assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations 
Temporarily r~stncted ne~ assets- . e f the Or anization and/or the passage of 
that may or Will be r:n~t. elthe~ by actions o 'I restr?cted net assets are reclassified to 
time. When a restncbon expltes, tedmp~~an6onsolidated Statements of Activities as net 
unrestricted net assets and reporte In e 

assets released from restrictions. 

Permanently restricted net assets- Net assets su~ject to donor-imposed stipulations 
that they be maintained permanently by the Orgamzatlon. 

Use of estimates 

. I tat ments in conformity with U.S. generally 
The prep~ratio~ o~ ~n~oh1a~~ ~~:~~: 0~ es~mates that affect the consolidated 

accepted accountmg pnnclpdes llnc u tal results could differ from those estimates. 
financial statements. Accor mg y, ac u 

Contributions 

. . . . accordance with the recommendations 
The <?rgamzatlo~ accounts for contnbut~~~; No. 116, Accounting for Contributi~ns 

of the Financial Accounting Standards Boarddln .th SFAS No 116 contributions received 
· ti M de In accor ance WI · • 

Received and Contrib~ o;~ t:mporanly restricted, or permanently restricted support, 
are recorded as unres c e · t ·crons 
depending on the existence or nature of any donor res n I . 

. . rt d an Increase in temporarily or permanently 
All donor-restncted ~upport IS repo e ~~he restriction. When a restriction expires ~that 

restricted net assets depend In~ ~n the nature o se restriction is accomplished), temporanly 
is, when a stipulated time restnc.tion ends or ~~r~ net assets and reported in the Consolidated 
restricted net assets are reclassified to unres nc t . f 
Statements of Activities as net assets released from res nc Ions. 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

. f 'talizing at cost all expenditures for 
The Org~nizatio~ follows the practice o ~~P~stlmat~d usetui life of at least two years. 

property and equipment In excess ~f ~t2I?OO :;~s over the useful lives of the assets generally 
Depreciation is computed on a stralg - me 
as follows: 

Automobiles 
Office furniture and equ1pment 

3 years 
3- 10 years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a separate component in 

unrestricted net assets. 

Investments 

Investments are composed of equity securities and are valued at quoted market price. 
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Note 1 -

Note 2-

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
Notes to the Consolidated Financ1al Statements 

December 31, 2005 and 2004 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

Investments in Trusts 

Investments in Trusts are composed of five trusts established and maintained by the 
Free Will Baptist Foundation. The Foundation invests the two largest trusts in debt securities 
and preferred stock and values the trusts at market value The remaining trusts are invested in 
government securities and valued at cost, which approximates market value. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

For purposes of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, the Board considers all 
cash on deposit, money market funds and highly liquid debt instruments with maturity of three 
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Summary of significant concentrations of financial instruments 

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Board had deposits with a financial institution 
located in the United States and the Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc., located in Antioch, 
Tennessee. Accounts at the financialmstitution are insured up to $100,000 by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation. Accounts at the Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc., are 
uninsured. The Board also has accounts receivable from employees and missionaries and 
other receivables which are uninsured The following is a summary of those deposits, accounts 
receivable and the corresponding risk of accountmg loss 

December 31 2005 

Interest bearing deposit accounts with 
financial institution 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

Interest bearing deposits on account with the 
Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc. 

Common stock 
Total investments 

Note and accounts receivable 
Total 
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Account 
Balance 

$ 966.785 

966.785 

2,056,116 
5 740 

2.061.856 

372,845 
s~.~l2l.~B§ 

Amount Amount of 
Insured/ Accounting 

Secured Risk of Loss 

$ 100.000 $ 866.785 

100.000 866.785 

2,056,116 
5 740 

2.061.856 

372,845 
~ JQQ QQQ $3,3Q1,486 

Note 2-

Note 3-

Note 4 -

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

f . ·ficant concentrations of financial instruments (Continued) Summary o SIQOI 

Interest bearing deposit accounts with 
financial institution 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

Interest bearing deposits on account with the 
Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc. 
Common stoct< 

Total investments 

Note and accounts receivable 
Total 

Prooertv and equipment 

December 31. 2004 

Account 
Balance 

$1,671,550 

1.671,550 

1,671,466 
6 780 

1.678.246 

268.127 
$3.617,923 

Amount Amount of 
Insured/ Accounting 
Secured Risk of Loss 

$116,029 

116.029 

$116 Q29 

$1.555.521 

1.555.521 

1,671 ,466 
6 780 

1.678,246 

268.127 
$3 501,894 

A summary of property and equipment is as follows: 

2005 2004 

Office furniture and equipment 
Cameras and projectors 
Automobiles 
Computer equipment 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

$ 50,342 
95,626 

129,772 
109.248 
384,988 
244,398 

s J412 590 

$ 68,851 
122,617 
88,317 

109.248 
389,033 
265.388 

$ 123 645 

. . computed utilizing the straight-line method amounted to $59,195 Depreciation expense, 
($54,285 in 2004). 

Restrictions on net assets 

· rposes· .I m·cted net assets are available for the followmg pu . Temporan y res 

Missionaries 
VISION campaign 
Subsidiary 

2005 2004 
$2,328,071 $2,726,771 

356,039 205,858 
12,8~ ( 12.774) 

s2 697 oo4 ~2,919 ass 

These net assets are restricted due to donor restrictions. 
donor restriction is sat1sfied. 

They are released when the 
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Note 4-

• 
Note 5-

Note 6-

Note 7-

Note 8-

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Restrictions on net assets (Continued) 

Permanently restricted assets are restricted to. 

Support Services Endowment 
MK Scholarship Endowment 

Support services allocation 

2005 
$ 25,031 

1 210 

2004 
$ 25,031 

1 210 
$ 26.241 

The Board charges a fee against the ministry and project accounts to reimburse the 
unrestricted net assets for support service expenses. These fees are presented as transfers 
from the temporarily restricted net assets to the unrestricted net assets. 

Pension plan 

The Board participates in the master pension plan of the Board of Retirement and 
Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. The Board contributes 5% of gross 
salary for missionaries and administrative employees. Employees are allowed to contribute but 
are not required to contribute. Employees with two years of service may partic1pate. Pension 
expenses amounted to $121,471 ($113,422 in 2004) The pension plan is a defined 
contribution plan. Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant and upon 
retirement the participant can either receive a Jump-sum distribution or purchase one of several 
types of annuity contracts. 

Lease 

The Board entered into a new lease agreement on July 1, 2000. The term of the lease 
was July 1, 2000 to August 31 , 2000, and then beginning September 1, 2000 the lease became 
a year-to-year lease. The rent expense for the year amounted to $82,762 ($74,988 for the year 
ended December 31, 2004). 

The Board entered into a lease for the use of office equipment. The lease started on 
May 4, 2005, expires Apri14, 2010 and has a fixed monthly payment of $233. The rental 
expense under this lease amounted to $1 ,867 for the year ended December 31 , 2005. 

Future minimum rental payments required are as follows: 

Commitments 

Year Ended December 31. 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
Total 

Amount 
$ 2,801 

2,801 
2,801 
2,801 

933 
$ 12.13] 

The Board provides health insurance for 1ts 87 (91 in 2004) employees on a partially 
self-insured basis. The board has an insurance policy with International Medical Group for 
claims in excess of the deductible. The deductible is $2,500 and the coinsurance is 80% of the 
next $5,000. The deductible and coinsurance are paid out of Missionary funds. All claims are 
processed by International Medical Group. During the year the Board paid $116,279 ($102,551 
in 2004) in benefit payments and $214,774 ($205,005 in 2004) in insurance premiums. 
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Note 8-

Note 9-

Note 10-

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Commitments (Continued) 
. . d Hold Harmless Agreement with AmSouth 

The Board has entered mto an lnde:~~ ,;~ uarantee to Citibank that it will honor 
Bank As part of the agreement, AmSouth ~- . ~ AmSouth Bank account by the Board of 
checks wntten on the Board of ln~ema~io~al ISS~ons es up to $20 000 per check. In exchange, 
International Missions' Cote d'lvolre ~~~s~n em~~~~ hold harml~ss AmSouth Bank from any 
the Board of International M~ssions will m e~m ton that arise as a result of Am South Bank's 
and all claims, liabilities, actions or c~~ses o ac I 
agreement to guarantee checks to Cltlbank . 

'th the Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc. to 
The Board entered into an agreement WI J se Field Council for the purchase of a 

guarantee a loan _that the Fo~~a~~ngi~~dae~~!~ ot~:~~an was $155,000. 
building in Hokka1do Japan. e 

Fair values of financial instruments . 
. d mptions were used by the Board in estimating Its fair 

The followmg methods an assu 
value disclosures for financial instruments. . 

. . trusts receiVables and payables: The carrymg 
Cash, cash equivalents, mves~ents '"t t ' ts of financial position approximate fair 

ounts reported in the consolidated s a emen . 
~~ues because of the short maturities of those mstruments. 

. d oted market price for those 
Investments: The fair value of investments IS base on qu 

investments. 

Investments 

Investments are stated at fair value and consist of equity securities: 

Cost 

Equity securities 
$ 65.125 

Investment return is summarized as follows· 

Net realized and unrealized income (loss) 

December 31 . 2005 
Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
($ 59 385) 

Fair 
Value 

s 5740 

($ 1 040) 

Investments are stated at fair value and consist of equity securities: 

Cost 

Equity securities 
$ 65.125 

Investment return IS summarized as follows. 

Net realized and unrealized income (loss) 
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December 31, 2004 
Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
($ 58 345) 

Fair 
Value 

$ 6,]80 

($ 4 620) 



Note 11 -

Note 12-

Note 13-

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 

Name change 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31. 2005 and 2004 

On July 22, 2004 the Board of Directors voted to change the name of the 
Organization from the Board of Foreign Missions of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists to the Board of International Missions of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists. 

Accounts receivable from employees and missionaries 

Included in accounts receivable from missionaries and employees is $266,101 
($141, OS 1 for the year ended December 31, 2004) in advance funds from missionaries. 
When a missionary goes to the field they are given funds to establish their missionary work. 
Board policy is that these funds remain the property of International Missions and are due 
back from the missionary when the missionary resigns or retires. It has been the practice of 
International Missions to expense these funds when a missionary goes to the field. 
International Missions is now going through the process of reclassifying these funds as a 
receivable to properly comply with Board policy. The funds advances to all new 
missionaries are now recorded as a receivable when the funds are paid. As missionaries 
that are already on the field come home on furlough the missionaries account is reconciled 
and the advance funds are recorded at that time based on the reconciliation. 

Note receivable 

Note receivable consists of an obligation from a related party as follows: 

8% mortgage note receivable due in 2 annual 
installments of $12,000 and 3 annual installments of 
of $24,000 through January 1, 2008. The note is 
secured by land owned by the Free Will Baptist 
Mission of Korea. 

-11-

A - 218 

2005 2004 

84.036 ~$==9!!!!!6~.0~1~8 

WARHEN, DENN~Y & WALLA<'E 
C£RllflED PIJBUC ACOOONT ANTS 

11-fE VOlUNTEER 8t.OC 
SUITE 100 

31 g PlUS PARK BlVD 
NASHYUJ: n o nn 1 09e 

18151366-5100 Member$ 

AMERICAN t'ISlTTIITE OF 
C£RT1AED PUBUC ACOOONTAHTS 

lEN" ESSEESOCIETYOf 
CERTlAED PUBUC ACOOONlAHTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Board of Directors of the 
Board of International Missions ?f the . 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 
and Subsidiary 

Antioch, Tennessee 

d financial statements of the Board of International 
Our report on our audits of the baSIC consolidate Subsldlar for 2005 and 2004 appears ~n 

MISSions of the National Associ~t,~n of Fre: Will Ba~tl=~~~~~ standard~ generally accepted In the Umted 
page 1. We conducted our audits In accor a nee W1 on the basiC consolidated financial statement;;_taken 
States of America for the purpose of forming an opiniOn x nses are presented for the purpose of ~dd ltional 
as a whole The consolidated schedules of functional ~d~ed financial statements Such information has 
analysis a~d are not a required part of the basi~ ':~s~~ :udltS of the basic consolidated financial . 
been subjected to the au~ill_ng ~r~dures a pdp le Ill matenal respects In relation to the basic consolidated 
statements and, in our opiniOn, IS fairly state In a 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

March 31 , 2006 
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BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
Consolidated Schedules of Functional Expenses 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2005 and 2004 

Support services· 
Video and audio visual 
Heartbeat 
One publication expense 
Postage 
Publicity 
Telephone 
Dues 
Paper and supplies 
Together Way Program 
Retreat 
Tracts and books 
Seminar and training 
Convention expense 
Department auto 
Board members 
Department insurance 
Department travel 
Travel 1nsurance 
Consultation 
Donor development 
Missions promotion 
Recruiting and candidate expense 
Sa lanes 
Housing 
Employer payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Hospitalization 
Office travel allowance 
Legal and professional 
Office rent 
Off-site storage expense 
Computer software expense 
Office equipment 
Maintenance of office equipment 
Office supplies 
Bank service charges 
Credit card processing fees 
Office help 
Staff recognition 
COLA indexes 
Benevolence 
Staff retreat 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation 
Visitor meals, entertainment & lodging 
MobiliZation network 
Advisory council 

Total support services 

See accountants' report on supplementary information. 
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2005 

$ 25,834 
12,028 
43,849 
24,827 
69,212 
13,454 

167 
3,787 
3,330 

1,823 
5,623 

14,205 
35,366 
13,245 
5,059 

23,455 
447 

4,825 
23,002 
3,130 
5,084 

542,322 
101 ,033 

70,257 
35,416 

105,326 
10,890 
15,650 
82,762 

1,606 
9,160 

14,288 
6,772 

18,306 
795 
930 

4,690 
5,098 

659 
1,053 
2,439 

59,195 
4,060 

716 
4 943 

$1 .430,118 

$ 

2004 

21 ,500 
39,384 

35,754 
35,679 
10,171 

710 
2,344 
3,202 
2,188 
2,291 
4,180 
5,246 

21 ,815 
22,637 
5,567 

15,587 
800 

6,243 
5,535 

517,196 
83,127 
70,363 
34,744 
87,136 
7,920 

16,058 
74,988 

1,740 
5,740 
1,947 
3,564 
9,156 
1,321 

811 
281 

2,358 
623 
152 
48 

2,736 
54,285 
2,278 

60 
826 

$1 .220.291 

BOARD OF INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

AND SUBSIDIARY 
Consolidated Schedules of Functional Expenses 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 

Missionary expenses: 
Ivory Coast 
France 
India 
Brazil 
Japan 
Panama 
Spain 
Uruguay 
Commonwealth of Independent States 
Unreached people 
Korea 
Tekmerion . . 
Non-Governmental Orgamzation 
Overseas Apprentices 
Other projects 
Missionary medical 

Total missionary expenses 

VISION campaign expenses: 
Project expenses 

Total VISION campaign expenses 

Total expenses 

See accountants' report on supplementary information. 
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2005 

$ 526,475 
1,211 ,023 

259,296 
587,049 
800,741 
308,655 
686,425 
283,444 
105,305 

79,772 
3,995 
1,136 

54,220 
236,568 
170,546 

( 28.770) 
5,285.880 

237.530 
237.530 

$6.953.528 

2004 

$ 540,544 
1,048,497 

228,756 
565,043 
791 ,316 
303,164 
595,977 
247,199 
144,450 

1,709 
54,792 
21 ,716 
33,601 

228,917 
173,910 

( 42.592) 
4 .936,999 

264,912 
264.912 

$6,422 202 



ree Will Baptist International Missions 
2007 Operational Budget Summary 

Category 

F1eld M1nistnes & Projects 
MISSionary Compensation & Benefits 
Missionary Travel 'TransportatiOn 
Mob1hzat1on & Development 
Administration 

GeMnoiOJ­
Saliuy 
Hou$iv olf1d UtobM 
SotiliJ Gecu<olr 
RetiremeB 
~ 

Tolal Coot o1 Emjlloy~Mt~~ 

noctor of Flel<l Operallon8 
5:llcl'l 
Ho<&rng ..,., U!ilbn 
Soc:~ Sec:vr<ty 

fie ""'""' n.nnc.. 
o!al Cost of empo,,.,_ 

DtrtJCtof 01 Dr etoprnent 
Ealaty 

HoualnQ - l.llaM 
Social Secuntv 

~-..... 
k1oumnoe 

- Coal ol ErnployJMnl 

Dnc:lor ol-c:a.o 
~ 
Social S.CU:IIY 
R011r~ 

lns.nnce 
ToiiiiCostof~-

OJ rector of Fl"'..:'-1 OP618UOriS 
S.lary 
Sodol s.ar.:y 
Rc!em.>rll 
~ 

Toool Coel of El•"""",.,..,. 

0Wecto< of MobtluliiOft 

S..bry 
Hclullng ..,., u 
Social Searl!'t 
~ 
InC illlilCII 

T0181 Cool 01 ~,... 

IK!Of of Comm~ 

S.•""" 
I-!Ou&.o1g anj ..... 

$oci:ll Sla.wtr 
~~ 
lnlurance 

Olal Cool of~-

2005 Budget 2005 Actual 2006 Budget 2007 Budget 

$ 1.597,189 .96 $ 1,118,112.71 $ 1,779,659.54 $ 1 .692,940.62 
$ 3,525.120.23 $ 3 ,149,661 .31 $ 3 .715.614 52 $ 3,840.126.n 
$ 744 816 87 $ 640,243.86 $ 752,61355 $ 727,930.00 
$ 432,128.42 $ 421 ,802.14 $ 479,916 .42 $ 397,494.00 
$ 913,41684 $ 810,820.86 $ 976.617 84 $ 939,549.93 

$ 7,212,672.32 $ 6,140,640.88 $ 7,704.421 .87 

Home Office Personnel 
Colllf't!/h.llion /Jc·t.li/ 

Buoger 2005 

32.,... 
21!.080 
9817 
3 (}ol,j 

:?8 3" 
19968 

7.78!> 
24U 

!1400 

Actual 2005 

u;;-s 
27.000 
9,817 

28Z79 
20000 

7.78S 
2414 

~·oo 

Proposed 2006 

:18.96? 
20.500 

7.980 
2.47< 
~.400 

Actual 2006 PropoM<I 

~.486 

24 .000 
7,980 
2.<l14 
9 400 

~ 486 
24.000 

7.!180 
2.474 
9-400 

0 • 67.378 6'1.Jol() 5!1.3-'1 

21! 311 
19.968 
7.785 
24 U 

s '83 

46 279 
7693 
2 4 14 
5,781 

46279 
7~3 
2.414 

13.250 

29.559 
18.720 
7 78!J 
2 41 4 
5.783 

29079 
19.200 
7,785 
2AI<I 
s 783 

2980< 
19.680 
7,980 
2A7 4 

~ 78-.' 

21 '50 
26.000 

7.980 
2.474 
5783 

21.-Ci<i 
21!,000 

7 .91!0 
2 471 
5 783 

6-1.262 1>5.724 6~.724 .724 

""279 
7.693 
2.4 14 
5.763 

48.279 
7693 
2.4. 14 

13.250 

30.279 
18.000 
7 7115 
2 414 
5.783 

49436 
7.685 
2.47 .. 
5783 

.&9 >486 
7,S85 
2,4 74 

!3.250 

31.036 
e.•"< 
7.900 
2.474 
5783 

• 9.486 
7.685 
2 .!74 

s 783 

19 466 
7.885 
2,474 

!l.250 

29.486 
20.000 

7.900 
2 474 
5783 

19 48e 
7!!115 
2 474 

783 

49 466 
7,8115 
2.474 
3,250 

211.466 
20.0110 

7?f!IJ 
2 474 
5 783 

"" . 64~·--· - l ... . . .--'~ .. .c-~-·. -.64.2&2 -..:s :t .,_ -._ ~· • .. _.,. ...... I .e:• 65 ..,. 
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Free Will Baptist 
Bible College 

President's Report 

This past semester I bad the opportunity to teach a senior seminar in Free Will Baptist history. It 
was a tremendous experience. and it remindecl me vividly of why we do what we do at Free \.Vill Baptist 

Bible Collegf': we exist for the purpose of educating leaders to servl' Christ, His church, and His world 

through Biblical thought and life. 
Spending time with these seniors who had come through four years of study dramatically im-

pressed on me the impact that we have on students who experience a Free Will Baptist Bible College 

education. l have watched these students grow. 1 have seen them mature into Christian leaders whom 
God '"'ill powf'rfully ul>e in Lhe service of His kingdom, some in full-time \'Ocational ministry, other" in 

education or the marketplace. Regardless of the major fields our students are studying (and those are 

increasing every year), they are being transformed for a life of sen ice to Christ, to minister in and 

through the church, and to change the world. It is an honor to be part of that process. 

An Outstanding Year 
This has been an outstanding year at FWBBC. We had our highest enrollment in 21 years. 

Over the past four years, the college enrollment bas grown by 34 percent, with a 28 percent increase in 

dormitory student enrollment. More and more students arc making Free wm Baptist Bible College the 

choice for their higher education experience, and we arc counting on you to point your students to 

FWBBC for superior Christian higher education in a Free Will Baptist context. 

A New Provost 
Exciting changes are happening. We have created the position of Provost, chief academic officer of 

the college, and have brought Dr. Greg Ketteman on board to fill that post. He is a godly layman with a 
strong Free Will Baptist heritage, a distinguished rerord of educational administration, and a deep 
commitment to local church ministry. lie will help us move forward in our commitment to academic 

excellence in Christian h1gher education. 

An Administrative Adjustment 
Dr. Milton Fields (Academic Dean) has shifted into the position of Vice President for Institutional 

Planning, and will help us navigate accreditation issues and strategic planning. Treasurer Tom Sass has 

been renamed Vice President for Financial Affairs, Director of Institutional Advancement David 

Williford has been renamed Vice President for Institutional Advancement, and Dean of Students Jon 
Forlines has been renamed Vice President for Student Services and Dean of Students. These changes 

will place us on a firm footing as we improve our quality as an educational institution. 
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Free Will Baptist Bible College The President's Report 

Strategic Changes 

This was also the first year of our Strategic Plan, which calls for, among other things, a feasibiHty 

s tudy for the relocation of our college campus, working toward a bachelor's degree in nursing, and the 

implementation of master's degree programs in theology and ministry as well as teacher education. 

We arc already pushing hard in these three important areas, with an aggressive feasibility study on 

r<>locntion that is taking place at the time of this writing, preparation for a bachelor's degree program in 

nursing that would be offered by Free Will Baptist Bible College in cooperation with Belmont University 

in Nashville, and committees studying what we would have to do to launch master's degree programs in 
theology and ministry and in teacher education. 

A Ministry Mentality 

Change is exciting, but it does not move us from our historic commitments to root our curriculum in 
Scripture and to inculcate a ministry mentality in our students. We show new gains each year in our 
students' weekly Christian Service experiences. 

Pastorall\linistry remains our fastest gro·wing academic major-we have finally exceeded the 50 

mark in enrollment in that program. graduating six Pastoral Ministry majors this year. God is still 

calling young men to the ministry of tbe Word, and we are equipping them to shepherd the flock of God 
in Free Will Baptist churches. 

Your Vital Role 

None of this would be possible without the prayers and support of our Free Will Baptist people. 

Continue to pray for us, to recommend FWBBC to your students, and to support us financially so that 

we can continue to provide an excellent Christian community of faith and learning for Free Will Baptist 
students. 
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Free Will Baptist Bible College 
Financial Aid/Ubrary Reports 

Financial Aid Report 
2005-2006 

Type of Aid 
:"'umber 

of Recipients 

Amount of Aid 

48 .......................................... $ 87.982.59 
Institutional Loans ... : ........ ... .... .......................................... 

87 
............................................. 13~!.078.22 

Smdcnt Worker Ea~11ngs ............................................. · ... 3
06 

........................................... 528.131.42 
FWBRC Scholarsh1ps ....... : ....... ······· · .......... ········· .. 

39 
........................................ 131.882.00 

Tennessee Grant/Scholarship Programs ... . ........ . . is :· ............................................ 19.275.00 
I SEOG ··· ··· ...... ........ .. . .. . . . . . 3 II o 18 2 I Federa ..................................... l3l ...... ......... .............................. ,o · 

Federal Pell Grant .................................. ......................... 
1 6 

........................................... 22.343 00 
Federal Work-~rudy Program···· ............................... ····· ................. 723.543 9R 
Federal SubsidiZed Stafford Loan Program ··· · ........ ·· ~ ! ~ ........ · .:::::·::.::::: ................. 456.134.00 
Federal Unsubsidized Stafford Ltlan Program· ....... 

6
·
1 

· ··::: .. : .......................... ... 483.755 00 

Federal PLUS Loan Program ...... ······ ... JJ .......................................... 331.619.00 
Alternative Loans ....................................................... · 

76 
........ ...................................... 71.530.00 

External Scholarships................ .......... .. ........................ . 

006 _ ......... - ....... $3,306.092.42 Total Financial Aid Administered, 2005-2 ............................................... .. 

Welch Library Report 

Accession Count . 
65 716 General Collecllon .............................. ······· · • 

Curriculum Lab ............................................ 5•924 

ll istoncal Collection ··· ................................. 2·0 12 

Sound recordings ......................................... 3·224 

Music Collection ......................................... 5·790 

Electronic books ......................................... 1 11·254 

ERIC microfiche .................................... · 74·630 

Collection Statistics from Athena 
540 R t. . ........... 4,. c crcncc ........................ .............. ·· 

General collection ..................................... 52·757 

CurLob (pedagogy & children's books) ...... 1 .58~ 
R · dcr ................... l.3 5 cmatn ............................. .. 
Music collection ..................... ........................ 306 

E-books ..................................................... 1 :·~~~ 
ERIC Microfiche ....................................... 7 · 

Mtcrofiche books ............................................ 426 
TOTAL Athena Count: .......................... ....... 152·074 

TOT . Count· ... 175.976 A L Accesston . . .... · ··· ·· ·· · · ··· · · · ... · · · 

. ms tb.lt have: been w«:dc:d. losl, or de-acces~ioned Note T!lc: accessoon count d~XS nat mclw:lc: otc 
. h 1 1~~ or >Offit book ottm~ cumculum lah uems ~e tstonca • ~ .... 

The: Athcru1 count does not mcludc: some: 

A- 225 



p 

Free Will Baptist Bible College Registration Repart 

2005-06 REGISTRATION REPORT 

Enrollment ....................................... ....... 409 

t:nrollmen t Breakdowns by : 

Statl': 
Alabama .................................... 19 
1\rk::msas ................................... 27 
Califomw ................................... 6 
rJonda ...................................... 14 
(;eorgHI ..................................... 2 I 
ll llnots ........................................ 25 
lndtana ........................................ 7 
Kansas ......................................... ~ 
Kentucky .................................. I I 

Clas~i fi catiun: 
frc1.hmcn .. .. .............. 106 
Sophomores . .. . ...... .. ........ .. I 07 
Jumor. ............................ 89 
Scn(()r~ . . . ... ... . ........ . ........... 70 
Spectal .. ..... . . . ........ . ....... •37 

Vocational : ** 
Pastotal ................................... 52 
YM'C'l.: .................................... 31 
Misstons . ..... ... .. ................... 34 
Mmtstry Emphasts ...................... 9 
Bu~me~s ........................ 6 1 

Michigan ................................ 24 
Mississippi ................................ X 
M. . ? J ISSOUf l ............................. -

North Carolina.. .................. 42 
Ohio .... .......... . .......... .......... I 0 
Oklahoma ... ... . ... .. .. . ... ..... . . 2 
Oregon .......... ....... .......... .. I 
Pennsylvania.... .. ... 2 
South Carolina . 13 

Otber Categories : 
New ................ ....................... 6R 
Returning ......... ........ .......... .. 23 
Conunuing ...... ......... ....... 253 
Transfer .................................. . ~X 
Spec tal ................................ • '\ 7 

Nlale ..... ..................... ...... 216 
Female. ....... .......... ..... .. 193 

Single .................................. 315 
Married ......... ..... ........ .. ...... . 94 

English .. .... . .. .. .. .... ....... ..... .... . . 12 
General Studies.......... ......... . .. .. 5 
Htstory .................................... 7 
Music. ................... .......... 17 
Psychology ..... .... ... .. . ........ . . 24 

Tennessee ................................ 114 
Tcxa!> ............................................ 6 
Virginia ..................................... 20 
West Virginia .... .......................... 5 
International .. .. .......................... 9 
The ~t udcn t body r~prcscnt~ 22 states 
(U.S.A.) and 5 countries /Bahamas, Canad.!. 
Korea. Mon1:olia, Ru:.sia). 

Dom111ory ................................ 258 
Commmcf!> .. .. ........................ 98 
L1fchme Lcammg ..................... 19 
Adult IXgree Program ............. 34 

l-ull-time .................................. 320 
Pan-time .................................... 89 

Free Will Baprist ...................... 366 
Other .......................................... 43 

ExcrCt!-ic Setencc .......................... 9 
Sp.:cial ......................................... I 
Teacher Education ............... •••84 
Umlc:clared .............................. 27 
Non-degree part-time ................. 36 
Po~t -bac T r ..... ... . ... .... .. ····J2 

• 36 of the srudent) denoted as "Special" are non-{!egree part-ume srudents. 
•• There rue :.orne pastoral srudents listed in other maJors. 
•••Teacher Educauoo mcludes these areas: Btble. Early Chtldhood. Elementary, [nghsh. Htstof}, .Music. and Physrcal 
Edu,auon. 

••· •Post-bac mcludc~ any student wtth a bachelor's degree from a regtonall} accrcdttcd college wnh a major and number of 
requtr.:d hours m a maJor nus totalts also mcluded m rhe l cacher Cduc:.thon rrogram 
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Will Baptist Bible College Free 

Prc~ idcnt* 
Salary 
Social Security 
Rcttn::mcnt 
Medical Insurance 
Lt re l no;urance 

Acadcmrc Dean 
'\alary 
Social Security 
Rett~ment 

Med ical lnsuranct: 
Life Jnsuram:e 

t'\(h anccmcnt Dtrector 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retrrement 
Medical insurance 
Ltfe Insurance! 

freasurer 
Salary 
Soctal Secunry 
Retirement 
Medical Insurance 
Life lnsuranec 

Salary Breakdown 

2004-05 

ot.goo 
4,72X 
'i,562 

I O.R60 
240 

8~. 190 

50.145 
l..R\n 

4.51 ~ 
4.608 

2..t0 
63.34~ 

43.412 
3.321 
3.Q07 
7,128 

240 
58.008 

48.576 
3.716 
4.372 
4,608 

240 
61.512 

211115-06 

63.654 
4,R70 
~. 729 

11.261 
240 

87.7~4 

51 649 
l..9'i I 
4.6..t8 
R.69Q 

240 
69,187 

46.017 
3.520 
.tJ42 
8.699 

240 
62.618 

50,032 
3Jl27 
4,503 
5,624 

240 
64,226 

Salary Breakdowns 

211116-07 

65.564 
5.016 
6.229 

11.61X 
192 

S8.639 

53.19R 
4.070 
5.054 
4.314 

IC)2 
66.8~8 

47.398 
3.626 
4.503 
8JQ6 

192 
64.545 

5 1,533 
3,942 
4,896 
4,314 

192 
64.877 

- d d ( lh Soctal ~ccunl) \andiiOnl \chtck prn' tded • Ca'llpus hou.mg pro\, c ..,, 
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Free Will Baptist Bible College 

July I 8, 2005 

Synopsis of Minutes 
Board of Trustees 

Synopsis of Board Minutes 

Tom Sass reported the fo llowing: 

• The college found it unnecessary to draw on the line of c redit during r.he spring semester for 
renovation expenses. 

• The college showed a $400,000 surplus. incl uding the sale of the Central Avenue property. 
• Cao:;h Oow is gradually improving; expenses are down; income is steady. 

The Board voted to present Peggy Jo McElh inney wi th a leuer of commendation and a gift from the 
college. 

December 7, 2005 

Pres1dent Mall Pinson reponed the highest fall enrollment in 21 years and expects the highest annual 
enrollment m 11 yean;. Adult and Online enrollments are also increa!)ing. The Board voted to sell the 
Jot!! ton property, to sign a letter of intent to sell the current campus. and to seek suitable property for 
relocation. President Pinson will sene as the chair of the Relocation Committee. Colonel Mark 
Johnson (Ret.) will serve as Campus Relocation Project Consultant. The Strategic Plan 2005-2012 was 
approved. 

Gary Fry, Cha1rman 
Archie Ratliff, Vice-Chairman 
Greg Kettcman. Secretary 
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Free Will Baptist 
Bible College 3606 Wot End Avenu~ 

Nashville, TN 37205-2498 
61 S-383-1340 

Fax: 615-269-6028 
www.fwbbc.cdu 

20os-06 Financial Report 

Tmy A Holl 
Em~tll Ho~r 

Hill, Harper & Associates 
C~rtified Public Accountants 

T he Board of T rustees 
Free Will Baptist Bible College: 

7b I Old IUck<Jry Boole-vnd 
Stutt 206 
8rfi\lwood. TN 37027 
TEL: 61S/Jn.J.4SS 
FAX 615/377 3488 

. f F Will Bapttst Bible College as of May 31, 
We have audited the statements of financial positron o ·r~ chan tn net assets, and cash flows for 
2006 d 2005 and the related statements of actovrtt~ an ~~ f the College's management. 

an ' financial statements arc the responso 1 11Y 0 . 
the years then ended. l1lesc . . non these financoal statements based on our audots. 
Our responsibality is to express an opmao . 

. . andards enerally accepted in the llmted States 
We conducted our audits in accordance wath audlttng sl d f~ m the audits to obtain reasonable 
of America. Those standards rcq~ire that we plan a; or'::t:rial misstatement An audit includes 
assurance about whether the financaal state~ents are fre nts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
exAmining, on a test basis, evidence supponcng.thc amou pies used and significant estimates made by 
An audit also includes assesson.g the accoun:;n~n~~~~~; statement presentation. We believe that our 
management, as well as evaluatcng the ov~r? I 

auditS provide a reasonable basis for our oponoon. 

bove resent fairly, in all material respects, t~e 
In our opinion the financial statements referred to a p 31 2006 and 2005, and Its changes m 
financial positi~ of Free Will Baptist Bible Codll~gc a~f~~ty ~ith accounting principles generally 

.. nd cash flows for the years then en e on net asse ... a . 
accepted in the United States of Amenca. 

tk~~~~ 
/ 

J uly Jl , 2006 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BffiLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Financial Position 

May JJ. 2006 and 2005 

Current assets: 
A~ 

ca~h Jnd ca~h cqul\ alents 

lnw~unents '" marketable securities. at market value 
\cn lUIII\ recel\'able , net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 

$10.000 m 200() and 2005 · 
Prcpa1d expcmcs 
Invent one\ 

Total current assets 
NtJn currt>nt assets: 

Cash: 

Rcstnctcd for endowments 
Rl'Slnctcd for ~tudent loans 

lnveMment~ in marketable securities, at market value· 
Restncted for endowments 
Held under life income agreements 

\amp:ugn pledge~ 

Loan~ to studenb. Jess allowance for doubtful loans 
of$ I 7.000 in 2006 and 2005 

Deferred rciOl.allon expenses 
Joelton propert} held for sale 

Total non current assets 
Proper!), plant and equipment: 

lm cstment m property, plant and equipment 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net property. plant and equipment 

Total assets 

Current liabilities: 
Liabilities and Net ASSds 

Account~ payable and accrued expenses 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Notes payable 

Studem deposits and agency funds 
Accrued salaries 

Deferred revenues - summer school and other 

Total current liabilities 
Long-term debt 

Total liabiluies 
Net assets: 

Unrestncted funds 

Temporarily restncted funds 
Permanently restricted funds 

Total net assets 

Total hab•lities and net assets 

See accompanying notes to rmancial statements. 
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s 

s 

llli!.6 lOO.S 
s I .063.429 1,163,209 

23.022 34,268 

429.793 247,129 
4,611 6,275 

- 29,430 

I .520,855 1.480,3 11 ---

444,616 361,429 
383.317 396,645 

540.580 518,940 
4.164 3,828 

20,000 23,620 

162.678 149,975 
49.033 

854,192 _ 1.007,740 

2.458,580 2,462,177 

8,064,475 7,842,542 
3,625,603 3.542.505 ----
4,4_;38,872 4,300,037 

8.418,307 8,242.525 

193,628 265,394 
6,239 5.593 

1,540. I 29 1,565,678 
161,785 121,499 
I 38,568 129,595 
68,381 78,284 

2,108,730 2,166,04~ 
25,755 __ 31,943 

2,134,485 2,197.986 

4.466,754 4,436,063 
322.413 224,090 

1,494,655 1,384,386 

6,283,822 ~044,539 

8,418,307 8,242,525 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

For the years ended May 31, 2006 and 2005 

2006 
Temporaril) Permanently 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total 

Eunds Euods Eunds ~ zoos 
Revenues: 

Tuition and fees s 2.917.444 2.917,444 2,661.957 

Federal grants and contracts 38,382 38.382 35.357 

Private gifts 1,237,515 177.732 70,..109 1.485.656 1,281A20 

Endowment income 2,761 2,761 5,196 

Investment income 36,014 15,292 5,092 56,398 38,444 

Gain on investment transactions 2,097 585 39,876 42.558 23.187 

Gain on sale of College property 1,000 1,000 266,383 

Revenues of auxiliary enterprises 1,146,629 1,146,629 1,263,038 

Other sources 9,94_t (5,1 08) 4,840 ( 11 ,376) -
5.353,408 231.991 I 10.269 5,695,668 5,563.606 

Net assets released from restrictions 133,668 (133,668) - - ·-

Total revenues 5,487.076 98,323 I 10,269 5.695.668 5,563,606 --
Expenditures: 

Educational and general: 
Instruction 1,633.276 1.633,276 1,568.766 

Academic support 421,898 421 ,898 395,958 

Student services 629,032 629.032 611,901 

Institutional support 1,737,169 1,737,169 1.474,774 

Total educational and general 
expenditures 4,421.375 4.421,375 4,051.399 - - -

Auxiliary enterprises: 
Dormitories 506.328 506,328 459.877 

Dining hall 511.314 511,314 500,696 

Bookstore 8.680 8.680 75,836 

Snacks hop 8,688 8.688 I 0. I 41 

Total auxiliary enterprises 
expenditures I ,035.0 10 1,035,010 - 1,046.550_ 

Total expenditures 5.456.385 5.456,385 5,097,949_ 

Increase in net assets 30.691 98,323 110,269 239,283 465,657 

Net assets at beginning of year 4,436,063 224,090 _ 1,384.386 6.044.539 5,578,882 - - · 

Net assets at end or year s 4.466,7~4_ - }2b_41 3 1,494 6~5 6,283.822 6,044.539 
-

See accompanying notes to rmancial statements. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended Ma)' 31, 2006 a nd 2005 

2006 
Temporarily Permanently 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 
Eunds Funds Funds ~ C01~h Oowrt (cam OKM:calinK ili:livilis:s 

c.~~h collected from students $ 4.063,903 4.063.903 Federal grant~ 19,275 19.275 
Federal Pcll grants considered to be agency 

fund transactions 317.424 317.424 Priv;ue gafts and grants 1.050.733 85,866 1.136,599 
Endowment tncome 2.761 2,761 Investment income 36,324 15.292 51,616 
Other revenues 9,948 9,948 
Cash paid for scholarships. to vendors 

and for payroll (4.947,584) ( 133,668) (5,081.252) 
Cash pait.l for Federal Pell grants __ (317,424) (3 I 7 .424) --

Net operating activuies cash flows 

Cash OI!»:.S from iol:s:slin& •u:livitii!S 
216,085 (13.235) 202,850 

Marketable secunues purchased (2<14,358) (244.358) 
Proceeds from sale of plant assets 1.000 1,000 
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 42,197 262,594 304,791 
Expended for plant assets (367,256) (367,256) 
Relocauon expenses - deferred (49,033) (49,033) 
Student notes receJvable, net change (10,155) (10,155) 

Net anvesting activitaes cash flows (373.092) 8,081 (365,01 I) 
Cash Onw.s Cram ~:uuilalutil:itii!S 

Campaign pledges receivable collected 3,620 3,620 
Gifts received for 

Ent.lowments and student loans 70,409 70.409 
Proposed new campus 9 1,866 91,866 

Other student loan transactions: 
I merest income on student loans 10,775 10,775 
Investment income 

5,092 5.092 
Collect ion cosL~ and other transactions {15.883) (15,883) --

Net capital activities cash flows 95,486 70,393 1 65~79 
C.asb fl!!»:.s Cram Onaocio& octivilii!S 

Proceeds from notes payable advances 74,451 74,45 I 
Repayment of debt ( I 05,542) (105,542) 
lnterfund activities 88,3 I 8 (82.251) (6.067) 
Notes payable for student loans, net (2,548} (2,548) 

Net financing activities casb flows 57.2!:7 ~2.251) (8.615) (33,639) 
Net increase (decrease) in cash 

and cash equivalents (99.780) 69.859 (29.92 1) 
Cash and cash equavaJents ar 

begin nang of year _ 1,163,209_ 758.074 1,921,283 -Cash and cash equivalents at 
at end of year S I 063,429 827,931_ 1,891,362 
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Total 

~ 

3,91 1,050 
55.683 

322,823 
1.186,380 

5,196 
21.638 
6,525 

(4,689,960) 
(322,823) 

496.512 

(231.815) 
307,412 
237,685 

(357,532) 

(5,021) 

(49,27Q 

26,380 

42,431 
12,199 

4,285 
3.156 

(3 1,186~ 

57,265 

{5,406) 

(353) 

(5.759) 

498.747 

1,422,536 

1,921,283 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Cash Flows, continued 

For the years ended May 31, 2006 and 2005 

Unn>st rieted 
Funds 

C h nd cash equivalents consis t of the foUowing: 
as a s 1.063.429 

Current assets 
Non current assets: 

Cash restricted for endowments 
Cash restricted for student loans 

Total cash and cash equivalents s _l,Q63,429 __ 

Reconciliation of increase in net assets to 
net operating activities cash flows 

$ 30.691 Increase an net asset~ .. 
Transactions cons•dered to be capital addauon~: 

Gifts for endowments and student loans 
Proposed new campus 
Ner other transactions from 

student loan funds 
Deprecaation 
lmpaarment of Joelton property 
Gain on investment rransaerions 
In kind asset gafts 
Gain on sale of College propeny 
(lncrease) decrease in current assets: 

Accounts receivable: 
Student accounts 
Employee and other 
Be<tuest 
Federal student financial aid funds 
Pledges receivable 
Less allowance for doubtful account~ 

Inventories 
Prepaid expenses . . .. 

Increase (decrease) in current habahtJes: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Student deposits and agency funds 
Accrued salaries 
Deferred revenues 

228.421 
153.548 

(2.097) 
(28,915) 

( 1.000) 

(30,553) 
9,505 

(145,000) 

2.491 

29,430 
1,664 

(71.766) 
40,596 

8,973 
_ __,_(9 ...... 903) 

Net operating activities cash nows s 216,085 

Supplemental disclosures: 
Interest expense 
Interest capitalized 

Interest paid 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

2006 
Temporarily 
Re~tricted 

f:!w.sJs 

98.323 

(91,866) 

(585) 

(19.107) 

5 

J>ermanently 
Rest ricted 

Funds 

444,616 
383,3 17 

- 827,93~ 

110.269 

(70,409) 

16 

(39,876) 
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T otal 

~ 

1.063.429 

444.616 
383.317 

1,891.362 

239,283 

(70,409) 
(91.866) 

16 
228,421 
153.548 
(42,558) 
(28,9 15) 

( 1.000) 

(30.553) 
9,505 

(145,000) 
(19,1 07) 

2.491 

29.430 
1,664 

(7 I ,766) 
40596 

8,973 
(9.903) 

202,850 

62,361 
18,706 

81,067 

Total 

~ 

1.163.209 

361.429 
396.645 

t ,921!2JD 

465.657 

(42.431) 
(12,199) 

14,745 
224,227 

(23.187) 
(40,020) 

(266,383) 

(4.305) 
1,70 I 

24.294 
10.000 
8.881 

31,336 

111,827 
(40.694) 

2,009 
31,05~ 

496.512 
- - --

50.495 

50]495_ 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

For the years ended Ma) 3 1, 2006 and 2005 

The hee W1ll Bapllst B1ble College operates under the auspice~ of the Nauonal A~sociation of rree Will Baptists, Inc. and 
1s governed by a Board of Trustees 

( J ) Swnmao of Si,gllilican t Accounting Policies 

Basis or l<'inanciaLStatement Presentation 

The financial statements of the College have been prepared on the arcnwl basis of account in g. 

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restriCtions placed on the use of resources avai lable to the College, 
the accounts of the College are maintained in <~ccordance With the principles of "fund accountmg". This is the 
procedure by wh1ch resources for various purposes are clas~ified for accounting purposes into funds that are in 
accordance with activities or objectives as specified by donors, in accordam.:c with regulations, restrictions, or 
limitations imposed by sources outside the institution, or in accordance with directions issued by the governing board. 

These financial statements, however, have been prepared to focu~ on the emity as a whole and to present 
tran~actions according to the existence or <~bsence of donor-unposed restrictions in conformuy with Statements 
of Fmancial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 116 "Accounting for Contributions Received and Contnbutions 
Made" and No. 117 "Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Orgamntions". Th1s has been accomplished by 
class1tying fund transact tOns 1010 three categories of net asseb: unrc\trictcd net assets which have no donor­
Imposed restrictions. temporarily restricted net assets which have donor-impo'>cd restnctions that expire in the future, 
and pcnnanemly restricted net assets which have donor 1mposed restncllons wh1ch do not expire. 

Expiratio.n..of Dl)nor -l mposed Restrictions 
The cxp1ra11on of a donor-imposed restriction on a contribution is recognized 10 the penod 10 which the restriction 
e\p1rc~ and at that time the related resources are reclassified to unrestnctcd net assets. A restriction expires wben 
the stipulated lime has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for wh1ch the resource was restricted has been 
fulfilled, or both 

Plcdg~ec.eivfl.lm 

These amounts. less an appropriate reserve, are recorded at their esum::ued fa1r value with amounts due later than 
one year at the present value of estimated future cash nows 

Property. Plant and Equipment 

Plant assets, consisting of land, buildings, other land improvements, equipment and furnishings, library books, and 
costs related to proposed new campus arc stated at cost or estimated fair value at date of gift. Expenditures for 
acquisition of assets in excess of $250 arc capitalized as investment 111 plant. 

Depreciable assets are depreciated on a straight-line bas1s over the est imated useful lives of the assets, ranging 
from 5 to 50 years. The current provision for depreciation is reported as an expenditure of the College. 

lnyentor ies 

Inventories, consisting of books and supply item<>, were valued at cost, with cost being determined on the first-in. 
first-out method Randall House Publications assumed operational responsibility during the year- see note 7. 

l nyestments 

Investments are reported at market value to comply with Financial Accounting Standards No. 124, "Accounting for 
Certain Investments of Not for Profit Organizations.· 

E.uima~ 
The preparauon of financ1al statements requ1res management to make estimate~ and assumptions that affect the 
reponed amounts of assets and liabilities and d1sclosure of cont10gent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financtal statements and the reported amounts or revenues and expenses during the reponing period. Actual results 
could d1ffer from those estimates. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

SJ!mmarv of Significant Accounting Pl)licies. cl)nt inued 

locome Taxes . d I I Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3); accordingly, no provi~ion 
Th College IS exempt from mcome taxes un er ntema 
foremcome taxes has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

Cash pnd Cash Equivalents 'd 11 cash on hand deposits in financial institutions 
f ash flows the College cons1 ers a · · . 

For purposes of the statement o c . , . . . f hrcc months or less to be cash and cash eqUJvalents. 
and highly hquid debt Instruments with an ongmal matunty o I 

Compensated Absences . ' d 'ck da sand personal days off, depending on job 
Employees of the College are entitled to paid vaca~t~n,pal stt'cal t~ estimate the amount of compensation for 
classification, length of service and other factors. t ts lmpradc d• . the .accompanying financial statements. The 

d' 1 r bility has been recor e m 
future absences, and accor t_ng y. no 13 f t d . bsenccs when actually paid to employees. 
College's policy is to recoglllze the cost o compensa e a 

Fair value of Financial Instruments bl d accrued expenses approximate fair value 
The carrying value of cash. account~ r~ceivable. acc~nt~ paya ::~es of liabilities are not materially different 
because of the short mawriry of these mstruments. e carrying 

from the estimated fair values of these instruments 

Contributed Ser vices . . and an offsetting expense or an asset if the 
. d d~d as contnbuuon revenue 

In kmd contributJons. when rna e, are recor " · . . 1 nerally accepted in the United States of 
. ·bed by accounllng pnnc1p es ge 

~o;~~~:atiol~ ~~~:~netr:~:~:~/~:~~enected 10 the financial stateme~ follows: 
2005 

Equipment 
Common stock investments . 
Operation and maintenance of plant supphes 
Business office sa lanes 
Instructional supplies 

28,915 

15,358 

s--44.273 

20,100 
19.920 
3.000 

15.872 
5,812 

64.704 

Scholarship Allowances I Tujtio~ and Fees II . . d fcc revenue net of any scholarship allowance. A 
Colleges and universities are required to report a tuttJon an d h ge of goods and services provided by the 

. d fi d th difference between the state c ar 
scholarship allowance 1s e me as e dl h' d rt'es making payments on behalf or the student. 
mstitution and the amount tbat is billed to the s tudent an or I lr pa I 

Operation pod Maintenance or Plant II t d mong functional expenditure categories based 
Expenditures for operation and maintenance of plant are a oca e a 
on actual usage of buildings as determined based on square footage. 

Financial Statement Presentation ned in the prior year 10 conform to current year 
Certain reclassifications may have been made to the amounts as repo 
presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on reported net assets. 

Accounts Receivable . . 
Accounts receivable included in current assets IS as follows. 

Student accounts 
Employee and other 
Bequest 
Federal student financial aid funds 
Pledges receivable 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 
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~ 
147,724 
75,218 

145,000 
19,107 
72,744 

--4-:-::59.793 
30,000 

429,793 

~ 
117.171 
84,723 

75.235 -----
277,129 

30.00Q.. 
247,129 --=-
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

llru.s~etable &curities 

lnves_rmem securities are stared at market value. The following table summarizes by type the relationship between 
carrymg value and market value of the investment assets. 

Balance May 31, 2006 

Permanently Restricted Funds: 
Common ~tocl. 
Mutual funds 
Variable annuity contracts 

Temporanly Restricted Funds: 
Variable annui ty contracts 

Unrestricted Funds· 
Common stock 
Variable annuity contracts 

Balance May 31,2006 

Ba lance May 31, 2005 

Current assets 
Non current assets: 

Restnc ted for endowments 

Cost or 

I!JWs 

s 173,403 
166.161 
157,856 

8. 121 

13,823 
6,362 

s 525,726 
=--~~ 

s 544,547 

Held under life mcome agreements 

Reconciliation of gain on investment transactions: 
Realized garn on sale of securities 
Unrealized gain due to change in the cumulative 

change m market value pools 

Gain on investment transactions 

Market 
v~ 

232,133 
165,108 
143,339 

7,922 

12,385 
6,879 

=- 567,766 

551_036 

s 

Excess of Unrealized UnreaJiuct 
Market Over Cumulative CumuJalive 
CUnder> Cost Gains Losses 

58,730 58,730 
(I ,053) ( 1,053) 

( 14,517) 
(14,517) 

(199) 
(199) 

( I ,438) (1,438) 
517 517 

42,040 57,677 (15,637) --;,___,_-

12,489 41,855 =-(29,366) =---=----
~ ~ 

23,022 34.268 

540,580 518,940 
4,164 3,82~ 

S_ 5671 766 557.036 

.s 13.007 2,851 

29,55 1 _ 32,438 
$ _42,558 35,289_ 

The Free WilJ Baptist Foundation holds funds for the benefit of the College as follows : 
Endowments from which the College receives income $ _ 884,18 1 244 179 
Gifts to pass to the College at some future date 

Net Assets Released From Rest rjcljons 

Donor imposed restrictions expired oo temporarily restricted net assets as follows: 
Expenditures made for donor imposed restrictions: 

Private scholarships 

FederaJ Supplemental Educational Opponunity Grant 
Federctl Work Study Program 

Other instructional and institutional 
Renovation expenduures 
Potential relocation 

Net assets released from restrictions 

s 46,509 
20,560 
17,822 
19,458 
2, 108 

27,2 J I 

-= 
418 233 

-= 

$=-====) 3=3'!::,6:;68~ 
Federal Pelf grants to students amounting to $317,424 and $322,823 for 2006 and 2005, respectively, are not 
included in expenditures or net assets released from restrictions. Federal Pelf grants are considered to be agency 
transactions in that the student payments are entitlements and the fu nds are not under the control of the College. 

8 

A- 236 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BffiLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

. . Net Assets of Temporarily Restricted funds . . 
Remaamfll~ f t mporarily restricted funds are available for the followang purposes. Net assets o e 

Proposed new campus 
Scholarships 
Life income funds 
Other mstructional and institutional 

Net AsselS . f M 31 2006 and 2005: Net assets of the College consist of the followmg as o ay • 2006 -

Unrestricted funds: 
Operations s 
Board designated for reserves 

Life income funds 
Unexpended funds restricted for: 

Operating purposes 
Plant faci lines 

Student loan funds 
True endowment funds 
Scholarship endowment funds 

Total net assets 

Unrestricted 

3,716.516 
750,238 

T empo rarily 
Restricted 

3.889 

220.847 
97,677 

=--==32:::2,41 !. 
Property. Plant and Equipment . . 
Components of property. plant and equapment are as follows. 

Land 
Renovation in progress (current campus) 
Buildings 
Equipment 
Library books 

Accumulated depreciation and amonization 
Net investment in plant 

Depreciation and amonization charged to expenditures 

Permanently 
Restricted 

557.497 
134,220 
802.938 

I ,494.655 

s 

s 
s 

~ 
97.677 

154,062 
3.889 

66,785 
322.413 

Total 

~ 

3.716,5 16 
750.238 

3.889 

220.847 
97.677 

557.497 
134,220 
802,938 ----

6,283,822 

~ 
496.871 

5,082.762 
1.784,050 

700,792 
8,064,475 
3,625,601._ 

4,438~?2 

228J41L ---

~s 
32,771 

141,583 
3.553 

46.183 
224,090 

Total 

~ 

3,830,825 
605.238 

3.553 

187,766 
32,771 

550.055 
134,220 
700.1 11 -- --
~539_ 

z..oos 
496.87 I 
166,488 

4.664.692 
1.850.094 

664,397 
7:842,542 

3,542,505_ 

4,300,03~-

234.227_ 

{7) Related Party Transactions 

Randa ll House Publications d snackshop were assumed by Randall 
· f the College's bookstore campus store an 

1 During the YC:U:· the operation~ . ~nded May 31 , 2006 of $ 17.368 relates exclusa~e Y to 
House PublicaiJons. Expenses mcurred dunn~ the YC3J d . the year ended May 3 I. 2005 of $85,977 mcludc 
occupancy costs for the operations. Expenses mcurre unng 
both occupancy costs and cost of materials sold. 

N · 1 A ia tion or F ree Will BaRlists . F 
Executive Office or tbeatlon~ ~ssoc . durin the ear to combine the publications of certam ree 
The denomination began a pubh.cau.on (One MagaZlD·~e is fu!ded ~y contributions from each of the agencies and 
Will Baptist agencies and organazataons. One Mag~ h f th funding requirement during the year ended 
organizations. The College provided $45.940 as theu s are o c 
May 31, 2006. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BffiLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

PJedees Rcrejyable 
Pledges reccivahlc arc recorded at estimated reahl.:lblc value after an allowance for potential uncollectible pledges. 
Further. pledge~ receivable expected to be collected in years after the next fiscal year were discounted to the1r present 
values of future ca~h flows usmg an 8% 1n1erc~t factor The followtng summan1cs pledges receivable. 

~nill2nrn!lconsjdered fully collectibltl;_ 
Po\t dated check books and bank draft agreement\ 

Remaining .Joel!on property pledges: 
l lncollccted pledge~ 
I.ess allowance for potcnllal uncollecuhle pledge~ 

~es_£;Jyable and Long-Term D!(bt 
Notes payable: 

Pennanentl)' Restricted f unds- Student Loan Fu nds 
5% unsecured demand notes payable to individuals 

t:n restricted Funds- Notes Pa)able: 
Non-interest hearing, unsecured demand notes to individual 

Umccured demand note, for the purpose of purchase of property or 
renovation of certain fac1littes on the extsting campus. 10 lhe max1mum 
amount of S 1..500.000, beanng interest at 1.25% above the LIBOR rate. 
The tnterest rate at May 3 1,2006 "as 6.32%. Tite loan shall e~pirc 
December 31, 2006. 1f not demanded sooner. 

Unsecured revolving hne of credtt. for lhe purpose of oper.lltonal cash 
needs. in the maximum amount of $500.000. bearing mteresl at 1.25% 
above the UBOR rate. The loan shall exp1re December 3 J. 2006. af not 
demanded sooner No amount is outstandtng on thas line of credit. 

Total notes payable 
Unr~tricted Funds- Long-Term Debt 

10.99% Installment obligation. with monthly paymenb of $787. including 
1nteaest and princtpal. matunng September 2010, secured by a gmnd 
piano. 

Lc~.s current portion of long-term debt 
Long-term debt 

~ 
~ 72.744 

$ 128,000 
(I 08.000) 

$ 20.000 

$ 104.937 

1,435.192 

w 
75,235 

131.620 
( 108.000) 

23,620 

zoos 

107.487 

100.000 

1.358,191 

$ _1,540J19 - 1.565.678 

s 

s 

31.994 
6,239 

25.755 

37.536 
5,593 

31.943 

Principal maturities of long-term debt are ar. follows: 2007 - $6.239: 2008 - $6,957: 2009- $7,768, 
2010-$8,663 and 2011 -$2,367. 

()01 Concentration of Credit Risk 
The College is the insttlutioo of higher education of the NatJonal Associ a lion of Free W1ll Baptists. Inc. and offers 
Bible based educational services to members of the denomination. The College extends credit in certain anstances 
to students for educational costs and makes loans to students from the Loan Funds. The College also rruuntain~ 
certam accounts for sponsored groups. staff purchases, student telephone charges, etc. The College also has 
pledges receivable which are dispersed among numerous supponers of lhe College. These account~ are not 
collateralized and are subject to accounting risk of loss amounung to the outstanding balance at any point an time 

Further, the College has cash funds tnvested at several financial institutions and has risk of accounting loss for funds 
amounting to approximately S 1,650,000 ~ince lhe balance at ccnain financial institutions is greater than the FDIC 
msurable ltmit. The College also owns marketable securities which are subject to accounting risk of loss amounung 
to the recorded balance 
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FREE WlLL BAPTIST BffiLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Pension Plan . vers all re ular employee~. except full-time Mudcnts, hJred 
The College has a defined benefit pensiOn ~I an whtch co f . g d attainment of age 21 Servtce for benefit 

~ . leuon of one year o scrvtce an Th 
pnor to anaming age 61 ollowmg comp . h h the paructpant complete~ at least I ,000 hours. e 
and vesting purposes shall be the number of plan years tn w ac .. . durino the three consecutive years during 

d · ed based on average compensauon ~ 1 benefits on retirement are etermm . d h ch produces the highest average Emp oyee-. 
h rt pant's normal reurement ate w t · . 

the la-.t ten years pnor ~~ t e pa tCI f the lan The College's funding policy is to fund pens ton costs 
are not reqUired to contnbute toward the cost o p. tl a •ed b Sun Trust, Inc . the plan admlm~trawr. 
accrued. The plan assets cons•st of Investments held an man g y -· 

d · h c llel!t:'' ,tatemcnt ol finan\:tal 
hi I forth the plan's funded ~latus and amounts recogm7e Ill I e I' ~ . 

The followtng Ia c se s · 

position: . . l0Q6 ZOOS 
Reconciliation of benefit obhgataons: $ 3.013,793 2,809,590 

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 77,638 87.443 
Service cost 229,5 I 4 213.675 
Interest cost 
Parttcipant contnbutions 
Plan amendment!> 
(Gain) los~ due to actuanal experience 
Gain due to changes Ill ac tuanal assumpuons 

Benefits patd to plan particapants 
Benefit obligation at end of year 

Reconci liation of asse t val ue: 
Plan assets at beginntng of year 

Actual return of plan asseb 
Employer contributions 
Benefits paid to plan partictpanls 

Plan assets at end of year 

Reconciliation of funded status: 
Funded status at end of year (liability) 

Unrecogmzed net transiuon obligauon asset 

Unrecognized prior service cost 
Unrecognized net loss 

Amount included in accrued expense 

Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year 

Vested benefit obligation at end of year 

Reconciliation of unrecognized net Joss: 
Unrecognized loss at beginnmg of year 

Amount of loss recognized during lhe year 
(Gain) loss due to actuarial expenence . 
(Gain) loss due to changes in actuarial assumpuons 

(Gain) loss due to assets 
Unrecognized loss at end of year 

Development of Other Comprehensive income: 

Intangible asset 
Accrued pension benefit cost 
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26,89!\ 

( 131!.950) 
$ 3,208.893 

$ 2.208.072 
90.111 

124,039 
(I 38,950) 

$ 2.283~272 
- -:....;;: 

$ (925,621) 

$ 

870,321 

(?5.300) 

$ 2,899,352 

s 2,874,274_ 

s 784,597 
(38,614) 
26,898 

97.440 
$ 870,321 

$ 

$ 

67.504 
67,504 

16.269 

{113,11!4) 

3,013.793 

2,201,248 
18.863 

101 '145 
(113.184) 

2,208.072_ ---

(805.721) 

71!4,597 

(21,124} 

2,722,472 
- ....=;..:;:_ 

2,693.980 
~--

627,615 
(27.822) 

16.269 

168.535 
784.597_ 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Pensi.Qn Plan. conlinued 

Net periodic benefit cost: 
Service co~ I at end of year 
Interest cost on projected benefit obljgation 
Expected return on plan assets 
Amortization of transition obligauon 
Amortization of prior service costs 
Amortitauon of net loss 

Net periodic benefit cost 

Expected Future Benefit Payments: 
The expected benefit payments for the next ten fiscal years ended May 31. are 

a~ follows: 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
20 12 through 20 16 

Assumptions used for determination of net pension cost: 
Assumed discount rate 
Rare of compensation increase 
Expected long-term rate of return 
Actuarial valuation method 

Assumptions used for determination of end of year obligations: 
Assumed discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 
Expected long-term rate of return 
Actuarial valuation method 

38,614 
$ 158,215 

~ ~ - -

$ 169,895 
186.076 
194,720 
192,356 
207.184 

1,164.556 

7.75% 
4.00% 
8.50% 

Projected 
Unit Credit 

7.75% 
4.00% 

NIA 
Projected 
Unit Credit 

27,822 

7.75% 
4.00% 
8.50% 

Projected 
Unit Credit 

7.75% 
4.00% 

N/A 
Projected 
Unit Credit 

(12) Grgup Health Benefits 
The College provided group health benefit coverage for participating employees through its membersltip in the 
T I_CUA Benefit Conso~JUm: _Th: Consortium is a partially self-insured health benefit plan consisting of sixteen 
pnva~e colleges and umverstlles m Tennessee. and is exempt under Secuon 50 I (c)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
Fu?dmg for the_plan has been based upon actuarial calculations using historical experience of claims paid and 
esllmat~s of clatms outstanding. Claims to date have exceeded contributions. The Board of Directors of the 
Consort tum have anno~oced their decision to assess each member their proportjonate share of the expected 
cash shortfall as of ~p~l_30: 2~. Based on information supplied by the management of the Consortium, the 
College prov1~ed a llabthty m ~~1r fi_nan~ial sratements of S 135.000 as of May 31. 2005. Effective April 30. 2006 
the ~ollcge Withdrew from partJCJpauon m TICUA Benefit Consortium. After payment of claims filed as of 
Apnl 30. 2006. ~ recorded liability remains of S61 ,I 08 as of May 31. 2006. This remaining liability is available to 
sausfy an~ re~aming c_I~ms which were not fLied as of April 30. 2006 and other plan expenses. Any amount of the 
recorded llabtllty remammg as of May 31. 2007 will be taken against expenses. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

fotentjal Relocation Qf Campus 
The Board of Trustees of the College at lis June 2006 meeung unammously approved the following action: 

That FWBBC proceed with campus relocation immediately pending. 
a Sale of current campus for an amount in excess of$ I 6 m1llion. and determination of the monthly lease 

amount to be paid to the buyers during the construction of the new campus. 

b. Purchase of a new site within the boundaries of the project budget w1th closing on the sale of the 
current campus to take place immediately after clos1ng on a new site (Amendment) with each 

transaction contingent on the other. 

The followmg further discusses the condition~ and or her pertinent 1nfonnation regarding the relocation of the campus. 

The College h;1s received an offer from outside invesrors to purchase its campus located on West End Avenue 111 
Nashville Tennessee~ The parties are negotiating certain points regarding financial matters. Management believes 
a contract to sell the current campus is imminent. The potential relocation is contingent on 1 >execution of 
appropriate contract for sale of current campus, 2> locating property for construction of new campus, 3> receiving 
necessary support from the denomination through a capital campaign. and 4> securing debt to complete the 
construction wtth favorable terms. Each of these points is contingent on a lithe other points in order to complete 

the transaction. 

Each point is described in detail: 

I> The offer to purchase the current campus JS as follows: purchase price to exceed $16 million to be received 
in total at date of closing. The matters under negouauon relate to the monthly lease value the College would be 
required to pay to the buyers for use of the campus during the construction period and the phasing of properties 

to be released 

2> The board approved the purchase of land for the site of the new campus within the boundaries of the approved 
project budget of approximately $30.000.000. The relocation committee has reduced the site candidates to a 
small number and nrc in process of determining which site is most desirable for the College's needs. 

3> The College has secured the services of a nationally recogmzed firm to manage the capital gift campaign. This 
firm also has conducted a feas1bility study through the use of questionnaires and direct telephone contact with 
members of the denomination to determine if a capital campaign would be successful. Based on the results 
of this study. the firm believes that individual denommauonal member~ will support the relocation cost with 
contributions approximating $4,000,000. The College has expensed in operations $27.658 relating to this 

capital campaign feasibility study. 

Further. denominational leaders have agreed to assist in obtaining funding from churches and associations of 
churches amounting to approximately S 1,000.000. Also. it is anticipated that approximately $1,000,000 will be 
will be received as gifts in kind (i.e. labor. materials. etc.). Additional funds are anticipated through deferred 
giving arrangements (i.e. wills, trusts, etc.) and grants from foundations and corporations. 

4> The College has received proposals from financial institutions for long-term borrowings to fund the difference 
between construction costs and available resources. The most desi rable loan package includes use of a 
tax-exempt bond offering at attractive interest rates. wtth repayment terms of twenty-five to thirty years. 
Based on the current project budget. anticipated borrowings will approximate $6,000.000. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BffiLE COLLEGE 

Notes to FinanciaJ Statements, continued 

Addit ional funding for the proj ect has been provided as rollows: 

Proc~eds from sale of Joelton property (previous! ac u . . 
carrymg value of the property was .$1 007 740 Uy . q ued as relocation Si te) approximated .$779 000 Th 
h f . • · · mted States gcn 11 . • · e 

t at I an Impairment in tbe recorded value of Jon -lived . . era y accepted accountmg pnnciples require 
~ale occurred 

10 
the '>006 _ o

7 
ti cal g properties. the loss must be recognized Alth 

. ~ IS year, a loss of S 153 548 d · ougb the 
operations for the year ended May 31 2006 F -'- , IS reqUire to be recognized as an expense of 

1 1 
· · Uouoer manageme t bel' 

to Lle ochon property, estimated at $75 000 will ha~ . n •eves that a portion of the cost relatin 
prOJect. The net remaining amount is re~ord~d . tl c conunumg vatu~ relatmg to the current potential rel!ac 
amount of $854 192 m le statement of poSIIIOn as Joelton property held " I . •on · · oor sa e 10 the 

Proceed~ from bequest receivable, reserve funds and n t . . 
amount to approximately $850,000. e assets which are restricted for relocation costs 

In summary, funds available from the aforementio d 
reserve funds and funds restricted for relocatio ) n~l sources (Joehon property sale, bequest receivable 
. . n wr approxrmate $1 ,629,000. ' 

Add1bonal pertinent information: 

!he College has retained a national recruiting and enrollment man 
mforrnation as to their esrimate of the nu be f F . agement firm. This firm has provided 
fut od m r 0 ree W1ll Baptists who 11 be 

ure pen s. This information has been used b h . . Wl come students at the College in 
re~enues. both commuters and students wh; live~~ ce~mmlstrauon of the College to budget future student 
This ~cans that the College is not counting on a Jar e i ~us . ThiS budget esumates modest enrollment increases. 
operations at the potential new campus. g n ux of funds from student fees to fund the future 

The College mtends to partner with another local . - . 
degree from Free Will Baptist Bible Coll pnvate umversJty to provide a nursing program leading to a 

ege. 

Additional revenues will continue to grow f h N .. 
adult studies and online learning capabilitie:~m t e on-TradJtJOnal Studies Program. This program provides 

The College has selected the construction firm and th . 
completion of the potential relocation . e _archite~tural firm which will be responsible for 

construction proJeCt dunng the fall of 2008. 

The College has expended $49.033 relatjng to Lhe sale of the 
property which has been recorded as an asset . th ti . current campus and purchase of the relocation 
the e . 10 e tnanc•al statements u 1 . 

n w campus, th1s amount will be considered . . f · pon comp eo on of construction of a portiOn o the new campu r d . . s costs •Or eprec.auon purposes. 

14 
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

This summa!)' is provided to help the denominatiOn better understand the overall financial condition of 

Free Will Baptist Bible College. 

Unrestricted Funds Revenues and Expenditures 

Total Unrestricted Funds Revenues for the year endmg May 3 1, 2006, amounted to $5,487,076. Total 
Unrestricted Funds Expenditures were $5,456,385, provtding a $30,691 increase in net assets (or surplus) at 

the end of the fiscal year. 

Cash Flow Statement 

The combined cash flow of the College's operating, investing, capital, and financial activities showed cash 
and cash equivalents decreasing $99,780 in Unrestricted Funds, unchanged in Temporarily Restricted 
Funds. and increasing $69,859 in Permanently Restricted Funds for a cumulative cash flow decrease of 

$29,921. 

Unrestricted Giving 

Private gifts provided $1,237,515 in Unrestricted Funds Revenues. Of that amount, $1,045,498 was 
provided from General Fund gifts, $28,915 from gifts of stock, $147,644 from Estate gifts, $100 from 
Special gifts, and $15,358 from gifts in kind (non-cash gifts of professional labor). 

The college is deeply indebted to our many supporters, for gifts continue to represent a sizable portion of 
FWBBC's revenue stream- your impact is felt by all at FWBBC as demonstrated in the next paragraph. 

General Fund Giving Keeps Tuition Costs Down 

Because of above-mentioned General Fund gifts, tuition paid by FWBBC students was subsidized $105 for 
every semester hour taken in 2005-2006. Or, unrestricted General Fund gifts kept the cost of tuition per 
semester hour at $320, instead of$425. This gift subsidy saved each student taking 30 semester hours (IS 
hours per semester) a total of $3, ISO this past academic year. Without gifts, many of our students would be 

unable to attend FWBBC. 

Financial Obligations 

The College's notes payable and long-term debt decreased slightly, by $31,091. Notes Payable to 
Individuals amount to (A) $104,937 in interest-bearing notes permanently restricted for student loans. 
FWBBC has also drawn (B) $1 ,435,192 on a bank note designed to help fund the acquisition of property 
and the renovation of various buildings on campus. Lastly, the College has a (C) $31,994 balance for a 
grand piano, making the total notes payable and long-term debt S 1,572,123 as of May 31, 2006. 

(A) The College has sufficient cash and savings to liquidate the interest bearing notes permanently 
restricted for student loans, but chooses to keep the $104,937 as part of its student financial aid program. 
{B) As indicated in the notes to the financial statements. the college drew $74,45 I on existing lines of 
credit during 2005-06. Included in the $1 ,435,192 bank debt is the 2003-04 purchase of bouse and lot for 
$650,000. As a result of the renovation activities, campus property values are conservatively estimated to 

have increased at least $2 for every $1 spent. 
(C) The $31 ,994 grand piano note balance is scheduled for maturity by September 2010. 

THIS INFORMATION IS NOT PART OF THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued) 

Investments 

FWBBC's investments heavily involved in securities gained $42,558 due to favorable market conditions. 
Of that amoum, $13,007 was a realized gain. while $29,551 was an unrealized gain. 

Asset to Debt Ra tio 

Total assets amount to $8,418,307. Our long-term liabilities (listed in "Financial Obligations" above) come 
ro $1,572,123, giving a 5.35 to I asset to debt ratio. Adding all other liabilities brings the total to 
$2,134,485, and gives a 3.94 to I asset to debt ratio. 

Sta tements of Financial Position (Balance Sheet) Remains Strong 

Total net assets grew $239,283 to $6,283,822. after deducting total liabilities of $2,134,485 from total 
assets of $8,418,307. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents Remain Steady 

Total cash on hand remained virtually unchanged against the previous fiscal year. Last year's total was 
$1,921,283 agamst this year's $1,891,362, broken down by $1,063,429 in unrestricted current assets, 
$444,616 m restricted endowments, and $383,317 in student loan funds. 

Randall House Operating on C ampus 

The College entered into an agreement and partnered with Randall House Publications for the operation of 
its campus book store and snack shop beginning the fall semester of 2005. This collaborative venture has 
met with great success for both Randall House and FWBBC and provides another link to strengthen our 
national mmistries. As an aside, this undertaking is much like our collaborative agreement with Free WiJI 
Baptist International Missions with our joint Missionary In Residence (MIR) project. 

Relocation Campaign Update 

Be sure to read the auditor's notes to financial statements, especially Note ( 13) entitled- Potential 
Relocation of Campus. 

THIS INFORMATION IS NOT PART OF THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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Free Will Baptist Bible College State Gift Gools 

2006-2007 State Gift Goals 

State Goal 

Alabama ........ ...................................................... S XO,OOO 
Anzona ....................................................... ............ 1 ,200 
Arkansas ............................ ....... ... ......... .......... ....... XlJ 500 
California ..... ........................................................ 12 'ooo 
£?cl~ware ................................................................ 2:200 
Flonda.................. ....................... ... . so 000 
~1eor~1a ........................... ................. ::.: .... :::::::: .. :·, 4o:ooo 

lllOIS ................................................................... 42,000 
Jnd1ana ................... ..................... ....... . .......... . ... 10.000 
Kan.,as ................... . .. 1 000 . . . . . . 0 .......... 0........ .. .. . . . . . . . . . . 
Kentuck:y .................................... ..... ......... . ....... .. 22,000 
LouJsJana .. ........... ..................... .................. . .... 1.000 
Maryland... .......... .................. . .......... ............. . c;oo 
M~chigan ............. .. .......... . ................. ........ ... 16.000 
M ISSiSSlppi ......... .. ......... ......... .......... ....... ... 41 ,000 
Mis~ouri .......................................................... 64,000 

~~~:~~:i~ ....................................................... 150 
0 ........................................... ...... .. .... 300 

~onh Carolina ........................... .. ................. 200 000 
Ohio .................... ........ 3().000 0 l ........................... ......... . ... , 

k ahoma .......................... .................... ........ .. .. 36.000 
Oregon ....................................................................... ISO 
South Carolina ................ ................... ............... 104,000 
Tennessee .......................................................... 250,000 
Texas . . ........................... . . 15 000 . . . .............................. .. ... ' 
Vrrgm Islands ........ .. ..................... ....... ................. 1 000 v . . . 

rrgmla ............... ................................................... 30 000 
Washington ............................................................. 2:ooo 
~~~ V!rgirua ......................................................... 1 0.000 

. (.................. 8000 c ................................................ . 
anada ................................................................... 2 000 

Matching Gifts ' .............................................. ........ 18,000 
Other ............ .................... .......... ... 1 ()()() ........... 0.. . . ... . . . . . . • 

Grand Total .................................................... S 1,300,000 
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FWB Music Commission Report 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

July 16-19, 2006 

The Music Commission has been active in planning the music for the 2006 National 
Convention in Birmingham. AL. The commbsion held its annual meeting at the Free 
Will Baptist National Offices, on January 19-20, 2006. The agenda presented by Chris 

Tructl was as follows: 

I . Evaluate and d iscuss the 2005 National Convention music. 
2. Di~cuss progress on the reprinting of the Rejoice! Hymnal. 
3. Plan the entire music program for the 2006 National Convention. 
4. Discuss futu re projects and vision for the commission. 
5. Elect New Chairman -Chris Truett 

l. Evaluate and discuss the 2005 National Convention music. 
A. Met with Executive Secretary Keith Burden and evaluated the 2005 National 

Convention music . 
B. Got preliminary information on 2006 National Convention Music. 

ll. Review details of the Rejoice! Hymnal reprint. 
o The 3nt printing has gone through with Lhese enhancements: 

• Brighter paper 
• More colors 
• More flexible, since guts arc printed ~epa.rate from covers. 

III. Plan the entire music program for the 2006 National Convention. 
o Select Worship Leaders for 2006 convention. 
o Select choir songs for 2006 convention. 
o Select special music for the 2006 Convent ion (others to he selected as 

suggestions are submitted). 

IV. Discuss future projects and vision for the commission. 
This year·~ Music Commission project consists of two different seminars to be 

pre~ented at the 2006 National Convention: 
I. Projection Systems 101 -How to effectively use a projection system in your 

church 
2. ·'Practical Improvisation for the Church Pianist" presented by James Stevens 

The commission has a hcan for helping our local churches in developing their music 
and worship ministries. Some of the commission members are actively involved in 
helping other churches by presenting workshops for churches in the area of music 
and worship. These types of compilations are an effort to place practical ideas and 
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resources into the hands of our churche~ which will provide Christ-centered. 
passionate, and organized music and worship for our local churches. 

V. Conclusion 
We would like ro thank all those who have contributed to the 2006 National 
Convention music . 1L is a joy to see and hear God's people prai.,ing Him 1n song. 
God does not need our worship; He desires it. A man once asked the question, "Will 
God embrace your worship or will He have to endure it'?" Let's pray that God will 
embrace our worship each time we come before Him. 

There arc numerous opportunities to participate in the convention mu~ic every year. 
The commi~sion would li ke to encourage more people to participate in the 
convention music. An advance schedu le is printed each year in the convention 
edition of ONE Magazi11e and next year we hope to have many other things onl ine. 
Plea~e make plan~ to be involved next year and encourage other.-. to u~e their ta1ents 
for the Kingdom. 

Finally. we would like to thank Dr. Randy Sawyer for his many years of faithful 
service to the Music Commission and to the NationaJ Convention. D r. Sawyer has 
given great leadership through the avenue of music for 13 years (elected in 1993). 
He has taken the commissio n to a higher level and has mentored many Ministers of 
Mu-;ic who arc impacting Free Will Baptists and the Ki ngdom for God. The 
Commission wants to publicly express our gratitude and appreciation to him for his 
leadership and passion fo r developing new young leaders for the denomination! 

Respectfull y submitted, 
The Free Will Baptist Music Commission 

Dr. Randy Sawyer, Chainnan 
Chris Truett, Chairman-Elect 
Donnie Burke 
Doug Liuk 
James Stevens 
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MUSIC COMMISSION FINANCIAL SUMMARY 2005 

Beginning Balance (01 /01 /2005) 
$ 2,923.32 

$ 5,208.09 
Income 

Together Way (undesignated) 
Together Way (designated) 
2004 Together Way 

2004 Rest of the Family Offering 
Convention Booth!Wkshop 

Expenses 
Meetings 

Annual meeting 
Convention meeting 

Convention 
Pre-convention planning 
Convention musicians 
Workshop 
Convention Booth 
2004 Truck/Digest of Reports 
2005 Truck/Digest of Reports 

Office Expenses 
Contents insurance 
Long distance 

Ending Balance (12131/2005) 

$2,236.71 
$1.403.96 
$ 481.70 
$ 36.22 
$1 ,049.50 

$1,161.48 
$ 66.55 

$ 889.68 
$ 750.00 
$ 241.21 
$ 974.41 
$ 206.93 
$ 203 26 

$ 22.10 

$ 0.05 

$ 4,515.67 
$1,228.03 

$3,265.49 

$ 22.15 

$ 3,615.74 

MUSIC COMMISSION BUDGET COMPARISONS 
2005 Budget 2005 Actual 2006 Budget 

Income 
$2,000.00 $2,236 71 $2,000.00 

Together Way (undesignated) 
$500.00 $1 ,403.96 $800.00 

Together Way (designated) $36 22 
Rest of the Family Offering 

$1 .000.00 $1 ,049.50 $1 ,000.00 
Convention BoothiWkshop $481 .70 
2004 Together Way 

$3,500.00 $5.208.09 $3,800.00 
TOTALS 

Expenses 
$1 ,500.00 $1.228.03 $1 ,500.00 

Meetings 
$1 ,500.00 $3,265 49 $1 ,500.00 

ConventiOn 
$500.00 $22.15 $800.00 

Office Expenses 

$3,500.00 $4.515.67 $3,800.00 
TOTALS 
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2007 Budget 

$2,500.00 
$1 ,500.00 

$25.00 
$1 ,000.00 

$5,025.00 

$1 ,275.00 
$3,700.00 

$50.00 

$5,025.00 
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2006 MEDIA COMMISSION REPORT 

The National Association of Free Will Baptists 
Media Commission is happy to report that several projects 
are underway that will help promote the media outreach 

~MEDIA 
~ Commasston 

~ •r ea ,,_• ,.. -.a......,.... 
of our churches and also aid In the promotion of the other 
commissions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. 

First, efforts continue in the compiling of a list of all the Radio and TV programs presently 
being broadcast by the Churches within our denomination. These are being listed by state on the 
Media Commission website- www.FWBMedia.com- and, as soon as we feel the list is as accurate 
as we can make it, our plan is to publish a list of these programs to distribute within our denomination 
in order to increase awareness of this media ministry. 

More and more of our churches are providing live or delayed broadcast of their church services 
via the world wide web. Missionaries, people in other time zones, and people who are hindered 
from attending church due to sickness, job situation, or other circumstances are able to be an 
extended congregation for these churches. The Media Commission would like to include these 
web broadcast services on our web site and in our publication of churches attempting to expand 
their message. Your help in providing information about these programs is greatly appreciated 
(info@ fl.vbmedia.com). 

Secondly, the members of the Media Commission believe that the doctrine, the history, and 
the music of Free Will Baptists needs to be available to as many people as possible. In order to 
facilitate this the Media Commission has purchased and established web sites for the Commission 
for Theological Integrity (www.fwbtheology.com). the Historical Commission (www.fwbhistory.com). 
and the Music Commission (www.fwbmusic.com). The Media Commission will pay the costs of 
these sites and assist our brother commissions with as much help as possible in the development 
of these sites. (This was done without the input of these commissions and they may chose not to 
use this outlet at this present time. In this case the Media Commission will simply hold these web 
sites in reserve). 

We believe Free Will Baptists have the best doctrine and the best people in the world and 
we look forward to assisting this great denomination as it reaches more people, in more ways, than 
ever before. See our website- www.fwbmedia.com- for a complete listing of the resources presently 
available from the Media Commission. 

Mike Jones, Chairman (SC) (info @fwbmedia.com) or (P 0 Box 234, Effingham, SC 29541) 
Doug Kite. Secretary-Treasurer (NC) 
Kevin Norris (Ml) 
Monte McKenzie (GA) 
Sandy Goodfellow (TN) 

Media Commission Budget 
Income: .......... ............... ...... 2005 Budget ...... 2005Actual .... 2006 Budget .... 2007 Budget 
Together Way ......................... $3,000.00 ......... $2,236.71 ........ $2,500.00 ........ $2,500.00 
Designated Gifts ..... .................. $500.00 ............ $803.66 ............ $800.00 ........... $800.00 
Services/Sales ........................... $500.00 ............ $205.00 ............ $300.00 ........... $300.00 
Total ........................................ $4,000.00 ......... $3,245.37 ........ $3,600.00 ........ $3,600.00 
Expense: 
Commission Expense ............. $1 ,000.00 ............ $180.00 ......... $1.000.00 ......... $1 ,000.00 
Product/Web Production ......... $2,500.00 .............. $89.97 .... ..... $2,500.00 ......... $2.500.00 
Convention Expense ................... $500.00 ... ... ........ $00.00 ....... ..... $100.00 .•......... $100.00 
Total ........................................ $4.000.00 ............ $269.97 ......... $3,600.00 ......... $3,600.00 
[The Media Commission presently has $11.000.00 in our account. We are being as frugal as 
possible with our finances in order to save for future projects.] 
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Commission for Theological Integrity Report 

. . . . . o alert our ·ople to theological trends that could 
The purpose of th1s commsssion 15 · ( 1) T pc · 1· that will contribute 

(7. a1 ·nte rity as a denomination, (2) To prepare matena 5 d 
threaten our theoloolC 1 g . J • 't f the denomination and (3) As nee 
to the continued preservation of the the?Joglca '.n~~n t y :hich are pertinent t~ the purpose of the 
and opportunities arise, to conduct semmars on su ~ec s 

commission. . . dour ninth annual T heological Symposium. It met 
On October 24-25, ~005, we s~nsore Oklahoma Papers were read on a variety of 

at Hillsdale Free ~ill Baptist Colle.ge m Moo~e, ualit and ~ontcnt of the papers that are rc ad.in 
subjects. We continue to be en~ouraged by ~h q 2006y :n be conducted at Free Will Baptist 

· The Thcolog1cal Sympostum for WI d 
our Sympostums. . It will begin Monday evening, October 23, an go 
Bible College in Nashv1lle, Tennessee. 

through Tuesday ~vcning, Oct_ob_er 2_4. 000 we introduced the first issue of Integrity: A Joumal 
At the Nauonal Association m 2 , 1. . ·nt venture of the Commission for 

Th ht The publication of the Jouma IS a J01 d 
of Christian ou~ · . . . B'bl C liege Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, an 
Theological lntegnly, Free Wt11 Baptist ' e o , 

Randall House Publications. . 
1 

if Cl . (an Thought will be mailed to our pastors 
The third issue of l nt.egrtty: A Journaf ;

006 
1;~: this issue Dr. Paul Harrison served as 

and denominational leaders 1~ t~~ ~ummer o A . ·. t Ed' tor We are encouraged by the quality 
Editor-in-Chief. Dr. Robert Ptcm llt served as ssocla e ' . I 

, . d . d the gO<Jd re.-;ponse from our pcop e. 
of the papers that we have receive an . ·nar at our National Association on areas 

For several years we have been s~onsonnDg avs:m•. Code" will be condu.cted by Dr. Kevin 
. · ar· "Dcbunkang the a mc1 

of concern. Th1s years semm · 
1
.00_2.30 at the Binningham Convention Center. 

Hester. It is sche~uled on Monday afte~oon,d . . 11-~ea~oned presentatio n on a subject that has 
It will be interestmg to hear a well#studlcd an we 

gained so much attention. . 
We thank you for the privilege of servmg you. 

In His Service, 

Leroy Forlines, Chairman 
Paul Harrison, Secretary 
Matt Pinson 
Steve Ashby 
Craig Shaw 
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2005 
Commission for Theological Integrity 

Financial Report 

Bank Balance - January 1, 2005 

Commission Income 
The Together way 
Interest on Bank Account 
Rest of The Family OHering 
Theological Symposium Papers 
Other Gifts 
Reimbursements 

Total Income 

Commission Expenses 
Bookkeeping 
Convention Speaker/Digest of Reports 
Annual Meeting and Symposium Expenses 
Miscellaneous OHice Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Bank Balance - December 31 , 2005 

2007 

$3.245.85 
8.06 

23.65 
225.00 
127.35 
163.02 

400.00 
937.39 

2,348.92 
155.93 

Commission for Theological Integrity 
Budget 

2005 2005 

Income 
Budget Actuals 

Gifts $1,500.00 $314.02 
Interest Income 50.00 8.06 

Theological Symposium Papers 800.00 225.00 
Together Way Plan 4.000.00 3.245.85 

Total Income 6,350.QQ 3.792.93 

Expenses 
Annual Meeting 2,000.00 2,348.92 
Bookkeeping 400.00 400.00 

Journal Expenses 2,225.00 0.00 
National Convention 600.00 937.39 
Office 125.00 155.93 
Theological Symposium Printing 1,QQO.OO Mill 

Total Expenses $6.350.00 $3,842.24 
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$7,659.19 

3,792.93 

3.842.24 

$7,609.88 

2006 
Budget 

$500.00 
25.00 

800.00 
~.OQO.OO 

4,325.00 

1,600.00 
400.00 

1,000.00 
600.00 
125.00 
6QQ.QQ 

~4.~2~.QQ 

2007 
Budget 

$400.00 
25.00 

300.00 
3.~0Q.QQ 

4,025.00 

1,850.00 
400.00 
550.00 
600.00 
125.00 
QQQ.QQ 

~4,Q2~.QQ 

2006 Historical Commission Report 

The Hi~torical Commis~ion published the second in a ;;eries of hi~torical 
pamphlets this summer. The pamphlet. " f ree Wtll Baptists and the PerseYerance of the 

Saints,'' was \Hinen by Dr. Robert Pici ri lli. 
The Conunis::.ion·~ firM hi~torical pamphlet, ''The Washing of the Saints· Feet."' 

sold out and was reprinted in the new 5 Y2 x 8 1h format. Both pamphlets are avai I able 
and may be ordered from Randall House at a cost of $25 per 50 copies. 

Plans arc underway to publish the third historical pamphlet in rime for distribution 
at the 2007 national convention. The subject will he ''The Priesthood of the Belic.vcr."' 

The Commission installed custom-hui lt bookcases in the History Room at Welcb 
Library on the Free Will Baptist Bible College campus this spring. 

Through volunteer work by Commission member Robert Picirilli. 35 volume::. of 
periodicals were bound and placed in the Historical Collection. More volumes arc being 
prepared for binding (state and national publications, others). 

The Historical Commission commends ONE Maga:ine editor Eric Thomsen for 
developing the historical link on the ONE Maga:ine website and raising denominational 

awareness regarding our rich Free Wi ll Baptil>t heritage. 
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Financial Report 2005 STATISTICAl REPORT-Reporting Period 2005 

Balance on hand {checking at AmSouth) 12/31/2004 ............. . ............ ..... $11.985.30 c.. c.. 
:..c "' "' = 

Depo'ii t!\ 
"' 0 .!?- "' ..... -' 

..... 
CP ....... = CP 

Together Way .......................... _53.033_75 

~ c:: "' ~ 

"' 
.._ -.._ E "' CP E 0 

bO bO 0 CP c.D ~ Q.) Q.) 

Tnteresr (AmSouth Bank} .................. _78_07 
c:: c:: "' - ~ E ::::E ..... "' c.. E 

1::: 1::: 0 "' 
"CC Q.) 0 - Q.. • Q.) - = :e • (.) 

~ule~ (Feet Washing pamphlet) ....... ___ 707_18 
0 0 "' c::> "CC "' "' c::> 

"' c.. c. "' "' 
c::> "CC 0 ..... ~ c::> C::"' 

c:: Q.) Q.) a.. c:: N < -' Q.) c::> N - CP 
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2005 Digest of Reports ............... .. . . $J? _09 Alabama 13 13 143 132 51 92 67 50 359 15,049 572 291 281 15,330 14.094 2,397,532 

Joe McKnight Travel & Lodging ...... £385_00 Arizona I 1 5 5 4 1 3 2 7 135 12 24 · 12 123 134 331,065 

.~obert Picirilli: Writing Pamphlet. ..... $500_00 
Arkansas 15 15 208 192 91 ll7 89 89 612 18,605 1,074 561 513 19,118 19,441 13,020,546 

Assoc. of Mex1co 7 7 31 31 23 8 31 16 1,068 90 3 87 1,155 1.168 5,909 

otal. ....... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $922 09 Cahtorn1a 7 7 53 53 49 4 38 14 316 2,408 166 96 70 2.478 2,462 
••••••• •••• •• •••• 0 •••• 0 0 • • • • • • • • Canada I 1 11 11 2 9 5 4 331 7 10 -3 328 470 294,155 

Balance in bank. December 31 2005 
Colon do I 1 7 7 7 6 1 34 190 28 21 7 197 257 343,500 

. .. . .. .. . .. . .. ... .. .... .. .. $14 882 21 Ronda 9 9 69 69 32 37 38 26 181 5,421 362 327 35 5,456 6,039 2,740,714 
••• 0 ••• 0 •••••••• 0 •••••• . . Geolg1a 10 10 118 Ill 44 74 72 37 234 9,476 506 313 193 9,669 8,958 6,340,618 

Truc;r Pund at f'WB Foundation. December 3 1 1005 
Hawa1i I 1 I I 0 5 3 2 2 38 109,515 

. - . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. $')3 461 84 Idaho 2 2 8 8 8 3 5 22 312 21 11 10 322 285 184,686 
. . . . . . . . . . . - ' . I hno1s 7 7 42 42 25 17 22 10 101 3.408 180 109 71 3,479 3.634 1,936.025 

Toral on hand. December 31 ?005 
lnd1ana 3 3 25 25 17 8 16 10 62 0 75 41 34 34 831 

' - .. .. .. .. .. . .. . .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. $38 344 05 Kansas 2 2 9 9 9 4 4 59 406 28 13 15 421 475 217,612 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . ' . 

Kentucky 10 10 142 141 45 97 38 104 742 15.847 707 366 341 16,188 15,632 2,459,016 

M d-Atlant:c Assoc. I 1 6 4 2 4 6 191 3 0 3 194 571 416,087 

Mexlw Assoc. 4 4 23 23 20 3 6 17 2.233 0 0 0 2,233 2,300 25,800 

MIChigan 6 4 43 36 38 5 25 17 284 4,266 219 11 148 4.414 4,026 1.112.948 

MISSISSIPPI 3 3 48 40 13 35 33 12 105 4,062 204 95 109 4,171 3.086 2.265,596 

M1ssoun 19 17 182 165 90 92 88 74 390 11,677 683 317 366 12.043 12.811 8,039,167 

Montana• 0 0 0 0 0 

2007 Budget 
New Jersey 1 1 2 2 2 I 6 58 6 3 3 61 61 

NewMex1co I 1 3 3 2 I 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 

Income 
North Carolina 8 5 180 118 117 63 91 27 586 10,569 1.140 430 710 11,279 13,047 10,467,464 

Northeast Assoc. I I 4 4 2 2 4 8 278 24 3 21 299 225 

Gifts (Together way) ....... ... . __ . ... . $3,000_00 
Northwest Assoc. I 1 6 6 6 3 2 15 247 20 8 12 259 284 273,000 

Interest 
OhiO 19 19 141 137 55 86 63 71 564 9.689 677 488 189 9,878 10,121 5,059,952 

.......... $100 00 Oklahoma 24 24 239 214 165 74 127 72 755 23.217 1,309 578 731 23.948 17,955 13,814,482 

Total. ................ ·.· .· .·.·. ·. ·.·. ·. ·.· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Pllerto Rico 1 l I I 0 2 0 2 2 

. .. .. ... .. .. .. .. . $3 100 00 South Carolina . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . ' . 6 6 121 121 68 53 98 18 385 6,292 582 201 381 6,673 4.995 4,675,914 

Expenses 
South Dakota • 0 0 0 
Tennessee 8 8 212 187 99 Jl3 105 86 688 19,046 971 380 591 19,637 19,499 9,117,626 

Books, Materials, Labor ....... _ . ... _ .... $:'500.00 
Texas 6 5 49 42 32 17 29 13 153 2,917 260 57 203 3,120 2,485 2,078,151 

Virgm Islands I 1 1 I I I 10 199 4 I 3 202 202 148,552 

Pamphlel Project. ....................... $ 1 ,800_00 
Vngin1a 8 8 87 87 29 58 39 48 133 6,021 176 187 ·11 6,010 4.644 3.674,809 

Research Grant. ........................... $250_00 
West Vngm1a 21 21 178 178 29 149 85 93 429 8,280 123 0 123 8,403 8,403 17 800,000 

Travel .......... ... ... .. ... .. .. ... . .......... $500 00 

WISCOOSIO I I I I 5 67 0 0 0 67 26 32.275 

T 2006 Digest of Reports .................. .. $50.·00 
TOTALS 226 218 2.399 2,207 1.178 1.221 1,210 938 7,261 181,965 10,236 5.008 5,228 187,193 178,659 109,4-42.71& 

oral. ........ •Old not report ............................... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · S3 1 00 00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . 
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Alabama 14 35 16.669,284 212 20 415 6 5 5 6,857 1.174 383 86 
Anzona 4 3 2,549.000 6 2 138 84 27 14 
Arkansas 49 63 67,906.294 314 51 465 4 4 5 10,765 1,992 978 288 1,207,811 
Assoc. of Mexico 9 840.827 21 10 600 200 90 500.000 
Californta 21 15 88 24 60 3 10 9 3 2,885 50 173 80 694.656 
Canada 2 2 2.508,000 6 2 259 60 
Colorado 4 9,050,000 10 3 319 24 18 
Flonda 31 34 17,078,283 94 22 118 4 2 2 2,829 472 395 193 
Georgia 37 63 36.530.539 143 21 355 2 1 2 4,899 895 741 182 375.000 
Hawait I I 1.250,000 2 I 30 3 
Idaho 4 3 1.270,000 II 6 3 1 I 211 8 
IllinOIS 17 ll 14,01 I ,961 57 6 104 2 1 1,691 393 179 59 1.000,000 
lndtana 44 
Kan sas 2, 102.420 11 3 4 416 9 27 
Kentucky 15 4 23.774.220 404 18 346 5,960 941 618 239 
Mtd-Atlantic Assoc. 6 2 1.550,000 6 14 528 
Mextco Assoc. 8 5 597,300 11 52 2.300 275 130.000 
Mtchtgan 13 16,795,500 69 12 59 2,125 125 232 107 
MiSSISSippi 14 25 10,940.850 58 9 136 2 2 2,194 576 184 170 
MISSOUri 52 37 43.380,584 260 35 323 2 2 1 6.694 640 571 180 1.348.170 
Montana• 
New Jersey 382,000 3 3.4 
New Mextco 2 3 2 
North Carolina 41 43 61.768,386 149 46 327 7 6 8 I 8,542 526 840 259 
Northeast Assoc. I 4 3 
Northwest Assoc. 2 4,100,000 9 2 4 I I 269 
OhiO 30 30 50,229.260 300 39 248 2 I I 1 7,S78 211 488 284 
Oklahoma 37 76 84,236,467 378 49 521 4 I 4 12,716 1.794 1.132 194 11,250,000 
Puerto Rtco 1 1 
South Carolina 37 31 29.078,744 174 13 140 4 4 4 2 3,689 866 633 390 1.725.000 
South Dakota• 
Tennessee 63 61 58.378,581 411 72 489 3 3 3 11,342 1.399 1,105 253 
Texas 21 15 15,468,290 56 15 70 I 1,490 98 226 101 
Vtrgm Islands I I 2,350,000 2 2 I 99 80 6 
Virginta 23 8 13.131,300 166 27 195 4 1 3,711 284 442 505 
West Vtrgtnta 178 14 15.000,000 417 15 343 2 I 7.756 417 487 154 
Wtsconsm I 500,000 I I 23 

TOTALS 726 594 603.428,090 3,901 519 4,804 46 48 58 11 5 108.949 13,017 10,411 3.876 18,230,137 

• Did not report 
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